
 

 

Am unrhyw ymholiad yn ymwneud â'r agenda hwn cysylltwch â Charlotte Evans 
 (Rhif Ffôn: 01443 864210   Ebost: evansca1@caerphilly.gov.uk) 

 
Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 19 Mehefin 2019 

 
 
 
 
Annwyl Syr/Fadam, 
 
Bydd cyfarfod Cabinet yn cael ei gynnal yn Ystafell Sirhywi, Tŷ Penallta, Tredomen, Ystrad Mynach ar 
Dydd Mercher, 26ain Mehefin, 2019 am 10.30 am. i ystyried materion a gynhwysir yn yr agenda 
canlynol.  .  Mae croeso i chi ddefnyddio’r iaith Gymraeg yn y cyfarfod, a dylid rhoi cyfnod rhybudd o 3 
diwrnod gwaith os ydych yn dymuno gwneud hynny.  Bydd cyfieithu ar y pryd yn cael ei ddarparu ar gais.. 
 
 
 
 

 
Yr eiddoch yn gywir, 

 
Christina Harrhy 

PRIF WEITHREDWR DROS DRO 
 

A G E N D A 
 

Tudalennau 
  

1  I dderbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb  
 

 
2  Datganiadau o Ddiddordeb. 

 
  

 
 

Atgoffi’r Cynghorwyr a Swyddogion o'u cyfrifoldeb personol i ddatgan unrhyw fuddiannau personol 

Mae pob cyfarfod Pwyllgor yn agored i'r Wasg a'r Cyhoedd. Gofynnir i arsylwyr a chyfranogwyr 
ymddwyn gyda pharch ac ystyriaeth at eraill. Sylwer y bydd methu â gwneud hynny yn golygu y 
gofynnir i chi adael y cyfarfodydd ac efallai y cewch eich hebrwng o'r safle. 
 

Pecyn Dogfennau Cyhoeddus



a/neu niweidiol mewn perthynas ag unrhyw eitem o fusnes ar yr agenda hwn yn unol â Deddf 
Llywodraeth Leol 2000, Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor a'r Cod Ymddygiad ar gyfer Cynghorwyr a 
Swyddogion. 
 
I gymeradwyo a llofnodi’r cofnodion canlynol:- 
 
3  Cynhaliwyd y Cabinet ar 12 Mehefin 2019.  

1 - 8 
 

I dderbyn ac ystyried yr adroddiad(au) canlynol y mae angen penderfyniadau gweithredol arnynt: -   
 
4  Astudiaeth Ddichonoldeb Ansawdd Aer Hafod-yr-ynys.  

9 - 226 
 

5  Grantiau Adfywio - Ymgynghoriad Ehangach.  
227 - 274 

 
6  Adroddiad Ynni a Charbon.  

275 - 312 
 

7  Adriddiad Blynyddol Safonau'r Gymraeg 2017-2018 ac Adroddiad Cynydd Blynyddol ar 
Strategaeth Yr Iaith Gymraeg 2017-2022.  

313 - 362 
 

 
Cylchrediad: 
 
Cynghorwyr 
 C.J. Cuss, N. George, C.J. Gordon, Mrs B. A. Jones, P.A. Marsden, S. Morgan, L. Phipps, D.V. Poole a 
Mrs E. Stenner,  
 
A Swyddogion Priodol. 
 
SUT FYDDWN YN DEFNYDDIO EICH GWYBODAETH 

Bydd yr unigolion hynny sy’n mynychu cyfarfodydd pwyllgor i siarad/roi tystiolaeth yn cael eu henwi yng nghofnodion y cyfarfod 
hynny, weithiau bydd hyn yn cynnwys eu man gweithio neu fusnes a’r barnau a fynegir. Bydd cofnodion o’r cyfarfod gan gynnwys 
manylion y siaradwyr ar gael i’r cyhoedd ar wefan y Cyngor ar www.caerffili.gov.uk. ac eithrio am drafodaethau sy’n ymwneud ag 
eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig.  
Mae gennych nifer o hawliau mewn perthynas â’r wybodaeth, gan gynnwys yr hawl i gael mynediad at wybodaeth sydd gennym 
amdanoch a’r hawl i gwyno os ydych yn anhapus gyda’r modd y mae eich gwybodaeth yn cael ei brosesu. 
Am wybodaeth bellach ar sut rydym yn prosesu eich gwybodaeth a’ch hawliau, ewch i’r Hysbysiad Preifatrwydd Cyfarfodydd 
Pwyllgor Llawn ar ein gwefan http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd  neu cysylltwch â Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol drwy 
e-bostio griffd2@caerffili.gov.uk  neu ffoniwch  01443 863028. 

 

http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd


  

 

 

CABINET 
 

COFNODION Y CYFARFOD A GYNHALIWYD YN NHŶ PENALLTA, TREDOMEN 

AR DDYDD MERCHER, 12 MEHEFIN 2019 AM 10:30 A.M. 
 

 
YN BRESENNOL: 

 
Y Cynghorydd D. Poole – Cadeirydd 

 
Y Cynghorwyr: 

 
 C. Cuss (Gofal Cymdeithasol a Lles), N. George (Gwasanaethau Cymdogaeth), C.J. Gordon 

(Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol), Mrs B. Jones (Cyllid, Perfformiad a Llywodraethu),                        
P. Marsden (Addysg a Chyflawniad), S. Morgan (Economi, Isadeiledd a Chynaliadwyedd), L. 
Phipps (Cartrefi a Lleoedd) ac E. Stenner (Amgylchedd a Diogelwch y Cyhoedd). 

 
 Ynghyd â: 

 
 C. Harrhy (Prif Weithredwr Dros Dro), R. Edmunds (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Addysg a 

Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol), D. Street (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Gwasanaethau 
Cymdeithasol) ac M. S. Williams (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Dros Dro - Cymunedau). 
 

Hefyd yn bresennol: 
 

S. Couzens (Prif Swyddog Tai), S. Harris (Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Gwella Busnes Dros 
Dro), S. Isaacs (Rheolwr Rhenti), L. Lucas (Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cwsmeriaid a Digidol) a 
C. Evans (Swyddog Gwasanaethau Pwyllgor). 

 
 
1. YMDDIHEURIADAU DROS ABSENOLDEB 
 

Ni dderbyniwyd unrhyw ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb. 
 
  
2. DATGANIAD BUDDIANNAU 
 

 Ni chafwyd unrhyw ddatganiadau o fuddiannau ar ddechrau neu yn ystod y cyfarfod.  
 

 
3. CABINET – 29 MAI 2019 
 

PENDERFYNWYD y caiff cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 29 Mai 2019 eu 
cymeradwyo fel cofnod cywir. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 3



  

  
MATERION LLE MAE ANGEN PENDERFYNIADAU GWEITHREDOL 
  
 
4. CREDYD CYNHWYSOL - Y DIWEDDARAF AM DAI. 

 
 Roedd yr adroddiad, a gyflwynwyd i Grŵp Gorchwyl Cartrefi Caerffili ar 16eg Mai 2019 a'r 
Pwyllgor Craffu Tai ac Adfywio ar 11eg Mehefin 2019 yn ceisio cael cytundeb y Cabinet i 
dderbyn diweddariadau rheolaidd ar gyflwyno Credyd Cynhwysol (CC) a'i effeithiau, 
cadarnhau'r dull a ddefnyddir i reoli'r broses o gyflwyno CC a'r cymorth sy'n cael ei gynnig i 
denantiaid Cartrefi Caerffili. 
 
Amlinellodd yr adroddiad effaith CC ar denantiaid y cyngor a Chyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol 
Caerffili ac eglurodd sut mae'r broses o gyflwyno CC yn gweithredu a'r materion sy'n deillio o 
hyn, gan arwain at gynnydd mewn ôl-ddyledion rhent.  Mae lefel yr ôl-ddyledion rhent yn 
sylweddol uwch na lefelau y tenantiaid nad ydynt yn derbyn CC ac mae'n eithaf clir bod llawer 
o denantiaid yn cael trafferth gyda chymhlethdod CC ac mewn perygl o beidio â chael yr hawl 
i gael budd-daliadau llawn. 
 
I gydnabod y problemau sy'n codi o ganlyniad i gyflwyno CC, mae'r adroddiad hefyd yn 
egluro'r goblygiadau ychwanegol o ran adnoddau i Gartrefi Caerffili o ran darparu'r 
mecanweithiau cymorth helaeth yr ystyrir eu bod yn angenrheidiol i'n tenantiaid cynnal eu 
tenantiaethau, uchafu eu hincwm, gwella amodau byw a hefyd cynnal incwm rhent. 
 
Yn ogystal, amlinellodd swyddogion fod y Pwyllgor Craffu Tai ac Adfywio yn gwbl gefnogol i'r 
adroddiad a'r gwaith a wnaed gan staff i gynorthwyo tenantiaid. 
 
Diolchodd y Cabinet i'r Swyddogion am yr adroddiad a chafwyd trafodaeth. 
 
Gofynnodd Aelod, wrth nodi effeithiau CC ar denantiaid, pa adborth sy'n cael ei ddarparu ar 
lefel genedlaethol ac a oes unrhyw beth yn cael ei wneud i gefnogi awdurdodau lleol.  
Esboniodd swyddogion fod Llywodraeth Cymru (LlC) ar hyn o bryd yn cynnal astudiaeth 
blwyddyn o hyd i ystyried effeithiau CC ar denantiaid.  O ganlyniad mae'r Awdurdod yn 
darparu data fel ffigurau ôl-ddyledion rhent ar gyfer y rhai sy'n derbyn CC a’r rhai sydd ddim; 
rhoi systemau cymorth ar waith a chynnal cyfweliadau â'r Ganolfan Cyngor ar Bopeth; bydd yr 
adborth ar ei gyfer yn cael ei goladu a'i adrodd y flwyddyn nesaf.  Yn ogystal, awgrymwyd y 
dylid cynnwys data am y defnydd o fanciau bwyd hefyd. 
 
Cafwyd trafodaethau ynghylch lefelau'r tenantiaid oedd yn derbyn CC ar draws y fwrdeistref a 
nodwyd bod mwy o denantiaid yn derbyn CC yn Rhymni Uchaf a gofynnodd yr Aelodau am 
wybodaeth am brosiectau neu raglenni sydd ar waith i gynnig cefnogaeth a chyfleoedd i greu 
swyddi.  Nodwyd bod blaenoriaeth i gau'r bwlch rhwng Gogledd a De'r fwrdeistref ac mae nifer 
o waith strategol, megis Prif Gynllun Blaenau'r Cymoedd a gwaith cydweithredol gyda 
Blaenau Gwent a Thorfaen o amgylch coridor yr A465 yn sail i gryn dipyn o brosiectau a fydd 
yn helpu i wella rhagolygon o fewn yr ardal. 
 
Gofynnodd Aelod am ragor o wybodaeth am yr effaith y mae CC wedi'i chael ar landlordiaid 
preifat, gan gyfeirio'n benodol at y rheini sydd â phortffolios eiddo llai.  Eglurodd swyddogion, 
er y bu cynnydd mewn ôl-ddyledion o ganlyniad i CC, y bu cynnydd yn nifer y landlordiaid 
preifat sy'n gweithio gyda'r Awdurdod, yn bennaf i helpu i fynd i'r afael â materion yn ymwneud 
â digartrefedd, ond ni fu gostyngiad hyd yma ar nifer y landlordiaid preifat sy'n cymryd rhan, o 
ganlyniad i CC.   
 

 Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd i gymeradwyo argymhellion yr 
adroddiad. Drwy ddangos dwylo cytunwyd hyn yn unfrydol. 

 
PENDERFYNWYD, am y rhesymau a gynhwyswyd yn adroddiad y Swyddog i wneud y 

  canlynol: 

Page 2



  

 
i) Cytunwyd y dylid rhoi diweddariad rheolaidd ar y broses o gyflwyno'r Credyd 

   Cynhwysol a'i effaith; 
 
ii) y dull sy'n cael ei ddefnyddio i reoli'r broses o gyflwyno Credyd Cynhwysol a'r 

   cymorth sy'n cael ei gynnig i denantiaid yn cael ei gadarnhau. 
 
   
5. DARPAR ALLDRO AR GYFER 2018/19 
 

 Rhoddodd yr adroddiad fanylion i'r Cabinet am y darpar alldro ar gyfer y flwyddyn ariannol 
2018/19. 
 
Nodwyd bod Atodiad A i'r adroddiad yn crynhoi'r sefyllfa’r darpar alldro refeniw, sef tanwariant 
net o £13.147m, sy'n cynnwys gorwariant o £550k ar gyfer ysgolion a thanwariant o £5.461m 
ar y Cyfrif Refeniw Tai, a gaiff ei gario ymlaen i flwyddyn ariannol 2019/20 er mwyn cefnogi’r 
rhaglen SATC. 
 
Yn ystod y flwyddyn, mae swyddogion wedi parhau i fod yn ystyriol o'r rhaglen llymder 
parhaus ac mae gwariant wedi'i gwtogi mewn nifer o feysydd i gefnogi'r Cynllun Ariannol 
Tymor Canolig.  Mae'r dull gweithredu darbodus hwn wedi arwain at gyflawni nifer o arbedion 
ymlaen llaw ac felly mae tanwariant yn uwch nag a fyddai'n digwydd fel arfer.  Cafwyd 
manylion am yr amrywiadau mwy sylweddol yn erbyn y gyllideb yn yr adroddiad, ar gyfer pob 
Cyfadran. 
 
Mae Atodiad B i'r adroddiad yn dangos y symudiadau ar gydbwysedd y gronfa gyffredinol o'r 
1af Ebrill 2018 i'r 31ain o Fawrth 2019 ynghyd ag ymrwymiadau cyfredol y cytunwyd arnynt ar 
gyfer 2019/20.  Balans y Gronfa Gyffredinol a ragwelwyd, fel yr adroddwyd i'r Cyngor ar y 
21ain Chwefror 2018, oedd £11.660m.  Y sefyllfa ddiweddaraf yw balans rhagamcanol o 
£14.040m a darparodd y tabl ym mharagraff 5.4 o'r adroddiad fanylion y cynnydd hwn o 
£2.380m. 
 
Cyfanswm y gwariant cyfalaf ar Raglen Cyfalaf SATC ar gyfer 2018/19 oedd £51.9m, sef y 
lefel gwariant uchaf ers i’r Rhaglen SATC ddechrau. 
 
Canlyniad Rhaglen Gyfalaf y Gronfa Gyffredinol ar gyfer 2018/19 oedd cyfanswm cyllid ar 
gael o £64.2m gan gynnwys yr holl ddyraniadau grant ac arian Adran 106 yn ystod y flwyddyn.  
Nid oedd swm o £37.6m wedi'i wario hyd ddiwedd y flwyddyn ariannol, gyda'r rhan fwyaf 
ohono'n llithriad sydd wedi'i gario ymlaen i'r flwyddyn ariannol 2019/20. 
 
Diolchodd y Cabinet i'r Swyddog am yr adroddiad a chafwyd trafodaeth. 
 
Cynhaliwyd trafodaethau ynghylch yr argymhelliad i'r Cyngor y dylid cadw balans y gronfa 
gyffredinol ar £11.660m, fel y cytunwyd yn flaenorol gan y Cyngor ar 21ain Chwefror 2019, 
gan gyfeirio'n benodol at bryderon Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru o fewn materion awdurdodau 
lleol eraill lle mae cronfeydd wrth gefn yn cael eu defnyddio i gynnal gwasanaethau.  Nodwyd 
bod y Swyddog Adran 151 fel arfer yn argymell balans sylfaenol o £10m o'r Gronfa 
Gyffredinol, sef tua 3% o'r gyllideb refeniw net.  Fodd bynnag, byddai angen arbedion 
disgwyliedig o £44m ar gyfer y cyfnod pedair blynedd 2020/21 i 2023/24, ac mae'n anochel y 
bydd angen gwneud rhai penderfyniadau anodd iawn.   
 

 Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd i gymeradwyo argymhellion yr 
adroddiad.  Drwy ddangos dwylo cytunwyd hyn yn unfrydol. 

  

  PENDERFYNWYD, am y rhesymau a gynhwyswyd yn adroddiad y Swyddog i wneud y 
   canlynol: 
 

i) nodi'r sefyllfa darpar alldro 2018/19; 

Page 3



  

 
ii) argymhelliad i'r Cyngor i gael ei gefnogi o ran y dylai balans y Gronfa 

Gyffredinol gael ei gynnal ar £11.660m fel y cytunwyd yn flaenorol gan y 
Cyngor ar 21ain Chwefror 2019; 

 
iii) argymhelliad i'r Cyngor i gael ei gefnogi o ran y dylid trosglwyddo'r cynnydd yng 

nghydbwysedd y Gronfa Gyffredinol o £2.380m dros y lefel a ragwelwyd yn 
flaenorol i'r Cronfeydd Cyfalaf a Glustnodwyd, hyd nes y ceir adroddiad a 
gyflwynir yn ystod yr Hydref mewn perthynas â chronfeydd cyfalaf heb eu 
neilltuo a chynigion ar gyfer buddsoddiadau mewn nifer o brosiectau strategol 
allweddol; 

 
iv) cytuno ar y cynigion fel y nodir ym mharagraffau 5.28 a 5.29 y dylid defnyddio'r 

balans sy'n weddill, sef £192 mil ar gronfa beilot y Gwasanaethau Cymorth 
Maethu Dwys o fewn Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol fel a ganlyn:- 

 

 £91 mil i ariannu 2 Weithiwr Cymdeithasol cyfnod penodol ychwanegol 
am 12 mis i fynd i'r afael ag ôl-groniad mewn adolygiadau achos 

 £72 mil i ariannu ôl-lenwi ar gyfer staff sy'n dilyn Hyfforddiant Gweithiwr 
Iechyd Meddwl Proffesiynol 

 £29 mil i ychwanegu at gronfa wrth gefn Buddsoddi i Arbed penodol 
Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol. 

 
 
6. STRATEGAETH DRAWSNEWID CAERFFILI YN Y DYFODOL - 
 #TÎMCAERFFILI – YN WELL GYDA’N GILYDD  
 

 Roedd yr adroddiad, a ystyriwyd gan y Pwyllgor Craffu Polisi ac Adnoddau ar 28ain Mai 2019, 
a'r fideo yn hysbysu'r Aelodau bod y Strategaeth Drawsnewid yn rhoi manylion model 
gweithredu awdurdod cyfan newydd ar gyfer y Cyngor sy'n archwilio sut y caiff gwasanaethau 
eu blaenoriaethu, sut y gallant ddod yn fwy effeithlon o ran busnes, archwilio cyfleoedd i 
ganolbwyntio mwy ar gwsmeriaid a darpariaeth ddigidol, ystyried modelau cyflwyno amgen a 
chyfleoedd i ddefnyddio gwasanaethau mewn ffordd fwy masnachol. 
 
Nododd y Cabinet fod y model gweithredu sefydliadol presennol yn cael ei ddisgrifio fel un 
"traddodiadol" a'i fod wedi gwasanaethu'r awdurdod yn dda hyd yma.  Fodd bynnag, mae'n 
ofynnol gyrru trawsnewid er mwyn bod yn addas at y diben ar gyfer y degawd nesaf a thu 
hwnt.  Mewn ymateb i hyn, mae'r Awdurdod yn cychwyn ar raglen drawsnewid fawr sy'n cael 
ei lansio fel #TîmCaerffili – Yn Well Gyda'n Gilydd.  Mae'r rhaglen newid uchelgeisiol yn 
mynegi gweledigaeth gyfunol y Cabinet a'r Tîm Arweinyddiaeth Corfforaethol ac mae wedi'i 
datblygu dros y 12 mis diwethaf.  Wrth wneud y strategaeth hon yn realiti, bydd yr angen am 
arweinyddiaeth ddewr yn wleidyddol a gan swyddogion yn hanfodol er mwyn sicrhau y 
cyflawnir y canlyniadau y mae'r Awdurdod yn ceisio eu cyflawni’n llwyddiannus.   
 
Mae'r rhaglen drawsnewid yn amlweddog, ac yn ei hanfod bydd mantra newydd sef “Calon 
Gymdeithasol a Phen Masnachol. Mae hyn yn cydnabod ymrwymiad i wasanaeth cyhoeddus 
ac anghenion dinasyddion, ond mae hefyd yn dangos ymrwymiad i archwilio ffyrdd newydd o 
weithio i gynhyrchu incwm i'w ail-fuddsoddi mewn gwasanaethau i'w helpu i barhau i wrthsefyll 
yn yr hinsawdd ariannol heriol sydd ohoni. Mae rhai o'r prif feysydd ffocws yn cynnwys 
blaenoriaethu gwasanaethau i ddiwallu anghenion preswylwyr; ystyried sut i ddod yn fwy 
effeithlon o ran busnes drwy arloesi a dull strwythuredig o adolygu gwasanaethau; archwilio 
cyfleoedd ar gyfer mwy o gydweithio; gwell ffocws ar gwsmeriaid; mwy o bwyslais ar 
wasanaethau digidol a cheisio mwy o gyfleoedd masnachol. 
 
Cyflwynwyd y Strategaeth Drawsnewid i'r Pwyllgor Craffu Polisi ac Adnoddau ar yr 28ain Mai 
2019 a chymeradwywyd yr argymhellion yn yr adroddiad eglurhaol gan y mwyafrif yn 
bresennol gydag un yn pleidleisio yn erbyn. Ategodd y Pwyllgor Craffu argymhelliad 

Page 4



  

ychwanegol hefyd ar gyfer cyflwyno adroddiad cynnydd bob chwe mis i'r Pwyllgor Craffu cyn 
i'r Cabinet ei ystyried. 
 
Diolchodd y Cabinet i'r Swyddog am yr adroddiad a’r fideo a chafwyd trafodaeth. 
 
Cynhaliwyd trafodaethau ynghylch y Strategaeth Drawsnewid ac annog staff i fod yn arloesol 
ac a ellid cael gwrthdaro o ganlyniad i hynny.  Eglurodd swyddogion fod angen mwy o 
gwmpas y broses a'r gwiriadau a'r cydbwysedd yn eu lle er mwyn sicrhau dull gweithredu 
corfforaethol. 
 
Trafododd y Cabinet y ddarpariaeth o ganolfan blant newydd, a nodwyd, er na wnaed unrhyw 
benderfyniad ffurfiol, y bydd adroddiadau pellach i'r Cabinet i amlinellu prosiect holistig a 
chydweithredol gydag Ysgol a Chanolfan Adnoddau Cae’r Drindod.   
 

 Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd i gymeradwyo argymhellion yr 
adroddiad.  Drwy ddangos dwylo cytunwyd hyn yn unfrydol. 

  

 PENDERFYNWYD am y rhesymau a gynhwysir yn Adroddiad y Swyddog ac yn 
amodol ar argymhelliad ychwanegol (v): 

 
i) i gytuno cynnwys y Strategaeth a'r Cynllun Strategol fel y'u hatodwyd i'r  
  adroddiad    
 
ii) i neilltuo £425 mil i ariannu tair swydd cyfnod penodol am 2 flynedd  
  gychwynnol i ddarparu'r capasiti ychwanegol sydd ei angen i gefnogi'r gwaith o 
  gyflawni'r strategaeth; 
 
iii) y caiff y £425 mil ar gyfer y tair swydd cyfnod penodol arfaethedig ei ariannu o'r 

gronfa wrth gefn £1.8m a glustnodwyd a gymeradwywyd gan y Cyngor ar 31ain 
Gorffennaf 2018, a sefydlwyd i ddarparu cyllid ar gyfer costau untro sy'n 
gysylltiedig â chyflenwi arbedion i gefnogi'r Cynllun Ariannol Tymor Canolig; 

 
iv) y dylid dod ag adroddiadau cynnydd bob chwe mis ar y Strategaeth  
  Drawsnewid i’r Pwyllgor Craffu Polisi ac Adnoddau cyn ei ystyried gan y  
  Cabinet 
 
v) bod penderfyniadau penodol ynghylch gwahanol elfennau'r rhaglen yn cael eu 
  cyflwyno i'r Cabinet i'w ystyried wedi hynny. 

 
 
7. STRATEGAETH A CHYNLLUN GWEITHREDU STRATEGOL GWASANAETHAU 
 CWSMERIAID A DIGIDOL 
 

 Roedd yr adroddiad, a gyflwynwyd i'r Pwyllgor Craffu Polisi ac Adnoddau ar 28ain Mai 2019, 
yn amlinellu ac yn ceisio cymeradwyaeth i'r Strategaeth Cwsmeriaid a Digidol drafft a'r 
Cynllun Gweithredu Strategol cysylltiedig ar gyfer CBS Caerffili. 
 
Drwy gyfrwng rhyngwyneb digidol rhyngweithiol a fydd ar gael ar wefan y cyngor a chaiff ei 
ddiweddaru'n barhaus, cyfeiriwyd y Cabinet at adrannau allweddol y Strategaeth fel y'u 
hatodwyd i'r adroddiad.  Dywedwyd wrth yr Aelodau fod y Strategaeth yn nodi gweledigaeth 
arfaethedig ar gyfer "buddsoddi yn ein dyfodol drwy agor y drws ffrynt digidol".  Mae'r 
Strategaeth yn cynnwys nifer o egwyddorion arweiniol a naratif ar gyfer #CaerffiliDdigidol, gan 
gynnwys cysylltedd â chwsmeriaid a staff drwy'r "drws ffrynt digidol" hwn, a fydd yn helpu ac 
yn cefnogi busnesau drwy ysgogi atebion arloesol, yn cwmpasu Agenda Cymru ehangach 
drwy lynu at egwyddorion digidol a datblygu safonau gwasanaeth digidol, a bydd yn cysylltu'n 
fewnol â diwylliant digidol i hyrwyddo a chefnogi'r defnydd o dechnoleg gyfoes.  Mae'r Cynllun 
Gweithredu sydd ynghlwm wrth y Strategaeth yn cyflwyno blaengynllun gwaith a 

Page 5



  

gweithgareddau i gyflawni Amcanion Allweddol y Strategaeth, a bydd y Strategaeth yn gosod 
y llwyfan ar gyfer y cyfeiriad teithio i'r gwasanaeth a'r Cyngor yn y dyfodol. 
 
Nododd y Cabinet y bydd y Strategaeth yn rhoi'r cwsmer wrth wraidd y broses o ddarparu 
gwasanaethau, tra hefyd yn parhau i gefnogi gwasanaeth cwsmeriaid traddodiadol a dull 
personol.  Pwysleisiodd swyddogion na fydd y strategaeth yn cael gwared ar y gwasanaethau 
cwsmeriaid presennol ond yn hytrach y bwriad yw gwella'r gwasanaethau hyn.  Nodwyd ei 
bod yn bwysig i'r Cyngor gadw ei allu i gyfeirio ei adnoddau ei hun er mwyn cyflawni'r 
strategaeth hon yn llwyddiannus, ac er nad yw hyn yn cau'r drws ar gydweithrediadau TGCh a 
darpariaeth ddigidol yn y dyfodol, bydd yn galluogi'r Cyngor i ganolbwyntio ar y tasgau wrth 
law ar adeg allweddol yn ei thaith drawsnewid.  Nodwyd er bod y Cabinet wedi cymeradwyo'r 
cynnig i neilltuo £600 mil i ariannu rhai o'r buddsoddiadau cychwynnol i gefnogi'r strategaeth, 
rhagwelir y bydd angen buddsoddiad pellach yn y dyfodol ac y bydd yn amodol ar 
adroddiadau Cabinet pellach wrth i bethau symud ymlaen. 
 
Diolchodd y Cabinet i'r Swyddog am yr adroddiad a’r cyflwyniad a chafwyd trafodaeth. 
 
Gofynnodd un o'r Aelodau am sicrwydd y bydd gwasanaethau ar gael i'r trigolion hynny nad 
ydynt yn dda gyda systemau digidol.  Esboniodd swyddogion nad oes unrhyw gynlluniau ar 
hyn o bryd i gau neu i ddileu unrhyw wasanaethau sy'n cael eu darparu gan wasanaethau 
cwsmeriaid ar hyn o bryd.  Bydd cymorth ychwanegol ar gael i bobl sy'n defnyddio 
gwasanaethau i'w helpu i wasanaethu eu hunain yn y dyfodol, ac mae'r rhaglen ddigidol yn 
anelu at wella'r gwasanaethau presennol, gan ddarparu gwasanaethau ar-lein i'r rhai sy'n 
dymuno defnyddio gwasanaethau'n ddigidol. 
 
Cafwyd trafodaethau ynghylch y llwyfan digidol a gofynnodd yr Aelodau am sicrwydd y 
byddai'r platfform yn cael ei ddiweddaru'n gyson.  Eglurodd swyddogion y bydd rhoi mwy o 
wasanaethau digidol ar waith yn golygu yn y pen draw bod gan staff fwy o allu i ddiweddaru a 
chynnal y gwasanaethau ar-lein.  O ran newidiadau i staff a manylion cyswllt ar y platfform, 
nodwyd y gall y rhain gael eu diweddaru o fewn 24 awr, ar yr amod bod gwybodaeth yn cael 
ei darparu mewn modd amserol. 
 

 Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd i gymeradwyo argymhellion yr 
adroddiad.  Drwy ddangos dwylo cytunwyd hyn yn unfrydol. 

  

  PENDERFYNWYD am y rhesymau a gynhwysir yn adroddiad y swyddog, fod y  
   cwsmer a bydd y strategaeth ddigidol a'r cynllun gweithredu strategol, fel y'u hatodir i'r 
   adroddiad, yn cael eu cymeradwyo. 
 
 
8. EGWYDDORION GWEITHREDU MICROSOFT O365 
 

 Roedd yr adroddiad, a gyflwynwyd i'r Pwyllgor Craffu Polisi ac Adnoddau ar 28ain Mai 2019 
yn amlinellu'r egwyddorion ar weithredu'r datrysiad ‘Office 365’ (O365) ar gyfer Cyngor 
Bwrdeistref Sirol Caerffili. 
 

 Nodwyd, yn unol â Strategaeth Cwsmeriaid a Digidol y Cyngor, fod yr awdurdod wedi bod yn 
ymchwilio i weithredu’r fersiwn ddiweddaraf o becyn swyddfa ‘Microsoft Office 365’ (O365).  
Mae'r adnoddau hyn yn cynnig cyfres estynedig o ddulliau cynhyrchiant a chydweithio dros 
gyfres bresennol Microsoft Office, a byddant yn cynorthwyo gyda rhwystrau a heriau bob dydd 
y mae swyddogion yn eu cael wrth weithio'n effeithiol, yn effeithlon ac yn gydweithredol yn yr 
amgylchedd systemau presennol.  Bydd yr ystod cynnyrch newydd yn cefnogi'r Strategaeth 
Cwsmeriaid a Digidol arfaethedig a'r Strategaeth Drawsnewid ehangach, a bydd yn seiliedig 
ar y Cwmwl er mwyn manteisio i'r eithaf ar gyfleoedd storio.   
 

 Gofynnwyd i'r Cabinet ystyried y goblygiadau ariannol a nodwyd yn yr adroddiad, ac er bod y 
costau hyn yn ymddangos yn sylweddol, esboniwyd nad oes opsiwn i barhau â'r model 
presennol o gynnig a phrisio Microsoft.  Ar hyn o bryd ariennir y trwyddedau o Gronfa 

Page 6



  

Amnewid Cyfrifiaduron ac yn seiliedig ar ymfudiad cyfartal o'r gweithlu i O365 dros y 18 mis 
nesaf, bydd y costau'n cynyddu gan £13.58 mil yn 2019/20 gyda chynnydd pellach o £172.5 
mil yn 2020/21. Mae trwyddedau a darparwyr eraill ar gael ond byddai cost y drwydded a 
chost y newid yn sylweddol ac yn gyfyngol. Ar ddiwedd y cytundeb Microsoft hwn (2020), 
bydd y Cyngor yn ymrwymo i gytundeb newydd a fydd yn pennu'r costau uned ar gyfer y tair 
blynedd ddilynol ac amcangyfrifir y bydd yn £720 mil y flwyddyn, sef tua 20% o gynnydd ar 
gostau 2020.  Gofynnwyd i'r Aelodau nodi bod y sector cyhoeddus ledled Cymru wedi gweld 
cynnydd o 50%-60% yn y pris ar eu trwyddedau Microsoft wrth symud i O365 yn ystod y 
blynyddoedd diwethaf.  Bydd goblygiadau ariannol y mudo hwn i O365 yn cael eu hadolygu'n 
fanwl yn ystod y broses weithredu a bydd y cyllid ychwanegol sydd ei angen yn cael ei 
gynnwys yn y broses o bennu'r gyllideb ar gyfer y blynyddoedd ariannol 2020/21 a 2021/22. 
 
Diolchodd y Cabinet i'r Swyddog am yr adroddiad a chafwyd trafodaeth. 
 
I gefnogi'r datblygiadau, holodd Aelod o'r Cabinet a oedd yr holl lwyfannau eraill wedi cael eu 
hystyried.  Esboniodd swyddogion fod nifer o opsiynau amgen wedi'u hystyried, fodd bynnag 
mae costau sylweddol yn gysylltiedig â newid, gan gynnwys costau hyfforddi, a gallent arwain 
at anawsterau o ran cydweithredu a hyd yn oed ynysu, gan fod y rhan fwyaf o Awdurdodau 
Lleol bellach wedi symud i O365. 
 
Holodd Aelod a ellid cael unrhyw opsiynau ar gyfer gwneud arbedion neu annog refeniw o 
ganlyniad i'r rhaglen weithredu. Eglurodd swyddogion fod O365 yn cael ei ddefnyddio i'w lawn 
botensial, mae posibilrwydd y gallai ddisodli 10 cais arall, gan wneud arbedion. Yn ogystal, 
nodwyd, gan fod O365 yn seiliedig ar y Cwmwl, y byddai hefyd arbedion o ran gweinyddion a 
storio. 
 

 Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd i gymeradwyo argymhellion yr 
adroddiad.  Drwy ddangos dwylo cytunwyd hyn yn unfrydol. 

  

  PENDERFYNWYD, am y rhesymau a gynhwysir yn adroddiad y swyddog, i weithredu 
   datrysiad Office 365 i Gyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Caerffili, fel y nodir yn yr adroddiad.
     
 
 

Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 11:47 am. 
 

Wedi'i gymeradwyo a'i lofnodi fel cofnod cywir yn amodol ar unrhyw gywiriadau a wneir yn y 
cyfarfod i’w gynnal ar 26 Mehefin 2019. 
 
 

____________________ 
CADEIRYDD 

 
 

Page 7



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 8



 

 

 
CABINET – 26TH JUNE 2019 

 
SUBJECT: HAFOD-YR-YNYS AIR QUALITY FEASIBILITY STUDY – FINAL PLAN 
 
REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION AND CORPORATE 

SERVICES  
 
 
1.1 The attached report is due to be considered by the Environment and Sustainability Scrutiny 

Committee on 25th June 2019, prior to its referral to Cabinet.   
 
1.2 The views expressed at the meeting and the recommendations of the Scrutiny Committee will 

be reported verbally to Cabinet on 26th June 2019. 
 
 
Author:  C. Evans, Committee Services Officer, Ext. 4210 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix Report to Environment and Sustainability Scrutiny Committee on 25th June 2018 - 

Agenda Item 8 

Page 9

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 4



APPENDIX 

 
 
 

ENVIRONMENT & SUSTAINABILITY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - 
25TH JUNE 2019  

 
SUBJECT: HAFOD-YR-YNYS AIR QUALITY FEASIBILITY STUDY - FINAL PLAN 
 
REPORT BY: INTERIM CORPORATE DIRECTOR, COMMUNITIES  
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 To consider the findings of the public consultation exercise together with consideration of the 

Final Plan (Appendix 1) and preferred option for achieving compliance with the Ambient Air 
Quality Directive at Hafod-yr-ynys prior to presentation to Cabinet for a decision. 

 
 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 The national nitrogen dioxide air quality objectives are being exceeded at receptor locations 

on Hafod-yr-ynys Road.  The continuous nitrogen dioxide monitor at Hafod-yr-ynys forms part 
of DEFRA’s national Automatic Urban and Rural Network (AURN).  The AURN is a network of 
continuous monitors throughout the UK that inform a national Pollution Climate Model which is 
used for air quality reporting purposes to Europe to demonstrate compliance with the Ambient 
Air Quality Directive.  Caerphilly County Borough Council and Cardiff City Council are two 
local authorities in Wales that are highlighted in the National Nitrogen Dioxide Plan as having 
locations that fail to comply with the Ambient Air Quality Directive. 

 
2.2 In February 2018 Welsh Government issued an Air Quality Direction to Caerphilly CBC to 

undertake a feasibility study for the area and to determine a preferred option or basket of 
options which will achieve compliance with the Ambient Air Quality Directive air quality limit 
value for nitrogen dioxide in the ‘shortest possible time’. The draft Final Plan identified that 
demolition of the properties on the south side of the A472 would achieve compliance in the 
shortest possible time, by 2023 (now anticipated to be 2022).  However, under the ‘Do 
Minimum’ option modelling predicts delivery of air quality compliance by 2025. 

 
2.3 At its meeting of 27th March 2019 Cabinet expressed concerns at the prospect of residents 

being pushed into financial hardship by any compulsory purchase process. Cabinet had 
strong concerns that residents would be unable to buy an equivalent property in the locality, 
that perhaps retired residents might be forced to take out a mortgage, or that owners might 
have to turn to rented accommodation. Having regard to the financial wellbeing of the 
residents of the area and to prevent any financial hardship and resultant stress Cabinet 
resolved to undertake a public consultation on the ‘Do Minimum’ option and the draft Final 
Plan. Welsh Government subsequently confirmed that it would make funding available 
including the potential for applying the value of a new similar property as opposed to the 
market value of the house being demolished. The draft Final Plan and proposed preferred 
option of “Do Minimum” were the subject of a public consultation undertaken between 4th 
April 2019 and 11th June 2019. The outcome of the public consultation exercise did not 
support the ‘Do Minimum’ option.  

 

Page 10



APPENDIX 
2.4 Scrutiny Committee are therefore asked for their views on the Final Plan (attached as 

Appendix 1) and the proposed preferred option of purchase (at 150% of the valuation) and 
demolition of the properties on the south side of the A472 at Hafod-yr-ynys to achieve 
compliance in the shortest possible time prior to presentation to Cabinet for a decision. The 
completed Final Plan and preferred option must be submitted to Welsh Government by the 
30th June 2019 at the latest. 

 
 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 That Scrutiny Committee considers the findings of the public consultation exercise together 

with consideration of the Final Plan (Appendix 1) and proposed preferred option of purchase 
(at 150% of the valuation) and demolition of the properties at 1-20 Woodside Terrace, 1&2 
Woodside Shops and Yr Adfa on the south side of the A472 together with re-alignment of the 
footpath for achieving compliance with the Ambient Air Quality Directive at Hafod-yr-ynys prior 
to presentation to Cabinet for a decision. 

 
 
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 So that Cabinet can take into account the views of the Environment and Sustainability 

Scrutiny Committee when considering the findings of the public consultation exercise. 
 
4.2 To mitigate any potential impacts on health and to comply with the statutory obligations of the 

local authority. 
 
4.3 To ensure that work required from the Air Quality Direction issued to the local authority by 

Welsh Government is progressed effectively and the Final plan is submitted by the deadline of 
the 30th June 2019.  

 
 
5. THE REPORT 
 
5.1 The national nitrogen dioxide air quality objectives are being exceeded at receptor locations 

on Hafod-yr-ynys Road.  The local authority is required to designate any area failing the 
national air quality objectives as an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) and produce an Air 
Quality Action Plan (AQAP) which details measures to bring the pollutant back within 
acceptable limits.  The AQAP was approved by Cabinet and subsequently Welsh Government 
in March 2018. 

 
5.2 In addition to providing results which inform the Local Air Quality Management regime and 

action planning process, the continuous nitrogen dioxide monitor at Hafod-yr-ynys also forms 
part of DEFRA’s national Automatic Urban and Rural Network (AURN).  The AURN is a 
network of continuous monitors throughout the UK that inform a national Pollution Climate 
Model which is used for air quality reporting purposes to demonstrate compliance with the 
Ambient Air Quality Directive.  Hafod-yr-ynys and some locations in Cardiff are two areas in 
Wales showing non-compliance with the Ambient Air Quality Directive. 

 
5.3 ClientEarth, a not for profit environmental law organisation, has successfully challenged UK 

and Welsh Governments in the courts in relation to compliance with the European Ambient Air 
Quality Directive. In February 2018 Welsh Government issued an Air Quality Direction to 
Caerphilly CBC to undertake a feasibility study for the area and to determine a preferred 
option or basket of options which will achieve compliance with the legal limits for nitrogen 
dioxide in the ‘shortest possible time’. On 18th March 2019 the Council received a letter from 
ClientEarth setting out its position on the legal tests that the Council’s plan must satisfy. The 
High Court judgement obtained by Client Earth sets out a three-part test for assessing air 
quality plans. The test requires that plans must: 

 

Page 11



APPENDIX 
1. Aim to achieve compliance as soon as possible; 
2. Choose a route to compliance which reduces human exposure as quickly as possible; and 
3. Ensure that compliance with the limit values is not just possible but likely. 

 
5.4 The findings of the Final Plan for this study at Appendix 1 conclude that demolition of the 

dwellings at Woodside Terrace, to include 1&2 Woodside Shops and Yr Adfa and re-
alignment of the footpath will deliver compliance in the shortest possible time. Demolition is 
expected to be preceded by a compulsory purchase process which, allowing for the potential 
for a Public Inquiry should there be any objections, means that compliance is likely to be 
achieved by 2022 (but could be sooner if all dwellings could be purchased by negotiation). 
This option does not reduce emissions though does remove public access to relevant 
roadside locations and therefore bring about compliance as required by the Direction. 

 
5.5 The study indicates that the NO2 limit value can be met in 2025 in a Do Minimum scenario. 

This is because fleet renewal in years to come is predicted to deliver air quality improvements 
without local intervention. However, this is dependent on later iterations of Euro engine 
standards delivering predicted reductions in emissions of nitrogen oxides. 
 

5.6 The Air Quality Direction issued by Welsh Government requires the Council to identify in detail 
the preferred option for delivering compliance in the shortest possible time. Modelling predicts 
that a do minimum option will bring about compliance with the objective by the year 2025. 
Introduction of a Clean Air Zone was initially predicted to bring about compliance by the year 
2026, however further research in to the introduction of Clean Air Zones has concluded that 
existing legislation can be used to introduce a charging zone and as such the Clean Air Zone 
would be predicted to achieve compliance by 2023.  However a further feasibility study would 
be required to fully understand the displacement effects of traffic and whether any 
infrastructure / upgrading works would be required on alternative routes.   

 
5.7 In addition to the time factor relating to a clean air zone, the A472 at Hafodyrynys is an 

integral part of the main cross valley link between Caerphilly and Torfaen County Boroughs 
and designation of this section of highway as a clean air zone (with either a clean air charging 
regime or prohibition of certain vehicles) would have a significant detrimental effect on the 
economy of both County Boroughs.  Furthermore, displacement of traffic north or south would 
be likely which would have an effect on air quality in other valley locations (north to Blaenau 
Gwent or South to Abercarn, Cwmcarn and Crosskeys).  This traffic displacement is also likely 
to contribute further to the volume of traffic using the M4 in and around the Brynglas tunnels.    

 
5.8 Demolition of the dwellings at 1-20 Woodside Terrace, 1&2 Woodside Shops and Yr Adfa with 

re-alignment of the footpath is predicted to bring about compliance by the year 2022. 
Therefore purchase of the properties and demolition is predicted to achieve compliance in the 
shortest possible time.  

 
5.9 As stated above, demolition of the properties is predicted to achieve compliance in the 

shortest possible time. It is hoped that the acquisition of the properties could be achieved by 
agreement, but it may be necessary for the Council to acquire the properties and land through 
a compulsory purchase process. The Council will need to seek Welsh Government approval 
for a Compulsory Purchase Order and be able to demonstrate that taking the land is 
necessary and that there is a compelling case in the public interest.  

 
5.10 The 23 properties at Woodside Terrace, Woodside Shops and Yr Adfa are a mix of owner 

occupiers and private rented tenants. At a meeting held on 12th March 2019, strong concerns 
were expressed by the residents regarding the amount of financial  compensation likely to be 
payable for the acquisition of their properties. Some residents also expressed concerns 
regarding health impacts resulting from the high levels of pollution, including asthma. At the 
meeting the Council was asked by residents to lobby Welsh Government to request additional 
compensation payments that would allow the residents to purchase homes in the general 
locality; this request was expedited three days later. 

 

Page 12



APPENDIX 
5.11 At its meeting of 27th March 2019 Cabinet considered the draft Final Plan and preferred 

option. As demolition of the properties was likely to be preceded by a compulsory purchase 
process involving market value payments to owners the potential for hardship to residents 
was a very real concern. Cabinet had strong concerns that residents would be unable to buy 
an equivalent property in the locality, that perhaps retired residents might be forced to take out 
a mortgage, or that owners might have to turn to rented accommodation. Having regard to the 
financial wellbeing of the residents of the area and to prevent any financial hardship and 
resultant stress Cabinet resolved to consult on the “Do Minimum” option as the preferred 
option for securing compliance with the Air Quality Directive. Cabinet also agreed that the 
Council would lobby Welsh Government for additional financial support, in order to prevent 
those affected residents being forced into financial hardship if the demolition option is to 
progress. 

 
5.12 The draft Final Plan and proposed preferred option of “Do Minimum” were the subject of a 

public consultation undertaken between 2nd April 2019 and 11th June 2019. There were 54 
responses to the consultation (although not all respondents answered every question in the 
consultation questionnaire), including 12 indicating that they were residents of properties on 
the south side of the A472 at Hafodyrynys. In relation to the ‘Do minimum’ option, 49 people 
disagreed with the proposal and 4 of the respondents agreed. One of the respondents did not 
answer the question.  Many respondents commented on the potential for adverse health 
impacts on the residents and their poor quality of life caused by traffic and congestion. 22 
respondents agreed and 30 disagreed with the outcome of the draft Final Plan with 2 
respondents not answering the question. This is difficult to draw conclusions from, but on 
reviewing the comments submitted with responses it seems likely that many respondents did 
not appreciate that demolition of the properties was the outcome identified in the draft Final 
Plan. A Consultation Summary Report is provided at Appendix 2. 

 
5.13 In a letter to the Council dated 9th April 2019 the Minister for Environment, Energy and Rural 

Affairs confirmed that Welsh Government will make adequate funding available for purchase 
and demolition of the properties and realignment of the footpath should this prove necessary, 
including the potential for applying the value of a new similar property as opposed to market 
value of the house being demolished. Section 2 of the Local Government Act 2000 gives 
Local Authorities the legal capacity to do anything which they consider is likely to promote or 
improve the social, economic and environmental wellbeing of their area. This would address 
Cabinet’s previously expressed concern that residents should not be placed in financial 
hardship. 

 
5.14 A review of the price of properties for sale in the area indicates that acquisition of the affected 

properties at market value would not enable residents to purchase a property similar to that 
which they currently occupy within the borough. Valuations of the affected properties range 
from £50,000 to £100,000. A review of the availability and prices of properties for sale has 
been undertaken and it is suggested that if purchase of the properties and demolition were 
pursued a purchase price of 150% of the market valuation, this would be the most equitable 
way of ensuring that residents could buy a similar property within the borough. This would 
mean that an owner occupier would receive 150% of market value, plus a Home Loss 
Payment which is 10% of original market value, plus any reasonable disbursements for selling 
/ buying and moving. By way of example this would mean that an owner occupier of a property 
valued at £70,000 would receive approximately £112,000 plus any reasonable disbursements.   

 
5.15 Disbursement costs would include surveyors fees, solicitors fees, travelling expense for 

finding a new property, potential abortive costs if a purchase does not complete, land 
transaction tax, removal expenses, possible interest and bank charges and any double 
overheads (if a new property is acquired before the old property completes), any particular 
adaptation costs to adapt the new property in the same manner as the current one (perhaps 
disabled access for instance), telephone and service connection charges if incurred, costs to 
redirect mail, any losses due to forced sale (perhaps where items cannot be relocated), costs 
to re-plumb appliances if incurred.  Whilst the legislation does not put a cap on such claims, all 
claimants have a duty to mitigate their loss.  The Council’s Principal Valuer has visited many 

Page 13



APPENDIX 
properties along the street and would estimate a disturbance claim for a freehold owner 
occupier not to exceed £5000 or £3000 for a tenant. 

 
5.16 Section 2(1) of the Local Government Act 2000 gives a local authority a wide ranging 

discretionary power to do anything that it considers is likely to promote or improve the 
environmental, economic and social well-being of their area and persons within that area, or 
either of those. It is considered that this Power to promote or improve Economic, Social or 
Environmental Well-Being provides the legal basis for purchasing the properties at above 
market value. 

 
5.17 Purchasing properties by agreement would enable the demolition to proceed more quickly 

than any compulsory purchase process, and this is the favoured approach.  However, it is still 
possible that some owners may not voluntarily agree to sell their property; it is therefore 
recommended that a Compulsory Purchase process is initiated to operate in parallel, to 
prevent any delays in the project timescales.   

 
5.18 A detailed Impact Assessment Report (IAR), containing the business case to deliver the 

demolition scheme will be submitted to Welsh Government to support the Final Plan. 
 
5.19 Conclusion 
 
 The Council is required to determine a preferred option which will achieve compliance with the 

Ambient Air Quality Directive limit value for nitrogen dioxide in the ‘shortest possible time’. The 
option of purchasing and demolishing the properties on the south side of the A472 at Hafod-
yr-ynys has been identified as achieving compliance in the shortest possible time. The 
outcome of the public consultation exercise did not support the ‘Do Minimum’ option. Welsh 
Government’s confirmation of the availability of funding serves to address Cabinet’s 
previously expressed concern that residents should not be placed in financial hardship. It is 
therefore proposed that purchase (at 150% of the valuation), demolition of the properties and 
realignment of the footpath is confirmed as the preferred option. 

 
 
6. ASSUMPTIONS 
 
6.1 The following tables detail assumptions and comments for each of the two options: 
 

Measure 
 

Compliance 
Date 

Assumptions and comments 

 
Do 

Minimum 
 

 
2025 

 
• Does not achieve compliance in the shortest 

possible time. 
 

• Initial Data used to inform the model has been 
fairly robust; including traffic counts, fleet 
analysis, junction counts, emission studies of 
vehicles using the route, air quality data (real time 
and diffusion tubes). 

 
• The model is based on air quality data from 2017, 

which produced an annual average of 70 µg/m³, 
however the annual average for 2018 decreased 
to 62 µg/m³. This is an exceptional significant 
reduction; which if repeated may see compliance 
sooner. However, if it is an anomaly, compliance 
may take longer to achieve.   

 
• National growth factors are used to predict traffic 

in future years 
Page 14



APPENDIX 
• In terms of air quality certain assumptions are 

made about the fleet becoming cleaner year on 
year and the reality is this may not happen as 
quickly, which can then affect the model 
outcomes. 

 
• The outcome of the public consultation did not 

support this option.  
 

• Models have limitations and have to be treated 
with caution. 

 
 

Measure 
 

Compliance 
Date 

Assumptions and comments 

 
Purchase  

and 
Demolition 

 

 
By 2022 

allowing 1 
year for 
public 

enquiry and 
working with 

those 
residents 

who wish to 
voluntarily 

give up their 
property.  

 
• Would achieve compliance in the shortest 

possible time. 
 

• Removes the receptor (residents) from area - so 
positive health gain. 

 
• Applying a purchase value of 150% of market 

value as opposed to market value of the house 
being demolished would reduce the possibility of 
some residents facing financial hardship.  

 
• Stress/disruption of having to vacate family 

homes and relocate. 
 
• Residents have been given the opportunity to 

discuss their initial property valuations. 
 
• Meetings with residents have been held to 

discuss the outcomes of the study and the way 
forward with strong concerns being expressed 
regarding their ability to secure alternative homes 
in the locality.  

 
• There is the possibility that the Compulsory 

Purchase Order process may be challenged 
resulting in a Public Inquiry.  

 

7.  LINKS TO RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES 
 
7.1 Local Air Quality Management (LAQM) is a statutory requirement.  Addressing air quality 

contributes to the Caerphilly Public Services Board Well-being Plan 2018-2023, supporting 
the Positive Change, Positive People and Positive Places objectives.  

 
7.2 The work also supports the following Corporate Well-being Objectives, identified within the 

Council’s Corporate Plan 2018-2023: 
 

• WBO 4: Promote a modern, integrated and sustainable transport system that increases 
opportunity, promotes prosperity and minimises the adverse impacts on the environment. 

Page 15



APPENDIX 
• WBO 5: Creating a county borough that supports a healthy lifestyle in accordance with the 

Sustainable Development Principle within the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) 
Act 2015. 

 
7.3 Addressing air quality contributes to the following Well-being goals within the Well-being of 

Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015: 
 

 A prosperous Wales 
 A resilient Wales 
 A healthier Wales 
 A more equal Wales 
 A Wales of cohesive communities 
 A globally responsible Wales 

 
 
8. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS 
 
8.1 Local Air Quality Management contributes to the Well-being Goals as set out in the Links to 

Strategy above. The service’s activity in this regard is consistent with the five ways of working 
as defined within the sustainable development principle in the Act in that it is focussed on 
preventing harm to public health. Through consultation, public and one to one meetings 
residents and the wider community have been involved in the process throughout. The 
proposed preferred option reduces exposure to emission in the shortest possible time thereby 
protecting the well-being of residents in the locality. 

 
8.2 The service follows a statutory process in relation to Local Air Quality Management and uses 

a range of strategies, activities and interventions that ensure an integrated and balanced 
approach to service delivery.  This process seeks to balance the need for proactive 
intervention programmes with the need to promote, educate and inform both key stakeholders 
and the public; collaborating with them to promote and improve air quality over the long term. 
The Council is working collaboratively on a package of interventions to reduce emissions in 
the county borough, taking a multi-sectoral approach with action at local and regional level. 

 
 
9. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1  The equalities implications associated with the Final Plan have been considered and all 

protected groups will gain positive health benefits from reductions in nitrogen dioxide levels.  
An Equality Impact Assessment has been drafted to accompany the final plan.  

 
 
10. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 The demolition option will cost approximately £5M (this figure may be subject to change 

dependent upon the final design of the project). Welsh Government has given a commitment 
that it will meet the implementation cost. The Do Minimum option has no significant cost 
implications. Welsh Government are currently meeting costs associated with the feasibility 
study and have made £20M of funding available to local authorities to cover the costs of the 
feasibility process and implementation of any proposed actions. 

 
 
11. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 None. 
 
 

Page 16



APPENDIX 
 
12. CONSULTATIONS 
 
12.1 This report has been sent to the Consultees listed below and all comments received are 

reflected in this report. The draft Final Plan and proposed preferred option of “Do Minimum” 
were the subject of a public consultation undertaken between 4th April 2019 and 11th June 
2019. A Consultation Summary Report is provided at Appendix 2. 

 
 
13. STATUTORY POWER  
 
13.1 Environment Act 1995 

European Ambient Air Quality Directive (2008/50/EC) 
Local Government Act 2000 
Highways Act 1980 

 
 
Author: Robert Hartshorn, Head of Public Protection, Community and Leisure Services 
Consultees: Cllr Eluned Stenner, Cabinet Member for Environment and Public Protection  
 Cllr Sean Morgan, Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Economy, Infrastructure, 

Sustainability and Well-being of Future Generations   
 Councillor Carl Thomas, Crumlin Ward Member 
 Councillor Mike Davies, Crumlin Ward Member 

Councillor D. T Davies, Chair of Environment & Sustainability Scrutiny Committee 
Councillor A. Hussey, Vice Chair of Environment & Sustainability Scrutiny Committee 
Mark S. Williams, Interim Corporate Director Communities 
Ceri Edwards, Environmental Health Manager 
Maria Godfrey, Team Leader, Environmental Health 
Rob Tranter, Head Of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer 
Richard Crane, Senior Solicitor 

 Steve Harris, Interim Head of Business Improvement Services and S.151 Officer 
Marcus Lloyd, Head of Infrastructure 

 Clive Campbell, Transportation Engineering Manager 
 Rhian Kyte, Head of Regeneration & Planning 
 Anwen Cullinane, Senior Policy Officer (Equalities and Welsh Language) 

Shaun Watkins, HR Manager 
Mike Eedy, Finance Manager 

 
Background Papers:  
Environment Act 1995 (feasibility Study for Nitrogen Dioxide Compliance) Air Quality Direction 2018, 
dated 15th February 2018 
Hafodyrynys Initial Scoping Report 
Hafodyrynys Initial Plan 
Letter from ClientEarth dated 15th March 2019 
Letters from the Minister for Environment, Energy and Rural Affairs dated 27th March 2019 and 
9th April 2019 
Statutory Guidance to Welsh Local Authorities on the Power to promote or improve Economic, Social 
or Environmental Well-Being under the Local Government Act 2000 
 
Appendices:  
Appendix 1 Hafodyrynys WelTAG Stage Three Final Plan 
Appendix 2 Consultation Summary Report 

Page 17



JUNE 2019 PUBLIC

Caerphilly County Borough Council

HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY –
WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT
Consideration of Measures for Nitrogen Dioxide
Reduction

Appendix 1

Page 18



Caerphilly County Borough Council

HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE
THREE REPORT
Consideration of Measures for Nitrogen Dioxide Reduction

PUBLIC

FINAL PUBLIC

PROJECT NO. 70054924

DATE: JUNE 2019

WSP

1 Capital Quarter
Tyndall Street
Cardiff
CF10 4BZ

Phone: +44 2920 769 200

WSP.com

Page 19



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council

QUALITY CONTROL

Issue/revision First issue Revision 1 Revision 2 Revision 3 Revision 4

Remarks Draft | First Issue Draft | Second
Issue

Draft | Third
Issue

Response to
comments from
Second Issue

Final | Updated
the comments
from the Third
Issue

Updates to
Revision 4

Date 18 February
2019

01 March 2019 12 March 2019 19 March 2019 18 June 2019

Prepared by Rares Ciurezu Rares Ciurezu Rares Ciurezu Rares Ciurezu Rares
Ciurezu

Signature

Checked by Stephen
Hayward

Stephen Hayward Stephen Hayward Stephen
Hayward

Stephen
Hayward

Signature

Authorised by Peter Evans Peter Evans Peter Evans Peter Evans Peter Evans

Signature

Project number 70054924

Report number

File reference \\uk.wspgroup.com\central data\Projects\700549xx\70054924 - Hafordyrynys
NO2 WelTAG Stage 3\03 WIP\TP Transport Planning\05 Reports\Stage Three
Report\

Page 20



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council

CONTENTS

1 INTRODUCTION 1

1.1 CONTEXT 1

1.2 APPROACH 2

1.3 AIR QUALITY DIRECTION, INDEPENDENT REVIEW PANEL, NOVEMBER 2018 3

1.4 REPORT STRUCTURE 3

2 STRATEGIC CASE - STUDY OVERVIEW 5

2.1 OVERVIEW 5

2.2 STUDY CORRIDOR 5

2.3 OBJECTIVE OF THIS STUDY 6

2.4 THE PROCESS 6

2.5 THE FUTURE GENERATIONS FRAMEWORK 7

2.6 SHORT TERM MEASURES 10

2.7 MEDIUM TERM MEASURES 11

2.8 LONG TERM MEASURES 11

2.9 NEW MEASURE IDENTIFIED POST COMPLETION OF STAGE TWO 11

2.10 STAKEHOLDER CONSULTATION 12

2.11 PACKAGING OF MEASURES 12

3 STRATEGIC CASE – BASELINE 16

3.1 OVERVIEW 16

3.2 ECONOMY 16

3.3 AIR QUALITY BASELINE 20

3.4 TRAFFIC BASELINE 24

3.5 ACTIVE TRAVEL 30

3.6 OTHER BASELINE DATA 33

Page 21



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council

4 TRANSPORT CASE 35

4.1 OVERVIEW 35

4.2 METHODOLOGY 35

4.3 AIR QUALITY APPRAISAL 43

4.4 AIR QUALITY MODELLING - SCENARIO RESULTS 46

4.5 AIR QUALITY MODELLING SUMMARY 64

4.6 VALUE FOR MONEY ASSESSMENT 67

4.7 SENSITIVITY TESTING 67

4.8 APPRAISAL AGAINST OBJECTIVES 69

4.9 STAGE THREE APPRAISAL 82

4.10 APPRAISAL SUMMARY TABLES 83

4.11 CONCLUSION TO THE TRANSPORT CASE 98

5 FINANCIAL CASE 101

5.1 OVERVIEW 101

5.2 FINANCIAL MODEL 101

5.3 SCHEME COSTS 102

5.4 RISKS 103

6 COMMERCIAL CASE 105

6.1 OVERVIEW 105

7 MANAGEMENT CASE 108

7.1 SUMMARY OF MANAGEMENT CASE FROM STAGE ONE AND TWO 108

7.2 DELIVERABILITY 108

7.3 KEY PROJECT PARTIES & ROLES 108

7.4 REVIEW GROUP 108

7.5 MONITORING AND EVALUATION PLAN 109

8 SUMMARY AND NEXT STEPS 113

8.1 OVERVIEW 113

Page 22



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council

8.2 AIR QUALITY BENEFITS 113

8.3 MEASURES FOR IMPLEMENTATION 114

8.4 NEXT STEPS 114

TABLES
Table 2-1 – Hard Measures to be Appraised 13

Table 3-1 – Economic Inactivity 17

Table 3-2 – Employment & Unemployment 17

Table 3-3 – Workless Households 18

Table 3-4 – Earnings by place of residence 18

Table 3-5 – Earnings by place of work 19

Table 3-6 – UK Business Counts 20

Table 3-7 - Roadside annual mean concentrations of NO2, μg/m3 on A472 21

Table 3-8 – Future Compliance of NO2  (Do Minimum) 22

Table 3-9 – Clean Air Zone (CAZ) Impact (% of total) by Vehicle Type 26

Table 3-10 – Pedestrian Count outside Woodside Terrace, Hafodyrynys 30

Table 3-11 – Pedestrian Count - Weekday 32

Table 3-12 – Pedestrian Count - Saturday 32

Table 4-1 – Modelling Approach to Measures 35

Table 4-2 – Local Growth Figures for A472 Crumlin (TEMPro) 38

Table 4-3 – Time Conversion Factors 38

Table 4-4 - Daily NOx emission profile through street canyon (note higher values uphill) 39

Table 4-5 – Option Description 43

Table 4-6 – Model Validation Data for Annual Mean NO2 44

Table 4-7 - Expected earliest implementation timescales 46

Table 4-8 - Predicted concentrations and compliance year of the Do Minimum Scenario 50

Table 4-9 - Predicted concentrations and compliance year of Scenario 1 51

Table 4-10 - Predicted concentrations and compliance year of Scenario 2 53

Table 4-11 - Predicted concentrations and compliance year of Scenario 3 56

Table 4-12 - Predicted concentrations and compliance year of Scenario 4 58

Page 23



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council

Table 4-13 - Predicted concentrations and compliance year of Scenario 5 60

Table 4-14 - Predicted concentrations and compliance year of Scenario 6 62

Table 4-15 - Predicted concentrations and compliance year of Scenario 7 64

Table 4-16 – Do Minimum Compliance 64

Table 4-17 – Do Something Options Compliance 65

Table 4-18 - Impact of measures on roadside annual mean concentrations NO2

Concentration, μg/m3 on A472 66

Table 4-19 – Behavioural Response to CAZ (Modelling) 69

Table 4-20 – The Seven Well-being Goals 70

Table 4-21 – IDA for Air Quality 74

Table 4-22 – IDA for businesses and their direct/indirect impacts 76

Table 4-23 – IDA for households and their direct/indirect impacts 78

Table 4-24 – Summary of health impacts from policy scenarios 81

Table 5-1 – Scheme Costs 102

FIGURES
Figure 2-1 – Study Corridor 6

Figure 3-1 – Receptor Network Location Diagram 22

Figure 3-2 - Seasonal trend in NO2 at Hafodyrynys automatic monitoring site 23

Figure 3-3 - Annual trend in NO2 at Hafodyrynys automatic monitoring site 23

Figure 3-4 – Base Year Vehicle emissions standards 24

Figure 3-5 – 2021 Vehicle Engine Type Forecast Comparison 25

Figure 3-6 – 2029 Vehicle Engine Type Forecast Comparison 25

Figure 3-7 – AM Peak Eastbound Traffic Towards Hafodyrynys 26

Figure 3-8 – 5 Day Average Light Vehicles Flow 27

Figure 3-9 – 5-day Average HGVs Flow 28

Figure 3-10 – Bluetooth Journey Time Survey 28

Figure 3-11 – Comparison of Bluetooth Journey Time - Weekdays 29

Figure 3-12 – Comparison of Bluetooth Journey Time - Saturday 29

Figure 3-13 – Pedestrian Survey Site Number 31

Page 24



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council

Figure 4-1 Air quality simulation domain 41

Figure 4-2 Regional simulation domain 42

Figure 4-3 Modelled concentrations of annual mean NO2 for 2017 baseline 47

Figure 4-4 NO2 exceedance / compliance plot for 2017 baseline (green dots <= 40 µg/m3,
red dots > 40 µg/m3) 47

Figure 4-5 NO2 at receptor locations for 2017 baseline 48

Figure 4-6 Modelled concentrations of annual mean NO2 for 2021 do minimum 48

Figure 4-7 NO2 exceedance / compliance plot for 2021 baseline (green dots <= 40 µg/m3,
red dots > 40 µg/m3) 49

Figure 4-8 NO2 at receptor locations for 2021 baseline 49

Figure 4-9 - Modelled concentrations of annual mean NO2 for 2021 Scenario 1 50

Figure 4-10 - NO2 exceedance / compliance plot for 2021 S1 (green dots <= 40 µg/m3, red
dots > 40 µg/m3) 51

Figure 4-11 - Modelled concentrations of annual mean NO2 for 2021 Scenario 2 52

Figure 4-12 - NO2 exceedance / compliance plot for 2021 S2 (green dots <= 40 µg/m3, red
dots > 40 µg/m3) 52

Figure 4-13 Modelled concentrations of annual mean NO2 for 2021 Scenario 3 53

Figure 4-14 NO2 exceedance / compliance plot for 2021 Scenario 3 (green dots <= 40
µg/m3, red dots > 40 µg/m3) 54

Figure 4-15 NO2 at receptor locations for 2021 S3 54

Figure 4-16 NO2 difference plot for 2021 Scenario 3 (red areas = lower NO2 concentrations,
blue = higher) 55

Figure 4-17 Close up of NO2 exceedance line along north path receptors (Scenario 3) 55

Figure 4-18 Modelled concentrations of annual mean NO2 for 2021 Scenario 4 56

Figure 4-19 NO2 exceedance / compliance plot for 2021 Scenario 4 (green dots <= 40
µg/m3, red dots > 40 µg/m3) 57

Figure 4-20 NO2 at receptor locations for 2021 S4 57

Figure 4-21 Modelled concentrations of annual mean NO2 for 2021 Scenario 5 58

Figure 4-22 NO2 exceedance / compliance plot for 2021 Scenario 5 (green dots <= 40
µg/m3, red dots > 40 µg/m3) 59

Figure 4-23 NO2 at receptor locations for 2021 S5 59

Figure 4-24 - Modelled concentrations of annual mean NO2 for 2021 Scenario 6 60

Page 25



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council

Figure 4-25 - NO2 exceedance / compliance plot for 2021 Scenario 6 (green dots <= 40
µg/m3, red dots > 40 µg/m3) 61

Figure 4-26 - NO2 at receptor locations for 2021 S6 61

Figure 4-27 - Modelled concentrations of annual mean NO2 for 2021 Scenario 7 62

Figure 4-28 - NO2 exceedance / compliance plot for 2021 Scenario 7 (green dots <= 40
µg/m3, red dots > 40 µg/m3) 63

Figure 4-29 - NO2 at receptor locations for 2021 S7 63

Figure 7-1 – Existing NO2 monitor locations on the A472 Woodside Terrace 109

Page 26



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council

APPENDICES

Page 27



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The European Union Ambient Air Quality Directive
(2008/50/EC) sets legally binding limits for concentrations
of certain air pollutants in outdoor air, termed ‘limit
values’. The only limit values that the UK currently fails to
meet are those set-in respect of nitrogen dioxide (NO2).
The A472 Hafodyrynys Road, exceeds the limit value and
Caerphilly County Borough Council are investigating
measures to bring forward reductions in NO2 to ensure
compliance with the Ambient Air Quality Directive in the
shortest possible time. This report presents the findings
of WelTAG Stage Three (Full Business Case), for this
study.

Since the inception of this study, another year of monitoring data for 2018 is available for the Stage
Three assessment. The annual mean concentration for 2018 was 62 µg/m3, a reduction of 8 µg/m3

from 2017. While the data for 2018 showed a similar seasonal trend to previous years, the overall
concentrations were lower than many of the preceding years. Traffic and Air Quality models were
developed to predict the date of compliance with no interventions. The receptor locations are predicted
to be compliant in 2025 without any intervention.

This Stage Three study has appraised five of the 6 measures brought forward from WelTAG Stage
two, plus two packages of measures which were also discussed at Stage two. These are:

¡ Air Quality Awareness Campaign
¡ Change Signal Timings at Crumlin Junction
¡ Signalise the A472/B4471 Swffryd Junction
¡ Demolish Dwellings at Woodside Terrace
¡ Peak Period HGV Bans
¡ Clean Air Zone / Low Emission Zone
¡ Traffic Management Package (Changing Signal Timings at Crumlin Junction & Signalise the

A472/B4471 Swffryd Junction)
¡ Do Maximum Package (Changing Signal Timings at Crumlin Junction & Signalise the A472/B4471

Swffryd Junction & Clean Air Zone / Low Emission Zone)

The air quality awareness campaign has not been modelled in terms of nitrogen dioxide reductions
as it is not possible to quantify what effects this measure would have. This is being taken forward as
a ‘soft measure’ to raise awareness and educate people about what can be done to improve air
quality.

Page 28



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council

The appraisals demonstrated that ‘Changing the Signal Timings at Crumlin Junction’ and
‘Signalisation of the A472/B4471 Junction made no reduction in NO2 levels. Similarly, the cumulative
benefits of both measures (the Traffic Management Package) do not bring forward reductions in
NO2. Given that there are no tangible air quality benefits, this measure will not be taken forward for
implementation.

The ‘Peak Period HGV Bans’ reduces NO2 on the A472 corridor by displacing HGV traffic and
smoothing the flow traffic on the corridor, though the air quality benefits are small and the potential
adverse impacts of this option on the local economy (including loss of jobs) could be significant.
However, this measure does not bring forward compliance which will be achieved in 2025 without
the measure.

A ‘Clean Air Zone’ (CAZ) would result in significant reductions in NO2 concentrations on the A472
corridor and would likely bring forward compliance with the limit value in the year of implementation
(2023). It has been identified that this option would have significant adverse impacts on local
communities and businesses. Furthermore, a Clean Air Zone in this location would displace traffic
from this corridor, resulting in potential road safety issues and could even lead to increases in NO2

through areas which already exceed the limit value (M4 J25-26, Newport). The ‘Do Max Package’
which includes the Clean Air Zone has similar impacts. Consequently, a further feasibility study with
detailed modelling would be required to support the implementation of a CAZ, including assessing
complementary measures to mitigate the impact of the CAZ on local residents and businesses. This
would include the design, assessing the most effective charging structure, construction and
enforcement.  Following this, the launch of the CAZ would be made at the earliest in January 2023.
Compliance with the limit value would therefore be achieved by the end of 2023.

The ‘Demolition of Dwellings at Woodside Terrace’ would bring forward compliance with the limit
value in the year of implementation (2022). This option may have significant impacts on the
residents of Woodside Terrace, though the overall impacts on local communities and business is
marginal. Given the expected implementation date, this option will bring forward reductions in NO2,
and compliance with the limit value, in the shortest possible time. For this option to be progressed
further, topographical and geotechnical surveys are being progressed so that detailed design can be
completed. This will minimise any risks associated with this option and mitigate any potential delays
to the programme with respect to implementation.

The Air Quality Public Awareness Campaign in the form of school talks and playground monitoring
has already commenced and been rolled out to a number of schools within the County Borough. In
addition, Year Five pupils from 20 schools within the borough participated in Clean Air Week
activities at Caerphilly Castle during June 2019.

The Council will also be launching an anti-idling campaign in the Autumn of this year using schools
as the pilot.

The preferred option to bring forward compliance with the NO2 limit value is the demolition of dwellings
at Woodside Terrace and associated re-alignment of the footpath. This is the only measure to bring
forward compliance in the shortest possible time. Furthermore, the air quality awareness campaign is
being implemented as a short-term option.

Page 29



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 1 of 114

1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 CONTEXT
The European Union Ambient Air Quality Directive (2008/50/EC) sets legally binding limits for
concentrations of certain air pollutants in outdoor air, termed ‘limit values’. The Directive requires that
Member States report annually on air quality within zones designated under the Directive and, where
the concentration of pollutants in air exceeds limit values, to develop air quality plans that set out
measures in order to attain the limit values. The only limit values that the UK currently fails to meet
are those set-in respect of nitrogen dioxide (NO2).

In July 2017, the UK Government published its Air Quality Plan (the 2017 Plan) for tackling roadside
NO2 concentrations1. The 2017 Plan set out details of the authorities responsible for delivering air
quality improvements including devolved administrations and Local Authorities.

Wales is divided into four zones under the Directive, the Hafodyrynys study falls in to the non-
agglomeration zone of South Wales:

¡ Two urban agglomeration zones (Cardiff and Swansea)
¡ Two non-agglomeration zones (North Wales and South Wales)

Caerphilly County Borough Council (CCBC) is exploring measures which could be implemented on
the A472 to bring forward compliance with NO2 Limit Values in the shortest possible time.

WSP and Ricardo have been commissioned to undertake a WelTAG Stage Three (Full Business
Case) to appraise potential measures deliverable by CCBC for reducing NO2 levels arising from traffic
emissions at this location. This work follows on from the WelTAG Stage One (Strategic Outline case),
and WelTAG Stage Two (Outline Business Case) completed by WSP and Ricardo in September 2018.
As part of the Stage One appraisal, a long list of 30 measures were put forward. The ten measures
that met the criteria of the objective at Stage One were taken forward as part of WelTAG Stage Two.
Of the ten measures, six were identified at WelTAG Stage Two to have potential benefits to the
reduction of NO2. The measures were split into short, medium and long-term sub categories. Of the
six options from WelTAG Stage Two, the ‘soft-measure’ (Air Quality Public Awareness Campaign)
does not require a detailed assessment as it is not possible to quantify the effects in terms of reduction
in NO2 levels. This Stage Three study presents a full and detailed assessment of the five options and
two packages of measures identified at WelTAG Stage Two which were modelled.

Where measures have been considered as not being deliverable by CCBC using its powers as
Highway or Traffic Authority for the local road network, these will be considered further in the
overarching Welsh Government appraisal which is independent of this study.

The Stage Two WelTAG identified that the following elements need to be undertaken at Stage Three:

1 UK plan for tackling roadside nitrogen dioxide concentrations; Available at:
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/633269/air-quality-plan-overview.pdf  - Accessed 10th
November 2017

Page 30



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 2 of 114

¡ Qualitative analysis of impacts against WelTAG impact areas where appropriate. This should
include all relevant traffic and air quality modelling and outline quantifiable benefits in order to
determine a Present Value of Benefits (PVB) for each measure assessed;

¡ Detailed scheme drawings;
¡ Detailed cost estimates;
¡ Assessment of Technical, Operational and Financial Feasibility, and Deliverability and Risk;
¡ Quantitative Value for Money assessment.

This report presents the Stage Three: Full Business Case of the WelTAG process for reducing the
levels of NO2 at A472 Hafodyrynys Road, Caerphilly.

1.2 APPROACH
WelTAG is the Welsh Transport Appraisal Guidance, and provides a framework for appraising
changes to the transport network. The latest version of this guidance (WelTAG 20172) has been used
as the basis for this appraisal. As well as embedding the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales)
Act 2015, WelTAG combines the principles of the HM Treasury Green Book and the Five Case Model
for Better Business Cases, with WebTAG best practice for transport appraisal. The process covers
the complete lifecycle of a proposed intervention, from problem identification to scheme design, and
implementation and evaluation.

A summary of the changes to WelTAG from the draft to final release of the 2017 WelTAG guidance is
contained within Appendix A.

The objective of this study is to further investigate potential measures and identify a measure
or package of measures for implementation by CCBC, to bring forward reductions in NO2 in
the shortest possible time, to ensure compliance with the Air Quality Directive requirements
along the A472. Therefore, the Transport Case focuses on air quality and reflects the key
considerations in relation to the EU Air Quality Directive and bringing forward compliance with limit
values.

The WelTAG guidance states that the purpose of the Stage Three (Full Business Case) is to:

‘make a full and detailed assessment of the preferred option to inform a decision as to whether or
not to proceed to implementation’.

As such, this Stage Three (Full Business Case) report:

¡ Determines whether a transport option exists that can address the issues identified, contributes
positively to the well-being goals and objectives, and can be delivered within technical and financial
constraints, although is mainly driven by if a measure can achieve compliance in the shortest
possible time;

2 Source: https://beta.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2017-12/welsh-transport-appraisal-guidance.pdf

Accessed February 2018

Page 31



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 3 of 114

¡ Presents the preferred option(s), to be taken forward to procurement and implementation;
¡ Identifies each dimension of the Five Cases with a level of detail proportionate to scale and/or

significance of the impacts and the associated risks; and
¡ Outlines issues affecting the deliverability of options, the realisation of the anticipated benefits

and the mitigation of adverse impacts.

1.3 AIR QUALITY DIRECTION, INDEPENDENT REVIEW PANEL, NOVEMBER
2018
Welsh Government appointed an Independent Review Panel to provide expert advice to the Welsh
Government on plans produced by Caerphilly County Borough Council and Cardiff Council to deliver
compliance with legal limits for nitrogen dioxide. The review process is intended to ensure that
proposed measures are robust, and are likely to bring about compliance.

1.4 REPORT STRUCTURE
The structure of this Stage Three report is as follows:

Chapter 2:  Strategic case – Study Overview

This chapter presents a summary of the existing situation presented in WelTAG Stage One and Two
studies. It outlines the objective and the EU Air Quality Directive and includes an evidence-based
description of the current problem. It identifies the process undertaken and the measures that are
included within Stage Three.

Chapter 3:  Strategic case – Baseline

This chapter provides a summary of the air quality baseline, traffic baseline and other baseline data.

Chapter 4:  Transport case

This chapter provides a summary of the appraisal against the objective through consideration of the
key and secondary criteria and appraisal against the aspects of the future generation objectives.
Supporting technical information is provided within the WelTAG Stage Three Impact Assessment
Report (IAR).

Chapter 5:  Financial case

This chapter identifies whether the costs for each of the shortlist of measures appraised at Stage
Three are affordable, and the potential funding mechanisms for delivery albeit, the main driver of the
preferred option is the measures that is deliverable in the ‘shortest possible time’.

Chapter 6:  Commercial case

This chapter includes a description as to whether the measures are commercially viable.

Chapter 7:  Management case

This chapter identifies the delivery arrangements of the likely measures and then its management
during its life time.

The conclusion of this Stage Three report identifies the likely measures that will be implemented to
bring forward reductions in NO2 in the shortest possible time and to do so in a way that reduces
personal exposure for the protection of public health as quickly as possible to ensure compliance with
the Ambient Air Quality Directive, as per the objective of the study.

Page 32



PUBLIC

2
STRATEGIC CASE - STUDY
OVERVIEW

Page 33



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 5 of 114

2 STRATEGIC CASE - STUDY OVERVIEW

2.1 OVERVIEW
The Strategic Case ‘tells us if we need change and why. It presents an evidence based description of
the current situation, describes the likely future situation if no action is taken, and presents the reasons
why an intervention is required’.

WelTAG Stages One and Two of this study were finalised in August 2018 and September 2018
respectively, and include a complete Strategic Case. This Stage Three report therefore provides
additional and updated information where relevant, and is intended to be read in conjunction with the
previous reports.

2.2 STUDY CORRIDOR
The study area has been selected based on data from an air quality monitoring site, which is part of
the UK Automatic Urban and Rural Network (AURN). This monitor complies with requirements detailed
in the EU Directive (2008/50/EC) to report on the concentrations of particulate pollutants in the
atmosphere.

The A472 study corridor is the focus of this WelTAG study, however it is acknowledged that the
measures and their subsequent impacts may be realised beyond the identified area with NO2

exceedances.

Hafodyrynys is a small village community that sits within the Caerphilly County Borough Council
boundary between Crumlin and Pontypool on the A472. Woodside Terrace is the row of houses that
are situated in the foot of a high sided valley on the southern side of the A472, between Crumlin
junction and Hafodyrynys village.

Woodside Terrace is a row of three storey terraced houses with entrances to the first floor from street
level and a large supporting wall on the north side. Immediately adjacent to Woodside Terrace and
also on the south side of the A472 is Woodside shops, a pair of semi-detached, two-storey properties
and ‘Yr Adfa’, a two-storey detached property.

On top of the north side supporting wall there is a mixture of two storey semi-detached and detached
housing.

The A472 is part of the Local Authority’s strategic highway network and is a major commuter and
cross-country freight route where traffic is known to become congested along Woodside Terrace,
especially during the AM peak.

The study corridor is located on the A472 between the signal controlled junction with the A467 in
Crumlin (west) and Hafodyrynys village (east), a distance of approximately 1.6 kilometres. Over this
route there is a considerable increase in elevation (approximately 97m). The study corridor is
illustrated in Figure 2-1.

Page 34



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 6 of 114

Figure 2-1 – Study Corridor

2.3 OBJECTIVE OF THIS STUDY
Whilst WelTAG provides a fixed framework for appraisal, the guidance acknowledges that the level of
detail provided in the report should be proportionate to the impacts under consideration.

Following on from the WelTAG Stage One and Two reports, the objective of this Stage Three study is
to carry out further investigation and identify potential measures that can be implemented by CCBC,
which will assist in bringing forward reductions in NO2 in the shortest possible time to ensure
compliance with the Ambient Air Quality Directive requirements on the A472 Hafodyrynys Road,
Caerphilly.

2.4 THE PROCESS
This study has been undertaken following the 2017 WelTAG guidance and with due consideration to
the goals of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.

2.4.1 WELTAG STAGE ONE AND TWO
The WelTAG Stage One identified the issues and objective, and developed a long list of 30 possible
measures. The measures were appraised against the key criteria of the objective based on their ability
to bring forward the date of compliance with EU Limit Values (Effectiveness, Timescales and
Deliverability). This resulted in a short list of ten measures that were taken forward to Stage Two.

Page 35



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 7 of 114

The WelTAG Stage Two appraisal examined in greater detail the short list of ten measures for tackling
the problem under consideration. The measures were reappraised against the key criteria for the
objective, as well as the WelTAG aspects of well-being.

The appraisal of air quality impacts was undertaken quantitively using detailed emission and
dispersion modelling, underpinned by assumed changes in traffic flow characteristics and volume for
each measure.

WelTAG Stage Two recommended a list of six preferred measures to take forward to Stage Three,
differentiating these as long, medium, and short-term options.

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 is an integral part of the WelTAG framework.
Whilst due consideration was given to the Future Generations Act at Stage One and Two, the
Independent Review Panel felt that this needed to be more clearly defined. Therefore, this Stage
Three report builds upon the previous two Stages, demonstrating the studies fit with the five ways of
working and the consideration of impacts of each option against the seven well-being goals.

WelTAG Stage Two has predicted the maximum NO2 concentration on the A472 with no interventions,
to be compliant by 2029, instead of 2026 as initially indicated by a national assessment. The national
assessment was based on 2015 monitoring data and but the analysis within the Stage Two report was
based on 2017 monitoring data. The national assessment relied on an improvement in NO2

concentrations during this time which did not materialise, thus resulting in a delay to achieve
compliance to 2029. Analysis into the temporal variation in NO2 highlighted the highest exceedances
to occur in January and February.  An investigation in the variation by hour of day and temperature
took place to consider all emission sources that are contributing to the high concentrations, such as
cold engine starts and domestic heating. A more refined data was used at WelTAG Stage Three to
update predictions.

The analysis showed little influence of domestic heating, as high concentrations were not extended
into evening hours.  An initial first analysis on temperature showed a positive correlation between low
temperatures and a high concentration. However, when looking at data between January 2012 – July
2017, no strong correlations were found between the colder winter years and concentrations. Analysis
in wind speed identified a positive correlation between low wind speed and higher concentration of
NO2.

2.5 THE FUTURE GENERATIONS FRAMEWORK
‘The Future Generations Framework expresses the Five Ways of Working and the seven well-being
goals as statutory prompts for consideration to inform thinking and shape the development of major
projects, as well as reviewing the effectiveness of projects’.  The Five Ways of Working seeks to look
at how to develop and run the project, while the seven well-being goals will form part of the strategic
case and the options appraisal.

The Five Ways of Working are designed to be the starting point of maximising the contribution to the
seven well-being goals. In a short summary, the goals have been identified below:

¡ Long-term

- How does the project support long-term well-being of people in Wales?
- Will the project be self-sustaining, or require significant additional or different resources?
- Consider what will happen to the project at the end of its proposed lifespan.

Page 36



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 8 of 114

¡ Prevention

- The broad consideration of all types of problems that the project can help prevent
- How does the project support the break of negative cycles such as poverty, poor health,

environmental damage? Advice to refer to local well-being assessments.
- How can the project minimise its own negative impacts? (resources, emissions, social,

community)
-
- Much work is being undertaken with schools at present to raise awareness of the dangers of

poor air quality and what everyone can do to help.  Air quality monitoring has taken place in a
number of schools throughout the borough and have been followed up by air quality talks to Key
Stage 2 children.  It is intended to repeat these talks on a rolling programme.

Caerphilly Council have also provided activities and hired an interactive theatrical production
company called Performance in Education (PIE) to educate and promote messages around air
quality for Clean Air Day, albeit activities are taking place throughout an entire week in June 2019 at
Caerphilly Castle.

Abbie Ayre and the Shed of Science performed by Performance in Education (PIE) is a theatrical
production that educates children about the dangers of air pollution and what we can do to help
prevent poor air pollution.  This is also complimented with a teaching pack which can be utilised by
teachers back at school to embed key messages. Stakeholders such as Healthy Air Cymru,
Tenovus, Optare, Stagecoach, Welsh Government and Head for Art are also working with the
Council throughout Clean Air Week to provide key messages around air quality, so collaboration
features greatly too with respect to this event.

The Council will also be launching an anti-idling campaign in the Autumn of this year, initially
concentrating in and around school playgrounds.

¡ Integration

- How your project integrates with other public bodies well-being objectives.
- How can your project maximise its contribution to all of the goals by aligning with relevant

public body strategies and well-being objectives?
- What measures are in place to ensure that the project continues to positively contribute to

the well-being goals throughout its life?

¡ Collaboration

- What other stakeholders are working towards similar goals around sustainability and well-
being?

- How does the project ensure collaboration will continue throughout the lifetime of the project?

¡ Involvement

- How has the project been shaped by key stakeholders affected by the project, and particularly
their needs and challenges?

- How will key stakeholders affected by the project continue to influence the project throughout
its life?

The well-being goals that are part of the Future Generation Act should be considered as an integrated
set and not in isolation. These goals must in turn maximise contribution to the following Seven Well-

Page 37



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 9 of 114

being Goals. The Seven Goals form part of a parallel appraisal for the options at Stage Three. More
details can be found in the ‘appraisal against objectives’ section (within the Transport Case).

The Seven Well-being Goals are:

1. A Prosperous Wales;
2. A Resilient Wales;
3. A Healthier Wales;
4. A More equal Wales;
5. A Wales of Cohesive Communities;
6. A Wales of Vibrant Culture and Thriving Welsh Language; and
7. A Globally Responsible Wales.

2.5.1 THE FIVE WAYS OF WORKING

Long-term

The project aims to decrease the air pollution impacts from NO2 on the people in Wales and the local
community by implementing measures for tackling roadside emissions. The WelTAG Stage Two
appraisal identified options which have the potential to provide short term implementation timeframes
with immediate benefits and those with long-term timeframes which have the potential to bring forward
significant reductions in NO2.

The monitoring and evaluation section describes what will happen to the project after its lifetime.

Prevention

The project aims to bring the NO2 concentrations on the A472 within compliance before 2025 (the
predicted year of compliance with no intervention), through implementation of measures.

The project understands the economic situation of the study area and through the options put forward
it aims to overcome the negative cycles associated with poverty, poor health from NO2 and further
damage to the environment and the ecosystem.

This includes involving ‘The Caerphilly We Want’3 in the well-being assessment. Well-being, as
expressed by residents is “having access to a personal vehicle, ensuring jobs for their family, ease of
commuting and access to local amenities”.

As part of the 7 Well-being Objectives, the use of resources for option implementation will be
qualitatively appraised to minimise the project’s own negative impacts. Considerations are made for
the emissions, as well as the social and community impacts of the project.

Integration

The Caerphilly Local Development Plan Up to 2021 created in 2010, included a target for
implementing improvements to the existing transport infrastructure through reducing the level of traffic
movements and/or congestion, within any identified air quality management area.

3 Reference: https://your.caerphilly.gov.uk/publicservicesboard/content/what-does-wellbeing-mean-you

Page 38



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 10 of 114

The same Plan from 2010 highlighted that air quality standards were failing in some strategic regions
of the Council such as Caerphilly and the number of NO2 monitoring locations which do not comply
with the air quality objectives are reported also in the 2012 Annual Monitoring Report. The
safeguarding aspect of the report highlighted that an investigation into the sources of the problem and
alternative options needed to be undertaken.

Other existing strategies and policies relevant to Air Quality in Caerphilly County Borough that have
been examined and identified by WSP or Ricardo and will be supported and not impeded upon are:

¡ Noise Action Planning Priority Area (NAPPA)
¡ South East Wales Valleys Local Transport Plan
¡ Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015
¡ Air Quality Regulations (Wales) Regulations 2010
¡ Relevant policies in relation to Carbon Reduction Strategy, Housing, and Climate Adaptation Plan

for the Borough
¡ Planning Policy Wales (Edition 10)
¡ Caerphilly Corporate Plan 2018-2023
¡ Electric Vehicle Strategy

Collaboration

The project will ensure that collaboration will continue throughout the lifetime of the project through
working closely with the stakeholders and taking account of completing mutual goals.

Involvement

A stakeholder workshop and consultation was undertaken in July 2018 and formed part of WelTAG
Stage One, with key representatives from Caerphilly CBC and Stagecoach. This consultation
identified the challenges and problems.

CCBC has undertaken a 10-week public consultation as part of WelTAG Stage Three. This has
allowed the public to inform the study and inform the final outcomes (Appendix B - Public
Consultation Report.) In addition, throughout the process public meetings have been held with local
residents to ensure they are fully informed of the ongoing work and that any concerns they have are
address in the study.

2.6 SHORT TERM MEASURES
As part of the WelTAG Stage Two, it was recognised that many of the measures identified within this
assessment have the potential for immediate implementation, with potential benefits to the reduction
of NO2. Immediate measures include the low cost, short timeframe measures, and other low to
medium costs measures that could be implemented in a trial basis and then considered for longer
term use. For the A472 these included:

¡ Measure 1: Change Signal Timings at Crumlin Junction
¡ Measure 27: Air Quality Public Awareness Campaign

By implementing measures on a trial basis, on-site monitoring can be utilised to evidence the
effectiveness of these measures before applying them permanently. More information on the
measures which underpin the Air Quality Public Awareness Campaign are detailed within the IAR.

Page 39



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 11 of 114

2.7 MEDIUM TERM MEASURES
Medium term measures require further consultation and analysis to be undertaken prior to
implementation. This includes:

¡ Measure 13: Peak Period HGV Bans

Prior to implementing peak period HGV bans, consideration would need to be given to enforcement
of this measure and this may involve consultation with the police. Similarly, some local businesses
have been consulted as part of a pilot study questionnaire presented in Appendix C, to identify the
acceptability of the proposals and further understand the likely impacts as the potential loss of
business and subsequent loss of jobs would have significant adverse impacts on the local economy.

2.8 LONG TERM MEASURES
Long term measures can be implemented on a permanent basis and Stage Three (Business Case)
will appraise the full impacts of these measures. For the A472 these include:

¡ Measure 2: Signalise A472/B4471 Swffryd Junction and introduce an eastbound queue detector
¡ Measure 11: Demolish Dwellings at Woodside Terrace and re-align footpath.
¡ Measure 26: Clean Air Zone / Low Emission Zone

The Automatic Number Plate Recognition (ANPR) survey carried out on the study corridor in 2018
identified that 58% of articulated HGVs and 38% of rigid HGVs are Euro VI compliant and would
therefore not be impacted by a CAZ.

It is considered that for some of the options, there are likely to be perceivable impacts on the local
businesses. Consideration will be given to displacement effects of where alternative routes bypass
class restrictions or charging zones. Such routes could be via the Pantside, Old Pant Road and the
Central Avenue to join the A467.

This Stage Three assessment will explore the effectiveness of the measures above, identifying which
measures should be taken forward to implementation.

2.9 NEW MEASURE IDENTIFIED POST COMPLETION OF STAGE TWO
Following completion of WelTAG Stage Two, a new measure has been identified by CCBC for
consideration at Stage Three. This option put forward the introduction of a new 30mph speed limit and
removal of the climbing lane between Woodside Terrace and the B4471 Swffryd Road / A472
Hafodyrynys Road Junction. This option has been introduced post completion of WelTAG Stage Two
and was not in the shortlist of options carried forward.  However, this option has been modelled for
both traffic and air quality modelling and has been given full consideration in a similar way to the other
options presented in the Transport Case chapter. Furthermore, the findings show no impact on
reducing NO2 levels or bringing forward compliance. On this basis it fails on the following essential
criteria of effectiveness:

¡ To Deliver reductions in roadside concentrations proportionate to the scale of the exceedance
above the 40µg/m3 legal limit.

This option will not be carried forward throughout the report. However, the results of the modelling will
be available in the Impact Assessment Report (IAR).

Page 40



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 12 of 114

2.10 STAKEHOLDER CONSULTATION
A stakeholder consultation was undertaken at WelTAG Stage One on 3rd July 2018 at Penalta House,
Caerphilly. The attendees included members from CCBC, local Councillors and Stagecoach South
Wales. The workshop findings were used to develop the objectives and the initial options. More
information on the stakeholder consultation can be found in WelTAG Stage One. In addition, the
measures that were included within the 2017 Air Quality Action Plan for Hafodyrynys have been
addressed within this study. Those original actions were put forward by a steering group which
consisted of officers and members of CCBC, local residents, Public Health Wales and environmental
health professionals from neighbouring authorities.

2.11 PACKAGING OF MEASURES
The six preferred measures have been subdivided into ‘hard measures’ with tangible benefits and ‘soft
measures’ resulting in marginal indirect benefits. The soft measures are those that passively reduce
NO2 levels by increasing peoples’ awareness to the problem and encouraging a behaviour change,
which positively impacts upon the problem. The soft measures could provide benefits at A472
Hafodyrynys Road, Caerphilly, and potentially across Wales.

Furthermore, the Stage Three appraisal has also considered the cumulative benefits of the packaging
of measures. The packaging of measures is as follows:

¡ Traffic Management Package - Measure 1: Change Signal Timings at Crumlin Junction, and
Measure 2: Signalise A472/B4471 Swffryd Junction and introduce an eastbound queue detector.

¡ Do Maximum Package - Measure 1: Change Signal Timings at Crumlin Junction, Measure 2:
Signalise A472/B4471 Swffryd Junction and introduce an eastbound queue detector, and Measure
26: Clean Air Zone / Low Emission Zone

2.11.1 COMPLEMENTARY PACKAGE – ‘SOFT MEASURE’
¡ Measure 27: Air Quality Public Awareness Campaign

It is expected that the ‘soft measure’ will be achieved initially with a significant communications
campaign using social media and the press as well as delivering air quality talks to schools throughout
the borough. This campaign will be reiterated throughout the year at key periods when the air quality
is measured to be at a high level from the roadside monitors. The complementary measures will
engage and involve the public to prevent the worsening of the problem.

The Pollution Control team within the Council have undertaken monitoring studies in a number of
schools throughout the borough and have followed these studies up with talks to Key Stage 2 pupils
on air quality. Some of the key messages communicated are:

¡ Explaining the sources that give rise to air pollution
¡ Traffic Pollution – the biggest polluter
¡ How air pollution affects health
¡ What can be done to improve air quality – use less energy/renewable energy/walk to school/car

share etc.
¡ Promotion of anti-idling whilst stationary

This measure integrates well with the Future Generations Act and other key policies. Due to the
expected small-scale intangible benefits of this option, and minimum impacts, this complementary
package has not been appraised.

Page 41



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 13 of 114

2.11.2 MEASURES TO BE APPRAISED

The WelTAG Stage Two appraisal identified ‘slight to large beneficial’ benefits to the NO2 reduction
from a number of hard and soft measures. As outlined previously, the measures can be distinguished
between short-, medium- and long-term, depending on the implementation period. For the A472
Hafodyrynys Road, the hard measures that have been appraised at Stage Three are presented in
Table 2-1.

For simplicity, the option referencing notation used at Stage Two has been replaced by a new
consecutive referencing at Stage Three. This is presented in the second column of Table 2-1.

Table 2-1 – Hard Measures to be Appraised

WelTAG Stage
One / Two
Reference

WelTAG Stage
Three Option
Reference

Measure Description Subdivision

Measure 1 S1 Change Signal Timings at Crumlin Junction Short-term

Measure 2 S2 Signalise the A472/B4471 Swffryd Junction Medium-term

Measure 11 S3 Demolish Dwellings at Woodside Terrace Long-term

Measure 13 S4 Peak Period HGV Bans Long-term

Measure 26 S5 Clean Air Zone / Low Emission Zone Long-term

N/A S6 Traffic Management Option (Changing Signal
Timings at Crumlin Junction & Signalise the
A472/B4471 Swffryd Junction

Short to
medium-term

N/A S7 Do Maximum Option (Changing Signal Timings
at Crumlin Junction & Signalise the A472/B4471
Swffryd Junction & Clean Air Zone / Low
Emission Zone)

Short to long-
term

S1 - Change Signal Timings at Crumlin Junction (A472 Hafodyrynys Road / A467)

To improve the flow of traffic and HGVs travelling Eastbound on the steep gradient A472
Hafodyrynys Road after the A467 junction. This option involves reducing the green time for traffic on
the A467 and improves traffic flow eastbound on the A472 Hafodyrynys Road. This option would
potentially increase queues on the A467. A drawing of this option is available in Appendix D.

S2 - Signalise the A472/B4471 Swffryd Junction

To improve the flow of vehicles travelling on the A472 Hafodyrynys Road by signalising the junction
with B4471 Swffryd Road. The current priority junction layout results in vehicles travelling on the
A472 Hafodyrynys Road to stop, out of courtesy, letting other vehicles pull out of the B4471 road.
This results in traffic backing up and queuing outside Woodside Terrace. The signalisation will give
priority to A472 Hafodyrynys Road traffic especially in peak periods, though may increase queuing
on B4471. A queue loop or detector can be utilised to manage the queue on the A472. A drawing of
this option is available in Appendix D

Page 42



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 14 of 114

S3 - Demolish Dwellings at Woodside Terrace

To remove the southern properties at Woodside Terrace. The footpath to the south would be
realigned by using the GRAL and RapidAIR modelling outputs to help identify by how much the
footpath needs to be realigned. There will be a new edging kerb and grass topsoil separating the
footpath from the main carriageway can be incorporated into the design. The drawing of this option
is available in Appendix D.

S4 - Peak Period HGV Bans

To introduce a traffic prohibition order for vehicles exceeding a gross weight of 7.5T. The heavy
goods vehicles (HGV) affected are likely to be both OGV1 and the articulated OGV2. The prohibition
is likely to be achieved through the usage of regulatory signs and ANPR enforcement. The ban is
anticipated to be on both the morning and evening peak periods. The assessment will be required to
consider the impacts on alternate routes which HGV traffic may be displaced to. A drawing of this
option is available in Appendix D.

S5 – Clean Air Zone

To implement a Clean Air Zone (CAZ) for the A472 Hafodyrynys Road corridor, a further feasibility
study would need to be undertaken to understand the effects of any displaced traffic and whether
any alternative routes would require upgrading / infrastructure works. It is likely the geographical
area of any CAZ would extend from the Crumlin Junction to the edge of Hafodyrynys Village with
signage for drivers being as far afield as Pontypool so that if drivers wanted to use an alternative
route, they are able. A drawing of this option is available in Appendix D. The drawing considers the
requirement for signage in advance of the CAZ to allow sufficient notice for drivers to utilise
alternative routes as required.
Using the Clean Air Zone Framework for Wales, it defines a CAZ as;

“A geographical target area where a range of co-ordinated actions are applied with the purpose of
ensuring, in the soonest time possible, a significant reduction in public an environmental exposure to
harmful airborne pollutants from all sources.” 4

The Clean Air Zone Framework for Wales sets out the general considerations for the design and
implementation of a CAZ.  The proportion of NOx vehicular emissions (in 2017) in Hafodyrynys
Road from diesel passenger cars is estimated at 68% with petrol passenger cars contributing 13%.
Consequently, for this measure to be effective these vehicle types should be included in the
restrictions.  Therefore, Class D5 CAZ is the option which will be considered within this study..

4 Clean Air Zone Framework for Wales – April 2018 https://beta.gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2018-
04/180424-clean-air-zone-framework-en.pdf

5 Class A - Buses, coaches, taxis and private hire vehicles (PHVs); Class B - Buses, coaches, taxis, PHVs and heavy
goods vehicles (HGVs); Class C - Buses, coaches, taxis, PHVs, HGVs and light goods vehicles (LGVs); Class D -
Buses, coaches, taxis, PHVs, HGVs LGVs and cars where all petrol vehicles should comply with at least Euro 4 and all
diesel vehicles Euro 6 emission standards

Page 43



PUBLIC

3
STRATEGIC CASE – BASELINE

Page 44



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 16 of 114

3 STRATEGIC CASE – BASELINE

3.1 OVERVIEW
At WelTAG Stage One and Two, a baseline for the study was established. This has been further
developed in light of the preferred options which were brought forward from Stage Two. This updated
baseline will further our understanding of the current conditions so that the full impacts of the options
can be adequately appraised. For the previous baseline for this study, refer to WelTAG Stage One
and Two. The additional baseline information since the completion of Stage Two is presented within
this chapter. This information includes up-to-date data on employment, unemployment, workers,
earnings and business counts.

3.2 ECONOMY
The Labour Market Profile of CCBC6 has identified that between October 2017 and September 2018,
75.3% of residents were economically active (for those aged 16-64), which is slightly below the Welsh
average of 76.2%. There are 10,900 workless households in CCBC, which equates to 19.1% of
households (an increase of 0.5% from 2016), 1.6% higher than across Wales in 2017. Based on 2018
data. The county’s average out-of-work benefits claimants are 2.5%, in comparison to the Welsh
average of 2.3% (May 2018).

Table 3-1 below shows that Caerphilly has a slightly higher economic inactivity of 24.7% compared to
the Welsh average of 23.8%. The majority (33.6%) are made up of Long-term Sick. A higher proportion
(26.3%) of residents are classed as wanting a job compared to the Welsh average of 22.3%.

Of the 75.3% residents that are economically active, 63.5% are employees and 5.8% are self-
employed. The remaining 5.7% are unemployed. When comparing these figures to the Welsh
average, Caerphilly has a higher percentage of both employees and unemployment.

6 Caerphilly County Borough Council Labour Market Profile
https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/1946157400/report.aspx Accessed January-February 2019

Page 45



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 17 of 114

Table 3-1 – Economic Inactivity 4

All People Caerphilly Caerphilly % Wales %

Total 27,500 24.7% 23.8%

Student 5,600 20.4% 25.4%

Looking After
Family/Home

5,400 19.5% 19.7%

Temporary Sick # # 1.7%

Long-Term Sick 9,300 33.6% 28%

Discouraged ! ! 0.4%

Retired 4,500 16.5% 14.7%

Other 2,300 8.2% 10.1%

Wants A Job 7,300 26.3% 22.3%

Does Not Want A Job 20,300 73.7% 77.7%

(October 2017 – September 2018 Data)

Source: ONS annual population survey
#  Sample size too small for reliable estimate
!   Estimate is not available since sample size is disclosive

Table 3-2 – Employment & Unemployment 7

All People Caerphilly Caerphilly % Wales %

Economically Active 85,800 75.3% 76.2%

In Employment 80,000 70% 72.6%

Employees 71,900 63.5% 62.5%

Self Employed 7,000 5.8% 9.5%

Unemployed 4,800 5.7% 4.6%

(October 2017 – September 2018 Data)

Source: NOMIS labour supply – based on the ONS annual population. Figures taken directly from the source.

7 https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/1946157400/report.aspx?pc=NP11%205ES#tabjobs

Page 46



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 18 of 114

There are a high number of workless households in Caerphilly at 19.1% which is higher than both the
Wales and Great Britain averages at 17.5% and 14.5% respectively. Data from January to December
2017 shows that there were 10,900 workless households in Caerphilly.

Table 3-3 – Workless Households 4

Caerphilly Wales Great Britain

Number of Workless Households 10,900 166,000 2,943,800

Percentage of Households That Are Workless 19.1% 17.5% 14.5%

Number of Children in Workless Households # 67,100 1,280,500

Percentage of Children Who Are in Households That
Are Workless

# 12.6 10.7

(January – December 2017)

Source: ONS annual population survey - households by combined economic activity status
#   Sample size too small for reliable estimate
Notes:   Only includes those households that have at least one person aged 16 to 64.
Children refers to all children aged under 16.

The average earning per week for a Caerphilly resident equates to £504, which is lower than the
Welsh and Great Britain averages which are £518.60 and £571.10 respectively. The difference
between the Caerphilly and Wales full-time workers gross weekly pay is £14.30 lower than the Welsh
average. The hourly pay excluding overtime is £12.97 which is in line with the Welsh average of £13,
but considerably lower than the £14.36 Great Britain average.

Table 3-4 – Earnings by place of residence 4

Caerphilly (£) Wales (£) Great Britain (£)

GROSS WEEKLY PAY

Full-Time Workers 504.30 518.60 571.10

Male Full-Time Workers 550.20 551.90 612.20

Female Full-Time Workers 467.50 474.10 510.00

Hourly Pay - Excluding Overtime

Full-Time Workers 12.97 13.00 14.36

Male Full-Time Workers 13.46 13.42 14.89

Female Full-Time Workers 12.35 12.32 13.56

(2018 Data)

Source: ONS annual survey of hours and earnings - resident analysis
Notes:   Median earnings in pounds for employees living in the area.

Page 47



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 19 of 114

The earnings based on the place of work shows a difference of £12.30 per week for full time workers
when compared to the place of residence. This highlights that certain residents commute outside of
the Caerphilly boundary to access higher paid jobs. The difference between the Caerphilly and Wales
full-time workers gross weekly pay based on place of work is of £17.00 in favour of the national
average.

Table 3-5 – Earnings by place of work 4

Caerphilly (£) Wales (£) Great Britain (£)

GROSS WEEKLY PAY

Full-Time Workers 492.00 509.00 570.90

Male Full-Time Workers 501.40 541.60 611.80

Female Full-Time
Workers

463.90 469.50 509.80

Hourly Pay - Excluding Overtime

Full-Time Workers 12.69 12.67 14.35

Male Full-Time Workers 13.07 13.02 14.88

Female Full-Time
Workers

12.31 12.08 13.55

(2018 Data)

Source: ONS annual survey of hours and earnings - workplace analysis
Notes:   Median earnings in pounds for employees working in the area.

There were 3,935 registered businesses in Caerphilly as of 2018 and over 4,895 local business units.
There is a higher percentage of medium and large enterprises in Caerphilly at 1.9% and 0.5% when
compared to the Welsh averages of 1.4% and 0.3% respectively.

Page 48



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 20 of 114

Table 3-6 – UK Business Counts

Caerphilly
(Numbers)

Caerphilly
(%)

Wales
(Numbers)

Wales
(%)

Enterprises

Micro (0 To 9) 3,450 87.7% 92,235 89.1

Small (10 To 49) 390 9.9% 9,550 9.2

Medium (50 To 249) 75 1.9% 1,430 1.4

Large (250+) 20 0.5% 315 0.3

Total 3,935 - 103,530 -

Local Units

Micro (0 To 9) 3,990 81.5% 105,095 83.1

Small (10 To 49) 725 14.8% 17,665 14

Medium (50 To 249) 150 3.1% 3,210 2.5

Large (250+) 30 0.6% 500 0.4

Total 4,895 - 126,470 -

Data from 2018

Source: Inter Departmental Business Register (ONS)
Note:   % is as a proportion of total (enterprises or local units)

3.3 AIR QUALITY BASELINE
The WelTAG Stage Two’s problem identification section found the elevated concentrations in NO2 to
be associated with the high traffic volumes and congestion with the eastbound morning peak. This is
caused by vehicles climbing the A472 towards Hafodyrynys village. A map of this is available in Figure
3-7.

As part of WelTAG Stage Two, the Pollution Climate Model (PCM) projections presented in support
of the 2017 Plan indicate that annual mean NO2 concentrations on the section of the A472 under
consideration will reach compliance with air quality limit values by 2026. However, this was based on
2015 monitoring data and since then there has been no reduction in NO2 levels.  Using national
projection factors which account for the effect of improved emissions from the turnover in the vehicle
fleet, and traffic count data the estimated year of compliance is 2029 from a 2017 baseline, as reported
in the Stage Two Report.

As part of the Stage Three assessment a more detailed and robust `Do Minimum’ traffic model was
used as a basis for estimating the year of compliance with no interventions.

Page 49



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 21 of 114

3.3.1 PREDICTED MAXIMUM NO2 CONCENTRATIONS AT THE A472 – NO INTERVENTIONS,
STAGE THREE UPDATE
WelTAG Stage Two has predicted the maximum NO2 concentration on the A472 with no
interventions, to be compliant by 2029, instead of 2026 as initially indicated by a national
assessment. The national assessment was based on 2015 monitoring data and but the analysis
within the Stage Two report was based on 2017 monitoring data.

The future of compliance has been re-assessed at Stage Three through modelling. Receptors have
been used in the model at residential locations, CCBC monitoring points, locations along the existing
north path, existing south path and the new south path. In total 97 receptors have been used. The
receptor network is shown as the dots in Figure 3-1.

Table 3-7 shows the predicted reduction in concentrations over time and the anticipated compliance
date without intervention.

Table 3-7 - Roadside annual mean concentrations of NO2, μg/m3 on A472

Measure NO2 predicted concentration (µg m-3)

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

Baseline 72 68 65 61 57 53 49 45 40 36

Note: Red Box Non-compliant, Green Box compliance achieved

3.3.2 MODEL FORECASTING YEARS
At WelTAG Stage Two it was identified that the compliance year without any local intervention was
2029. The 2029 compliance date at WelTAG Stage Two was based on 2017 baseline monitoring data
and used a national projection factor for the vehicle emissions. The implementation year for most of
the options is found to be no earlier than 2021. Therefore, the Stage Three assessment utilises 2021
and 2029 as the traffic forecast assessment years. The base traffic model was validated to 2018 data.
The most recent annual air quality monitoring data available was for 2017, which was used for the
base year along with the forecasting years is as follows:

¡ 2021 (first implementation year for most of the options)
¡ 2029 (compliance year for NO2 without any local intervention as identified at WelTAG Stage Two)
Air quality modellled data were linearly interpolated for each intervening year between 2017, 2021
and 2029.

Page 50



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 22 of 114

Figure 3-1 – Receptor Network Location Diagram

Table 3-8 shows a count the number of points less than or higher than 40µg/m3 of NO2. The clear
majority of 70 receptor locations are compliant by 2023/2024. The table shows that by 2025 all
receptors will be compliant with the limit of 40µg/m3 of NO2.

Table 3-8 – Future Compliance of NO2  (Do Minimum)

Total Number of Receptors

Scenario NO2>40 NO2<40

2017 56 41

2021 35 62

2022 31 66

2023 25 72

2024 10 87

2025 0 97

2026 0 97

2027 0 97

2028 0 97

2029 0 97

This table is the number of receptor points <40, or
>40 µg/m3

Another year of monitoring data for 2018 is available for the Stage Three report. The annual mean
concentration for 2018 was 62 µg/m-3, a reduction of 8 µg/m-3 from 2017.  While the data for 2018

Page 51



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 23 of 114

showed a similar seasonal trend to previous years, the overall concentrations were lower than many
of the preceding years. This is shown in Figure 3-2. The data values presented are up to 2018 in
Figure 3-2 and Figure 3-3.

In Figure 3-3 it is unclear as to why the 2018 concentrations have decreased and there is little
evidence, at present to indicate this is a widespread trend.

Figure 3-2 - Seasonal trend in NO2 at Hafodyrynys automatic monitoring site

Note: The data values presented are up to the end of 2018

Figure 3-3 - Annual trend in NO2 at Hafodyrynys automatic monitoring site

Note: The data values presented are up to the end 2018

Page 52



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 24 of 114

3.4 TRAFFIC BASELINE
An Automatic Number-plate Recognition (ANPR) Survey has been carried out on the study corridor,
A472 (Crumlin) in 2018. This has identified the emissions standards of the vehicle fleet in this location.
This is broken down by European emissions standards, Euro 1 to Euro 6. The Figure 3-4 identifies
that there are no vehicles currently using the A472 on the study corridor which are Euro 1 (passenger
vehicles registered from January 1993 up to January 1997), (LGVs registered from October 1994 up
to October 1997) and (HGVs & Buses registered between 1992-1995).

Figure 3-4 – Base Year Vehicle emissions standards

In 2018 the following percentage of vehicles which are older than Euro 4 Petrol Car and older than
Euro 6 Diesel, would not be compliant and would therefore be impacted by a Clean Air Zone (CAZ):

¡ Petrol Car – 18%
¡ Diesel Car – 73%
¡ Diesel LGVs – 82%
¡ Articulated HGV – 43%
¡ Rigid HGV - 62%
¡ Buses – 60%

Note – this assumes implementation of the CAZ in the base year – a false scenario. The numbers
above are likely to reduce over time due to turnover and modernisation of the fleet.

Further to this, data from the National Atmospheric Emissions Inventory (NAEI) has been used to
calculate projection factors and then applying this to the local fleet data to give future year annual
forecasts up to 2030. The base year vehicle emissions standards are shown is shown in Figure 3-4.
The forecast years for Stage Three are 2021, shown in Figure 3-5 and 2029 in Figure 3-6.

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Petrol Cars Diesel Cars LGVs Rigid HGV Artic HGV Buses

2018 Vehicle Fleet Engine Type Comparison

Pre-Euro 1 Euro 1 Euro 2 Euro 3 Euro 4 Euro 5 Euro 6

Page 53



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 25 of 114

Figure 3-5 – 2021 Vehicle Engine Type Forecast Comparison

Figure 3-6 – 2029 Vehicle Engine Type Forecast Comparison

Table 3-9 shows the percentage of vehicles which are older than Euro 4 Petrol and older than Euro
6 Diesel, that are not compliant and would therefore be impacted by a Clean Air Zone (CAZ). The
projections show that by 2021, around 5% of petrol cars will not be compliant with the emissions
standards and would be subject to a CAZ charge, while just over half of diesel cars in the study area

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Petrol Cars Diesel Cars LGVs Rigid HGV Artic HGV Buses

2021 Vehicle Fleet Engine Type Forecast

Pre-Euro 1 Euro 1 Euro 2 Euro 3 Euro 4 Euro 5 Euro 6

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Petrol Cars Diesel Cars LGVs Rigid HGV Artic HGV Buses

2029 Vehicle Fleet Engine Type Forecast

Pre-Euro 1 Euro 1 Euro 2 Euro 3 Euro 4 Euro 5 Euro 6

Page 54



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 26 of 114

would be affected. By 2029 it is projected that most vehicles will be compliant with the standards,
with the highest impact of the CAZ being for diesel car and LGVs users at 5% and 9% respectively.

Table 3-9 – Clean Air Zone (CAZ) Impact (% of total) by Vehicle Type

Vehicle Type 2018 Baseline 2021 2029

Petrol Car 18% 5% 0.3%

Diesel Car 73% 52% 5%

LGVs 82% 60% 9%

Arctic HGV 43% 16% 0.3%

Rigid HGV 62% 35% 2%

Buses 60% 23% 0.2%

The Figure 3-7 shows the eastbound traffic queue that is currently visible on the A472 towards
Hafodyrynys in the morning period.

Figure 3-7 – AM Peak Eastbound Traffic Towards Hafodyrynys

Page 55



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 27 of 114

An Automatic Traffic Count (ATC) survey has been undertaken on A472 Hafodyrynys Road, in the
direct vicinity of Woodside Terrace. The data collected through the survey, collated the vehicle flows
with the 15-minute intervals and distinguish the vehicles by their class.

Figure 3-8 and Figure 3-9 present the 5-day average flow for the light vehicles and HGVs
respectively. As it can be observed, the light vehicle flow increases notably between 06:00 and 08:00,
reaching approximately 1,800 vehicles per hour. It falls then around 10:00, to increase again gradually
between 12:00 and 17:00, when it reaches similar flows to that of the AM peak. From around 18:00
the traffic flow gradually diminishes.

Figure 3-8 – 5 Day Average Light Vehicles Flow

The HGV traffic flow presented in Figure 3-9, increases gradually from approximately 05:00 until 14:00
with only a small decrease at 11:00. After reaching its peak at 14:00 of just under 30 vehicles per
hour, the HGV flow decreases then gradually until 20:00 and remains constant until the morning
increase.

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

1800

2000

00
:0

0

01
:0

0

02
:0

0

03
:0

0

04
:0

0

05
:0

0

06
:0

0

07
:0

0

08
:0

0

09
:0

0

10
:0

0

11
:0

0

12
:0

0

13
:0

0

14
:0

0

15
:0

0

16
:0

0

17
:0

0

18
:0

0

19
:0

0

20
:0

0

21
:0

0

22
:0

0

23
:0

0

Ve
hi

cl
es

Time

Page 56



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 28 of 114

Figure 3-9 – 5-day Average HGVs Flow

The Bluetooth journey time surveys were carried out from 09-05-2018 to 05-06-2018 to assess the
journey time during both the weekday peak hours and Saturday peak hour.

Figure 3-10 – Bluetooth Journey Time Survey

0

5

10

15

20

25

30
00

:0
0

01
:0

0

02
:0

0

03
:0

0

04
:0

0

05
:0

0

06
:0

0

07
:0

0

08
:0

0

09
:0

0

10
:0

0

11
:0

0

12
:0

0

13
:0

0

14
:0

0

15
:0

0

16
:0

0

17
:0

0

18
:0

0

19
:0

0

20
:0

0

21
:0

0

22
:0

0

23
:0

0

Ve
hi

cl
es

Time

Page 57



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 29 of 114

Figure 3-10 shows the extent of the survey route where the Bluetooth journey time data has been
collected. The total length of the study route is 1 mile.

Figure 3-11 demonstrates a clear increase in the journey time for eastbound flows during the morning
AM Peak. This suggest that there could be localised congestion as the PM, Inter Peak, and 24hr peak
journey times are less than the AM peak and the associated westbound journey times.

Figure 3-11 – Comparison of Bluetooth Journey Time - Weekdays

The Saturday journey times are shown in Figure 3-12 – Comparison of Bluetooth Journey Time -
Saturday. It is clear from this figure that journey times are noticeably greater for westbound flows
compared to eastbound.

Figure 3-12 – Comparison of Bluetooth Journey Time - Saturday

Page 58



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 30 of 114

3.5 ACTIVE TRAVEL
Some of the proposed options are likely to impact on the active travel provision of Hafodyrynys. It is
important to know the number of pedestrians using the pathways to also quantify the exposure to NO2

and the impact on the pathways as a result of any of the proposed options. The largest impact is likely
to be on walking on the two pathways adjacent to the Woodside Terrace.

Pedestrian count results are presented in Table 3-10 from a video survey undertaken on Monday 14th
May 2018. On this date there was also a general waste collection service at around 14:15. The figures
below show that the south side, directly in front of the Woodside Terrace, is more heavily utilised than
the north side. There are 38 pedestrians using the south side and 14 pedestrians using the north side.
In total there are 52 pedestrians using both sides of the pathways.

Table 3-10 – Pedestrian Count outside Woodside Terrace, Hafodyrynys

Pedestrians

Time South Side North Side

Uphill Downhill Uphill Downhill

6:30-7:30 1 0 0 1

7:30-8:30 0 4 0 2

8:30-9:30 0 1 2 1

9:30-10:30 0 0 1 2

10:30-11:30 2 0 0 0

11:30-12:30 1 3 0 1

12:30-13:30 1 2 0 0

13:30-14:30 2 4 0 0

14:30-15:30 1 4 3 0

15:30-16:30 6 1 0 0

16:30-17:30 1 0 0 0

17:30-18:30 3 1 1 0

18:30-19:00 0 0 0 0

Total
18 20 7 7

38 14

52

Pedestrian surveys were carried out from 09-05-2018 to 22-05-2018 to assess the utilisation and
demand of pedestrian crossings within the study area during the weekday peak hours and Saturday.
The surveyed pedestrian crossing sites are presented in Figure 3-13.

Page 59



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 31 of 114

Figure 3-13 – Pedestrian Survey Site Number

Table 3-11 shows the weekday pedestrian counts for the four sites. Site 12 is used by less than 5
pedestrians during all peaks and directions. There are 16 pedestrians travelling eastbound and 21
westbound over a 12-hour period. Site 13 and 14 have very low utilisation, with no pedestrians using
them during all peaks and directions and only marginal usage in the off-peak visible in the 12-hour
period column. Site 15 has a considerable high pedestrian demand compared to the other sites. The

Page 60



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 32 of 114

majority of demand is for southbound movements during the AM and PM, while in the inter-peak the
predominant movement is in the northbound direction.

Table 3-11 – Pedestrian Count - Weekday

Site Direction AM Peak
(7:30-8:30)

IP (15:00-16:00) PM Peak (16:30-
17:30)

12 Hrs (7:00-
19:00)

Pedest
rian

Cyclists Pedestrian Cyclists Pedestrian Cyclists Pedestrian Cyclists

Site 12 Eastbound 0 0 1 0 2 0 16 3

Westbound 2 0 2 1 3 1 21 3

Site 13 Northbound 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0

Southbound 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Site 14 Eastbound 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Westbound 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0

Site 15 Northbound 4 0 23 0 10 0 81 4

Southbound 22 0 7 0 15 0 113 3

Table 3-12 shows the Saturday pedestrian counts for the four sites. Site 12 has a considerable amount
of flow in the 12-hour, with 24 pedestrians travelling eastbound and 30 travelling westbound. Site 13
and 14 have low utilisation, with three pedestrians in each direction at Site 13 and one pedestrian at
Site 14. Site 15 has a high pedestrian demand for the 12-hour period, with 72 travelling northbound
and 117 travelling southbound.

Table 3-12 – Pedestrian Count - Saturday

Site Direction Saturday Peak (13:15-14:15) 12 Hrs (7:00-19:00)

Pedestrian Cyclists Pedestrian Cyclists

Site 12 Eastbound 5 1 24 1

Westbound 4 0 30 3

Site 13 Northbound 0 0 3 0

Southbound 0 0 3 1

Site 14 Eastbound 0 0 1 0

Westbound 0 0 0 0

Site 15 Northbound 4 0 72 3

Southbound 12 0 117 3

Page 61



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 33 of 114

3.6 OTHER BASELINE DATA
More baseline data is presented in the Impact Assessment Report (IAR).

Further baseline information is contained within the WelTAG Stage One report for the following
areas:

¡ Infrastructure and Local Facilities;
¡ Traffic Flows;
¡ Journey Time and Reliability;
¡ Personal Injury Collision Data;
¡ Public Transport;
¡ Origin and Destination Analysis;
¡ Economy;
¡ Demographics;
¡ Other Related Work; and
¡ Committed Developments

More baseline information is available also within the WelTAG Stage Two report for the following
areas:

¡ Air Quality Baseline
¡ Sensitive Environmental Areas
¡ Water Environment
¡ Cultural Heritage and Historic Landscape Designations

Page 62



PUBLIC

4
TRANSPORT CASE

Page 63



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 35 of 114

4 TRANSPORT CASE

4.1 OVERVIEW
The Transport Case ‘tells you what the expected impacts of the project are, how the project will
contribute to the well-being goals and whether a project will provide value for public money. This is
the equivalent of the ‘Economic Case’ in HM Treasury’s Green Book. This is achieved by considering
the social, cultural, environmental and economic costs and benefits of each option.

Whilst WelTAG provides a fixed framework for appraisal, the guidance acknowledges that the level of
detail provided in the WelTAG report should be proportionate to the impacts under consideration.
Therefore, the transport case focuses on air quality and reflects the key considerations in relation to
the EU Air Quality Directive and bringing forward compliance with limit values.

4.2 METHODOLOGY
The approach to the Stage Three level of appraisal is intended to examine in greater detail the physical
‘hard measures’, which have tangible benefits for tackling the problem under consideration. The ‘soft
measures’ included within the complementary package have not been modelled as the direct benefits
are expected to be intangible. The general approach to the modelling of measures is outlined in Table
4-1.

Table 4-1 – Modelling Approach to Measures

Ref Measure Traffic Modelling Requirement Air Quality
Modelling
Requirement

S1 Change Signal Timings at Crumlin Junction Yes, for AM peak hour only Included

S2 Signalise the A472/B4471 Swffryd Junction
and introduce an eastbound queue detector

Yes, for all peak hours Included

S3 Demolish Dwellings at Woodside Terrace and
Re-align Road

No – this option utilises Do-
Minimum traffic data.

Included

S4 Peak Period HGV Bans Yes, for AM and PM peak hour. Included

S5 Clean Air Zone / Low Emission Zone Yes, for all Peak hour – Class
D8 (with JAQU Behavioural
Response assumptions)

Included

8 Class A - Buses, coaches, taxis and private hire vehicles (PHVs); Class B - Buses, coaches, taxis, PHVs and heavy
goods vehicles (HGVs); Class C - Buses, coaches, taxis, PHVs, HGVs and light goods vehicles (LGVs); Class D -
Buses, coaches, taxis, PHVs, HGVs LGVs and cars where all petrol vehicles should comply with at least Euro 4 and all
diesel vehicles Euro 6 emission standards

Page 64



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 36 of 114

Ref Measure Traffic Modelling Requirement Air Quality
Modelling
Requirement

S6 Traffic Management Option - Change Signal
Timings at Crumlin Junction (Option 1) +
Signalise the A472/B4471 Swffryd Junction
with 2 lanes on A472 EB (Option 2)

Yes, for all peak hours. Included

S7 Do Max - Change Signal Timings at Crumlin
Junction + Signalise the A472/B4471 Swffryd
Junction with 2 lanes on A472 EB + Clean Air
Zone / Low Emission Zone

Yes, for all peak hours. Included

4.2.1 ENVIRONMENTAL APPRAISAL
4.2.1.1 Transport Modelling

The emissions and dispersion modelling undertaken at Stage Two was based on the assumed impacts
of measures on traffic speeds and volumes. At Stage Three a fully quantifiable approach to appraising
the benefits of measures has been undertaken, and this required the ‘hard measures’ to be modelled
with microsimulation traffic modelling. It was not necessary to undertake traffic modelling for all
measures as some measures (e.g. Demolition) are not expected to result in a change in traffic flows.
The static VISSIM micro-simulation model has two forecast years, 2021 and 2029.

A static VISSIM micro-simulation model was developed for the morning peak, inter-peak (IP), evening
peak and Saturday peak for the A472 Hafodyrynys Road study corridor, utilising demand data from
an extensive traffic data collection exercise which was undertaken in 2018. This included 10 automatic
traffic counters (ATC) on the A472 Hafodyrynys Road, and the micro-simulation model was calibrated
and validated utilising journey time and queue data. Results were output and averaged over several
random seeds to ensure the ‘daily variability’ in traffic flow was accurately modelled. High resolution
data was outputted from the model (across 350 data collection points) and included volume,
classification and speed data. The ATC data was used to factor the morning, inter-peak evening peak
hour flow data to AM, IP, PM, Saturday, and off-peak periods covering 24 hours in total.

Whilst the model was developed for the A472 Hafodyrynys Road corridor of the exceedance area
only, general consideration has been given to the wider impacts of displacing traffic in the instance of
peak period HGV bans and Clean Air Zones. The full detail on the traffic modelling, including the base
model calibration and validation statistics are included within the WelTAG Stage Three Impact
Assessment Report (IAR).

The base year for the VISSIM model is 2018. Growth factors were derived from TEMPro 7.2 to growth
the traffic data to 2021 and 2029. The TEMPro growth factors for Caerphilly are presented in Table
4-2.

4.2.1.2 Strategic modelling

As part of the Stage Three assessment work, the CAZ option has been modelled within the South-
East Wales Transport Model (SEWTM) to assess the re-distribution of traffic.

Strategic models operate through repeated iterations of traffic assignment to the network, with costs
calculated for the current run and fed forward into the next iteration for re-routing traffic until the model

Page 65



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 37 of 114

converges (when there is little change between one iteration and the next). The convergence of the
model is controlled by looking at statistics for the model as a whole; this can mean that when running
networks with slightly different properties or flow patterns (such as testing schemes that only affect a
small part of the model, such as in this case), there is often a difference in the traffic flows that has
nothing to do with the specific changes put in but is just because the model has converged with a
slightly different answer, and these differences are referred to as ‘noise’ when comparing two models.
Where changes are small because of a scheme it is therefore difficult to separate out the specific
changes due to the scheme from any background noise.

Below  is  a  summary  of  the  SEWTM  results  for  a  CAZ  Option  Class  D9 with JAQU Behavioural
response10. The modelling results are based on a 2026 forecast assessment year. This year has been
utilised as the model does not have either the 2021 or 2029 assessment years, whilst 2026 is available
and served as a proxy year between 2021 and 2029.

¡ Morning Peak

There are approximately 90 vehicles westbound that reroute from along Hafodyrynys Road.
Approximately half of these trips were coming from the north, with those trips previously
following Swffryd Road before coming down Hafodyrynys Road, while in the Do Something
they route directly along the A467. The other half of these trips were routing along the A472
from the east; due to the background traffic in the model it’s unclear where these trips may
have re-routed to or from.

¡ Inter-peak

There are approximately 10 vehicles westbound and 25 vehicles eastbound that re-route from
along the Hafodyrynys Road. Most of these flow changes continue to the east along the A472,
however similarly to the AM and therefore in combination with the small flows being talked
about it’s not clear whether there’s a specific route that these vehicles re-route on to.

¡ Evening Peak

There are approximately 10 vehicles westbound and 10 vehicles eastbound that re-route from
along the Hafodyrynys Road. Similarly, to the AM and IP time periods, the small flows being
talked about and the background traffic in the model make it unclear where vehicles may be
re-routing to.

These results have been used to inform the distributional analysis. However, the results should be
treated with caution due to limitations of the South-East Wales Transport Model (SEWTM). More detail
on the SEWTM model outputs is contained within the IAR.

9 Class D - Buses, coaches, taxis, PHVs, HGVs LGVs and cars where all petrol vehicles should comply with at least Euro
4 and all diesel vehicles Euro 6 emission standards

10 JAQU (Defra and Department for Transport Joint Air Quality Unit) provide guidance on the likely behavioural responses
to a charging Clean Air Zone. Details are available in the Impact Assessment Report.

Page 66



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 38 of 114

4.2.1.3 Traffic Modelling Assumptions

Table 4-2 – Local Growth Figures for A472 Crumlin (TEMPro)

AM Peak Hour Inter-Peak PM Peak Hour Saturday

2021 1.0492 1.0580 1.0477 1.0490

2029 1.1121 1.1320 1.1094 1.1153

Table 4-3 below shows the weekday conversion factors which have been calculated from a two-week
average survey data. The Saturday conversion factors were also calculated from the same survey
dataset but only looking at the average Saturday data.

Table 4-3 – Time Conversion Factors

Weekday Factors

AM Peak Hour to AM 3hr Period 2.6

IP Average hour to IP 6hr Period 6

PM Peak Hour to PM 3hr Period 2.6

AM + PM + IP Peak Hours to OP Period 0.9

As part of the model calibration and validation it was identified that the morning peak hour for the
eastbound and westbound direction does not coincide. As a result, the model period was extended to
2 hours to ensure that the complex interactions within the morning peak could be accurately modelled.

4.2.1.4 Air Quality

The air quality modelling can be broadly split into two components:

¡ Emission modelling
¡ Dispersion modelling

Emission modelling

The emission modelling for this study is essentially a translation of the results of the traffic
microsimulation described in previous sections- with an emphasis on avoiding loss of temporal
variance in the results of the traffic model. The emissions model also makes use of ambient vehicle
emission measurements from two campaigns carried out in 2018.

The modelled traffic conditions were passed through our emission model (which is based on COPERT
but tuned with the measured vehicle emission data) using discrete values for each hour so that
detailed temporal patterns could be captured, and therefore reflected in the annual mean pollutant
values reported. This represents a significant enhancement over the Stage 2 work which used average
speeds and flows across the day.

Page 67



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 39 of 114

In addition to the activity-based traffic scenarios modelled technology changes implied by the CAZ
scheme (based on Class D11, with behavioural responses) have been incorporated into the model.
This was done by modelling each link using independent flow, speed and fleet composition for each
of the 24 hours in a typical day. The detailed temporal allocation of emissions also enabled the
modelling of the HGV scheme impacts specific to the time of the day affected.

An example of the temporal allocation of emissions is provided in Table 4-4 where the effect of both
the tidal traffic pattern and the uphill/downhill effect can be observed in the emission curves.

Table 4-4 - Daily NOx emission profile through street canyon (note higher values uphill)
1

Uphill emission rate Downhill emission rate

The emission modelling approach was written into a series of python programs to enable the modeller
to vary the flow, speed, fleet mix and gradient for each link, for each hour of the day. This represents
a significant enhancement over simple daily average-based methods.

Air quality modelling

The Hafodyrynys Road location presents a set of topographical factors which complicate air quality
modelling at the location. These can be summarised thus:

1) The road transects an obvious street canyon which is asymmetrical- the north elevation is
higher than the south

2) The street canyon lies within a valley. The wider topography of the area comprises many hills
and valleys.

3) The street canyon has an upwards gradient running from West to East

11 Class D - Buses, coaches, taxis, PHVs, HGVs LGVs and cars where all petrol vehicles should comply with at least Euro
4 and all diesel vehicles Euro 6 emission standards

Page 68



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 40 of 114

In isolation each of these factors would present a challenge for dispersion models commonly used in
the UK. The confluence of all of these factors has led us to select the GRAL modelling suite which is
well suited to deal with these additional challenges.

The air quality modelling for the Woodside Terrace corridor was undertaken in the GRAL dispersion
model, supported by meteorological modelling undertaken in the GRAMM processor. Much of the
detail around this method remains unchanged from the Stage Two report so is not reproduced here
(a full methodological report is provided in the Impact Assessment Report).

The GRAL/GRAMM modelling system (hereafter called ‘GRAL’) was developed by the Graz
University of Technology, Institute for Internal Combustion Engines. GRAL is a sophisticated, non-
steady state air quality model which has been used extensively in Europe.

For the purposes of this study we have followed the advice set out in the guidance note by the
developers of GRAL which is circulated with the model code.

The air quality modelling was carried out using wind and cloud data from the Cardiff Airport station in
2017, which was used to provide boundary conditions to the regional domain represented in the
GRAMM met model. Subsequently GRAMM provides the meteorological boundary conditions to the
GRAL dispersion model. The GRAMM domain covers an area of around 9km x 9km centred on the
GRAL domain.

Each hour was modelled individually by averaging the meteorology across the year for the hour- e.g.
all 1am hours are grouped and modelled as an average, all 2am hours are grouped and so on. This
means that the temporally detailed emissions can be presented to the appropriate meteorology in
each hour.

The GRAL domain covering the Woodside Terrace corridor is comprised of 378 x 177 x 12 cells in
the x, y and z axes, set to a horizontal resolution of 1m (Figure 4-1).

Two further grids were also modelled (mainly to support the economic and health impact appraisals)
using the Ricardo RapidAIR model. The RapidAIR domain shown below was also prepared at 1m
resolution and a further larger domain was modelled for the distributional analysis at 3m resolution
(see Table 4-2). RapidAIR is Ricardo Energy & Environment’s propriety modelling system developed
for urban air pollution assessments. The model is based on convolution of an emissions grid with
dispersion kernels derived from the USEPA AERMOD12 model. The physical model parameterisation
(release height, initial plume depth) closely follow guidance provided by the USEPA in their statutory
road transport dispersion modelling guidance13..AERMOD provides the algorithms which govern the
dispersion of the emissions and is an internationally accepted model for traffic studies. Further

12 https://www3.epa.gov/ttn/scram/dispersion_prefrec.htm#aermod
13 https://www.epa.gov/state-and-local-transportation/project-level-conformity-and-hot-spot-analyses

Page 69



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 41 of 114

details about the RapidAir model, including results of a validation study in London, has been
published in a peer-reviewed academic journal14.

Figure 4-1 Air quality simulation domain

14 Masey, Nicola, Scott Hamilton, and Iain J. Beverland. "Development and evaluation of the RapidAir® dispersion model,
including the use of geospatial surrogates to represent street canyon effects." Environmental Modelling & Software 108
(2018): 253-263.

Page 70



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 42 of 114

Figure 4-2 Regional simulation domain

Non-road background concentrations of NOx for 2017 were obtained from the Defra UK-Air website.
The component from road traffic was removed to avoid double counting. The background air pollution
climate in Hafodyrynys is quite low, with an average value at the model domain of around 9 µg/m3.
The low background value further reinforces the very dominant effect of local traffic on the NO2 climate
in the area.

The GRAL results require conversion with an empirically derived equation. A formula is provided by
the model developers, but it is based on conditions in Europe, so a conversion function specific to the
study was derived. The default values for f-NO2 in the NOx to NO2 calculator were used (0.28 in 2017
for ‘All UK Traffic’).

The background value was input into the Defra NOx to NO2 calculator along with the diffusion tube
results provided by CCBC to obtain a conversion curve to be applied to the modelled NOx
concentrations. A 3rd order polynomial expression was obtained which explains 99.999% of the
variance in the relationship between total NOx and total NO2. The expression is provided in Equation
1 below.

 Equation 1
ܱܰ2 = ଷݔ0.00000089 − ଶݔ0.00079666 + ݔ0.52084404 + 3.7371263

where x = total annual mean NOx (sum of traffic NOx and background)

Page 71



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 43 of 114

4.3 AIR QUALITY APPRAISAL
The options appraised for their air quality effects are as follows:

Table 4-5 – Option Description

Reference Measure Description

1 Change Signal Timings at Crumlin Junction

2 Signalise the A472/B4471 Swffryd Junction

3 Demolish Dwellings at Woodside Terrace and realignment of the southern footpath

4 Peak Period HGV Bans

5 Clean Air Zone / Low Emission Zone

6 Traffic Management Option (Changing Signal Timings at Crumlin Junction &
Signalise the A472/B4471 Swffryd Junction

7 Do Maximum Option (Changing Signal Timings at Crumlin Junction & Signalise the
A472/B4471 Swffryd Junction & Clean Air Zone / Low Emission Zone)

The section 4.3.1 Scenario Results below presents plots and numerical values for the following
scenarios:

1) Baseline 2017

2) Do-minimum 2021

3) Scenario 3 - Do-minimum 2021 emissions with demolition and south path realignment

4) Scenario 4 - 2021- HGV ban in peak period

5) Scenario 5 - 2021 Class D15 CAZ with Behavioural Response

The three scenarios in the list above yielded material changes in concentrations whereas scenarios
1, 2 and 6 in Table 4-5 had no effect on concentrations. Scenario 7 yielded the same results as
scenario 5.

In addition to modelling NO2, results for PM2.5 are presented as required by the Health Impact
Assessment.

15  Class D - Buses, coaches, taxis, PHVs, HGVs LGVs and cars where all petrol vehicles should comply with at least Euro
4 and all diesel vehicles Euro 6 emission standards

Page 72



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 44 of 114

Agreement between the modelled values and the observed values was very good.  The relationship
between observed road NOx and modelled values was best explained by a 2nd order polynomial,
which was subsequently used to adjust the road NOx component. After applying the polynomial, the
relationship is linear and there is a good match between observed vs modelled values.  Following that
the NO2 expression above to convert total NOx to annual mean NO2 was applied, before calculating
the RMSE- which in this case is 3.9 µg/m3. The modelled concentrations explain 84.4 % of the variance
in the measured NO2 values.

Table 4-6 – Model Validation Data for Annual Mean NO2

Site Site description Measured NO2
(μg/m3)

Modelled
NO2 (μg/m3)

CCBC48 1 Woodside Shops, Hafodyrynys 42.8 47.2

CCBC50 Past Woodside Terrace, Hafodyrynys 51.5 57.1

CCBC60 3 New Houses, Hafodyrynys 36.5 37.7

CCBC79 20 Woodside Terrace, Hafodyrynys 61.2 64.0

CCBC83 10 Woodside Terrace, Hafodyrynys 58.9 59.4

CCBC84 La Loma, Hafodyrynys 41.4 34.9

CCBC86 Telegraph pole outside 16 Woodside Tce 66.9 70.0

CCBC87 16 Woodside Tce, Hafodyrynys 66.5 70.0

CCBC88 13 Woodside Tce, Hafodyrynys 53.6 58.8

CCBC89 Hafodyrynys AQE 1 70.3 65.8

CCBC90 Hafodyrynys AQE 2 69.5 65.8

CCBC91 Hafodyrynys AQE 3 72.5 65.8

CCBC93 3 Woodside Tce, Hafodyrynys 58.0 63.4

CCBC94 Bus stop outside 1 Woodside Tce 59.4 60.6

CCBC95 1 Woodside Tce, Hafodyrynys 42.9 41.2

Auto site Automatic analyser site 70.0 64.0

Root mean square error = 3.9 µg/m3

Page 73



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 45 of 114

4.3.1 TIMESCALES FOR MEASURE IMPLEMENTATION AND COMPLIANCE ASSESSMENT

In determining the measure(s) that could bring forward compliance in the shortest possible time a
detailed assessment has been undertaken on the timescale for the full implementation of each
measure.

Scenario 1: Change signal timings at Crumlin Junction; This measure is not difficult to implement
and requires a traffic engineer to alter the existing traffic light sequence. However, as this will result in
longer traffic queues on the A467, a safety assessment is required of whether further warnings signs
of extended queues on the A467 would be necessary. Additionally, the Kendon Road junction requires
a safety assessment. However, given that there are no tangible air quality benefits, this will not be
taken forward for implementation.

Scenario 2: Signalise the A472/B4471 Swffryd Junction: This scenario requires a detailed
engineering option design as it includes the introduction of new traffic control signals and associated
road infrastructure. Planning permission is required, including public consultation which can then be
followed by a construction period. However, as this measure has no tangible air quality benefits, this
will not be taken forward for implementation.

Scenario 3: Demolition of dwellings at Woodside Terrace and realignment of the footpath: As
part of the WelTAG studies, engagement with the local residents has been on-going (Appendix B –
Public Consultation Report). Following the findings of this study and topographical surveys along
with property valuations have been carried out. However, before this measure can be implemented
further detailed engineering designs are required, a geotechnical survey needs to be undertaken, a
consensus with the residents needs to be reached, planning permission is required, residents need
to be relocated, demolition of the dwellings and construction of the new re-located footpath can then
be completed. The earliest date for full completion is expected to be December 2021 (within 2.5 years).

Scenario 4: Peak Period HGV bans: Further engagement with the business community operating
HGVs is necessary to consult on this option to determine behavioural responses. Within the analysis
to date assumptions have been used to determine how many of the HGV trips would be reallocated
to an inter or off-peak period and how many would use an alternative route. Appropriate notice of the
scheme launch is needed to provide drivers with a reasonable period to adjust their business journeys
(6 months).  Should this option be deemed effective the earliest implementation date which includes
consultation, erection of signage and enforcement cameras, and appropriate notice is December
2021.

Scenario 5: Clean Air Zone: Before such a measure can be introduced, further assessment is
needed to explore potential impacts of displacement. This study sought to utilise the South-East Wales
Transport Model to identify the likely rerouting impacts. Due to limitations of the model this has not
been possible at this stage. Further assessment work would be required, including the development
of a bespoke strategic model, to understand the impacts of rerouting and mitigate these routes
accordingly. This would ensure no adverse impacts on safety and/or other areas of poor air quality. A
local stated preference survey to find out how vehicle owners would behave by either paying the
charge, avoiding the zone by using alternative routes or using a different form of transport e.g. public
transport or cancelling their trip would be required. This information will inform the choice of supporting
mitigation measures and check the expected reduction in NO2 is commensurate with that used in the
current analysis based on the generic behaviour assumptions (see section 4.5.3).  This will also inform
the right balance for the charging fees to ensure they are effective but not punitive (1.5 years).  The

Page 74



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 46 of 114

region of impact of a CAZ is likely to be extensive affecting a significant number of drivers.  Time is
required for the design and communication of mitigation measures such as access to retrofit
abatement. installation of further EV charging infrastructure and technical approval, consultation and
installation of an enforcement system (1.5 years).  Following this, to allow sufficient notice of the
arrangements for the introduction of a CAZ a reasonable period of time between the scheme launch
and implementation is needed to allow road users to adjust (6 months). With these combined
timescales the earliest date that this measure could become operational is December 2022 (3.5 years’
time) providing that no major upgrading infrastructure work is required along alternative routes. Further
details of the tasks to be complete prior to the launch of a CAZ are presented in the Impact
Assessment Report).

The earliest implementation dates are provided in Table 4-7. It should be noted that the Peak Period
HGV Bans at WelTAG Stage Two was categorised as a medium-term measure. However, due to
the limitations of the South-East Wales Transport Model (SEWTM), it was unable to assess the
redistribution of HGVs on the wider highway network. This has resulted in additional time and
resources being necessary for implementation, due to a further assessment being required to
assess and understand the redistribution of HGVs. This will enable mitigation strategies for alternate
routes to be developed accordingly.

Table 4-7 - Expected earliest implementation timescales

Measure Earliest Implementation
Timescale

Change Signal Timings at Crumlin Junction December 2019

Signalise the A472/B4471 Swffryd Junction December 2021

Demolish Dwellings at Woodside Terrace and realignment of the
southern footpath

December 2021

Peak Period HGV Bans December 2021

Clean Air Zone / Low Emission Zone December 2022

Traffic Management Option (Changing Signal Timings at Crumlin
Junction & Signalise the A472/B4471 Swffryd Junction

December 2021

Do Maximum Option (Changing Signal Timings at Crumlin Junction
& Signalise the A472/B4471 Swffryd Junction & Clean Air Zone /
Low Emission Zone)

December 2022

4.4 AIR QUALITY MODELLING - SCENARIO RESULTS
The following section presents the results of each scenario that has been modelled.

Page 75



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 47 of 114

4.4.1 DO MINIMUM - AIR QUALITY MODELLING RESULTS

4.4.1.1 Baseline 2017

Figure 4-3 shows the modelled NO2 climate along Hafodyrynys Road in 2017. As we can see there
are areas of significant exceedance of the NO2 annual mean limit value along the road (the yellow line
is the exceedance boundary). The baseline in 2017 does not comply with the annual mean NO2

limit value.

Figure 4-3 Modelled concentrations of annual mean NO2 for 2017 baseline

Figure 4-4 NO2 exceedance / compliance plot for 2017 baseline (green dots <= 40 µg/m3, red
dots > 40 µg/m3)

Page 76



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 48 of 114

Figure 4-5 NO2 at receptor locations for 2017 baseline

4.4.1.2 Baseline 2021

Figure 4-6 shows the modelled NO2 climate along Hafodyrynys Road in 2021. As we can see there
are areas of significant exceedance of the NO2 annual mean limit value along the road (the yellow line
is the exceedance boundary). The baseline in 2021 does not comply with the annual mean NO2

limit value.

Note - Any reference to compliance or non-compliance in 2021 is based on the results of the 2021
forecast modelling. For many of the options this is before the year of implementation. Where this is
the case, the year of compliance should be taken as the year of implementation.

Figure 4-6 Modelled concentrations of annual mean NO2 for 2021 do minimum

Page 77



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 49 of 114

Figure 4-7 shows there is large NO2 exceedance on the southern, northern and western footpath at
Woodside Terrace in 2021 identified by the red dots

Figure 4-7 NO2 exceedance / compliance plot for 2021 baseline (green dots <= 40 µg/m3, red
dots > 40 µg/m3)

Figure 4-8 NO2 at receptor locations for 2021 baseline

Page 78



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 50 of 114

4.4.2 DO MINIMUM - AIR QUALITY MODELLING SUMMARY

Extrapolation between modelling years has demonstrated that with no intervention (the Do Minimum
scenario), compliance will be achieved in 2025. The predicted NO2 concentrations by year and the
anticipated compliance date are shown in Table 4-8.

Table 4-8 - Predicted concentrations and compliance year of the Do Minimum Scenario

Measure
Impact
µg m-3

NO2 predicted concentration (µg m-3)

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

Do Minimum 72 68 65 61 57 53 49 45 40 36

Note: Red Box Non-compliant, Green Box compliance achieved, Grey Box before implementation
timeframe

4.4.3 SCENARIO 1 (CHANGE SIGNAL TIMINGS AT CRUMLIN JUNCTION) - AIR QUALITY
MODELLING RESULTS
This option involves reconfiguration of signal timings at the Crumlin junction. The signal retiming
option in 2021 does not comply with the annual mean NO2 limit value at relevant locations.

Figure 4-9 - Modelled concentrations of annual mean NO2 for 2021 Scenario 1

Page 79



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 51 of 114

Figure 4-10 shows there is large NO2 exceedance on the southern, northern and western footpath
at Woodside Terrace in 2021 identified by the red dots.

Figure 4-10 - NO2 exceedance / compliance plot for 2021 S1 (green dots <= 40 µg/m3, red dots
> 40 µg/m3)

4.4.4 SCENARIO 1 (CHANGE SIGNAL TIMINGS AT CRUMLIN JUNCTION) - AIR QUALITY
MODELLING SUMMARY
Extrapolation between modelling years has demonstrated that with retiming of the Crumlin Junction
A467/A472 traffic signals (Scenario 1), compliance will be achieved in 2025. The predicted NO2

concentrations by year and the anticipated compliance date are shown in Table 4-9. Furthermore,
Table 4-9 shows that Scenario 1 does not reduce concentrations of NO2 in the year of
implementation, and does not bring forward compliance from 2025.

Table 4-9 - Predicted concentrations and compliance year of Scenario 1

Measure
Impact
µg m-3

NO2 predicted concentration (µg m-3)

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

Do Minimum 72 68 65 61 57 53 49 45 40 36

S1 Change
Signal Timings
at Crumlin
Junction

0 61 57 53 49 45 40 36

Note: Red Box Non-compliant, Green Box compliance achieved, Grey Box before implementation
timeframe

Page 80



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 52 of 114

4.4.5 SCENARIO 2 (SIGNALISE THE A472/B4471 SWFFRYD JUNCTION) - AIR QUALITY
MODELLING RESULTS
This option involves the signalisation of the A472/B4471 Swffryd junction. The signalisation option
in 2021 does not comply with the annual mean NO2 limit value at relevant locations.

Figure 4-11 - Modelled concentrations of annual mean NO2 for 2021 Scenario 2

Figure 4-12 shows there is large NO2 exceedance on the southern, northern and western footpath
at Woodside Terrace in 2021 identified by the red dots.

Figure 4-12 - NO2 exceedance / compliance plot for 2021 S2 (green dots <= 40 µg/m3, red dots
> 40 µg/m3)

Page 81



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 53 of 114

4.4.6 SCENARIO 2 (SIGNALISE THE A472/B4471 SWFFRYD JUNCTION) - AIR QUALITY
MODELLING SUMMARY
Extrapolation between modelling years has demonstrated that with signalisation of the A472 Swffryd
junction (Scenario 2), compliance will be achieved in 2025. The predicted NO2 concentrations by
year and the anticipated compliance date are shown in Table 4-10.Furthemore, the table shows that
Scenario 2 does not reduce concentrations of NO2 in the year of implementation, and does not bring
forward compliance from 2025.

Table 4-10 - Predicted concentrations and compliance year of Scenario 2

Measure
Impact
µg m-3

NO2 predicted concentration (µg m-3)

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

Do Minimum 72 68 65 61 57 53 49 45 40 36

S2 Signalise the
A472/B4471
Swffryd Junction

0 53 49 45 40 36

Note: Red Box Non-compliant, Green Box compliance achieved, Grey Box before implementation
timeframe

4.4.7 SCENARIO 3 (DEMOLITION AND REALIGNMENT OF THE SOUTHERN FOOTPATH) -
AIR QUALITY MODELLING RESULTS
This option involves removing the southern residential properties from the dispersion model, whilst
leaving the emissions set to the 2021 Do-minimum values. The option also realigns the southern side
footpath further south away from the existing road alignment. Hence the receptors representing the
original south path are no longer relevant and are removed.  - The demolition option in 2021 does
comply with the annual mean NO2 limit value at relevant locations.

 Figure 4-13 Modelled concentrations of annual mean NO2 for 2021 Scenario 3

Page 82



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 54 of 114

Figure 4-14 shows all receptors are compliant in 2021, with no exceedances. This is presented by
the green dots in both the southern, northern and western footpaths at Woodside Terrace.

Figure 4-14 NO2 exceedance / compliance plot for 2021 Scenario 3 (green dots <= 40 µg/m3,
red dots > 40 µg/m3)

Figure 4-15 shows that all the receptors are below the compliance levels of 40-µg m-3.

Figure 4-15 NO2 at receptor locations for 2021 S3

Page 83



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 55 of 114

To further underpin the analysis Figure 4-16 shows the difference between the 2021 baseline scenario
and the demolition scenario. It can be clearly seen that demolition reduces concentrations in the
canyon, most likely due to the reduction in recirculation of emissions.

Figure 4-16 NO2 difference plot for 2021 Scenario 3 (red areas = lower NO2 concentrations,
blue = higher)

Note: existing building footprints are retained deliberately to avoid artefacts in the plot

As the margin of compliance is slight, Figure 4-17 presents the plotted 40 µg/m3 contour line and
shown its alignment with receptors remaining after the demolition would be completed.

Figure 4-17 Close up of NO2 exceedance line along north path receptors (Scenario 3)

Page 84



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 56 of 114

4.4.8 SCENARIO 3 (DEMOLITION AND REALIGNMENT OF THE SOUTH FOOTPATH) - AIR
QUALITY MODELLING SUMMARY
Extrapolation between modelling years has demonstrated that with Demolition of the properties on
Woodside Terrace and realignment of the southern footpath (Scenario 3). The predicted NO2

concentrations by year and the anticipated compliance date are shown in Table 4-11. Furthermore,
Table 4-11 shows that Scenario 3 reduces concentrations of NO2 by 16-µg m-3 in the year of
implementation, and brings forward compliance to 2022 (from 2025).

Table 4-11 - Predicted concentrations and compliance year of Scenario 3

Measure
Impact
µg m-3

NO2 predicted concentration (µg m-3)

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

Do Minimum 72 68 65 61 57 53 49 45 40 36

S3 Demolish
Dwellings at
Woodside
Terrace and
realignment of
the southern
footpath

-16 37 34 31 28 25

Note: Red Box Non-compliant, Green Box compliance achieved, Grey Box before implementation
timeframe

4.4.9 SCENARIO 4 (HGV BAN IN PEAK PERIOD) - AIR QUALITY MODELLING RESULTS

The HGV peak period ban reduces concentrations of NO2 along the corridor by a few µg/m3.
Significant exceedances still persist with the measure in place. The HGV ban option in 2021 does
not comply with the annual mean NO2 limit value.

 Figure 4-18 Modelled concentrations of annual mean NO2 for 2021 Scenario 4

Page 85



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 57 of 114

Figure 4-19 shows there is large NO2 exceedance on the southern, northern footpath at Woodside
Terrace in 2021 identified by the red dots.

Figure 4-19 NO2 exceedance / compliance plot for 2021 Scenario 4 (green dots <= 40 µg/m3,
red dots > 40 µg/m3)

Figure 4-20 shows that a majority of the receptors are above the compliance levels of 40-µg m-3.

Figure 4-20 NO2 at receptor locations for 2021 S4

	

Page 86



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 58 of 114

4.4.10 SCENARIO 4 (HGV BAN IN PEAK PERIOD) - AIR QUALITY MODELLING SUMMARY

Extrapolation between modelling years has demonstrated that with a peak period HGV ban on the
A472 (Scenario 4), compliance will be achieved in 2025. The predicted NO2 concentrations by year
and the anticipated compliance date are shown in Table 4-12. Furthermore, Table 4-12 shows that
Scenario 4 reduces concentrations of NO2 by 4 µg m-3 in the year of implementation, though does
not bring forward compliance from 2025.

Table 4-12 - Predicted concentrations and compliance year of Scenario 4

Measure
Impact
µg m-3

NO2 predicted concentration (µg m-3)

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

Do Minimum 72 68 65 61 57 53 49 45 40 36

S4 Peak Period
HGV Bans

-4 49 45 41 38 34

Note: Red Box Non-compliant, Green Box compliance achieved, Grey Box before implementation
timeframe

4.4.11 SCENARIO 5 (CLASS D CLEAN AIR ZONE) - AIR QUALITY MODELLING RESULTS

The CAZ option has a large effect on NO2 concentrations which reduce by 40-50% in the modelled
corridor. This is primarily because of Euro 6/VI vehicles with lower emissions in the fleet. The CAZ
option in 2021 does comply with the annual mean NO2 limit value

Figure 4-21 Modelled concentrations of annual mean NO2 for 2021 Scenario 5

Page 87



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 59 of 114

Figure 4-22 shows all receptors are compliant in 2021, with no exceedances. This is presented by
the green dots in both the southern, northern and western footpaths at Woodside Terrace

Figure 4-22 NO2 exceedance / compliance plot for 2021 Scenario 5 (green dots <= 40 µg/m3,
red dots > 40 µg/m3)

Figure 4-23 shows that all of the receptors are below the compliance levels of 40-µg m-3.

Figure 4-23 NO2 at receptor locations for 2021 S5

Page 88



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 60 of 114

4.4.12 SCENARIO 5 (CLASS D CLEAN AIR ZONE) - AIR QUALITY MODELLING SUMMARY

Extrapolation between modelling years has demonstrated that with a Class D Clean Air Zone
(Scenario 5), compliance will be achieved in 2023, the year of implementation. The predicted NO2

concentrations by year and the anticipated compliance date are shown in Table 4-13. Furthermore,
Table 4-13 shows that Scenario 5 reduces concentrations of NO2 by 22-µg m-3 in the year of
implementation, and brings forward compliance to 2023 (from 2025).

Table 4-13 - Predicted concentrations and compliance year of Scenario 5

Measure
Impact
µg m-3

NO2 predicted concentration (µg m-3)

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

Do Minimum 72 68 65 61 57 53 49 45 40 36

S5 Clean Air
Zone

-22 27 26 25 24

Note: Red Box Non-compliant, Green Box compliance achieved, Grey Box before implementation
timeframe

4.4.13 SCENARIO 6 (TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT PACKAGE) - AIR QUALITY MODELLING
RESULTS
This is a combined scenario which has the cumulative impacts of Scenario 1 and 2. Scenario 6 in
2021 does not comply with the annual mean NO2 limit value.

Figure 4-24 - Modelled concentrations of annual mean NO2 for 2021 Scenario 6

Page 89



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 61 of 114

Figure 4-25 shows all receptors are compliant in 2021, with exceedances in both the southern,
northern and western footpaths at Woodside Terrace presented by the red dots.

Figure 4-25 - NO2 exceedance / compliance plot for 2021 Scenario 6 (green dots <= 40 µg/m3,
red dots > 40 µg/m3)

Figure 4-26 shows that the majority of the receptors are above the compliance levels of 40-µg m-3.

Figure 4-26 - NO2 at receptor locations for 2021 S6

Page 90



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 62 of 114

4.4.14 SCENARIO 6 (TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT PACKAGE) - AIR QUALITY MODELLING
SUMMARY
Extrapolation between modelling years has demonstrated that with the Traffic Management
Package (Scenario 6), compliance will be achieved in 2025. The predicted NO2 concentrations by
year and the anticipated compliance date are shown in Table 4-14. Furthermore, Table 4-14 shows
that Scenario 6 does not reduce concentrations of NO2 in the year of implementation, and does not
bring forward compliance from 2025.

Table 4-14 - Predicted concentrations and compliance year of Scenario 6

Measure
Impact
µg m-3

NO2 predicted concentration (µg m-3)

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

Do Minimum 72 68 65 61 57 53 49 45 40 36

S6 Traffic
Management
Option

0 53 49 45 40 36

Note: Red Box Non-compliant, Green Box compliance achieved, Grey Box before implementation
timeframe

4.4.15 SCENARIO 7 (DO MAXIMUM PACKAGE) - AIR QUALITY MODELLING RESULTS
Scenario 7 reflects the impacts of the CAZ D based scheme in Scenario 5 along with the traffic
management options in Scenarios 1 and 2. Extrapolation between modelling years has
demonstrated that with Scenario 7, compliance will be achieved in 2023, the year of implementation
for the CAZ scheme which delivers most of the air quality improvements. The predicted NO2

concentrations by year and the anticipated compliance date are shown in Table 4-15.

Figure 4-27 - Modelled concentrations of annual mean NO2 for 2021 Scenario 7

Page 91



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 63 of 114

Figure 4-28 shows all receptors are compliant in 2021, with no exceedances. This is presented by
the green dots in both the southern, northern and western footpaths at Woodside Terrace.

Figure 4-28 - NO2 exceedance / compliance plot for 2021 Scenario 7 (green dots <= 40 µg/m3,
red dots > 40 µg/m3)

Figure 4-29 shows that all of the receptors are below the compliance levels of 40-µg m-3.

Figure 4-29 - NO2 at receptor locations for 2021 S7

Page 92



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 64 of 114

4.4.16 SCENARIO 7 (DO MAXIMUM PACKAGE) - AIR QUALITY MODELLING SUMMARY
Extrapolation between modelling years has demonstrated that with the Do Maximum Package
(Scenario 7), compliance will be achieved in 2023. The predicted NO2 concentrations by year and
the anticipated compliance date are shown in Table 4-15 . Furthermore, Table 4-15  shows that
Scenario 7 reduces concentrations of NO2 by 22-µg m-3 in the year of implementation, and brings
forward compliance to 2023 (from 2025).

Table 4-15 - Predicted concentrations and compliance year of Scenario 7

Measure
Impact
µg m-3

NO2 predicted concentration (µg m-3)

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

Do Minimum 72 68 65 61 57 53 49 45 40 36

S7 Do Maximum
Option

-22 27 26 25 24

Note: Red Box Non-compliant, Green Box compliance achieved, Grey Box before implementation
timeframe

4.5 AIR QUALITY MODELLING SUMMARY
4.5.1 DO MINIMUM

Fleet renewal in years to come will deliver air quality improvements without local intervention. Table
4-16 shows the total number of modelled receptors that comply with the NO2 limit value for future
modelled years (based on linear interpolation between 2021 and 2029). Modelling indicates that the
NO2 limit value can be met in 2025 without local action- though this is contingent on later iterations of
Euro standards delivering predicted NOx emission reductions.

Table 4-16 – Do Minimum Compliance

Total Number of Receptors

Scenario NO2>40 NO2<40

2017 Baseline 56 41

2021 Baseline 35 62

2022 31 66

2023 25 72

2024 10 87

2025 0 97

2026 0 97

2027 0 97

2028 0 97

Page 93



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 65 of 114

Total Number of Receptors

Scenario NO2>40 NO2<40

2029 0 97

This table is the number of receptor points <40, or >40 µg/m3

Table 4-16 shows the total number of receptors’ compliance against the 2017 data and the 2021
Baseline.

4.5.2 OPTION MODELLING

Table 4-17 shows that by the 2021 forecast year, the CAZ (S5) and the Do Maximum Option which
includes a CAZ (S7), result in all 97 receptors below the 40 µg/m3 level. The demolition option (S3)
also results in 97 compliant receptors below the 40µg/m3 level in 2021. The next ranked option with a
compliant number of 67 receptors below the 40µg/m3 level is the peak hours HGV peak period bans
(S4).

Table 4-17 – Do Something Options Compliance

Total Number of Receptors

Scenario NO2>40 NO2<40

2017 Baseline 56 41

2021 Baseline 35 62

2021 Signal Timings S1 35 62

2021 Swffryd Road S2 35 62

2021 Demolition S3 0 97

2021 HGV Ban S4 30 67

2021 CAZ S5 0 97

2021 Traffic Management
S6

35 62

2021 Do Maximum S7 0 97

This table is the number of receptor points <40, or >40 µg/m3

Comparison of the compliance year for the Do Minimum with the measures in 2021 shows that both
the demolition and CAZ options have the potential to bring forward compliance from 2025. An
additional assessment of a CAZ class C was included to quantify the impact of a less onerous
measure.  A CAZ C includes emission restrictions on buses, coaches, taxis and LGVs but does not
include passenger cars. However, the maximum concentration of NO2 in 2021 was 47/µg m-3

Page 94



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 66 of 114

compared to 28 µg/m-3 for a CAZ D.  A CAZ C only brought forward compliance by one year to 2024
and therefore a CAZ C was not included in any further analysis.

Table 4-18 shows the modelled impact of the measures selected through the WelTAG 3 process. The
table illustrates the impact of the various measures starting in 2017 (2017 is included for comparative
purposes) with the baseline.

Table 4-18 - Impact of measures on roadside annual mean concentrations NO2 Concentration,
μg/m3 on A472

Measure
Impact
µg m-3

NO2 predicted concentration (µg/m-3)

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

Do Minimum 72 68 65 61 57 53 49 45 40 36

S1 Change Signal
Timings at Crumlin
Junction

0 61 57 53 49 45 40 36

S2 Signalise the
A472/B4471 Swffryd
Junction

0 53 49 45 40 36

S3 Demolish
Dwellings at
Woodside Terrace

-17 37 34 31 28 25

S4 Peak Period HGV
Bans

-4 49 45 41 38 34

S5 Clean Air Zone -22 27 26 25 24

S6 Traffic
Management Option

0 53 49 45 40 36

S7 Do Maximum
Option

-22 27 26 25 24

Note: Red Box Non-compliant, Green Box compliance achieved, Grey Box before implementation
timeframe

1. The measure identified by the modelling as achieving the objective in the shortest possible
time is the demolition of dwellings at Woodside Terrace and realignment of the southern
footpath. Although the emissions do not decrease with this measure, the demolition of the
dwellings removes the street canyon and significantly increases dispersion of the pollutants.
In addition, residents will be relocated earlier so their personal exposure to the levels of NO2

will be reduced during 2020. As concentrations of NO2 at most other monitoring locations
across the borough are low, it is reasonable to expect alternative accommodation will be
found in areas in compliance with the limit value.

2. While it is expected that the majority of the residents can be relocated in 2020, this is
expected to be complete with the dwellings demolished and the footpath relocated away
from the carriageway by end of December 2021.  Compliance with the limit value will be
achieved by the end of 2022.

Page 95



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 67 of 114

3. The Clean Air Zone brings the greatest concentration reduction (22μg/m3). However, given
the further work needed prior the implementation of a CAZ, as outlined above, it is not
expected that a CAZ could be operational prior to December 2022. Compliance with the limit
value would be achieved by the end of 2023 and therefore this is not a measure which will
mean compliance is achieved any sooner than demolition of the dwellings alone. The A472
at Hafodyrynys is an integral part of the main cross valley link between Caerphilly and
Torfaen County boroughs and introducing a charging scheme or vehicle prohibition would
have a significant effect on the economy of both county boroughs. In addition, as the report
previously states, the effects of a CAZ are not yet known and could result in air quality
problems elsewhere within the CCBC or exacerbate existing poor air quality areas, such as
the M4.

The traffic management measures do not bring improvement to annual average NO2 concentrations
and do not bring forward compliance.

4.6 VALUE FOR MONEY ASSESSMENT
As part of the WelTAG Stage Three study, consideration has been given to the Value for Money (VfM)
of the proposed schemes. Outputs from the micro-simulation traffic modelling have informed a TUBA
(Transport User Benefit Appraisal) economic assessment for the measures under consideration.

The aim of TUBA is to carry out economic appraisal in accordance with the DfT’s Transport Analysis
Guidance as set out in Unit A1-1 ‘Cost-Benefit Analysis’16 and the associated WebTAG Data Book
(v1.10) published in May 201817.

The benefit to cost ratio (BCR), net present value (NPV), present value of benefits (PVB) and present
value of costs (PVC) will be represented for each option. The detailed breakdown of the Value for
Money assessment is presented within the IAR. The BCR analysis has only calculated benefits and
dis-benefits on the A472 Hafodyrynys Road, A467/ A472 Crumlin Junction and B4251 Kendon Road.
Any additional benefits or dis-benefits as result of vehicles rerouting is not included and is a limitation
of the value for money assessment.

4.7 SENSITIVITY TESTING
4.7.1 UNCERTAINTY IN THE AIR QUALITY MODELLING

Air quality modelling carries uncertainty at all stages- from the input meteorological data to the
emission estimates, through to the physical treatment of dispersion in the domain. All of these factors
contribute to uncertainty. The main way to reduce the effect of these uncertainties is to validate the
modelled concentrations against ambient measurements of the pollutants under consideration. Then
the relationship between the two is used to derive model scaling factors and reduce error estimates.

16 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/webtag-tag-unit-a1-1-cost-benefit-analysisdecember-2017

17 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/webtag-tag-data-book-may-2018

Page 96



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 68 of 114

We have used standard methods for this derived from Defra guidance. The model has a Root-Mean-
Square-Error (RMSE) of 3.9 µg/m3 which can be interpreted as an acceptable measure of overall
uncertainty.

All air quality modelling presented in this Stage Three report is based on core scenarios to underpin
decision making. Sensitivity tests based on high and low traffic forecasts have been modelled for the
impact on annual average NO2. Results are presented in the Impact Assessment Report.

4.7.2 UNCERTAINTY IN TRAFFIC GROWTH FORECASTS
As part of the sensitivity tests undertaken for this study, consideration has been given to the
uncertainty in traffic growth forecasts. This has been done in line with WebTAG Unit M4 ‘Forecasting
and Uncertainty’.

The high and low growth demand sets are developed due to uncertainty around annual forecasts from
the National Transport Model (NTM), based on the macro-economic variables that influence the main
drivers of travel demand.

The high / low growth scenario should consist of forecasts that are based on a proportion of base year
demand added / subtracted to the demand from the core scenario. This is done based on:

2.5% × (ݎܽ݁ݕ ݐݏܽܿ݁ݎ݋݂ ݀݊ܽ ݁ݏܾܽ ݊݁݁ݓݐܾ݁ ݏݎܽ݁ݕ ݂݋ ݎܾ݁݉ݑ݊)√

Whilst these uncertainty test have been undertaken, the core scenario is intended to be the best basis
for decision-making given current evidence. As such, all sensitivity tests are wholly contained within
the IAR.

4.7.3  BEHAVIOURAL RESPONSE TO THE CLEAN AIR ZONE
The impact of any measure in addressing air quality is dependent upon the extent to which it alters
the mix or behaviour of transport within an area. This could be, for instance, by altering the number of
journeys undertaken, encouraging more efficient journeys or by altering the mode or technology used
for the journey.

 As part of this specific sensitivity testing, different behaviour responses are expected by motorist
users of the A472 corridor because of a charging CAZ. This is a continuation of the initial Stage Two
assessment which assumed all non-compliant vehicles are removed from the corridor with motorists
either rerouting or cancelling their trip. The core scenario of the Clean Air Zone assessment assumes
the following behavioural responses to a CAZ:

¡ Continue and pay charge
¡ Avoid the Clean Air Zone
¡ Cancel planned journeys
¡ Upgrade/ replace their vehicle
¡ Change transport mode

Page 97



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 69 of 114

Table 4-19 – Behavioural Response to CAZ (Modelling)

Behavioural
Response

How to model?

Replace
vehicle

Vehicle still within model (not removed) though will increase the overall percentage of
compliant vehicles.

Cancel trip Remove vehicle from network completely.

Change
mode

Remove vehicle from network completely

Avoid zone Remove vehicle from A472 corridor as per the assignment assumptions done for the CAZ
option to date.

Pay charge Vehicles to remain within the CAZ despite being non-compliant.

The core assessment for the CAZ assumes a Class D18 charging zone based on the above
assumptions. Sensitivity tests have been undertaken assuming a Class C19 charging zone and total
displacement of non-compliant vehicles. These results are presented within the IAR.

4.8 APPRAISAL AGAINST OBJECTIVES
At Stage Two, the options were re-appraised against the key criteria for the objective as further
evidence emerged. This has been done again at Stage Three to ensure that the options are effective,
can be delivered in meaningful timeframes and are deliverable.

The Stage Three appraisal procedure is a full independent quantitative approach. For the
environmental appraisal everything except the net present value (NPV) has been populated.

4.8.1 KEY CRITERIA
The following key criteria for the appraisal were established in Stage One, updated in Stage Two, and
has been re-evaluated in Stage Three:

Effectiveness – Is the measure likely to deliver reductions in roadside concentrations proportionate
to the scale of the exceedance above the 40µg/m3 legal limit.

Timescales – Can the measure be implemented within timescales that are meaningful (short enough)
to have an impact on bringing forward the projected compliance date.

Deliverability – Can the measure be delivered in the location involved with the powers available to
the Local Authority.

18 Class D - Buses, coaches, taxis, PHVs, HGVs LGVs and cars where all petrol vehicles should comply with at least Euro
4 and all diesel vehicles Euro 6 emission standards

19 Class C - Buses, coaches, taxis, PHVs, HGVs and light goods vehicles (LGVs)

Page 98



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 70 of 114

4.8.2 SECONDARY CRITERIA

In addition to bringing forward compliance against the Limit Vales, the study contributes to the strategic
priorities of the Welsh Government, including that of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales)
Act 2015. As such, the following were considered as secondary criteria in the appraisal process at
Stage Three:

Will the measure deliver an overall reduction in NO2 emissions to air?

This is a qualitative appraisal based on the likelihood of overall reduction to NO2 resulting from the
measure. This will enable the differentiation of measures which simply redistribute the impacts rather
than seeking to reduce overall NO2 emissions to air.

Will the measure result in unintended consequences or other environmental impacts?

This is a qualitative appraisal that considers whether there will be any other adverse environment
impacts resulting from the measures. This will summarise the findings of the appraisal against the
environmental aspects of well-being.

Will the measure contribute to well-being?

This is a qualitative appraisal which considers the seven goals of the Well-being of Future Generations
(Wales) Act 2015, with the following criteria:

Will the measure impact equally across multiple vehicle classes and journey types?

Will the measure have a positive impact on wider public health and inequalities?

4.8.3 THE SEVEN WELL-BEING GOALS (FUTURE GENERATIONS FRAMEWORK)
This section aims to provide a summary to the well-being goals and has been used as part of a parallel
appraisal process at Stage Three.

‘The well-being goals must be considered as an integrated set of seven, and the well-being objectives
(considered above) should maximise contribution to all seven.’

Each of the measures has been appraised against the seven Well-being Goals and this is presented
as part of the Appraisal Summary Table for each measure.

Table 4-20 – The Seven Well-being Goals

Well-being
Goal

Well-being Areas Meeting goals at a
Strategic Level

Designing our proposal

Prosperous Green growth, growing
deprived business areas,
social reasons for poor
health, support to local
communities and economy,
environmental sustainability.

Need for skills development,
innovative economy and
adapted to future change.

Source materials locally and
working with other public

Open opportunities for
businesses and public goods
production.

Support the local supply
chains and low-carbon
sectors.

Ways to address future
needs.

How can negative impacts
on the local economy be
reduced?

How can it support
productivity?

Can it be adapted to a
changed Wales in the future.

Thinking about the ‘long-
term’ in the Ways of
Working?

Page 99



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 71 of 114

Well-being
Goal

Well-being Areas Meeting goals at a
Strategic Level

Designing our proposal

bodies in pursuit of shared
goals. Push infrastructure provision

in a sustainable innovative
way.

Have less resource intensive
alternatives been looked at?
Does the project propose a
responsible solution in terms
of ecological, financial and
material resources?

Consider the role of
employment in reducing
inequality.

What behaviours does this
project encourage or
discourage?

How will this project help or
impede people to live low-
carbon lifestyles?

How will the design of this
project use resources
efficiently and
proportionately?

Will this project create jobs
in places with high levels of
unemployment and
underemployment?

Resilient Cohesive communities, need
to adapt to environmental
trends.

Enhance or reduce access
to, and quality of, green and
open spaces?

How will this project protect
and enhance ecosystems
which support economic
activity in Wales?

How will this project directly
impact ecosystems?

Healthier Unequal distribution of
environmental problems.

Broader factors to physical
and mental health;
connectedness, good jobs,
access to opportunities and
services.

Income inequalities,
opportunities for active travel
and exercise

Address the determinants of
mental and physical health
and well-being of people of
all ages?

How will this project address
the social, economic,
environmental and cultural
determinants of health and
well-being?

Consider the Public Health
Outcomes Framework.

How will this project protect
and improve local access to
quality outdoor spaces for
revival, restoration and
exercise?

More equal Creating vibrant culture;
relationship between health
and inequality; developing
jobs and skills

Need to involve local people
meaningfully (refer to
‘Involvement’ under the Five
Ways of Working)

Improve education and
tackling low pay.

Fairer society.

Supporting disadvantaged
groups in sustainable long-
term ways.

Ensure public resources and
assets are not transferred to
a small group of
organisations or individuals

Where decisions are made
and which groups have
access to decision-makers?

Is the area in priority need of
investment?

Will the scheme bring
opportunity to deprived
areas?

Who benefits most from
this? And who is negatively

Page 100



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 72 of 114

Well-being
Goal

Well-being Areas Meeting goals at a
Strategic Level

Designing our proposal

impacted. Can these
impacts be avoided?

Impacts on marginalised
groups. Consult the Public-
Sector Equality Duty

Engagement with social
enterprises, co-operatives
and employee-owned
businesses?

Cohesive
communities

Attractive places to live,
need for local jobs,
opportunities to develop
local arts, music and culture

How will this project support
communities to be more
cohesive, locally viable, well-
connected, safe and
attractive?

Impact on access to and
availability of amenities?

Long-term jobs creation.

How will this project support
local amenities and
strengthen social
relationships?

Vibrant
culture

Employment provided by
heritage sites, equal access
to heritage.

Building social ties to
support activities for a lively
public life.

How will this project
contribute to a culturally
vibrant Wales, recognising
the potential direct and
indirect impacts on Welsh
communities and the Welsh
language?

Opportunities are accessible
to all, e.g. affordable, public
transport accessible, have
disability access.

Globally
responsible

Low-carbon economies and
lifestyles.
Proportionate uses of
resources. Understanding
the impact of our own
lifestyle on the rest of the
word.

Reducing greenhouse gas
emissions both in production
and use.

Global leadership or
innovation.

Follow national or
international innovative
models?

How can greenhouse gas
emissions be brought down?

Build on the best practice in
sustainability.

What Wales is bringing in
from the rest of the world?

e.g. sustainable purchasing,
Fairtrade, global supply
chains.

What Wales is putting out
into the world based on our
unique qualities?

e.g. low-carbon technology,
sustainable developing,
positive example on
infrastructure projects.

Reference: https://futuregenerations.wales/wp-content/uploads/2018/11/FGCW-Framework.pdf  p12-p25

4.8.4 OTHER ISSUES

Further potential issues with each measure have been explored and considered accordingly in the
instance that they have not been covered under any of the other appraisal areas. These include:

Page 101



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 73 of 114

Overall Acceptability

A qualitative appraisal has been undertaken to assess the receptivity of the public, local authorities
and key stakeholders, both groups and individuals to the measure. The appraisal has been undertaken
on a measure by measure basis.

Technical, Operational and Financial Feasibility

Where appropriate a qualitative appraisal has been undertaken to assess measures on the following
criteria:

¡ Technical: The extent to which the measure is technically feasible within the specified budget and
timeframe

¡ Operational: The extent to which the measure is operationally feasible within the specified budget
and timeframe

¡ Financial: The extent to which the measure is financially feasible

Deliverability and Risk

At this stage issues regarding deliverability and risk have been taken into consideration. This has been
included as part of the Appraisal Summary Tables at WelTAG Stage Three.

4.8.5 IMPACT DISTRIBUTIONAL ANALYSIS (IDA)
4.8.5.1 Air quality: Summary

Changes in NO2 concentrations from traffic management options and demolition options deliver
smaller improvements relative to other options, in particular with regards to the spatial area of
impact. Air quality will change very differently depending on the proposed measure. Sensitive
receptors within the CAZ domain (a nursery and three nursing homes) will therefore see only limited
change in their NO2 concentrations under these options. Furthermore, because the area of impact is
small, one link in one Lower Supper Output Area (LSOA) it is not possible to pick out a distributional
analysis from a methodology which uses an LSOA grid.

The CAZ Class D and HGV ban have wider impacts on NO2 concentrations and thus, the results of
the distributional analysis are based on a larger, regional domain.  A CAZ Class D would reduce
average concentrations by almost 0.35 μg/m3 compared to baseline for 2021 across the entire
regional domain, whereas an HGV Ban will only reduce it by 0.018 μg/m3. A HGV ban would cause
potential winners and losers as some areas see an increase in air pollution due to re-routing of
traffic, but this effect is not observed for the CAZ Class D which only sees reductions in
concentrations across all LSOAs and therefore only winners.

For these scenarios (CAZ Class D and HGV Ban) a quintile analysis following WelTAG guidance
was carried out in relation to household income and children population. Across both scenarios and
against both vulnerable characteristics, this analysis suggests there will be no distributional pattern
to the effects, either regressive or progressive. That said it is interesting to note that for the HGV
Ban the least deprived quintile will achieve a smaller benefit compared to other quintiles in
proportion to its population, as other quintiles do (hinting at a potential progressive effect). However,
this WelTAG analysis only considers the numbers of winners and losers and does not account for
the relative size of the win or loss. When we assess average change in concentration by quintile,
under both the HGV ban and CAZ option greater reductions in pollutants accrue to the least

Page 102



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 74 of 114

deprived areas (no trend is observed for children). This suggests in fact that both options may have
a marginal regressive impact. Table 4-21 summarises the main findings from the air quality IDA.

Table 4-21 – IDA for Air Quality

CAZ Scenario Direct Impacts Indirect Impacts IDA

1 Change Signal
Timings at Crumlin
Junction

No distributional impact because
the change in emissions is
localised.

Potential impact on air quality
while commuting through the
CAZ area

0

2 Signalise the
A472/B4471 Swffryd
Junction and
introduce an
eastbound queue
detector

No distributional impact because
the change in emissions is
localised.

Potential impact on air quality
while commuting through the
CAZ area

0

3 Demolish Dwellings
at Woodside
Terrace and
realignment of the
southern footpath

No distributional impact because
there is no change in emissions is
localised.

0

4 Peak Period HGV
Bans AM & PM

Reduce average concentrations
within the regional domain by 0.018
μg/m3 compared to baseline for
2021

Potential winners and losers as
concentrations increase in other
areas due to re-routing

No distributional impact is observed
from the quintile analysis counting
winners and losers

Highest positive relative changes in
reduction of NO2 concentrations in
areas with least deprived
population

Sensitive receptors within the CAZ
domain will benefit from a decrease
in NO2 concentrations

Potential winners and losers

High income households and
households with average
children population would be
most affected

Highest positive relative
changes reduction on NO2

concentrations on areas with
least deprived population

Sensitive receptors within the
AQ 1 domain will benefit from a
decrease in NO2

concentrations

++

5 CAZ Class D with
behavioural
response

Reduce average concentrations
within the regional domain by
almost 0.35 μg/m3 compared to
baseline for 2021

No distributional impact is observed
from the quintile analysis counting
winners and losers

Highest positive relative changes in
reduction of NO2 concentrations in
areas with least deprived
population

Potential winners

Air quality improvements
highest for most deprived
households and households
with an average children
population

Highest positive relative
changes reduction on NO2

concentrations on areas with
least deprived population

++

Page 103



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 75 of 114

CAZ Scenario Direct Impacts Indirect Impacts IDA

Sensitive receptors within the AQ 1
domain will benefit from a decrease
in NO2 concentrations.

Sensitive receptors within the
AQ 1 domain will benefit from a
decrease in NO2 concentrations
in the AQ 1 domain.

6 Traffic Management
Option (Scenario
1,2)

No distributional impact because
the change in emissions is
localised.

Potential impact on air quality
while commuting through the
AQ 1 domain area

0

7 Do Maximum
(Scenario 1,2,5)

No distributional impact is observed
from the quintile analysis counting
winners and losers

Highest positive relative changes in
reduction of NO2 concentrations in
areas with least deprived
population

Sensitive receptors within the CAZ
domain will benefit from a decrease
in NO2 concentrations.

Potential impact on air quality
while commuting through the
AQ 1 domain area

++

Note: Class D - Buses, coaches, taxis, PHVs, HGVs LGVs and cars where all petrol vehicles should
comply with at least Euro 4 and all diesel vehicles Euro 6 emission standards

4.8.5.2 Affordability for businesses: Summary

The traffic management and demolition options will only have very marginal impacts on businesses.
Short-term negative impacts due to roadblocks related to construction works would be followed by the
potential for long-term direct positive impact on businesses due to the improvement in access to/from
affected business locations. Furthermore, indirect positive impact may arise due to cost decreases for
deliveries and easier access for customers and employees.

The HGV Ban and CAZ measures would have much greater and negative impacts. The extent to
which businesses will be affected by either a CAZ D or an HGV ban during peak hour will depend on
the type of business, its location, size and price sensitivity. Most of the actions that businesses can
take to respond to the proposed measures will incur costs, which will place an additional burden on
the business. Where these burdens are significant, businesses could choose to scale down
operations, re-locate or even close altogether with a consequent impact on local employment and
economic activity. CAZ D will also impact:

¡ Taxi drivers, who are among the lower income households in society;
¡ Buses, with a potential reduction or removal of services to marginal areas;
¡ Cars, and hence commuters and other businesses that use cars for their business travel.

Smaller firms and sole traders are usually more price sensitive and therefore are likely to be the most
affected if these measures are in place: smaller businesses tend to operate older vehicles and cannot
redistribute their fleets. At the same time, LGVs (also affected under the CAZ) are predominantly used
by small businesses such as self-employed tradesmen. Any additional cost in relation to owning and
operating LGVs, would impose a strain on these businesses.

Page 104



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 76 of 114

These results align with the outcomes from the pilot survey (noting again the limitations on the sample
size for drawing conclusions regarding the impacts across all businesses using the affected link).
Almost all businesses who participated in the survey felt suppliers or customers would be affected by
the proposed restrictive measures. Most businesses felt restricting access to vehicles along the A472
would have a negative or very negative impact on their operations. The majority stated that the
proposed pricing for vehicles entering the CAZ D was too high. Most businesses would re-route their
journeys, and a significant number of businesses stated they would relocate their business.
Furthermore, across the 20 firms from the sample, about 300 employees would be affected in their
commute. Most popular steps business had already taken to reduce air pollution included alternative
transport/work arrangements and the purchase of ULEV vehicles. A summary of the main findings for
the IDA on business is shown in  Table 4-22 – IDA for businesses and their direct/indirect impacts.

Table 4-22 – IDA for businesses and their direct/indirect impacts

CAZ Scenario Direct impacts Indirect impacts IDA

1 Change Signal
Timings at Crumlin
Junction

Potential improvement in access
to/from affected business locations,
but likely to be small

Cost decreases for deliveries

Easier access for customers,
employees

0

2 Signalise the
A472/B4471 Swffryd
Junction and introduce
an eastbound queue
detector

Potential improvement in access
to/from affected business locations,
but likely to be small

Cost decreases for deliveries

Easier access for customers,
employees

0

3 Demolish Dwellings at
Woodside Terrace and
realignment of the
southern footpath

Roadblocks due to site work, but
likely to be small

0

4 Peak Period HGV
Bans AM & PM

Displacement or delays of deliveries
via HGVs to/from affected
businesses during peak hours:
requires businesses to shift
movements outside peak times

Reduced response options.

Increased congestion on
alternate routes

Costs incurred to change
transport modes

Increased costs of deliveries

Negative competitiveness
impacts and potential loss of
customers

Potential relocation of
severely affected firms

- -

5 CAZ Class D* with
behavioural response

Costs incurred by some
businesses to upgrade fleets to
comply.
- CAZ generally tends to affect
smaller firms most as they operate
older vehicles / cannot redistribute
their fleets.

Increased congestion on
alternate routes

Potential relocation of
affected businesses

Potential loss of
competitiveness for some
affected businesses.

- - -

Page 105



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 77 of 114

CAZ Scenario Direct impacts Indirect impacts IDA

Costs incurred by businesses/
customers/ employees for access
to business and deliveries. CAZ
impacts vehicle movements other
than HGVs: Taxi drivers, public
transport providers, commuters and
car business trips. In particular:

- CAZ will impact LGVs, which are
commonly used by smaller
businesses / tradesmen hence larger
impact on smaller businesses.

- CAZ will impact on cars, and hence
commuters and other businesses
that use cars.

- CAZ will impact on buses that could
reduce or remove services to
marginal areas. Costs incurred by
operators will impact public transport
fares.

- CAZ will impact on taxi drivers, who
are amongst lowest income
households in society.

Within CAZ zone: reduction in
demand as fewer individuals
are able or willing to travel
through the area.

Potential effect on supply
chains.

6 Traffic Management
Option (Scenario 1,2)

See 1 and 2 See 1 and 2 0

7 Do Maximum
(Scenario 1,2,5)

See 1, 2 and 5 See 1, 2 and 5  - -

Note: Large beneficial (+++); Moderate beneficial (++); Slight beneficial (+); Neutral (0); Slight adverse (-); Moderate
adverse (- -); and Large adverse (- - -)

*Class D - Buses, coaches, taxis, PHVs, HGVs LGVs and cars where all petrol vehicles should comply with at least Euro 4
and all diesel vehicles Euro 6 emission standards

4.8.5.3 Affordability for households: summary

Traffic management options will have minor impacts on households as there is no direct impact on
income or expenditure and the only impact is on traffic flow. This could lead to potentially beneficial
indirect impacts on their fuel costs and travel times. A HGV ban may have a small negative indirect
impact on households due to the behavioural response of businesses and thus wider employment
and supply chains supporting Caerphilly. Demolition would have very high impact on dwelling
owners and households living in the dwellings as well as some indirect impact on the households
living nearby due to the demolition works. Given the indirect nature of the effect of these options, it is
difficult to isolate any distributional effect.

A CAZ D will have a direct, negative impact on households, in particular to those with non-compliant
cars. WelTAG analysis suggests middle income households could suffer the most (as they make the
most non-compliant trips through the CAZ) and high-income households the least (lowest number of
non-compliant trips). Non-compliant vehicles are mostly located in the northern part of the IDA

Page 106



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 78 of 114

domain as well as the eastern areas. That said, it is important to note that this analysis does not
reflect that a given cost has a greater proportional impact on lower income households. So even
though it appears there will be a lower cost burden on the most deprived quintiles, there could still
be a greater impact proportionally relative to their disposable income.
Furthermore, there are sensitive receptors located within very close proximity to the CAZ area
(nursery and nursing homes) which suggests there will be some impact on their vulnerable users
and accessibility both for employees, suppliers and visitors. Table 4-23 shows the main findings.

Table 4-23 – IDA for households and their direct/indirect impacts

CAZ Scenario Direct impacts Indirect impacts IDA

1 Change Signal
Timings at Crumlin
Junction

No distributional impact as there is
no financial impact on households

Improvement in location of
queuing traffic

Potential savings in fuel
costs due to reduction of
commuting times and traffic

+

2 Signalise the
A472/B4471 Swffryd
Junction and
introduce an
eastbound queue
detector

No distributional impact as there is
no financial impact on households

Improvement in location of
queuing traffic

Potential savings in fuel
costs due to reduction of
commuting times and traffic

+

3 Demolish Dwellings
at Woodside Terrace
and realignment of
the southern
footpath

Direct impact on households living in
affected dwellings:

- Households will be given market
value for their properties plus a
compensation payment and
disbursements. However, this could
leave families with a financial
shortfall when purchasing a new
property.

Larger impact on households living /
owning the affected dwellings

Indirect negative impact on
households living nearby
during demolition works.

-

4 Peak Period HGV
Bans AM & PM

Indirect impact on households from
rerouting of business supply chain,
re-location, etc.

Potential negative impact
on employment and
household earnings

- -

5 CAZ Class D* with
behavioural
response

Negative direct impact on
households using non-compliant cars
to travel through the CAZ area

Potential larger impacts on the
poorest population as they are likely
to own non-compliant cars. Also,
lower costs could still represent a
higher proportional cost to more
deprived households

Indirect negative impact
through taxis/ coaches/
buses potentially passing
on costs

Potential negative impact
on older population or
those with disabilities most
likely to use taxis as well as
younger and poorer
residents using
buses/coaches to travel

- - -

Page 107



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 79 of 114

CAZ Scenario Direct impacts Indirect impacts IDA

6 Traffic Management
Option (Scenario 1,2)

No distributional impact as there is
no financial impact on households

Improvement in location of
queuing traffic

Potential savings in fuel
costs due to reduction of
commuting times and traffic

+

7 Do Maximum
(Scenario 1,2,5)

Negative direct impact on
households using non-compliant
vehicles to travel through the CAZ
area.

Potential larger impacts on the
poorest population as they are likely
to own non-compliant cars. Also,
lower costs could still represent a
higher proportional cost to more
deprived households.

Indirect negative impact
through taxis/ coaches/
buses potentially passing
on costs

Potential negative impact
on older population or
those with disabilities most
likely to use taxis as well as
younger and poorer
residents using
buses/coaches to travel

- - -

Note: Large beneficial (+++); Moderate beneficial (++); Slight beneficial (+); Neutral (0); Slight adverse (-); Moderate
adverse (- -); and Large adverse (- - -).

*Class D - Buses, coaches, taxis, PHVs, HGVs LGVs and cars where all petrol vehicles should comply with at least Euro 4
and all diesel vehicles Euro 6 emission standards

4.8.6 HEALTH IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY
A Health Impact Assessment (HIA) was undertaken to assess the potential impact of proposed
policy scenarios on Caerphilly residents. Impacts were tested through five pathways: prevalence of
physical conditions such as respiratory and cardiovascular conditions associated with air pollutant
exposure, active travel uptake, road accidents, noise pollution and mental wellbeing.

For context, Hafodyrynys is located within the scope of the Caerphilly East GP Cluster, which is
home to an increasingly aging population. In addition, a high proportion of individuals in this Cluster
live in areas which fall into the most (lowest quintile), or second most (second lowest quintile),
deprived areas in Wales. In these areas, the prevalence of depression is some of the highest in the
county of Gwent (8.7%)20. Therefore, the population is particularly vulnerable to the adverse impacts
of worsening air quality.

The policy scenarios considered for Caerphilly vary in nature and scale. However, all measures
target excessive pollution at Hafodyrynys. The policy scenarios considered will have diverse impacts

20 Note: the impacts on air quality presented here are different in nature to those presented in the rest of this document (in
particular comparing the performance of options to limit values). To assess compliance, impacts on air quality are
judged at individual receptor locations on the specific link against the legal limit. Health impacts are associated with the
more general change in air pollution – hence to inform this analysis, we look at a more aggregate change in air
pollution (averaging across a number of receptor points and the whole air quality modelling domain) and consider the
overall absolute change, rather than the shift relative to a given benchmark.

Page 108



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 80 of 114

on Hafodyrynys, due to their varying design features. Whilst some policy scenarios aim to
discourage vehicles from utilising the road in question, others aim to encourage free flowing traffic
conditions or plan to entirely remove the exposure of individuals to the high levels of vehicle
emissions.

Table 4-24 provides a summary of the health impacts associated with each scenario identified in the
HIA. Given the core analysis performed is qualitative, it is challenging to draw conclusions as to
which impact within each scenario is greatest, and indeed which scenario will have the greatest
impacts overall. Although quantitative analysis was performed, this only focused on the impacts of
air quality and is itself subject to caveats. That said one can still draw several broad conclusions
from the analysis with a sufficient degree of confidence:

a) The traffic management options (Scenarios 1, 2, 6 and 8) are unlikely to have significant
impacts on health, with the exception of scenario 8 which may deliver slight improvements
in accident and noise exposure risks through reducing speeds

b) Given the traffic options are likely to have insignificant health impacts, the impacts of the
‘Do Max’ scenario are anticipated to be very similar to those of the CAZ D

c) CAZ D will likely have the largest positive health impacts in the local area around the A472,
in terms of air quality, accident risk and noise exposure. But this option will lead to re-
routing, which could result in negative health outcomes on affected links. The net effect is
uncertain, but the quantitative modelling (and the fact that some vehicles cancel journeys or
switch mode) suggest that the net effect would be positive (and for air quality this Scenario
would still provide the largest benefit)

a. HGV ban would also deliver improvements in the local area, but like the CAZ D would
create problems elsewhere associated with re-routing. The overall balance (and
indeed whether this would be a benefit overall) is more uncertain for this option,
although the quantitative modelling suggests the scenario could at least deliver a net
benefit through changes in air quality.

b. Although the demolition option will deliver smaller improvements in air pollutant and
noise exposure, and accident risk, these are likely to be positive benefits for local
residents. This option does not create issues associated with re-routing traffic

d) Although unlikely to affect the ranking options in terms of health effects, there is a
temporal story not presented in these results:

a. First, the demolition scenario will result in compliance being achieved in the shortest
timeframe as it can be delivered sooner than the other measures. Hence, this
measure will start delivering health benefits sooner and over the shortest time period.

b. The demolition option, and the HGV Ban (to the extent this policy is not reversed in
the future), will continue to deliver health benefits into the future. Under the CAZ
option, the baseline will ‘catch up’ eroding any positive health benefits over time.

e) The CAZ D presents the largest negative risk in terms of mental health effects. The CAZ is
the most disruptive measure (in terms of eliciting change in behaviour) and hence presents
the biggest risk for businesses and household affordability, in addition to potentially adding
to journey times. The HGV ban will present a burden for businesses with risks for their
viability and employment, but will not affect households. The demolition option will not affect
businesses and will impact a smaller group of households and hence is likely to have a
smaller impact, but for these households the stress caused by moving home should not be
understated.

Page 109



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 81 of 114

Table 4-24 – Summary of health impacts from policy scenarios

Option
ID

Option
Description

Summary Assessment

1 Crumlin Junction
Signals

· Although this can be delivered in the short-term, it is unlikely to have any
significant health impacts.

· Scenario results in minimal reductions in air pollution, and no anticipated
effect on active travel or mental health.

· Changes in the flow of traffic may result in noise and accident impacts, but
reduction along the A472 could be offset by increases elsewhere.

2 Signalise Swffryd
Junction

· Although this can be delivered in the short-term, it is unlikely to have any
significant health impacts.

· Scenario results in minimal reductions in air pollution, and no anticipated
effect on active travel or mental health.

· Changes in the flow of traffic may result in noise and accident impacts, but
reduction along the A472 could be offset by increases elsewhere.

3 Demolish
Dwellings

· Through relocating residents and hence removing their exposure to air
pollution on Woodside Terrace, and allowing greater dispersion of pollutants
on the link, this scenario delivers improvements in air quality and associated
health impacts. However, given this will only affect the A472, the impacts
benefits are likely to be smaller than under HGV Ban or CAZ D. But this
scenario can be delivered by 2022, which means that the scenario will deliver
compliance ahead of the CAZ and ‘do maximum’ scenarios, benefiting
residents over a shorter time period.

· Relocation could also provide health benefits through lower levels of noise
pollution, congestion and accident risk

· The short-term impact on mental health may be significant, as residents may
be impacted by the stress associated with the financial and organisational
burden of moving home. But in the longer-term these residents could benefit
from lower air pollution, noise and accident risk.

4 HGV Ban · This scenario will deliver improvements in air quality, noise pollution,
congestion and accident levels within the HGV ban zone during peak hours.
And these impacts are likely to be greater than the demolition option.

· However, the ban will encourage businesses to reroute their journeys and
hence, the roads being used as an alternative will face increasing noise and
air pollution, congestion and accident levels.

· The net balance of these larger effects is uncertain, but the quantitative
modelling suggests the scenario could at least deliver a net benefit through
changes in air quality.

· In addition, some businesses may cancel journeys and potentially go out of
business, which could impact the wellbeing of employees.

5 CAZ Class D* · This scenario will deliver largest significant improvements in air quality, noise
pollution, congestion and accident levels within the CAZ.

· The CAZ will encourage individuals to reroute their journeys and hence, the
roads being used as an alternative will face increasing noise and air pollution,
congestion and accident levels. That said, the assumption that some road
users may cancel journeys or mode switch suggests the net balance of
effects may be a benefit.

Page 110



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 82 of 114

Option
ID

Option
Description

Summary Assessment

· Indeed, the quantitative modelling of air quality impacts suggests this
scenario will deliver the largest improvement in health effects associated with
air pollution exposure.

· This scenario will have the largest negative impact on mental health, as there
is a cost to businesses (and potentially unemployment), an impact on
accessibility and on household affordability.

· Furthermore, this scenario can only be delivered by 2026, due to the
infrastructural and legislative changes which will need to occur prior to
implementation, and other options can be implemented and start delivering
benefits sooner. And the baseline will eventually reduce any benefits to zero,
which does not occur to the same extent under other options

6 Traffic
Management
Option

· Although this can be delivered in the short-term, it will not have any
significant health impacts.

· Scenario results in minimal reductions in air pollution, and no anticipated
effect on active travel or mental health.

· Changes in the flow of traffic may result in noise and accident impacts, but
reduction along the A472 could be offset by increases elsewhere.

7 Do Max · This scenario will deliver largest significant improvements in air quality, noise
pollution, congestion and accident levels within the CAZ.

· The CAZ will encourage individuals to reroute their journeys and hence, the
roads being used as an alternative will face increasing noise and air pollution,
congestion and accident levels. That said, the assumption that some road
users may cancel journeys or mode switch suggests the net balance of
effects may be a benefit.

· Indeed, the quantitative modelling of air quality impacts suggests this
scenario will deliver the largest improvement in health effects associated with
air pollution exposure.

· However, this scenario will have the largest negative impact on mental
health, as there is a cost to businesses (and potentially unemployment), an
impact on accessibility and on household affordability.

· Furthermore, this scenario can only be delivered by 2023, and other options
can be implemented and start delivering benefits sooner. And the baseline
will eventually reduce any benefits to zero, which does not occur to the same
extent under other options

8 30mph speed limit · Although this can be delivered in the short-term, this scenario results in
minimal reductions in air pollution. Therefore, the prevalence of diseases
relating to air pollution and mortality rates are unlikely to be impacted to a
significant extent.

· Reducing speeds may deliver a small benefit through reduced accident and
noise exposure risk.

*Class D - Buses, coaches, taxis, PHVs, HGVs LGVs and cars where all petrol vehicles should comply with at least Euro 4 and all diesel
vehicles Euro 6 emission standards

4.9 STAGE THREE APPRAISAL
As part of the WelTAG Stage Three of the study, the appraisal outcomes have been summarised as
follows:

Page 111



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 83 of 114

¡ Air Quality Impacts

· The modelling indicates that the NO2 limit value can be met in 2025 without local action-
though this is contingent on later iterations of Euro standards delivering predicted NOx
emission reductions.

· The baseline in 2021 does not comply with the annual mean NO2 limit value.
· The demolition option with the southern footpath realignment in 2021 does comply with the

annual mean NO2 limit value at the modelled locations.
· It can be clearly seen that demolition reduces concentrations in the canyon, due to the

reduction in recirculation of emissions.
· The HGV peak period ban option in 2021 does not comply with the annual mean NO2 limit

value.
· The CAZ option has a large effect on NO2 concentrations which reduce by 40-50% in the

modelled corridor. This is primarily because of the Euro 6/VI type vehicle with lower emissions
in the fleet. The CAZ option in the modelled 2021 future year is predicted to comply with the
annual mean NO2 standard. However, it is not possible to be fully implemented until the end of
2022.

· For all other options including changing signal timings at Crumlin junction and signalise the
A472/B4471 Swffryd Junction reductions in annual average NO2 were negligible. Results are
presented in the Impact Assessment Report.

· The greatest health benefits are likely from the demolition option as physical health including
respiratory and cardiovascular impacts from high pollution are likely to decline from residents
moving to a lower pollution area. The CAZ and HGV ban are likely to have negative economic
impacts on local businesses and households which could have a negative impact on mental
health. Both CAZ and HGV options are likely to cause re-routing resulting in an overall
increase in emissions, and with the potential to result in exceedances with the limit value
elsewhere. The HIA and Distributional Analysis have identified unacceptable adverse impacts
resulting from this option given the lack of alternate route choice on this part of the local and
regional highway.

¡ Overall Impacts

· Appraisal against Future Generations Well-being objectives
· Appraisal Summary Tables (ASTs)

4.9.1 APPRAISAL FUTURE GENERATIONS WELL-BEING OBJECTIVES
The options have been considered against the Well-being of Future Generations Act. These are
presented in the ASTs.

4.10 APPRAISAL SUMMARY TABLES
The appraisal outcomes have been summarised within Appraisal Summary Tables (AST). The ASTs
provide a breakdown of the impact of each measure on each of the appraisal areas. The scoring has
been undertaken using the WelTAG 7-point scale where applicable.

Page 112



Date Produced - 20/02/2019

Appraisal Summary Table Option No.  /  Theme. 1

Change Signal Timings at Crumlin Junction

Crumlin Junction
Ineffective

2020

Yes. Road network is managed by CCBC Highways Operations Department.

Assessment
Qualitative

Air Quality

For this option the reductions in annual average NO2 are negligible. This option scores as neutral for the air
quality.

Neutral (0)

Noise

Receptor
The closest sensitive receptors are at Woodside Terrace, situated in NAPPA 619 mid-way up Hafodyrynys
Road (A472). A number of elevated receptors on Gladstone Road also overlook the A472 and a housing
estate is situated approximately 100m to the north of the A472.

Absolute Noise Levels
With the implementation of infrastructure changes, noise levels at Woodside Terrace are still predicted to
exceed  68dB LA10,18h. Noise levels were measured in 2014 and found to be 76dB LA10,18h at 10m
distance from the road.

Noise Impact
At Woodside Terrace short term impacts are predicted to be negligible at source, long term impacts are
seen to be negligible, but with a slight decrease in noise levels of less than a 1dB; this trend is seen across
the network.

Neutral (0)

Landscape
Alterations to signal timings at Crumlin Junction would manipulate the flow of traffic approaching from the
A472, but this would have a negligible effect on the wider impacts imposed by the busy transit corridor.

Neutral (0)

Historic Environment

There will be no appreciable impacts, either positive or negative, on any Grade II* and Grade II Listed
Buildings or their context. The option will not result in severance or loss of integrity, context or understanding
of the Listed Buildings within the historic landscape. There will be no appreciable impacts, either positive or
negative, on non-designated heritage assets or the historic landscape.

Neutral (0)

Biodiversity

This option is unlikely to lead to any significant effects on biodiversity due to the lack of landtake, and
produce no impact on ecology due to the lack of vegetation clearance and works confined within the hard
estate.

Neutral (0)

Water Environment

No predicted adverse effects to the water environment.  Slight increase in AADT traffic flows predicted for
this option but far below typical threshold value of 20% to cause notable increase of pollution risk to
receiving watercourses.

Neutral (0)

Journey Time Changes

This option sees an immediate increase in travel time of vehicles in 2021, especially as result of travel delay
on the A467 due to the signal timings. Furthermore, the option sees a reduction in the travel time for 2029.
Overall there is a negative impact on journey time with an increase of 13.5  hours of travel time (in total
during the AM peak) for the vehicles operating on the network. However, due to the small change in travel
time per vehicle, and the fact that only the morning peak is impacted, it is expected to have a neutral impact
on the overall journey time.

Neutral (0)

Journey Time Reliability
Changes

This option sees a slight benefit to the journey time reliability as it may reduce the EB queuing vehicles on
the A472 Hafodyrynys Road in the AM peak especially, through changes to the signal timings.

Slight Beneficial (+)

Transport Costs

Monetary costs paid by those travelling e.g. vehicle operating costs and tolls. Vehicle operating costs
include fuel and non-fuel operating costs. Given the small scale of change on the network, these impacts
are minimal. The TUBA estimates the impact as £41,000 of benefit over the 60 year appraisal period.

 Neutral (0)

Accidents
Accident savings are neutral across this option because of the little to no impact which it will have on the
layout of the road network.

Neutral (0)

Changes in Productivity
This option is not expected to impact upon productivity. Neutral (0)

Local Economy
This option is not expected to impact upon the local economy. Neutral (0)

Land

It is anticipated that this option can be accommodated within the verge of current road system. This is not
anticipated to have any requirements for additional land.

Neutral (0)

Capital Costs The costs for this option have been calculated and include a 44% Optimism Bias  £                      7,200.00

Revenue Costs None Neutral (0)

Journey Quality
Changing signal timings is not envisaged to have an impact on the journey quality and, therefore, the
journey quality is considered to be neutral.

Neutral (0)

Physical Activity
Signal timing modifications are unlikely to impact on physical activity along the study route. Therefore, it is
considered that the impact will be neutral.

Neutral (0)

Summary of key impacts

Name of scheme:
Location:

Timescale:
Effectiveness:

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t

Objective

Feasibility:

Ec
on

om
y

Page 113



Security
This scheme is unlikely to have an impact on the security of carriageway users at this location Neutral (0)

Access to Employment
Changes to signal timing are not expected to impact on access to employment along the study route.
Therefore, it is considered that the impact will be neutral.

Neutral (0)

Access to Services
Changes to signal timing are not expected to impact on access to services along the study route. Therefore,
it is considered that the impact will be neutral.

Neutral (0)

Affordability
This option is unlikely to lead to a local change in user class or impact on costs of transport. Neutral (0)

Severance This option will not have an impact on severance Neutral (0)

VfM Value for Money

10 Years - PVB = -£697,000  PVC = £6,000  NPV = -£703,000
60 Years - PVB =  £1,050,000 PVC =£6,000  NPV =  £1,044,000

   BCR
10 years  -116.2
60 years  175.0

Acceptability
Given the nature of the proposals, this measure is unlikely to be opposed by any groups or individuals.

Technical, Operational &
Financial Feasibility

None identified at this stage.

Deliverability & Risk

This option will have minimal cost as the option is an existing signalised junction with only timings being
changed.

Will the intervention deliver an
overall reduction in NO2
emissions to air

It is considered that this measure should have minimal impact on overall reduction in NO2

Will the intervention result in
unintended consequences or
other environmental impacts

No. There are no adverse consequences to other environmental impacts.

Will the intervention impact
equally across multiple vehicle
classes and journey types

Yes. This scheme should have an equal impact on all vehicle classes and journey types.

Will the intervention have a
positive impact on wider public
health and inequalities

Yes. It is considered that this measure should marginally improve the wider public health.

Prosperous This option is likely to have a neutral impact to business activity and slightly influence business movements. 0

Resilient
This option requires minimal amount of resources for implementation. However, the measures directly
impact on the ecosystem is not measurable and scores as neutral for this option

0

Healthier This option is likely to have a neutral impact to the health of the local communities. 0

More Equal This option is unlikely to have an impact on anything associated with "more equal" objective. 0

Cohesive Communities
This option is unlikely to influence areas that make cohesive communities and scores as neutral for this
goal.

0

Vibrant Culture
This option is not likely to influence areas that make a vibrant culture and scores as neutral for this goal. 0

Globally Responsible This option scores as neutral for as it does not directly impact on areas such as sustainable purchasing,
global supply chains or low-carbon technologies.

0Fu
tu

re
G

en
er

at
io

ns
7

W
el

l-
be

in
g

go
al

s
S&

C
O

th
er

Is
su

es
Se

co
nd

ar
y

C
rit

er
ia

of
th

e
O

bj
ec

tiv
e

Page 114



Appraisal Summary Table Option No.  /  Theme. 2

Signalise the A472/B4471 Swffryd Junction and introduce an eastbound queue detector

A472 Hafodyrynys Road / B4471 Swyffryd Junction
Ineffective

2022

Yes. Road network is managed by CCBC Highways Operations Department.

Assessment
Qualitative

Air Quality

For this option the reductions in annual average NO2 are negligible. This option scores as neutral for air quality. Neutral (0)

Noise

Receptors
The closest sensitive receptors are at Woodside Terrace, situated in NAPPA 619 mid-way up Hafodyrynys
Road (A472). A number of elevated receptors on Gladstone Road also overlook the A472 and a housing
estate is situated approximately 100m to the north of the A472.

Absolute Noise Levels
With the implementation of infrastructure changes, noise levels at Woodside Terrace are still predicted to
exceed  68dB LA10,18h. Noise levels were measured in 2014 and found to be 76dB LA10,18h at 10m
distance from the road.

Noise Impact
At Woodside Terrace short term impacts are predicted  to be negligible at source, long term impacts are also
seen to be negligible, but with a slight increase in noise levels of less than a 1dB; this trend is seen across the
network.

The design drawings indicate a new lane at the A472/B4471 Swyffryd Junction, causing the road to be brought
approximately 3.5m closer to pond villa; this could result in a slight increase in noise levels as vehicles
accelerate away from the junction.

Neutral (0)

Landscape

Introducing traffic signals at the A472/B4471 Junction would manipulate the flow of traffic along the A472,
resulting in some standing traffic where not previously experienced. These impacts would have a negligible
effect on the wider/existing impacts imposed by the busy transit corridor.

Neutral (0)

Historic Environment

There will be no appreciable impacts, either positive or negative, on any Grade II* and Grade II Listed Buildings
or their context. The option will not result in severance or loss of integrity, context or understanding of the Listed
Buildings within the historic landscape. There will be no appreciable impacts, either positive or negative, on non-
designated heritage assets or the historic landscape.

Neutral (0)

Biodiversity
This option is unlikely to lead to any significant effects on biodiversity due to the minimal landtake and
construction footprint, largely confined to existing areas of hardstanding.

Neutral (0)

Water Environment

No predicted adverse effects to the water environment.  Slight increase in AADT traffic flows predicted for this
option but far below typical threshold value of 20% to cause notable increase of pollution risk to receiving
watercourses.

Neutral (0)

Journey Time Changes

This option sees an immediate decrease in travel time in 2021, with a higher reduction for 2029. Overall this
option results in 180 hours of time savings in total across all modelled peaks, with a moderate benefit
associated to the journey time change.

Moderate Beneficial (++)

Journey Time Reliability
Changes

This option sees a slight benefit to the journey time reliability as it improves traffic flow through the A472
Hafodyrynys Road and Swyffryd Junction, through signalisation of this junction.

Slight Beneficial (+)

Transport Costs

Monetary costs paid by those travelling e.g. vehicle operating costs and tolls. Vehicle operating costs include
fuel and non-fuel operating costs. Given the small scale of change on the network, these impacts are minimal.
The TUBA estimates the impact as £3,404,000 of benefit over the 60 year appraisal period.

 Slight Beneficial (+)

Accidents

For Option 2, an accident appraisal was carried out using accident data over a four-and-a-half-year period from
the 1st January 2014 to the 30th June 2018 (https://gov.wales/statistics-and-research/police-recorded-road-
casualties/?tab=data&lang=en). A total of 22 accidents occurred on the road network over these five years, 6
serious and 16 slight. These accidents were then filtered down to the area which will be affected by the
implementation of the signal junction. Over the four-and-a-half-year period, one serious accident has occurred
in the vicinity of the junction. As the traffic around the junction will have a reduced speed, it is assumed that this
accident would be downgraded to a rear-end collision/shunt with the possibility that it is removed completely
from the recorded accidents on the network. This is a saving of 0.2 serious accidents per year, costed at
£243,645 (https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/ras60-average-value-of-preventing-road-
accidents) per serious accident which is a monetary saving of £54,141 per year.

Moderate Beneficial (++)

Changes in Productivity
This option is not expected to impact upon productivity. Neutral (0)

Local Economy
This option is not expected to impact upon the local economy. Neutral (0)

Land
It is anticipated that this option can be accommodated within the verge of current road system. This is not
anticipated to have any requirements for additional land.

Neutral (0)

Summary of key impacts

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t

Date Produced - 20/02/2019

Name of scheme:
Location:
Effectiveness:
Timescale:

Feasibility:

Objective

Ec
on

om
y

Page 115



Capital Costs The costs for this option have been calculated and include a 44% Optimism Bias  £                   487,243.57

Revenue Costs None Neutral (0)

Journey Quality
Installing a new signalling scheme at the A472/B4471 junction is not envisaged to have an impact on the
journey quality and, therefore, the impact is considered to be neutral.

Neutral (0)

Physical Activity
Installing the new signalling at the A472/B4471 junction is unlikely to impact on physical activity along the study
route. Therefore, it is considered that the impact will be neutral.

Neutral (0)

Security
As the signals are not within a site of concern (associated with crime), the security impact is considered to be
neutral

Neutral (0)

Access to Employment
Signalising the A472/B4471 junction is expected to slightly benefit the access to employment along the study
route by improving the flow of traffic. Therefore, it is considered that the impact will be slightly beneficial.

Slight Beneficial (+)

Access to Services
Signalising the A472/B4471 junction is expected to slightly benefit the access to services along the study route
by improving the flow of traffic. Therefore, it is considered that the impact will be slightly beneficial.

Slight Beneficial (+)

Affordability
This option is unlikely to lead to a local change in user class or impact on costs of transport. Neutral (0)

Severance This option will not have an impact on severance Neutral (0)

VfM Value for Money

10 Years - PVB =  £7,033,000  PVC = £416,000  NPV =  £6,617,000
60 Years - PVB = £44,322,000  PVC =  £416,000  NPV = £44,322,000

   BCR
10 years  16.9

60 years  107.5

Acceptability
Given the nature of the proposals, this measure is unlikely to be opposed by any groups or individuals.

Technical, Operational &
Financial Feasibility

None identified at this stage.

Deliverability & Risk

This option will need to be properly signed as a new junction layout to avoid traffic accidents.

Will the intervention deliver
an overall reduction in NO2
emissions to air

It is considered that this measure should have minimal impact on overall reduction in NO2

Will the intervention result in
unintended consequences or
other environmental impacts

No. There are no adverse consequences to other environmental impacts.

Will the intervention impact
equally across multiple
vehicle classes and journey
types

Yes. This scheme should have an equal impact on all vehicle classes and journey types.

Will the intervention have a
positive impact on wider
public health and inequalities

Yes. It is considered that this measure should marginally improve the wider public health.

Prosperous This option is likely to have a neutral impact to business activity and slightly influence business movements. 0

Resilient This option requires a minimal amount of resources for implementation. The measure is likely to assist in a
more consistent flow in traffic, in comparison to the existing queues.

+1

Healthier This option is likely to have a neutral impact to the health of the local communities. 0

More Equal This option is unlikely to have an impact on anything associated with "more equal" objective. 0

Cohesive Communities
This option is unlikely to influence areas that make cohesive communities and scores as neutral for this goal. 0

Vibrant Culture
This option is not likely to influence areas that make a vibrant culture and scores as neutral for this goal. 0

Globally Responsible

This measure complies with the 'globally responsible' objective by reducing green house gas emissions, and
providing a positive example of how infrastructure projects can integrate and promote wider well-being.

+1

Se
co

nd
ar

y
C

rit
er

ia
of

th
e

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
Fu

tu
re

Ge
ne

ra
tio

ns
7

W
el

l-b
ei

ng
go

al
s

S&
C

O
th

er
Is

su
es

Page 116



Appraisal Summary Table Option No.  /  Theme. 3

Demolish Dwellings at Woodside Terrace

A472 Hafodyrnys Road
High

2022

Yes. Subject to the CCBC's ability to enforce the Compulsory Purchase Order. A topological survey needs
to be undertaken and is required for this option.

Assessment
Qualitative

Air Quality

The demolition option with footpath realignment in 2021 does comply with the annual mean NO2 standard at
relevant locations. It should be noted that the compliance status is extremely marginal and in many cases is
smaller than the error in the model. It can be clearly seen that demolition reduces concentrations in the
canyon, most likely due to the reduction in recirculation of emissions.

Large Beneficial (+++)

Noise

Receptors
The closest sensitive receptors are now the elevated receptors on Gladstone Road overlooking the A472
and a housing estate is situated approximately 100m to the north of the A472.

Absolute Noise Levels
With dwellings at Woodside Terrace demolished, the total dwellings within the NAPPA would decrease,
however noise levels would still exceed 68dB LA10,18h at remaining dwellings to the north. The A472 is
anticipated to remain in the same alignment. Noise levels were measured in 2014 and found to be 76dB
LA10,18h at 10m distance from the road.

Noise Impact
If all the dwellings within the NAPPA are removed it would remove the need for this NAPPA; however,
demolishing dwellings to the south would result in the NAPPA remaining, but with less dwellings than before.

Neutral (0)

Landscape

The demolition of dwellings at Woodside Terrace and re-alignment of footpath would expose the study area
to a moderate value and locally designated landscapes in the south, and this would result in a slight adverse
effect.

Slight adverse (-)

Historic Environment

There will be no appreciable impacts, either positive or negative, on any Grade II* and Grade II Listed
Buildings or their context. The option will not result in severance or loss of integrity, context or understanding
of the Listed Buildings within the historic landscape. There will be no appreciable impacts, either positive or
negative, on non-designated heritage assets or the historic landscape.

Neutral (0)

Biodiversity

This could generate slight adverse impacts to the local ecology due to the need for vegetation clearance
and landscaping near a river and the requirement to demolish buildings with high suitability to support
roosting bats. The appropriate surveys will be carried out.

Slight adverse (-)

Water Environment

No predicted adverse effects to the water environment. No increase to the AADT flows are expected for this
option.  Demolition works could cause short term impact in ordinary watercourse but of insufficient
magnitude to affect its integrity and with no long term effects expected.

Neutral (0)

Journey Time Changes

The journey time changes for this option are neutral  because of the little to no impact which it will have on
the layout of the road network. It is expected to have a neutral impact on the overall journey time.

Neutral (0)

Journey Time Reliability
Changes

This option sees a neutral benefit to the journey time reliability as the option does not include any changes
to the road infrastructure.

Neutral (0)

Transport Costs

Monetary costs paid by those travelling e.g. vehicle operating costs and tolls. Vehicle operating costs
include fuel and non-fuel operating costs. This scenario assumes no change in traffic from the Do Minimum,
therefore the benefits are zero.

 Neutral (0)

Accidents
Accident savings are neutral across this option because of the little to no impact which it will have on the
layout of the road network.

Neutral (0)

Changes in Productivity
This option is not expected to impact upon productivity. Neutral (0)

Local Economy
This option is not expected to impact upon the local economy. Neutral (0)

Land
It is anticipated that demolishing the dwellings may result in a changes to the existing land & public footpath
system.

Slight Adverse (-)

Capital Costs
The costs for this option have been calculated and include a 44% Optimism Bias. No topographical or
geotechnical surveys have been undertaken and are not included in this price. Currently the schme is at the
design stage.

 £              4,310,939.66

Revenue Costs None Neutral (0)

Summary of key impacts

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t

Date Produced - 20/02/2019

Name of scheme:
Location:
Effectiveness:
Timescale:

Feasibility:

Objective

Ec
on

om
y

Page 117



Journey Quality
Demolishing the dwellings along the south side of the Woodside Terrace is not envisaged to have an impact
on the journey quality and, therefore, the impact is considered to be neutral.

Neutral (0)

Physical Activity
Demolishing the dwellings is unlikely to impact on physical activity along the study route. Therefore, it is
considered that the impact will be neutral.

Neutral (0)

Security
The footpath on the southen side of the carriageway will be set back by approximately 6m. Neutral (0)

Access to Employment

This option does not impact on the access to employment, with a small number of residents being affected.
No employment centres are likely to be impacted. Furthermore, it cannot be determined where these
residents will relocate. However, it is likely residents will find access to employment after relocation.
Therefore, the impact is considered as neutral.

Neutral (0)

Access to Services

This option does not impact on the access to services, with a small number of residents being affected. No
service centres are likely to be impacted. Furthermore, it cannot be determined where these residents will
relocate. However, it is likely residents will find access to services after relocation. Therefore, the impact is
considered as neutral.

Neutral (0)

Affordability
This option is unlikely to lead to a local change in user class or impact on costs of transport. Neutral (0)

Severance

The number of residents being effected is considered as minimal. Furthermore, it cannot be determined
where these residents will be re-allocated in regards to housing. Therefore the impact is considered as
neutral.

Neutral (0)

VfM Value for Money

10 Years - PVB =  £15,492  PVC = £3,915,000  NPV = -£3,915,000
60 Years - PVB =  £28,566 PVC =  £3,915,000 NPV = -£3,915,000
The Present Value Benefits (PVB) for this option derives from the monetised impacts of the air quality for the
residents.

   BCR
10 years  0.004
60 years 0.007

Acceptability
Given the nature of the proposals, this measure is anticipated to be opposed by the Woodside Terrace's
residents.

Technical, Operational &
Financial Feasibility

Financial fesibility to residents.

Deliverability & Risk

This option will be high risk, with geotechnical and topographical surveys being required. There are also
legal challenges and the residents need to come to a joint decision to relocate.

Will the intervention deliver
an overall reduction in NO2
emissions to air

Yes. However, this measure will not reduce the emissions from the vehicles. It will decrease the
concentrations in the local area due to the removal of the canyon. Dispersion is improved and hence
concentrations on the road and footpaths decrease. Furthermore, the southern footpath is going to be
compliant through re-alignment. Similarly, the northern footpath is likely to be compliant in the option
implementation year.

Will the intervention result in
unintended consequences
or other environmental
impacts

Yes. There are slight adverse consequences to the landscape and biodiversity.

Will the intervention impact
equally across multiple
vehicle classes and journey
types

Yes. This scheme should have an equal impact on all vehicle classes and journey types.

Will the intervention have a
positive impact on wider
public health and
inequalities

Yes. The residents will no longer be exposed to the high NO2 concentration. However, some social
inequalities are envisaged due to the displacing the residents. This is further impacted as the figures show
that Caerphilly has a slightly higher economic inactivity of 24.7% compared to the Welsh average of 23.8%.
The majority (33.6%) are made up of long-term sick residents.

Prosperous
This option will lead to a relocation of the current residents at Woodside Terrace to other areas, however it is
likely to have a neutral impact on local trade/economy and services due to over 85,500 economically active
people in Caerphilly and the small number of people relocating from Woodside Terrace.

0

Resilient
This option requires a high amount of resources for implementation, both financial costs and physical
resources. The measure is likely to result in a small adverse impact on local biodiversity and ecosystems.
However, it is likely to score as netural for this well-being goal.

0

Healthier
This option addresses the problem of poor air quality and removes the residents from the problem.
However, residents will be subject to stress and anxiety over significant change. It is likely to have a positive
impact on the current residents of the Woodside Terrace overall.

+2

More Equal

The current resident group will be reimbursed and compensated for the disruption caused and in line with
this goal, involvement of local people is of vital importance. There is a clear link between the inequality and
health in this option, as less advantaged groups are being offered an economic support to find new housing.
However, although a small group of residents are being affected from a population of over 180,800 in
Caerphilly (2017), this option has the potential to leave the residents in a financial deficit overall. Especially
those who have no mortgage and are now faced with having to take out a new mortgage and those coming
to the end of their mortgage having to extend. This option scores as slight adverse for the ‘more equal’ goal.

-1

Cohesive Communities
This option is likely to negatively impact on strengthening local community social relationships and damage
the links currently made. However, it is unlikely to make Hafodyrynys or the wider area, a less attractive
place to live and work, therfore scores as neutral for the cohesive communities goal.

0

Vibrant Culture Likely to be diverging the social ties with the current residents and could cause some cultural problems
between the council and the public. This scores as negative for the vibrant culture goal.

-1

Globally Responsible

This option completely removes the health problems caused to the Woodside Terrace residents from NO2.
On a localised level, the carbon footprint of demolition needs to ensure to dispose of materials in sustainable
manner in order to comply with this goal. This option is seen as sustainable as it puts residents' health first
by removing them from the problem.

+1

Se
co

nd
ar

y
C

rit
er

ia
of

th
e

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
Fu

tu
re

G
en

er
at

io
ns

7
W

el
l-b

ei
ng

go
al

s
S&

C
O

th
er

Is
su

es

Page 118



Date Produced - 20/02/2019

Appraisal Summary Table Option No.  /  Theme. 4

Peak Period HGV Bans

A472 Hafodyrnys Road
Low

2022

Possibly. CCBC can introduce and put forward the traffic order. Road network is managed by CCBC Highways
Operations Department and would need to be enforced by the police for this option to be feasible.

Assessment
Qualitative

Air Quality

The HGV ban reduces concentrations of NO2 along the corridor by an average of -2 ug/m3. However, the
HGV ban option in 2021 does not achieve compliance with the NO2 limit value. This option scores as slight
beneficial to the air quality.

Slight Beneficial (+)

Noise

Receptors
The closest sensitive receptors are at Woodside Terrace, situated in NAPPA 619 mid-way up Hafodyrynys
Road (A472). A number of elevated receptors on Gladstone Road also overlook the A472 and a housing
estate is situated approximately 100m to the north of the A472.

Absolute Noise Levels
With the implementation of peak hour HGV bans, noise levels at Woodside Terrace are still predicted to
exceed  68dB LA10,18h. Noise levels were measured in 2014 and found to be 76dB LA10,18h at 10m
distance from the road.

Noise Impact
Short term and long term impacts are predicted to be negligible at source in NAPPA 619, but with a slight
decrease in noise level of less than 1dB.

Neutral (0)

Landscape

The introduction of peak hour HGV bans would manipulate the flow and nature of traffic using the A472, but
this would have a negligible effect on the wider impacts imposed by the busy transit corridor.

Neutral (0)

Historic Environment

There will be no appreciable impacts, either positive or negative, on any Grade II* and Grade II Listed Buildings
or their context. The option will not result in severance or loss of integrity, context or understanding of the Listed
Buildings within the historic landscape. There will be no appreciable impacts, either positive or negative, on non-
designated heritage assets or the historic landscape.

Neutral (0)

Biodiversity
This option is unlikely to produce any impacts on ecology due to the lack of vegetation clearance and works
would be confined within the hard estate.

Neutral (0)

Water Environment

No predicted adverse effects to the water environment.  Slight increase in AADT traffic flows predicted for this
option but far below typical threshold value of 20% to cause notable increase of pollution risk to receiving
watercourses

Neutral (0)

Journey Time Changes

This option sees an immediate decrease in travel time in 2021, with a higher reduction for 2029. Overall this
option results in 194 hours of savings for all vehicle types except HGVs who operate the A472 corridor in the
morning and evening peak periods. However, as result of HGVs displcement on the wider network, it is
expected to have a slight adverse impact on the journey time overall.

Slight Adverse (-)

Journey Time Reliability
Changes

This option sees a neutral benefit to the journey time reliability due to unknown impacts on the corridor and
displacement of HGVs elsewhere on the network. This option might result in a journey reliability improvement in
2021 on the A472 Hafodyrynys Road corridor in the AM peak especially. There is an expected adverse impact
on the journey time reliability for 2029 due to a higher number of other vehicle types entering the corridor,
slowly reducing the slight improvements from 2021.

Slight Adverse (-)

Transport Costs

Monetary costs paid by those travelling e.g. vehicle operating costs and tolls. Vehicle operating costs include
fuel and non-fuel operating costs. The TUBA estimates £4,263,000 of benefit. However, this benefit is a
function of improved traffic flow due to the removal of HGVs from the corridor. Due to the limitations of the
model extents, the TUBA does not calculate disbenefits associated with the rerouting of HGVs. Because of
this, the anticpated impacts are Slight Adverse.

 Slight Adverse (-)

Accidents
Accident savings are neutral across this option because of the little to no impact which it will have on the layout
of the road network.

Neutral (0)

Changes in Productivity
This option is not expected to impact upon productivity. Neutral (0)

Local Economy

A questionnaire for businesses local to Hafodyrynys and A472 has been undertaken. The respondents admit
that the deliveries that taking place during either a morning or afternoon peak constitute for up to 50% of
deliveries within their companies. This is likely to have a moderate adverse impact on the local economy.

Moderate Adverse (--)

Land
It is anticipated that this option can be accommodated within the verge of current road system. This is not
anticipated to have any requirements for additional land.

Neutral (0)

Capital Costs The costs for this option have been calculated and include a 44% Optimism Bias  £                   507,821.16

Revenue Costs None Neutral (0)

Journey Quality
A HGV ban is not envisaged to have an impact on the journey quality and, therefore, the impact is considered
to be neutral.

Neutral (0)

Summary of key impacts

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t

Name of scheme:
Location:
Effectiveness:
Timescale:

Feasibility:

Objective

Ec
on

om
y

Page 119



Physical Activity
Peak hour HGV bans are unlikely to impact on physical activity along the study route. Therefore, it is
considered that the impact will be neutral.

Neutral (0)

Security
This scheme is unlikely to have an impact of the security of carriageway users at this location Neutral (0)

Access to Employment

Banning HGVs during morning and evening peak periods is likely to negatively impact on their trips associated
with employment. This, in turn, will affect these places operational ability. The impact is considered to be
moderately adverse.

Moderate Adverse (--)

Access to Services
Banning HGVs during peak morning and evening periods is likely to negatively impact on their trips associated
with services. The impact is considered to be moderately adverse.

Moderate Adverse (--)

Affordability
This option is unlikely to lead to a local change in user class or impact on costs of transport. Neutral (0)

Severance This option will not have an impact on severance Neutral (0)

VfM Value for Money
10 Years - PVB =  £6,429,045    PVC = £447,000   NPV = £5,982,045
60 Years - PVB = £38,935,698   PVC = £447,000  NPV = £38,488,698

   BCR
10 years  14.4
60 years 87.1

Acceptability
Given the nature of the proposals, this measure is anticipated to be opposed by the local businesses and
service providers.

Technical, Operational &
Financial Feasibility

Police enforcement.

Deliverability & Risk

The diversion for the HGVs is significant, if not policed properly HGVs will continue to use the route and ignore
the new diversion. Need to ensure sufficient signage is used.  May lead to longer travel routes for HGVs and
increases in NO2 on other routes by moving the problem from one area o another.

Will the intervention deliver
an overall reduction in NO2
emissions to air

It is considered that this measure should have a positive impact on overall reduction in NO2. In the local area.
However, diversion routes are significant, will take longer to travel and could increase the overall levels of NO2.

Will the intervention result in
unintended consequences or
other environmental impacts

Yes possibly, rerouting of vehicles could increase NO2 elsewhere.

Will the intervention impact
equally across multiple
vehicle classes and journey
types

No. HGVs will be targeted

Will the intervention have a
positive impact on wider
public health and inequalities

Yes. It is considered that this measure should marginally improve the wider public health in the local area but
may increase NO2 overall in other regions.

Prosperous

This option is likely to see a negative impact on business growth and business opportunities, whilst damaging
local supply chains. The measure will however favour low-carbon sectors and push the infrastructure to be
more sustainable by understanding the impact of older polluting HGVs on NO2. Its impact on the economic
growth may result in Caerphilly receiving less business investment, overall having an adverse impact on a
Prosperous Wales.

-1

Resilient

This measure requires minimal resources for implementation and can be enforced using ANPR. It uses
resources efficiently and can positively impact on the ecosystem by removing queueing HGVs from the A472
Hafodyrynys Road local area. The option needs to ensure that by banning peak period HGVs on this route, it
does not create a problem somewhere else.

+2

Healthier
This option is likely to see a reduction in HGVs, which is likely to have a slight benefit to air quality and health.
The measure is likely to make for safer active travel conditions.

+1

More Equal
This option is anticipated to score negatively for impacting local businesses utilising HGVs. The measure could
also be damaging to freight operators in the region utilising the strategic route.

-2

Cohesive Communities
This measure is likely to negatively impact on local businesses that rely on the route for their freight transport. -2

Vibrant Culture
This option is not likely to influence areas that make a vibrant culture and scores as neutral for this goal. 0

Globally Responsible

This measure complies with the 'globally responsible' objective by reducing greenhouse gas emissions,
removing a considerable NO2 pollutant source from an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) and providing a
positive example of how infrastructure projects can integrate and promote wider well-being. Future
assessments may be necessary to ensure negative impacts because of longer diversions are mitigated.

+1

Se
co

nd
ar

y
C

rit
er

ia
of

th
e

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
Fu

tu
re

Ge
ne

ra
tio

ns
7

W
el

l-b
ei

ng
go

al
s

S&
C

O
th

er
Is

su
es

Page 120



Appraisal Summary Table Option No.  /  Theme. 5

Clean Air Zone / Low Emission Zone

A472 Hafodyrynys Road
High

2023

Yes. Road network is managed by CCBC Highways Operations Department.

Assessment
Qualitative

Air Quality

The CAZ  reduces concentrations of NO2 along the corridor by an average of -14 ug/m3. The CAZ option has
a transformative effect on NO2 concentrations which reduce by 40-50% in the modelled corridor. This is
primarily due to the effect of Euro 6/VI in the fleet. The CAZ option in 2021 does comply with the annual mean
NO2 standard.

Large Beneficial (+++)

Noise

Receptors
The closest sensitive receptors are at Woodside Terrace, situated in NAPPA 619 mid-way up Hafodyrynys
Road (A472). A number of elevated receptors on Gladstone Road also overlook the A472 and a housing
estate is situated approximately 100m to the north of the A472.

Absolute Noise Levels
With the implementation of a clean air zone, noise levels at Woodside Terrace are still predicted to exceed
68dB LA10,18h. Noise levels were measured in 2014 and found to be 76dB LA10,18h at 10m distance from
the road.

Noise Impact
Short term impacts across the network are predicted to be negligible at source, but with a slight decrease in
noise levels of less than 1dB. In the long term, impacts are generally predicted to be negligible overall.
The only exception is Crumlin Road which is anticipated to experience a minor beneficial impact at source,
although this is thought to be due to its low flow, meaning other roads are likely to be the dominant noise
source and receptors on Crumlin Road are unlikely to face a significant benefit.

Neutral (0)

Landscape

The introduction of a Clean Air Zone/Low Emission Zone would see a displacement of HGV and other traffic to
alternative routes, but this would have a negligible effect on the wider impacts imposed by the busy transit
corridor.

Neutral (0)

Historic Environment

There will be no appreciable impacts, either positive or negative, on any Grade II* and Grade II Listed
Buildings or their context. The option will not result in severance or loss of integrity, context or understanding of
the Listed Buildings within the historic landscape. There will be no appreciable impacts, either positive or
negative, on non-designated heritage assets or the historic landscape.

Neutral (0)

Biodiversity
This option is unlikely to produce any impacts on ecology due to the lack of vegetation clearance and works
confined within the hard estate.

Neutral (0)

Water Environment

No predicted adverse effects to the water environment.  Increase in AADT traffic flows predicted at Junction
B4471/A472 but not considered sufficient to cause notable increase of pollution risk to receiving watercourses
that receive discharge from wider catchment.

Neutral (0)

Journey Time Changes

This option sees a larger change to the journey time in 2021 compared to 2029, with an overall benefit change
of 214 hours for A472 Hafodyrynys Road users. However, this option is likely to include large vehicle
displacement on the wider network such as the M4, A4042, A467 and the A465. The increase in journey time
for the users on the previously mentioned strategic routes is anticipated to outweigh the benefit for the A472
Hafodyrynys Road. This option therefore is likely to have a large adverse impact on the journey time.

Large Adverse (---)

Journey Time Reliability
Changes

This option sees a moderate adverse impact on the journey time reliability as result of the different diversion
routes, increased distance and problems on the network elsewhere will result in more travel delay, especially
for vehicles travelling eastbound on the A472 Hafodyrynys Road in the morning peak.

Moderate Adverse (--)

Transport Costs

Monetary costs paid by those travelling e.g. vehicle operating costs and tolls. Vehicle operating costs include
fuel and non-fuel operating costs. The TUBA estimates £972,000 of benefit. However, this benefit is a function
of improved traffic flow due to the removal of traffic from the corridor as a result of the Clean Air Zone. Due to
the limitations of the model extents, the TUBA does not calculate disbenefits associated with the rerouting of
traffic away from the Clean Air Zone. Similary, the TUBA costs do not include the charge paid by non
compliant vehicles within the Clean Air Zone. Due to this, the impacts are expected to be Large Adverse.

 Large Adverse (---)

Accidents This option is likely to displace traffic from the strategic corridor onto potentially unsuitable routes. This could
result in increased traffic volumes in residential areas etc. making accidents more likely to happen.

Slight Adverse (-)

Changes in Productivity
This option is likely to affect the availability of labour markets within the area. The charging Clean Air Zone will
act as a barrier to commuters between Caerphilly and Torfaen.

Moderate Adverse (--)

Local Economy

A questionnaire for businesses, local to Hafodyrynys and A472 has been undertaken. Only three respondents
considered proposed charges for the CAZ as ‘about right’. Some respondents suggest also that such changes
might result in the area to be unattractive from a business point of view. This is likely to have a large adverse
impact on the local economy.

Large Adverse (---)

Land
It is anticipated that this option can be accommodated within the verge of current road system. This is not
anticipated to have any requirements for additional land. This option will include the construction of signs on
the nearby infrastructure.

Neutral (0)

Capital Costs The costs for this option have been calculated and include a 44% Optimism Bias  £             20,000,000.00

Revenue Costs None Neutral (0)

Summary of key impacts

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t

Date Produced - 20/02/2019

Name of scheme:
Location:
Effectiveness:
Timescale:
Feasibility:

Objective

Ec
on

om
y

Page 121



Journey Quality
A clean air/low emission zone is envisaged to have an impact on the journey quality through less exposure to
NO2 levels for drivers, passengers, pedestrians and cyclists. This is likely to have a slight beneficial impact.

Slight Beneficial (+)

Physical Activity
Introducing the Clean Air Zone/Low Emission Zone is unlikely to impact on physical activity along the study
route. Therefore, it is considered that the impact will be neutral.

Neutral (0)

Security
This scheme is unlikely to have an impact of the security of carriageway users at this location Neutral (0)

Access to Employment

Introducing a Clean Air Zone/Low Emission Zone is likely to reduce the residents' access to local employment
as well as companies main transport routes being effected. The impact is considered to be large adverse.

Large Adverse (---)

Access to Services

Introducing a Clean Air Zone/Low Emission Zone is likely to reduce the residents' access to the local services.
Reduced number of trips associated with business & delivery will also see a reduction in the access to
services. The impact is considered to be large adverse.

Large Adverse (---)

Affordability

The clean air zone may result in an increase in the time necessary to save money to upgrade vehicles as a
result of paying for the CAZ charge or having to extend their general daily trips.

Slight Adverse (-)

Severance This option will not have an impact on severance Neutral (0)

VfM Value for Money
10 Years - PVB =  £3,066,149 PVC = £15,303,851  NPV = -£12,237,702
60 Years - PVB = £11,536,149 PVC =  £15,303,851 NPV = -£3,767,702

   BCR
10 years  0.2
60 years  0.8

Acceptability

Given the nature of the proposals, this measure is anticipated to be opposed by the local businesses and
general public. The road users are likely to be financially penalised either by the introduced charges or the
requirement to buy a newer vehicle.

Technical, Operational &
Financial Feasibility

No legislation currently in place to allow a clean air zone to be implemented in Wales. This is likely to take up
to 2021 for legislation to be in place, with the JAQU guidance suggesting a further 5 years implementation
period following legislation being in place.

Deliverability & Risk

The diversion for vehicles is significant, if not policed properly vehicles will continue to use the route and ignore
the new diversion. Need to ensure sufficient signage is used.

Will the intervention deliver
an overall reduction in NO2
emissions to air

Yes. There may potentially be an overall reduction to NO2, although it is likely that there may be localised
increases in NO2 elsewhere, due to the Clean Air Zone/Low Emission Zone avoidance.

Will the intervention result in
unintended consequences or
other environmental impacts

Yes, potentially to the areas where the traffic re-routes.

Will the intervention impact
equally across multiple
vehicle classes and journey
types

No. Older vehicles will be targeted.

Will the intervention have a
positive impact on wider
public health and inequalities

There may be a positive impact on the residents' health, however significant social inequalities are envisaged
due to the vehicles' emissions restriction. CAZ displacement of older vehicles on the corridor and can impact
on the air quality in other areas.

Prosperous

This option may lead to a local economy which is adapted to future change and thinks more about the air
quality problem. The same can be said about working together with other public bodies’ goals. This measure
could however negatively impact local economy and provision of local services by discouraging trips through
the zone.

-2

Resilient

This measure requires notable resource for implementation. However, the measure can positively impact on
the ecosystem by removing poor quality vehicles that negatively impact on local air quality readings. The
option needs to ensure that by charging certain vehicles, it does not create a problem somewhere else. This
option would be further benefited by a government scrappage scheme or incentives to renew older vehicles.

+1

Healthier
This option is likely to see a reduction in poor quality vehicles, which is likely to have a slight benefit to air
quality and subsequently to the health of the local residents.

+2

More Equal

The CAZ charge can be classified as a proportional charge system which does not take into consideration
someone’s income. The more deprived groups are likely to be impacted more than those that are more
financially secure. A measure to tackle this problem can be the introduction of interest-free loans for a limited
time to purchase compliant vehicles. This idea was put forward by the secretary of the Yorkshire Professional
Driver’s Association in response to the Leeds CAZ. This option would be further benefited by a government
scrappage scheme or incentives to renew older vehicles.

-2

Cohesive Communities
This measure is likely to negatively impact on local businesses that rely on the route for their commuting and
freight transport.

-2

Vibrant Culture

This option is not likely to influence areas that make a vibrant culture and scores as neutral for this goal. 0

Globally Responsible

This measure complies with the 'globally responsible' objective by reducing green house gas emissions,
emphasising a need for developing sustainable low-carbon technologies, and providing a positive example of
how infrastructure projects can integrate and promote wider well-being

+2

Se
co

nd
ar

y
C

rit
er

ia
of

th
e

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
Fu

tu
re

G
en

er
at

io
ns

7
W

el
l-b

ei
ng

go
al

s
S&

C
O

th
er

Is
su

es

Page 122



Appraisal Summary Table Option No.  /  Theme. 6

Traffic Management Option - Change Signal Timings at Crumlin Junction (Option 1) + Signalise the
A472/B4471 Swyffryd Junction with 2 lanes on A472 EB (Option 2)

Crumlin Junction,  A472 Hafodyrynys Road / B4471 Swyffryd Junction
Ineffective

2022

Yes. Road network is managed by CCBC Highways Operations Department.

Assessment
Qualitative

Air Quality

For this option the reductions in annual average NO2 are negligible. This option scores as neutral for the air
quality.

Neutral (0)

Noise

Receptors
The closest sensitive receptors are at Woodside Terrace, situated in NAPPA 619 mid-way up Hafodyrynys
(A472). A number of elevated receptors on Gladstone Road also overlook the A472 and a housing estate is
situated approximately 100m to the north of the A472.

Absolute Noise Levels
With the implementation of infrastructure changes, noise levels at Woodside Terrace are still predicted to
exceed  68dB LA10,18h. Noise levels were measured in 2014 and found to be 76dB LA10,18h at 10m
distance from the road.

Noise Impact
Overall receptors are subject to negligible changes in the short and long term. The negligible beneficial and
adverse impacts from option 2 and option 3 respectively effectively counteract each other.

The design drawings indicate a new lane at the A472/B44721 Swyffryd Junction, causing the road to be
brought approximately 3.5m closer to pond villa; this could result in a slight increase in noise levels as vehicles
accelerate away from the junction.

Neutral (0)

Landscape

Alterations to signal timings at Crumlin Junction and introduction of traffic signals at the A472/B4471 junction
would manipulate the flow of traffic approaching from the A472 and result in some standing traffic where not
previously experienced. These alterations would have a negligible effect on the wider/existing impacts imposed
by the busy transit corridor.

Neutral (0)

Historic Environment

There will be no appreciable impacts, either positive or negative, on any Grade II* and Grade II Listed Buildings
or their context. The option will not result in severance or loss of integrity, context or understanding of the Listed
Buildings within the historic landscape. There will be no appreciable impacts, either positive or negative, on non-
designated heritage assets or the historic landscape.

Neutral (0)

Biodiversity
This option is unlikely to lead to any significant effects on biodiversity due to the minimal landtake and
construction footprint, largely confined to existing areas of hardstanding.

Neutral (0)

Water Environment

No predicted adverse effects to the water environment.  Slight increase in AADT traffic flows predicted for this
option but far below typical threshold value of 20% to cause notable increase of pollution risk to receiving
watercourses.

Neutral (0)

Journey Time Changes

This option sees a minor increase in travel time of vehicles in 2021, however this is outweighed by a positive
change to the journey time in 2029 for an overall positive journey time change of 60 hours. The majority of the
increase to journey time is associated with the signal timings in 2021. It is anticipated that the traffic
management option will have a slight benefit on the journey time change.

Slight Beneficial (+)

Journey Time Reliability
Changes

This option sees a moderate benefit to the journey time reliability, especially to traffic travelling eastbound in the
AM peak.

Moderate Beneficial (++)

Transport Costs

Monetary costs paid by those travelling e.g. vehicle operating costs and tolls. Vehicle operating costs include
fuel and non-fuel operating costs. Given the small scale of change on the network, these impacts are minimal.
The TUBA estimates the impact as £1,486,000 of benefit over the 60 year appraisal period.

 Slight Beneficial (+)

Accidents

An accident appraisal was carried out using accident data over a four-and-a-half-year period from the 1st
January 2014 to the 30th June 2018 (https://gov.wales/statistics-and-research/police-recorded-road-
casualties/?tab=data&lang=en). A total of 22 accidents occurred on the road network over these five years, 6
serious and 16 slight. These accidents were then filtered down to the area which will be affected by the
implementation of the signal junction. As the traffic around the junction will have a reduced speed, it is
assumed that this accident would be downgraded to a rear-end collision/shunt with the possibility that it is
removed completely from the recorded accidents on the network. This is a saving of 0.2 serious accidents per
year, costed at £243,645 (https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/ras60-average-value-of-
preventing-road-accidents) per serious accident which is a monetary saving of £54,141 per year.

Moderate Beneficial (++)

Changes in Productivity
This option is not expected to impact upon productivity. Neutral (0)

Local Economy
This option is not expected to impact upon the local economy. Neutral (0)

Land
It is anticipated that this option can be accommodated within the verge of current road system. This is not
anticipated to have any requirements for additional land.

Neutral (0)

Capital Costs The costs for this option have been calculated and include a 44% Optimism Bias  £                   494,443.57

Summary of key impacts

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t

Date Produced -20/02/2019

Name of scheme:

Location:
Effectiveness:
Timescale:
Feasibility:

Objective

Ec
on

om
y

Page 123



Revenue Costs None Neutral (0)

Journey Quality
A traffic management option is not envisaged to have an impact on the journey quality and, therefore, the
impact is considered to be neutral.

Neutral (0)

Physical Activity
A traffic management option is unlikely to impact on physical activity along the study route. Therefore, it is
considered that the impact will be neutral.

Neutral (0)

Security
As the signals are not within a site of concern (associated with crime), the security impact is considered to be
neutral

Neutral (0)

Access to Employment

Traffic management could improve the vehicle flow through the corridor and therefore create a more attractive
route for drivers. This could potentially attract additional users and therefore slightly improve access to
employment.

Slight Beneficial (+)

Access to Services

Traffic management could improve the vehicle flow through the corridor and therefore create a more attractive
route for drivers. This could potentially attract additional users and therefore slightly improve access to
services.

Slight Beneficial (+)

Affordability
This option is unlikely to lead to a local change in user class or impact on costs of transport. Neutral (0)

Severance This option will not have an impact on severance Neutral (0)

VfM Value for Money
10 Years - PVB = £2,371,000  PVC = £422,000  NPV = £1,949,000
60 Years - PVB = 19,282,000  PVC =£422,000   NPV =18,860,000

   BCR
10 years  5.6
60 years 45.7

Acceptability
Given the nature of the proposals, this measure is unlikely to be opposed by any groups or individuals.

Technical, Operational &
Financial Feasibility

None identified at this stage.

Deliverability & Risk

Signal timing will have minimal cost as the option is an existing signalised junction with only timings being
changed. An eastbound queue detector will need to be properly signed as a new junction layout to avoid traffic
accidents.

Will the intervention deliver
an overall reduction in NO2
emissions to air

It is considered that this measure should have minimal impact on overall reduction in NO2

Will the intervention result in
unintended consequences or
other environmental impacts

No. There are no adverse consequences to other environmental impacts.

Will the intervention impact
equally across multiple
vehicle classes and journey
types

Yes. This scheme should have an equal impact on all vehicle classes and journey types.

Will the intervention have a
positive impact on wider
public health and inequalities

Yes. It is considered that this measure should marginally improve the wider public health.

Prosperous This option is likely to have a neutral impact to business activity and slightly influence business movements. 0

Resilient
Signalising Swyffryd Junction & eastbound queue detector requires a minimal amount of resources for
implementation. The measure is likely to assist in a more consistent flow in traffic, in comparison to the existing
queues.

+1

Healthier This option is likely to have a neutral impact to the health of the local communities. 0

More Equal This option is unlikely to have an impact on anything associated with "more equal" objective. 0

Cohesive Communities This option is not likely to influence areas that make cohesive communities and scores as neutral for this goal. 0

Vibrant Culture This option is not likely to influence areas that make a vibrant culture and scores as neutral for this goal. 0

Globally Responsible
This measure complies with the 'globally responsible' objective by reducing green house gas emissions, and
providing a positive example of how infrastructure projects can integrate and promote wider well-being

+1

Se
co

nd
ar

y
C

rit
er

ia
of

th
e

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
Fu

tu
re

Ge
ne

ra
tio

ns
7

W
el

l-
be

in
g

go
al

s
S&

C
O

th
er

Is
su

es

Page 124



Appraisal Summary Table Option No.  /  Theme. 7

Do Max - Change Signal Timings at Crumlin Junction + Signalise the A472/B4471 Swyffryd Junction with 2
lanes on A472 EB + Clean Air Zone / Low Emission Zone
Crumlin Junction,  A472 Hafodyrynys Road / B4471 Swyffryd Junction
High

2023

Yes. Road network is managed by CCBC Highways Operations Department.

Assessment

Qualitative

Air Quality

The CAZ reduces concentrations of NO2 along the corridor by an average of -14 ug/m3. The CAZ option has
a transformative effect on NO2 concentrations which reduce by 40-50% in the modelled corridor. This is
primarily due to the effect of Euro 6/VI in the fleet. The CAZ option in 2021 does comply with the annual
mean NO2 standard.

Large Beneficial (+++)

Noise

Receptors
The closest sensitive receptors are at Woodside Terrace, situated in NAPPA 619 mid-way up Hafodyrynys
Road (A472). A number of elevated receptors on Gladstone Road also overlook the A472 and a housing
estate is situated approximately 100m to the north of the A472.

Absolute Noise Levels
With the implementation of a clean air zone, noise levels at Woodside Terrace are still predicted to exceed
68dB LA10,18h. Noise levels were measured in 2014 and found to be 76dB LA10,18h at 10m distance from
the road.

Noise Impact
Similarly to option 6, short term impacts are predicted to be negligible at source, but with a slight decrease in
noise levels of less than 1dB across the network. In the long term, impacts are generally predicted to be
negligible overall. The minor beneficial impact on Crumlin road is marginally less than option 6 and receptors
are unlikely to face a significant benefit.

The design drawings indicate a new lane at the A472/B44721 Swyffryd Junction, causing the road to be
brought approximately 3.5m closer to pond villa; this could result in a slight increase in noise levels .

Neutral (0)

Landscape

The introduction of a Clean Air Zone/Low Emission Zone, alterations to signal timings at Crumlin Junction and
introducing traffic signals at the A472/B4471 Junction would see a displacement of HGV and other traffic to
alternative routes and manipulation of vehicle flows using the transit corridor. The alterations would have
neutral effect on the immediate landscape setting and wider area.

Neutral (0)

Historic Environment

There will be no appreciable impacts, either positive or negative, on any Grade II* and Grade II Listed
Buildings or their context. The option will not result in severance or loss of integrity, context or understanding
of the Listed Buildings within the historic landscape. There will be no appreciable impacts, either positive or
negative, on non-designated heritage assets or the historic landscape.

Neutral (0)

Biodiversity
This option is unlikely to lead to any significant effects on biodiversity due to the minimal landtake and
construction footprint, largely confined to existing areas of hardstanding.

Neutral (0)

Water Environment

No predicted adverse effects to the water environment.  Increase in AADT traffic flows are predicted at
Swyffrydd Junction B4471/A472 but not considered sufficient to cause notable increase of pollution risk to
receiving watercourses that receive discharge from wider catchment.

Neutral (0)

Journey Time Changes

This option similarly to the Clean Air Zone (CAZ) option, sees an immediate decrease in travel time in 2021,
with a higher reduction for 2029, with an overall positive journey time change of 269 hours. However overall,
this option is likely to include large vehicle displacement on the wider network such as the M4, A4042, A467
and the A465. The traffic management options (timings and junction improvement to Swyffryd Road) are likely
to see more benefit to the journey time overall compared to the CAZ. Therefore the do maximum option is
anticipated to have a moderate adverse impact on journey time changes.

Moderate Adverse (--)

Journey Time Reliability
Changes

This option sees a neutral benefit to the journey time reliability as the slight benefit from Option 1 (Change of
signal timings) and Option 2 (Signalisation of Swyffryd Junction) are counterbalanced by the moderate
adverse impacts of the CAZ.

Slight Adverse (-)

Transport Costs

Monetary costs paid by those travelling e.g. vehicle operating costs and tolls. Vehicle operating costs include
fuel and non-fuel operating costs. The TUBA estimates £2,286,000 of benefit. However, this benefit is a
function of improved traffic flow due to the removal of traffic from the corridor as a result of the Clean Air
Zone. Due to the limitations of the model extents, the TUBA does not calculate disbenefits associated with
the rerouting of traffic away from the Clean Air Zone. Similary, the TUBA costs do not include the charge paid
by non compliant vehicles within the Clean Air Zone. Due to this, the impacts are expected to be Large
Adverse.

 Large Adverse (---)

Accidents

An accident appraisal was carried out using accident data over a four-and-a-half-year period from the 1st
January 2014 to the 30th June 2018 (https://gov.wales/statistics-and-research/police-recorded-road-
casualties/?tab=data&lang=en). A total of 22 accidents occurred on the road network over these five years, 6
serious and 16 slight. These accidents were then filtered down to the area which will be affected by the
implementation of the signal junction. As the traffic around the junction will have a reduced speed, it is
assumed that this accident would be downgraded to a rear-end collision/shunt with the possibility that it is
removed completely from the recorded accidents on the network. This is a saving of 0.2 serious accidents
per year, costed at £243,645 (https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/ras60-average-value-of-
preventing-road-accidents) per serious accident which is a monetary saving of £54,141 per year.

Moderate Beneficial (++)

Changes in Productivity
This option is likely to affect the availability of labour markets within the area. The charging Clean Air Zone will
act as a barrier to commuters between Caerphilly and Torfaen.

Moderate Adverse (--)

Summary of key impacts

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t

Date Produced - 20/02/2019

Name of scheme:

Location:
Effectiveness:
Timescale:
Feasibility:

Objective

Ec
on

om
y

Page 125



Local Economy

A questionnaire for businesses, local to Hafodyrynys and A472 has been undertaken. Only three respondents
considered proposed charges for the CAZ as ‘about right’. Some respondents suggest also that such
changes might result in the area to be unattractive from a business point of view. This is likely to have a large
adverse impact on the local economy.

Large Adverse (---)

Land
It is anticipated that this option can be accommodated within the verge of current road system. This is not
anticipated to have any requirements for additional land.

Neutral (0)

Capital Costs The costs for this option have been calculated and include a 44% Optimism Bias  £            20,494,443.57

Revenue Costs None Neutral (0)

Journey Quality
A do maximum option which includes a clean air zone is envisaged to have an impact on the journey quality
through less exposure to NO2 levels for drivers, passengers, pedestrians and cyclists. This is likely to have a
slight beneficial impact.

Slight Beneficial (+)

Physical Activity
A do maximum option is unlikely to impact on physical activity along the study route. Therefore, it is
considered that the impact will be neutral.

Neutral (0)

Security
As the signals are not within a site of concern (associated with crime), the security impact is considered to be
neutral

Neutral (0)

Access to Employment
Introducing a Clean Air Zone/Low Emission Zone is likely to reduce the residents' access to local employment
as well as companies main transport routes being effected. The impact is considered to be large adverse.

Large Adverse (---)

Access to Services
Introducing a Clean Air Zone/Low Emission Zone is likely to reduce the residents' access to the local
services. Reduced number of trips associated with business & delivery will also see a reduction in the access
to services. The impact is considered to be large adverse.

Large Adverse (---)

Affordability
The clean air zone may result in an increase in the time necessary to save money to upgrade vehicles as a
result of paying for the CAZ charge or having to extend their general daily trips.

Slight Adverse (-)

Severance This option will not have an impact on severance Neutral (0)

VfM Value for Money

10  Years - PVB = £4,795,943   PVC = £15,549,851   NPV = -£10,753,908
60  Years - PVB = £25,911,943 PVC =  £15,549,851 NPV =   £10,362,092

   BCR
10 years  0.3
60 years 1.7

Acceptability
Given the nature of the proposals, this measure is likely to be opposed by current residents/businesses.

Technical, Operational &
Financial Feasibility

No legislation currently in place to allow a clean air zone to be implemented in Wales. This is likely to take up
to 2021 for legislation to be in place, with the JAQU guidance suggests a further 5 years implementation
period considering legislation is in place.

Deliverability & Risk

Changes to the signal timings will have a minimal cost as the option is already a signalised junction. The
diversion for vehicles away from the clean air zone is significant, if not policed properly vehicles will continue
to use the route and ignore the new diversion. Need to ensure sufficient signage is used.

Will the intervention deliver
an overall reduction in NO2
emissions to air

It is considered that signal timings should have minimal impact on overall reduction in NO2. However, with
the introduction of a CAZ there may potentially be an overall reduction to NO2, although it is likely that there
may be localised increases in NO2 elsewhere, due to the Clean Air Zone/Low Emission Zone avoidance.

Will the intervention result in
unintended consequences
or other environmental
impacts

Yes, potentially to the areas where the traffic re-routes.

Will the intervention impact
equally across multiple
vehicle classes and journey
types

Signal timing changes should have an equal impact on all vehicle classes and journey types. However, older
vehicles will be targeted as part of the CAZ measure, so the intervention will not impact equally across
vehicle classes.

Will the intervention have a
positive impact on wider
public health and inequalities

It is considered that signal timings should marginally improve the wider public health. Although there may be a
positive impact on the residents' health from a CAZ, significant social inequalities are envisaged due to a
charge on older vehicles generally owned by people with less disposable income.

Prosperous
This option may impact on the local economy of Caerphilly and local residents. -2

Resilient

A clean air zone requires notable resource for implementation. However, the measure can positively impact
on the ecosystem by removing poor quality vehicles that negatively impact on local air quality readings. The
option needs to ensure that by changing certain vehicles, it does not create a problem somewhere else. This
option would be further benefited by a government scrappage scheme or incentives to renew older vehicles.
For the traffic management options, an eastbound queue detector requires a minimal amount of resources for
implementation. The measure is likely to assist in a more consistent flow in traffic for the Swyfrydd Road
junction, in comparison to the existing queues.

+1

Healthier

Signal timings and an eastbound queue detector is likely to have a neutral impact to the health of the local
communities. A clean air zone is likely to see a reduction in poor quality vehicles, which is likely to have a
moderate benefit to air quality and subsequently to the health of the local residents.

+2

More Equal

The CAZ charge can be classified as a proportional charge system which does not take in consideration
someone’s income. The more deprived groups are likely to be impacted more than those that are more
financially secure. A measure to tackle this problem can be the introduction of interest-free loans for a limited
time to purchase compliant vehicles. This idea was put forward by the secretary of the Yorkshire Professional
Driver’s Association in response to the Leeds CAZ. This option would be further benefited by a government
scrappage scheme or incentives to renew older vehicles.

-2

Cohesive Communities

This measure is likely to negatively impact on local businesses that rely on the route for their commuting and
freight transport.

-2

Vibrant Culture This option is not likely to influence areas that make a vibrant culture and scores as neutral for this goal. 0

Globally Responsible

This measure complies with the 'globally responsible' objective by reducing green house gas emissions, and
providing a positive example of how infrastructure projects can integrate and promote wider well-being. A
clean air zone complies with the 'globally responsible' objective by reducing green house gas emissions,
developing sustainable low-carbon technologies, and providing a positive example of how infrastructure
projects can integrate and promote wider well-being

+2

Se
co

nd
ar

y
C

rit
er

ia
of

th
e

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
Fu

tu
re

G
en

er
at

io
ns

7
W

el
l-b

ei
ng

go
al

s
S&

C
O

th
er

Is
su

es

Page 126



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 98 of 114

4.11 CONCLUSION TO THE TRANSPORT CASE
This section provides a conclusion to the transport case through a summary of the air quality
modelling results and the environmental, economic and social appraisals.

4.11.1 AIR QUALITY MODELLING SUMMARY
Air quality modelling has demonstrated that Option S1 (Retiming of signals) does not bring forward
compliance or reduce the NO2 levels.

Air quality modelling results have shown that the compliance status is met for Option S3 (Demolition
of Dwellings at Woodside Terrace), although it does bring forward compliance. The study has stated
compliance will be achieved by 2022. This allows sufficient time for a public inquiry should there be
opposition from local residents. Demolition could achieve compliance sooner if CCBC are able to
dispel concerns and get residents to agree to the option. Furthermore, Option S4 (Peak Period HGV
bans), reduces concentrations of NO2 along the corridor by a few µg/m3. However, Option 4 in 2021
does not comply with the annual mean NO2 standard and is therefore an ineffective option as it does
not meet the study’s objectives. The Option S5 (CAZ) has a transformative effect on NO2

concentrations which reduce by 40-50% in the modelled corridor. However, the implementation for
the CAZ is likely to be 2023 due to the need for a further feasibility study to understand the
displacement effects of the traffic and upgrading works required. Option S3 (Demolition), is preferred
as it moves compliance forward, all the other options have little to no effect or cannot be achieved
before the compliance year of 2025 without any local intervention.

4.11.2 APPRAISAL SUMMARY
The environment section of the Appraisal Summary Tables (AST) has found that from all other sub-
sections (noise, landscape, historic environment, biodiversity and water environment), the biggest
influence is on air quality. The demolition option, CAZ and the do maximum options have scored the
highest for air quality. The HGV ban (S4) option has a slight benefit as it does reduce NO2

concentrations, but not enough to meet legal compliance. Furthermore, this option has significant
adverse impacts on the local economy. It is also anticipated that a HGV ban would displace traffic
onto unsuitable alternative routes. Further analysis would be required to determine these impacts
prior to the implementation of a HGV ban. The remaining options have scored neutral for all
environment AST sections. The only adverse impacts being associated with the demolition option,
for its impact on landscape and biodiversity. However, the impact on landscape would be temporary
and any risks would need to be mitigated throughout the project.

The economy section of the AST has found Option S2 (signalisation of Swffryd Road Junction) to
have the highest BCR over the 10 years appraisal at 15.2 and the second highest for the 60 years
appraisal at 94.6. Option S2 also scored positively for the journey time changes, journey time
reliability, transport costs and accident reduction benefits. Option S3 (Demolish Dwellings at
Woodside Terrace and realignment of the southern footpath) has been appraised as neutral across
all economic aspects except land, due to the anticipated transgression to the existing land, road or
pathway systems. The air quality modelling has quantified some monetised impacts as part of a
Cost Benefit Analysis (CBA) output which have been calculated in the BCR. The impact on the local
economy has been appraised using the pilot study questionnaire in Appendix C. This has found a
large adverse impact of Option S5 (CAZ) and Option S7 (Do maximum) which also incorporates the

Page 127



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 99 of 114

CAZ. Option S4 (Peak Period HGV bans) is also found to have a moderate adverse impact as of the
surveyed businesses’, have or distribute deliveries during the affected morning and evening peak.

The social & cultural section of the AST has found the options impact on the access to employment,
access to services and affordability sub-sections. For the other sub-sections (journey quality,
physical activity, security and severance), the score has been neutral. Option S2 (signalisation of
Swffryd Road Junction) and subsequently Option S6 (traffic management), have scored positively
for access to employment and access to services. Option S4 (Peak Period HGV bans) and Option
S5 (CAZ) have scored negatively on their impact to access to employment and services, whilst the
CAZ also influences affordability. This is due to the usual users who have high emission vehicles,
likely having to pay the charge or extend their daily trips through rerouting.

Page 128



PUBLIC

5
FINANCIAL CASE

Page 129



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 101 of 114

5 FINANCIAL CASE

5.1 OVERVIEW
The financial case informs you whether an option is affordable in the first place and the long term
financial viability of a scheme. It covers both capital and revenue requirements over the lifetime of
the project and the implications of these for the balance sheet, income and expenditure accounts for
public sector organisations’.

At Stage Two, it was considered that any of the measures identified in the Low (up to £500k) and
Medium (£500k – £2m) are affordable within the information available to inform the study, though
the measures identified with High costs will need the affordability re-evaluated when detailed
designs have been finalised.

5.2 FINANCIAL MODEL
The WelTAG appraisal guidance states that the lifetime costs of the project to include occurrence,
price, source of funding, maintenance liabilities, risk allowances, environmental, social and cultural
impacts and externalities.

5.2.1 METHODOLOGY RELATING TO THE COMPILATION OF THE ESTIMATES.
The quantities have been taken off the drawings provided by the design team.  These are General
Arrangement drawings with no details relating to the specific Highways Method of Measurement
Series.

Therefore, due to absence of data relating to the existing ground conditions, an estimated
assessment of the various series has been included, with regards to the items and quantities.

The estimate has been compiled using the items and rates taken from the South East and Mid
Wales Highways Framework 1st January 2019 – 31st December 2022, Schedule of Rates, Lot 8. In
general, the higher band rates have been used.  Rogue items have been inserted for items that are
not included within the Schedule of Rates, using rates taken from Spon’s Civil Engineering and
Highway Price Book 2018 or historic rates deemed to be appropriate for the size and nature of the
scheme.

The following comments and exclusions should be noted:

· No allowance has been made for the treatment and removal of contaminated material
· Land take and associated costs have not been assessed, unless stated within the individual

option.
· Any costs associated with Statutory Undertakers diversions and fees are excluded
· VAT is excluded
· Preparation and Supervision Costs are excluded

With respect to the cost estimate for S5 Clean Air Zone, this is a high-level estimate based on
uncertainty surrounding the option. The cost includes policy costs, infrastructure costs (enforcement
cameras etc.), cost of improving alternative routes, and risk allowance. Due to limitations of the
study it has not been possible to model the rerouting impacts of the CAZ. Further assessment work
would need to be undertaken to identify mitigation requirements on alternative routes with due
consideration for air quality exceedance, road safety, and other direct adverse impacts. Whilst it has

Page 130



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 102 of 114

not been possible to model the rerouting of traffic, it is likely that the following routes would be
impacted: the A467, A4043, A465 Heads of the Valleys Road, A4042 and the M4. These
improvements are to ensure that the measure seeks to resolve the issues identified rather than
simply displacing the impacts elsewhere.

5.3 SCHEME COSTS

At Stage Three more detailed construction costing activities have been undertaken by WSP. More
detailed scheme costs can be found in the IAR.

The costs have been based on the design drawings which are presented in Appendix D and
Appendix E.

Table 5-1 – Scheme Costs

Option
Numbe

r

Scheme Option Description Total
Capital
Costs

Total Costs with an
applied 44% Optimism

Bias

No Risk
Allowance

Optimism Bias Stage 1

1 Change Signal Timings at Crumlin Junction £
5,000

 £
 7,200

2 Signalise the A472/B4471 Swffryd Junction
and introduce an eastbound queue detector

£
338,364

 £
487,244

3 Demolish Dwellings at Woodside Terrace
and realignment of the southern footpath

£
2,993,708

 £
4,310,940

4 Peak Period HGV Bans  £
352,654

 £
507,821

5 Clean Air Zone / Low Emission Zone  £
20,000,000

 £
20,000,000 (Initial
Estimate Cost Includes
Risk)

6 Traffic Management Option - Change Signal
Timings at Crumlin Junction (Option 1) +
Signalise the A472/B4471 Swffryd Junction
with 2 lanes on A472 EB (Option 2)

 £
343,364

 £
494,444

7 Do Max - Change Signal Timings at Crumlin
Junction + Signalise the A472/B4471
Swffryd Junction with 2 lanes on A472 EB +
Clean Air Zone / Low Emission Zone

 £
20,343,364

 £
20,494,444

Page 131



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 103 of 114

5.4 RISKS
Using the TAG Unit 1.2 Scheme Costs21, an optimism bias of 44% has been applied to the capital
costs of the scheme. The optimism bias applies to the roads category. Risks for all options in Table
5-1 have been higlighted below:

S1 – No risks on deliverability, timescale and implementation costs are expected.

S2 – There are medium risks associated with the signalisation of the A472/B4471 Swffryd Junction
option. Predominantly due to the option designs created using 2D Ordnance Survey data. This
option includes a topographical survey. The design for the junction will need to be developed from
an outline design to a preliminary design. A geotechnical survey is not likely to be necessary for this
option at the current stage.

S3 – There are high risks associated with the demolition option. This option has been designed
using the topographical survey and additionally, a geotechnical survey will be necessary before the
works can begin. Prior to the geotechnical survey, a detailed environmental survey will also need to
be undertaken. In addition, the proposed compliance year of January 2022 allows for a period where
residents may oppose this measure and a public inquiry may be necessary. If resident’s concerns
can be dispelled the compliance can be achieved sooner. This option is likely to require asbestos
surveys, asbestos removal. Most of the buildings have basements which will have to be filled in with
material.

S4 – Limited risks are associated with this option. The biggest risks are associated with the
displacement of the HGVs on the local and regional highway network. No detailed surveys are
expected to be required for this option. However, further assessment work is required.

S5 – Significant high risk. Further feasibility study required. Potential upgrading works may result
from this on alternative routes and assessment required for behavioural change.

S6 -  There are medium risks associated with this option.

S7 - This do maximum option requires a geotechnical survey before the designs can be finalised.
The CAZ it is expected to have a significant high risk.

All identified risks have been documented in the risk registers which are presented within the IAR.

21TAG Unit A1.2 Scheme Costs Available from:
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/625380/TAG_unit_a
1.2_cost_estimation_jul17.pdf

Page 132



PUBLIC

6
COMMERCIAL CASE

Page 133



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 105 of 114

6 COMMERCIAL CASE

6.1 OVERVIEW
The commercial case ‘tells you if a scheme will be commercially viable, whether it is going to be
possible to procure the scheme and then to continue it in to the future’. It includes the commercial
and contractual means by which the proposals could be delivered.

The areas that have been are included:

¡ Output based Specification
¡ Procurement strategy
¡ Payment mechanisms (related to funding and associated issues to developing and implementing

the measures)
¡ Risk Allocation & Transfer (related to the measures)

6.1.1 OUTPUT BASED SPECIFICATION
The Transport Case outlines potential measures which could be implemented at Hafodyrynys to
accelerate compliance with the Ambient Air Quality Directive and achieve the study objectives.
These will be assessed through the study to identify any interdependencies and efficiencies which
can be achieved by grouping options together in packages.  A preferred measure / basket of
measures for delivery will be identified at the Full Business Case stage.

6.1.2 PROCUREMENT STRATEGY
Any procurement strategy developed will follow and comply with Caerphilly County Borough
Council’s (CCBC) agreed procurement processes, the Council’s Standing Orders for Contracts
Guidance and any national or European legislation relevant at the time of tendering.

CCBC has a team within the Engineering Projects Group who are frequent engineering and
construction clients, with experience in delivering major projects, primarily via partnering
arrangements and within existing framework agreements.

Adopting a collaborative approach to procurement and building on existing relationships, the
strategy will be used to engage early with Framework Contractors where appropriate to use their
expertise in relation to engineering solutions and their intelligence in relation to the local supply
chain.  Consideration will also be given as to how we can embed the requirements of the Well Being
of Future Generations Act, with a focus on the development of the local supply chain, creating and
sustaining employment and training opportunities throughout the delivery of the proposal.

The options appraisal looked at seven measures within the Stage Three report (already discussed
within the document), some as individual and some as a package of measures.  The options
appraisal has concluded that demolition of the properties on the south side of Hafodyrynys Road
(namely 1-20 Woodside Terrace, 1 & 2 Woodside Shops and Yr Adfa and realignment of the
footpath) is the measure that can achieve compliance in the ‘shortest possible time’.

The delivery of the proposed demolition works along Hafodyrynys Road will require evaluation and
management of risk, finance and performance.  By utilising Framework Contractors, there is an

Page 134



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 106 of 114

opportunity to build on lessons learned from previous projects and benefit from a process of
continuous improvement.

There are essentially two procurement routes available for consideration and Caerphilly Council will
consider, where appropriate the use of technical advisors to assist in the scheme specification,
tendering and management.

These two main procurement routes are;

¡ Full tender process under Band C of the Council’s Standing Orders for Contracts
¡ Utilising the South East & Mid Wales Highways Framework

The South East & Mid Wales Highways Framework has already been through a tender process and
the framework is split in to lots, which has allocated contractors assigned to each of those lots.

The Authority chooses the lot which best fits the description and price of the proposed scheme, the
Authority then has to run a mini competition with the contractors assigned to that lot.  There is
guidance given on how this should be done and timescales to allow for responses etc.  Tendering
through the framework document would be a far quicker process than the Council’s Standing Orders
for Contracts.

The Authority would utilise its Engineering Projects Group to help write the specification for the
required works prior to the mini competition process and project manage the implementation phase.

6.1.3 PAYMENT MECHANISMS
Funding for the proposals at Hafodyrynys is being supplied by Welsh Government via a Clean Air
Fund. Details as to how Caerphilly and Welsh Government intend to make payments with respect to
proposed products and services will be developed on completion of the final design.

6.1.4 RISK ALLOCATION & TRANSFER
It is not considered possible at this stage to determine how the risks of the proposal might be
apportioned between Caerphilly and any Contractor.  However, it is expected the general principle
will be to ensure that risks should be passed to the party best able to manage them, subject to Value
for money (VfM).

Under the terms of the South East & Mid Wales Highways Framework it is recommended that a
scheme specific register is prepared and priced for each contract at pre-tender preparation stage.
The pre-tender estimate and the risk allowance should be used to determine both the Contracting
Authority’s budget for the scheme and to determine the appropriate lot. In the case of Hafodyrynys,
the approximate costs (with contingency) equates to £4.3m to demolish the properties make safe
the road and landscape the area.

Page 135



PUBLIC

7
MANAGEMENT CASE

Page 136



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 108 of 114

7 MANAGEMENT CASE

7.1 SUMMARY OF MANAGEMENT CASE FROM STAGE ONE AND TWO
The management case tells you if an option is achievable. This case ‘covers the delivery
arrangements for the project and then its management during its life time. It covers the
arrangements for the procurement, construction and on-going operation of the intervention, details
of the monitoring arrangements and the undertaking of the evaluation plan. The management case
should embed the five ways of working.

The WelTAG Stage One and Two reports outlined:

¡ Project Planning – Governance, organisational Structure
¡ Key Project Parties & Roles
¡ Identified the Review Group
¡ Communications & Stakeholder Management Plan

Stage Two highlighted that the following assessments had to be included in the WelTAG Stage
Three:

¡ Preliminary scheme drawings
¡ Preliminary cost estimates
¡ Assessment of Technical, Operational and Financial Feasibility, and Deliverability and Risk
¡ Qualitative Value for Money assessment
¡ Detailed modelling of impacts – both traffic modelling and emissions/dispersion modelling.

7.2 DELIVERABILITY
Key milestones and delivery dates. Some consideration has been given to medium and short-term
measures but with no exact timelines at Stage One and Two of the WelTAG.

7.3 KEY PROJECT PARTIES & ROLES
¡ Caerphilly County Borough Council (CCBC)

Ultimate client commissioning the study and overseeing delivery.
¡ Welsh Government (WG)

Directing CCBC in the delivery of this study.
¡ RICARDO / WSP

Project Consultants, delivering the study.
¡ Air Quality Independent Review Panel

Appointed by Welsh Government

7.4 REVIEW GROUP
A Review Group has been set up to guide the WelTAG process and have met regularly to discuss the
project.

This group will take on the role of the Review Group and its members are as follows:

¡ Caerphilly County Borough Council
¡ Welsh Government

Page 137



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 109 of 114

¡ Third party consultants (Ricardo / WSP at Stage One, Two and Three)

7.5 MONITORING AND EVALUATION PLAN
As per the five stages of WelTAG, it will be critical to monitor the impacts of the measures during
and post implementation. The monitoring of outcomes during implementation in Stage Four will
allow for adjustments to be made, if required, to realise the benefits of the intervention and mitigate
any unforeseen adverse impacts. The longer-term evaluation provided in Stage Five covers both the
process of delivering the scheme and the outcomes achieved. This makes WelTAG a learning
process and future WelTAG appraisals will benefit from the sharing of experience gained elsewhere.

It is recognised that there is uncertainty in the modelling which has been undertaken. As such,
should compliance on the A472 be delayed beyond current projections. It may be necessary to
implement other measures mentioned in this report to ensure compliance with the limit values in the
shortest time possible.

Figure 7-1 – Existing NO2 monitor locations on the A472 Woodside Terrace

7.5.1 AIR QUALITY MONITORING
Air quality monitoring along the A472 Woodside Terrace comprise a combination of reference and
indicative methods.

Page 138



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 110 of 114

The reference method for the measurement of nitrogen dioxide and oxides of nitrogen is that
described in EN 14211:2005 ‘Ambient air quality — Standard method for the measurement of the
concentration of nitrogen dioxide and nitrogen monoxide by chemiluminescence.’

Reference method monitoring will be undertaken at a minimum of one location within the study
corridor, with the recommended location being shown in Figure 7-1. This location has been selected
because it meets the criteria in Annex III of the Directive, which specifically notes that:

Sampling should be directed at locations where the highest concentrations occur to which the
population is likely to be directly or indirectly exposed for a period which is significant in relation to
the averaging period of the limit value (Para B.1a)

For all pollutants, traffic-orientated sampling probes shall be at least 25 m from the edge of major
junctions and no more than 10 m from the kerbside (Para C)

The final choice for the reference monitoring location will need to take account of Health and Safety
and provision of infrastructure.

In addition to the reference monitoring, it is recommended that indicative diffusion tube monitoring is
continued. The existing monitoring locations are provided in Figure 7-1.

7.5.2 TRAFFIC MONITORING
This study has highlighted the intrinsic link between air quality and traffic volumes, speeds and fleet
mix. As such, it is recommended that the air quality monitoring is supplemented with either long term
or regular short-term traffic monitoring to better understand any observed change in air quality. The
following surveys should be considered:

Classified Link (Volume) Counts

This would require at least 1 full week (24 hours a day) of data for a DMRB neutral period. This data
would be used to infer changes in Annual Average Daily Traffic (AADT) over time. Long term
permanent count site data would be preferable so that the data would not need to be corrected for
seasonality and the impacts of any incidents on the network could be fully understood.

Speed Data

Traffic speeds should be monitored post implementation to identify the real impacts of a change in
speed limit and the speed data should be used to inform any decision on the requirement for and
nature of enforcement. INRIX traffic data could be used to monitor speeds post implementation of
measures though where possible should be backed up with survey data. Whilst undertaking surveys
would potentially provide more robust data (larger sample size), it will be important to consider
whether the survey is likely to impact upon typical driver behaviour and could underestimate real
speeds on the corridors.

Automatic Number Plate Recognition

In addition to the classified link count data, there would be significant benefit in undertaking ANPR
surveys. This data can be linked back to the DVLA database to determine not only vehicle
classification, but also emission standards of vehicles. The data could be used to identify the rate of
change of the fleet towards cleaner, newer, low emissions vehicles and could be used to evidence
the need for additional measures to accelerate the rate of change, e.g. a scrappage scheme.

Page 139



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 111 of 114

The monitoring locations on the northern side of the A472 will remain post implementation of the
preferred measure (S3-Demolition). However, the location of the continuous monitor will need
reviewing because the area of exposure will change on completion of the scheme. Any newly
proposed location(s) for the monitor will be agreed with Welsh Government (WG).

Page 140



PUBLIC

8
SUMMARY AND NEXT STEPS

Page 141



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 113 of 114

8 SUMMARY AND NEXT STEPS

8.1 OVERVIEW
This WelTAG Stage Three report has considered the ‘preferred options’ brought forward from Stage
Two in greater detail. Detailed traffic modelling has been undertaken for the options under
consideration. The outputs of the traffic model have been used to inform robust air quality modelling
to identify the potential reductions in NO2 resulting from each option. In addition to this, the wider
impacts of each option have been appraised against the WelTAG aspects of well-being. Value for
Money assessments have also been undertaken, though this has not influenced the identification of
measures taken forward for implementation.

8.2 AIR QUALITY BENEFITS
Each of the options have been modelled to identify their potential impacts on NO2 concentrations.
The results of this modelling can be summarised as follows:

Reference Measure Description Summary of Impacts

1 Change Signal Timings at
Crumlin Junction

This option has imperceptible impacts on NO2

concentrations.

2 Signalise the A472/B4471
Swffryd Junction

This option has imperceptible impacts on NO2

concentrations. This option has significant Transport
Economic Efficiency (TEE) benefits associated with
improving eastbound traffic flow during the morning peak
period.

3 Demolish Dwellings at Woodside
Terrace and realignment of the
southern footpath

This option does not reduce emissions overall though
does remove the receptor and reduce NO2 concentrations
along the study corridor therefore bringing forward
compliance (to 2022) as per the objective.

4 Peak Period HGV Bans This option results in minor reductions in NO2

concentrations though would have significant adverse
impacts on the local economy and may potentially
displace HGV traffic through other areas and create
additional Air Quality Management Areas and/or unsafe
routes.

5 Clean Air Zone / Low Emission
Zone

This option would result in significant reductions in NO2

concentrations in the implementation year of 2023 This
option has significant adverse impacts on the local
economy, road users and could potentially displace traffic
through other areas and create additional Air Quality
Management Areas and/or unsafe routes. The HIA and
Distributional Analysis has identified unacceptable
adverse impacts resulting from this option given the lack
of alternate route choice on this part of the local highway
network.

Page 142



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70054924 June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council Page 114 of 114

Reference Measure Description Summary of Impacts

6 Traffic Management Option
(Changing Signal Timings at
Crumlin Junction & Signalise the
A472/B4471 Swffryd Junction

This option has imperceptible impacts on NO2

concentrations.

7 Do Maximum Option (Changing
Signal Timings at Crumlin
Junction & Signalise the
A472/B4471 Swffryd Junction &
Clean Air Zone / Low Emission
Zone)

This option would result in significant reductions in NO2

concentrations in the implementation year of 2023. These
benefits are primarily due to the CAZ within this option
package. This option has significant adverse impacts on
the local economy, road users and could potentially
displace traffic through other Air Quality Management
Areas and/or unsafe routes. The HIA and Distributional
Analysis has identified unacceptable adverse impacts
resulting from this option given the lack of alternate route
choice on this part of the local highway network.

8.3 MEASURES FOR IMPLEMENTATION
The WelTAG Stage Three assessment has demonstrated that Option S3 (Demolish Dwellings at
Woodside Terrace and realignment of the southern footpath) would bring forward compliance in the
shortest possible time. On this basis, this Stage Report concludes that this measure should be taken
forward for implementation. Some risks have been identified which may impact on the
implementation timeframe of this option, though despite these risks, this option would still bring
forward compliance in the shortest possible time in line with the Air Quality Directive.

Whilst the modelling has demonstrated that Option S3 (Demolish Dwellings at Woodside Terrace
and realignment of the southern footpath) would bring forward compliance in the shortest possible
time, consideration needs to be given to the needs to reduce exposure in the short term. As such
the air quality campaign is also proposed for implementation to compliment the demolition option as
this can be delivered quickly. Option S1 (Change Signal Timings at Crumlin Junction) does not
achieve any tangible benefits in air quality despite being able to be delivered quickly, therefore this
measure is not proposed to be taken forward for implementation.

8.4 NEXT STEPS
To progress with Option S3 (Demolish Dwellings at Woodside Terrace and realignment of the
southern footpath), it will be necessary to further develop the design. To inform this a topographical
survey of the A472 corridor (Crumlin Junction to Swffryd Junction) has been undertaken. This
survey has been used to update the outline design drawing of the preferred option (Appendix D) to
preliminary design, which is presented within Appendix E. Additional surveys are currently being
specified, this will include a geotechnical survey and environmental surveys. Upon receipt of all
required survey information, detailed design drawings will be prepared for the preferred option. This
will also include considerations for the requirements for traffic management during the construction
phase. The cost estimates will be updated once the detailed design has been completed. It is
anticipated that the completion of detailed design will reduce the risks which have been identified for
this option and allow for robust costs and implementation timeframes to be identified.

Page 143



Public

SUMMARY OF CHANGES TO 2017
WELTAG GUIDANCE

Page 144



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT WSP
Project No.: 70054924 | Our Ref No.: June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council

WELTAG 2017 GUIDANCE UPDATE

The main changes in the final WelTAG 2017 relative to the Consultation Draft used for Stage One and Two
are as follows:

¡ The application of the five ways of working to the consideration of possible solutions;
¡ A consideration of how solutions enable public bodies to maximise their contribution to each of

the seven national well-being goals: A prosperous Wales, a resilient Wales, a healthier Wales, a
more equal Wales, a Wales of cohesive communities, a Wales of vibrant culture and Welsh
language, and a globally responsible Wales.

¡ A commitment towards the four aspects of well-being in Wales: economic, social, environmental
and cultural; and

¡ A move from Delivery Case to Management Case.

WelTAG 2017 combines the principles of the HM Treasury Green Book and WG’s Five Case Model for Better
Business Cases, represented by the five WelTAG Stage Reports. The 2017 guidance also differs from the
previous consultation version wherein the five-case business model now more closely reflects the model
adopted by the DfT WebTAG guidance.
The contents of each Stage Report must be presented using the structure of the Five Cases Model as follows:

¡ Strategic case: the case for change, fit with other policies and objectives
¡ Transport case: does the proposal offer good public value for money and maximise contribution

to the well-being goals?
¡ Financial case: is the proposed spend affordable?
¡ Commercial case: how can the scheme be procured? Is it commercially viable?
¡ Management case: is the scheme achievable? Can it be delivered?

Whilst WelTAG provides a fixed framework for appraisal, the guidance acknowledges that the level of detail
provided in the WelTAG reports should be proportionate to the impacts under consideration and using the five
ways of working set out in the Well-being of Future Generations Act. All major impacts and issues that could
have a significant influence on delivery should be presented, but the level of detail in any analytical work
should be proportionate to the scale and significance of the impact and sufficiently accurate for the decisions
that need to be made.
The WelTAG Guidance has also been revised to reflect the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act,
which strives to improve the social, economic, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales and identifies
seven well-being goals:
A prosperous Wales: An innovative, productive and low carbon society which recognises the limits of the
global environment and therefore uses resources efficiently and proportionately (including acting on climate
change); and which develops a skilled and well-educated population in an economy which generates wealth
and provides employment opportunities, allowing people to take advantage of the wealth generated through
securing decent work.
A resilient Wales: A nation which maintains and enhances a biodiverse natural environment with healthy
functioning ecosystems that support social, economic and ecological resilience and the capacity to adapt to
change (for example climate change).
A healthier Wales: A society in which people’s physical and mental well-being is maximised and in which
choices and behaviours that benefit future health are understood.
A more equal Wales: A society that enables people to fulfil their potential no matter what their background or
circumstances (including their socio-economic background and circumstances).
A Wales of cohesive communities: Attractive, viable, safe and well-connected communities.

Page 145



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT WSP
Project No.: 70054924 | Our Ref No.: June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council

A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language: A society that promotes and protects culture,
heritage and the Welsh language, and which encourages people to participate in the arts, and sports and
recreation.

A globally responsible Wales: A nation which, when doing anything to improve the economic, social,
environmental and cultural well-being of Wales, takes account of whether doing such a thing may make a
positive contribution to global well-being.

Page 146



Public

PUBLIC CONSULTATION REPORT

Page 147



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT WSP
Project No.: 70054924 | Our Ref No.: June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council

Page 148



1

Caerphilly County Borough Council
WelTAG Stage 3 Feasibility Study

Consultation Summary Report

Introduction

The European Union Ambient Air Quality Directive (2008/50/EC) sets legally binding limits for
concentrations of certain air pollutants in outdoor air termed ‘limit values’. The A472, Hafod-yr-Ynys
Road exceeds the limit value for nitrogen dioxide (NO2) and Caerphilly County Borough Council is
investigating measures to bring forward reductions in NO2 to ensure compliance with the Ambient Air
Quality Directive in the shortest possible time.

A feasibility study has predicted that a ‘Do Minimum’ scenario, which involves public awareness
raising and educational campaigns would achieve compliance by 2025.  The study also assessed a
number of options and concluded that demolition of the houses at 1-20 Woodside Terrace to include
1&2 Woodside Shops and Yr Adfa will achieve compliance with the air quality limit values in the
shortest possible time; by 2022.

Caerphilly Council’s Cabinet have considered the findings from the study. Following deliberations
regarding the potential impact on the mental health and well-being of the residents, together with
the potential to create financial hardship; the Cabinet agreed to consult on the ‘Do Minimum’ option
as the preferred option for securing compliance with the Air Quality Directive. In addition, the Council
have lobbied Welsh Government for additional financial support, in order to prevent those affected
residents being forced into financial hardship in the event that the demolition option is subsequently
required.

Following the Cabinet Decision and the outcome of the Feasibility Study, a 10 week Public
Consultation commenced on Tuesday 02 April to allow people to submit their views on the draft
version of the Stage 3 Feasibility Study Report  prior to the submission of the final report to Welsh
Government on 30 June 2019.

Page 149



2

Method

All stakeholders have been sign posted to the consultation by social media, with additional e-mails
and written correspondence being sent to key stakeholders / groups to maximise the number of
responses received during the consultation period.

Engagement
Key engagement mechanisms included:

· Online - via the CCBC Website, social media (including Facebook and Twitter)
· E-mails and written correspondence (letters to local residents)
· Paper Questionnaires – hand delivered to residents directly affected by the outcome of the

feasibility study.
·

Social Media
The consultation was promoted via social media at the outset of the consultation period with
occasional social media reminders thereafter.

Survey
The questionnaire was designed to seek residents, stakeholder and visitors views on

· The Cabinet decision to support ‘Do minimum’ as a preferred option whilst lobbying Welsh
Government for additional  funding should the demolition option be pursued, and;

· The outcome of the WelTAG Stage 3 Feasibility Study to demolish 23 properties to the
Southern side of the A472.

Respondents were asked whether they agreed or disagreed in relation to each of the options set out
for delivering compliance with the European Union Ambient Air Quality Directive (2008/50/EC) in the
‘shortest possible time’. There was also provision within the questionnaire to explain why they
agreed/disagreed with any of the options put forward and to note any equality implications.

Survey Findings
A total of 54 responses were received and have been included in this analysis.  Not all respondents
answered every question and where the number of responses to a question is lower,  this figure is
noted in brackets next to the heading of the relevant question.

Respondent Profile (n=54)
A profile of respondents provides context for an analysis of the responses received.

Page 150



3

As shown in Graph 1, the largest proportion (31) of those who responded indicated that they were
residents living in the borough.  In addition 12 respondents indicated that they are residents of 1-20
Woodside Terrace, 1&2 Woodside Shops and Yr Adfa.  Under the ‘other’ category 4 people indicated
that they were either friends or relatives of those living in Woodside Terrace.

Graph 1:  Interest in Consultation (n=54)

Gender (n= 54)
Of those who gave a response to this question, 25 were female and 29 were male.

12

31

3

0

0

1

1

6

A resident living in 1-20 Woodside Terrace,1-2…

A resident of CCBC not living in 1-20 Woodside…

A resident of a neighbouring Local Authority

An elected member

Representing a local group organisation

As someone who works in Caerphilly county borough

As a local business person

Other

Page 151



4

Age Groups (n=53)

As shown in Graph 2, the largest proportion of respondents were aged 50 and over.

Equalities (n=53)

53 of the respondents felt that their responses to the public consultation was not influenced
positively or negatively by any of the characteristics listed within Q9 of the questionnaire.  However,
1 respondent commented that their answer was influenced by the fact that he/she has 3 small
children who all depend on her.

Options Appraisal

Feasibility Study (n=52)

It can be seen from Graph 3 below that there is a divide of opinion in relation to the feasibility
outcome.  Of the 52 respondents who answered the question, 22 people agreed with the outcome of
the feasibility study i.e. to demolish the properties.  However, 30 people disagreed with this option.

1

6

17

22

7

0

5

10

15

20

25

16-25 Years 26-35 Years 36-50 Years 50-64 Years 65 Years and over

Page 152



5

Graph 3: Do you agree or disagree with the outcome of the Hafod-Yr-Ynys Air Quality Feasibility
Study WelTAG Stage 3 Report?  (n =52)

Respondents were additionally asked to give reasons why they agreed/disagreed with the feasibility
study.  Whilst the figures above suggest that 30 respondents disagreed with demolition, the
comments that accompanied this answer did not always appear consistent with this view.

Key themes in support of the feasibility outcome include:

· Demolition is the only option that will bring about compliance with the EU Directive
· Concerns for the impact on residents, in particular health concerns
· Concern that the air quality situation will worsen over years at a quicker rate than green

technology
· Increased housing development within the area will further add to air quality issues
· That improvements to air quality need to be made elsewhere not just at Woodside Terrace
· Severe uncertainty around predictions in the reduction of NO2 to reach compliance by 2025.
· In the absence of restricting traffic type and volume, demolition is the only other option.
· Road Safety concerns – volume of traffic
· The area is extremely dilapidated

Key themes to emerge in disagreement with the feasibility outcome include:

· Improvements to air quality can be made in other ways e.g. restricting traffic type and volume
and improving the road network to reduce congestion

· Unreasonable to offer 10% of market value to residents.
· Re-utilise alternate traffic route through Swffryd (B4471) seen as a better option to relieve

issue.

30

22

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35

Disagree

Agree

Number of Respondents

Page 153



6

· Impact on residents has not been fully considered.
· Ambiguity surrounding reliance on vehicular emission modelling outcomes.
· No faith in assumption that residents on other side of the road aren’t affected.
· The health impact assessment (in relation to demolition) does not take into consideration the

psychological impacts on residents.
· Residents need safer environment to live in. Volume of traffic makes it an unhealthy place to

live.
· Traffic flows are underestimated considerably.
· Demolition is the only option!

Do minimum (n=53)

In relation to the ‘Do minimum’ option, 49 people disagreed with the CCBC cabinet proposal and 4 of
the respondents agreed. One respondent did not answer.

Graph 4: Do you agree or disagree with the proposal that ‘Do minimum’ is the preferred option?
(n=53)

Key themes in support of the ‘Do minimum’ option included:

· Residents in properties included in the demolition proposal not wishing to leave their home
· Tackling the traffic emissions by taking the higher pollution vehicles off the roads and

replacing with greener equivalents should be the priority of Government

49

4

0 10 20 30 40 50 60

Disagree

Agree

Number of Respondents

Page 154



7

Key themes in disagreement with the ‘Do minimum’ option included:

· Do minimum is not an option as it is not compliant with EU directive
· ‘Do minimum’ does not feature in the content of the feasibility study and is not an option
· ‘Do minimum’ will have a detrimental effect on the lives of the residents

o This is a public health issue - everything possible should be done to reduce the impact
on people’s health

· Air quality will worsen if nothing is done to address the issues
· Traffic and congestion is an ongoing issue in the area and needs to be resolved

Discussion

Upon review of the data, it is apparent that the majority of people who responded to the question in
relation to the feasibility study disagreed with the outcome of the report (30/54). Out of the
respondents who disagreed, respondents further commented on the reasoning for their choice. For
those who disagreed with the conclusions in the feasibility study (demolition), comments provided
suggest that respondents felt that demolition will not encourage reductions in traffic emissions
borough wide and feel that this is something that should be further considered.

Others felt that the air quality issues at Hafodyrynys could be effectively managed/reduced by other
means such as further road infrastructure improvements, i.e. alternative traffic routes/diversions,
construction of a by-pass to name a few. However, it should be noted that options such as a bypass
which would offer an alternative route have been considered in earlier stages of the study and have
been ruled out based on the timescales it would take to deliver the option.

Some residents living in the nearby vicinity felt that their properties should be included within the
demolition proposal, however, real time data and modelling outcomes conclude that properties on
the north side of the A472 are currently in compliance with the air quality limit value for NO2 and
demolition of the properties on the south side of the A472, will reduce the concentrations of nitrogen
dioxide within the area even further.  For this reason, the properties on the north side of the A472 or
properties in the wider vicinity have not been included within the demolition proposal.

Some of the comments provided in support of the disagreement with the feasibility outcomes (little
faith in modelling methodology and the under representation of traffic flows) still acknowledged that
demolition of the properties is an option to resolve the issue going forward, not only to reduce the
air quality issues within the area but also for road safety purposes.

Of those people who agreed with the feasibility outcome (22), respondents chose to provide further
justification for their answers. Respondents raised concerns for the resident’s health and prolonged
suffering of those living at the properties. Respondents also chose to mention that it was the option
that would achieve compliance with the EU directive and acknowledge that demolition should not
leave residents in financial hardship should the option be implemented.

Page 155



8

Of those who wished to elaborate on their reasoning for disagreeing with ‘Do minimum’ it was felt
that CCBC were not taking the air quality, or health of the residents seriously.

One respondent felt that ‘Do minimum would be acceptable as an ‘interim’ option prior to working
on a long-term resolution, whilst other respondents felt the Local Authority were absolving their
responsibility to address the issue at hand.

Although 22 of 52 respondents agreed with demolition, a majority (49/53 respondents) disagreed
with the do minimum option.  In addition, whilst there are mixed views relating to demolition, it
would appear that a number of respondents did feel that demolition would be a better option going
forward than do minimum.

Page 156



9

Annex 1

· Caerphilly 50+ Forum
· Coleg Gwent
· Department for Work and Pensions
· Aneurin Bevan University Health Board
· Gwent Police
· Gwent Association of Voluntary Organisations
· Keep Wales Tidy
· Groundwork Wales
· Charter Housing
· Smart Money Credit Union
· Age Cymru Gwent
· Bargoed YMCA
· Caerphilly Local Access Forum
· South Wales Fire & Rescue Service
· Action for Children
· Disability CanDo Organisations
· Coleg y Cymoedd
· Natural Resources Wales
· Alzheimer’s Society
· Caerphilly People First
· Gwalia Housing Association
· Working Links
· Workers Education Association
· Islwyn Credit Union
· Caerphilly & Blaenau Gwent Citizen’s Advice Bureau
· Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Gwent
· Public Health Wales
· Tabernacle Baptist Church, Newbridge
· Gwent Wildlife Trust
· United Welsh Housing Association
· Gofal
· Llamau
· Menter Iaith Caerffili
· Barnardos
· Wales Cooperative Centre
· Home Start Caerphilly Borough
· Coalfields Regeneration Trust
· St Gwladys’ Church, Bargoed
· Pobl Group
· BAG Credit Union
· Business in the Community
· Stroke Association
· Sight Cymru
· Hafodyrynys Village Hall Association
· Pontymister Athletic Bowls Club

Page 157



10

· Argoed Community Council
· Rhymney Valley Athletics Club
· Risca Town Council
· Blackwood Golf Club
· The Royal British Legion – Blackwood & District
· Blackwood Mini & Junior Rugby Club
· Cwmcarn OAP Hall & Welfare Association
· Trinant Association Football Club
· Little Peeps Playgroup
· Risca Chamber of Trade
· Pontllanfraith Karate Club
· Risca Town Council
· 1st Cefn Fforest Beavers and Clubs
· Cwmcarn Residents & Community Association
· Oakdale Rugby Club
· Pengam Boys & Girls Club
· Newbridge Methodist Church
· Pontllanfraith WI
· Trinant Café
· Blackwood & District Heritage Association
· Blackwood Town Council
· Rotary Club of Pontllanfraith
· Newbridge & District Chamber of Trade
· Cwmfelinfach Community Centre
· Britannia Community House
· Hollybush Community Centre
· Pontllanfraith Children’s Contact Centre
· Mount Pleasant Baptist Church, Blackwood
· Cwmcarn Gymnastics/Sports Acrobatics Club
· Agape Community Church Ty Sign
· Argoed Baptist Church
· Newbridge Memo
· Blackwood Little Theatre
· Oakdale Photographic Society
· Cwmcarn Angling Association
· The Royal British Legion – Newbridge Branch
· New Life Christian Church, Abercarn
· 277 (Blackwood) Squadron Air Training Corps
· Moriah Baptist Church and The Big Conversation Risca
· Risca East Community Council
· Oakdale Community Partnership
· Mynyddislwyn Male Choir
· Blackwood Musical Theatre Socetiy
· Risca Town Council
· SHADE
· Cwmfelinfach Residents’ Association
· Oxford House Industrial History Society

Page 158



11

· Phoenix Community Transport
· Cylch Meithrin Cwm Gwyddon
· Crumlin Navigation Colliery Project
· Blackwood & District Amateur Radio Society
· Aber Valley Community Council
· Risca Town Community Council
· Llanbradach and Pwllypant Community Council
· Draethen, Waterloo and Rudry Community Council
· New Tredegar Community Council
· Darran Valley Community Council
· Rhymney Community Council
· Argoed Community Council
· Risca East Community Council
· Penyrheol, Trecenydd and Energlyn Community Council
· Bargoed Town Council
· CCBC Inclusion Services
· Blackwood Town Council
· Bedwas, Trethomas and Machen Community Council
· Caerphilly Town Council
· Maesycwmmer Community Council
· Nelson Community Council
· Gelligaer Community Council
· Road Haulage Association
· Freight Transport Association

Page 159



12

Annex 2

Page 160



13
Page 161



14
Page 162



15

Annex 3

It should be noted that some abusive comments have been taken out of the responses. The
comments presented have been tabulated in the sections that the respondents chose to do so upon
submission of the individual survey responses. Therefore, some comments may seem inconsistent
with the initial selection of the agree/disagree columns for both the Feasibility Study Outcome and
‘Do Minimum’ options.

Feasibility Study

Agree
Air quality is a serious issue for residents of this street and those close by. No doubt the issue will
worsen over the coming years before technology such as electric cars catch up. With new houses

being built in Caerphilly Borough this issue will no doubt get worse.

The residents cannot be allowed to continue to suffer in the way that they are.

Definite improvements need to be made not just for the residents of Woodside houses but also
the commuters who are continually caught in the jams in this area. HGV vehicles cause a big issue

due to their inability to climb Hafodyrynys hill at pace, causing added congestion and air quality
issues.  A restriction on such vehicles as well as a better traffic management plan at the Swffryd

and Crumlin junction I would anticipate to allow sufficient improvements to the residents
allowing them to remain in their residence and improving congestion at peak times. Similar

restrictions as implemented on Kendon Hill should be considered as this route has seen mass
improvements since HGV restrictions have been put in place.

Definite improvements need to be made not just for the residents of Woodside houses but also
the commuters who are continually caught in the jams in this area. HGV vehicles cause a big issue

due to their inability to climb Hafodyrynys hill at pace, causing added congestion and air quality
issues.  A restriction on such vehicles as well as a better traffic management plan at the Swffryd

and Crumlin junction I would anticipate to allow sufficient improvements to the residents
allowing them to remain in their residence and improving congestion at peak times. Similar

restrictions as implemented on Kendon Hill should be considered as this route has seen mass
improvements since HGV restrictions have been put in place.

I agree that demolition is the only option that will bring compliance in the shortest possible time
but the currently offered remuneration package of market value plus 10% is unreasonable leaving

residents in financial hardship. A similar property in a cleaner area within the surrounding area
could not be acquired for this figure - it is unreasonable to expect the residents to relocate to a
smaller property or have to increase their borrowing The current value is adversely affected by

the pollution issue & is therefore not a true reflection of the property value.    I do not agree that
there is sufficient evidence that levels will be bet by 2025.

It works
I agree because I am concerned about my health.

If the council are not going to consider restricting traffic type and volume then the only option is
purchase/demolition of the properties.

I agree that we need the air quality to improve quickly. So the do minimum is not the best option.

Page 163



16

We agree with the proposed next steps of proceeding with the demolition, because as outlined in
the report all other options either fail to improve air quality to an acceptable level or leave us

exposed to an unacceptable level of pollution for a prolonged period of time. Neither of which we
find acceptable as three members of the household have developed respiratory problems since

living at the address.

This street is a highly polluted area with people still living in it and the view of the council to do
nothing is in affect helping to shorten the lives of these residents.

Overall pollution levels will decrease with the removal of the properties, which has been
highlighted in the study and modelling.  This will have the desired effect quickly, although the
financial implications for residents should be seriously considered.  This situation has greatly

reduced the value of the properties and homeowners will need extra funding to help purchase a
new home.

Disagree
The area is extremely dilapidated and should be made the subject of a compulsory purchase

order then demolished. The entire design of having such a high volume road next to it is
ridiculous

Air quality is a serious issue for residents of this street and those close by. No doubt the issue will
worsen over the coming years before technology such as electric cars catch up. With new houses
being built  in Caerphilly Borough this issue will no doubt get worse. Traffic and congestion is an

ongoing issue in the area and needs to be resolved.

No one should have to suffer those poor air conditions. I feel for the people living there. Surely
the council could offer them alternate accommodation.

The houses are no longer habitable given the findings of the report. Doing the minimum should
never be the default option when talking about someone’s health. The Council should be leading
and demonstrating that they care about the health of its residents. The Council should be issuing
CPOs on all the owners and giving them appropriate compensation to find suitable comparable

accommodation. All moving and legal feedback should also be covered.   Alternatively,
compensate the residents but allow them to keep their owns but  p

A more general review of the promoted population/house building policies should be
undertaken. Caerphilly basin, as the term "basin" suggests, is topographically highly vulnerable to

the pollution resulting from traffic volumes. see http://en-gb.topographic-
map.com/places/Caerphilly-139466/ which clearly shows the "lie of the land".  An extract from

Air-Quality.org.uk states: "Concentrations of pollutants can be greater in valleys than for areas of
higher ground. This is because, under certain weather conditions, pollutants...

The Health of the residents MUST take president, Do nothing approach violates the human rights
to clean air quality of the residents in the streets, Hoping that Lorries wagons and cars ALL
become Euro 5 compliant is pipe dream in the 5 year time frame and more and more cars

increase on the roads year on year the N02 level can increase!, this doesn't mean that all of the
population is going to be driving them either CCBC are fantasists, the traffic flow will increase as

more and more developments are granted, businesses in New

Page 164



17

Something needs to be done as soon as possible

The proposal I have mentioned in the previous question is a valid but also far more cost effective
proposal than others but also an idea which will see significant changes to better suit the current

tenants in the affected area.

if the do minimum approach is the preferred option, CCBC are playing roulette with a known
public health issue.

See above - do minimum now will result in much more cost and a greater impact on people’s lives
now.  You only have to look at the M4 at the Brynglas Tunnels to see that not acting early enough
leads to greater difficulties and much more expense if delayed.  It is also of interest to those that

visit the area concerned using bicycles etc.

Current road is a bottle neck A roundabout is needed instead of Crumlin traffic lights  Then a dual
carriageway from new roundabout to mc Donald’s roundabout in Pontypool  If that means

compulsory purchasing anything in the way so be it

I regularly visit my friend who lives in number 5. I had to sit in my car for 8 mins the other day
before I could find a safe time to open my door and get out of the car.

A duel carriageway is needed from Crumlin all the way to Pontypool, congestion is not going to
write itself just by ignoring the problems.  There will be more and more cars as more housing

developments pop up in the area, and the problems relating to the quarry and extra traffic
involved with that is only going to add to the problems.

The volume of traffic traveling towards Pontypool and back has increased tremendously over the
last few years. Any accident that occurs on this stretch of road causes standstills. Example a

recent one last week caused  the road to be closed for several hours. The village of Hafodyrynys
had traffic diverting from the Pant, through  Swfrydd around the BonPren and Pantygassyg. These

small roads and lanes are not safe for the volume of traffic that used them.   Several hundred
houses have been built in the area in the last few years and are still being built putting more

strain on this stretch of road.   The reconstruction at the lights in Crumlin only made this road
worse affecting  Vi...

It is not just an issue for residents, but for motorists as well. It wold be practical to have better
connection between Pontypool and Crumlin area. Thousands of people would gain time, save on

fuel cost, reduce pollution.  Demolish those houses, and expand roads to double lanes.

The preferred option is not acceptable. It doesn't meet pollution targets very quickly, so us
residents still have to put up with black dust, noise and excess speeds. New housing

developments that are going to be built in the local area, detailed in the report will cause further
vehicles to use the A472. Meeting pollution targets seem to be a bigger priority to the council
than the health and wellbeing of the residents. The offers made to the residents of Woodside

terrace would not allow them to move to other properties.

Provide a bypass or knock the houses down no quality of life for the residents

Page 165



18

Do minimum may not provide a long lasting solution if thresholds for health are reviewed and
revised downward. Good cross valley infrastructure is desperately needed given the non-viability
of using the M4 when travelling via the Bynglas tunnels and this is an opportunity to begin to link
the various dual carriageways already in place thereby alleviating two issues. Do minimum is okay

if it’s an interim whilst more major solution is sought.

All the while you delay this decision the residents are living in a polluted atmosphere. You assume
that things will naturally reduce due to vehicle  emissions reducing, but this is not guaranteed -

and what harm is still being done in the meantime

Do minimum(nothing) does not protect residents from harmful fumes for the next few years
having already been subjected to fumes for years. There are families with children living on that

road. By "do minimum" council are advocating their responsibility. Relocating families best option
for residents!

Do minimum is the councils way of saving themselves money. They are not thinking about the
residents interest or health.

Do minimum does not solve the issues for residents. I visited a family residing there last summer
constant traffic pollution day and night so difficulty getting some sleep. Not being able to open

your windows what a nightmare. The council needs to act Now.

Just seems like an easy but lazy option for CCBC to wait until cars become "greener". As a regular
user of this road to get to and from work daily I see delays all the time and would like to see a

quicker solution to this constant problem. I understand the Welsh Government are willing to help
fund the solution sooner with demolition of the main row of houses along this stretch of road.

Please see above for reason. Theses houses have been on rumoured to be knocked down for
many of years! The money the council spent to the road works have made the road more

dangerous than before.

I think that the environment is hugely important, if not the most important thing in this time. Our
children need to be safe in their homes and local area, not just safe from crime and hazards but
also safe from toxic environments and pollution which can cause more damage in the long run.

Also to the wildlife and nature around the area. "Do minimum" is shirking the responsibility of the
council to protect the safety of the population and also the environment. We have been "doing

minimum" for far too long.

Health , Safety  just because the council cant be bothered to do anything it does not mean that
the residents have to continue to suffer.  This has been going on for years and we are being

messed around and treated like with are the lowest of the low.  I don't see how it would affect
Mental Heath - This is horrific and insinuating that we are poor and suffer with mental health

issues.

JUST KNOCK THEM DOWN, PUT A DUAL CARRIAGEWAY IN AND HOUSE THE POOR BUGGERS
SOMEWHERE NICE WITH CLEAN AIR

Page 166



19

A well formulated plan at whatever expense would see long term benefits and I believe a cost
saving in the long term as a "do minimum approach will lead to further improvements being

required at additional. Expense" - perhaps the motto should be "do it once and do it properly"

Definite improvements need to be made not just for the residents of Woodside houses but also
the commuters who are continually caught in the jams in this area. HGV vehicles cause a big issue

due to their inability to climb Hafodyrynys hill at pace, causing added congestion and air quality
issues.  A restriction on such vehicles as well as a better traffic management plan at the Swffryd

and Crumlin junction I would anticipate to allow sufficient improvements to the residents
allowing them to remain in their residence and improving congestion at peak times. Similar

restrictions as implemented on Kendon Hill should be considered as this route has seen mass
improvements since HGV restr...

Firstly, there is insufficient evidence that this will definately achieve the required limits at all.
Secondly, even if it does it will not achive within the shortest timeframe. This leaves the residents

exposed to these unacceptable NO2 levels for a further 6 YEARS!   This is wholly unacceptable.
The health of the residents should not be secondary to a reasonalbe relocation package. The

remuneration package needs to be increased to remove the financial hardship element of the
demolision exercise. None of the residents I hav...

The council has a duty of care to CCBC residents. It is avoiding such responsibility in favour of
money saving.

I disagree with the do minimum preference. I am concerned about your health.

I am 74 this year, with the air pollution and the heavy traffic up and down our hill shaking the life
out of our houses which is making them unsafe. I feel that for these houses to come down before

they fall down is our only and best option so the sooner the better as far as I'm concerned.

Relying on valley residents to purchase more economical cars in the next few years is absurd! In
the interim house prices on the road will continue to decline and the residents will continue to

suffer with extreme pollution levels/ speeding traffic. Caerphilly councils air quality consultation
has made my house unsellable due to the time taken to conclude.

I live on the road and I want to see the air quality improve I think the best option is to demolish
the houses for this to happen.

1/ Do minimum option relies of motorists changing to electric vehicles etc.  2/ Does not alter the
fact the amount of traffic using this road can only increase. We are at a critical point now with the
amount of traffic using this road.  3/ We have had deaths on this road. More could/will happen.

For the same reasons as above. This option prolongs our exposure to unacceptable levels of
pollution, which will only worsen our respiratory problems having a detrimental affect on our

quality of life.

This is not the best option for the residents affected.  It is leaving matters to chance.  If the
modelling does not materialise then the resident would have to wait longer for the quality of the

air to be improved.  Demolition would achieve this much quicker than is being suggested in all
residents agree to their home loss payment and are able to identify suitable alternative

accommodation.

Even if we don't suffer an extra 100 lorries a day from the quarry, the pollution in this entire area
is still dire. I have a BLACK air filter, through which air is filtered into my house. The filter is placed
in my attic. According to the Council, there should be no pollution at my front door, never mind in

my attic.

Page 167



20

There isn't a lot of information available on the Do Minimum option.  This is also putting
unnecessary stress on residents.   One minute we are being told the preferred option is to knock

down our houses, the next we are being told the council have decided to do nothing.

This street is a highly polluted area with people still living in it and the view of the council to do
nothing is in affect helping to shorten the lives of these residents.
The traffic is increasing every year, can’t see the point in waiting.

knock the place down and rehouse the residents elsewhere. The road is a nuisance, it should be
dualled.

The 'Do minimum' option is based on the hope that commuters using the road will change their
cars to more greener engines, which will reduce the level of pollution.  This is a busy road and

traffic will only increase over the coming years, due to a number of housing developments in the
local and surrounding area and many people are not in the financial position to replace their

current cars with greener engines.  There is no guarantee that this will work and the residents and
council will be back to discussing the demolition

If the council are serious about pollution, then they need to commission a county wide pollution
survey on all roads in the county, not just cherry pick roads that someone has a connection to - as
unfortunately, people will come to that conclusion, that someone somewhere has gained from
this - it is what people think of the council, not individuals, the whole council, its past saving..

Do Minimum

Agree

I do not see the description "Do Minimum" but the "Do Maximum" does not meet the time
required and has other limitations.

We agree with do nothing approach. See same reasons above. especially as the road will not be
widened.

The residents are not the cause of the air quality problems but seem to be seen as a quick
solution. Surely tackling the traffic emissions by taking the higher pollution vehicles off the roads
& replacing with greener equivalents should be the priority of Government. This would see
widespread benefits not just those living on this stretch of road but future generations.

Page 168



21

Disagree
The area is extremely dilapidated and should be made the subject of a compulsory purchase

order then demolished. The entire design of having such a high volume road next to it is
ridiculous

Air quality is a serious issue for residents of this street and those close by. No doubt the issue will
worsen over the coming years before technology such as electric cars catch up. With new houses
being built  in Caerphilly Borough this issue will no doubt get worse. Traffic and congestion is an

ongoing issue in the area and needs to be resolved.

No one should have to suffer those poor air conditions. I feel for the people living there. Surely
the council could offer them alternate accommodation.

The houses are no longer habitable given the findings of the report. Doing the minimum should
never be the default option when talking about someone’s health. The Council should be leading
and demonstrating that they care about the health of its residents. The Council should be issuing
CPOs on all the owners and giving them appropriate compensation to find suitable comparable

accommodation. All moving and legal feedback should also be covered.   Alternatively,
compensate the residents but allow them to keep their owns but  p

A more general review of the promoted population/house building policies should be
undertaken. Caerphilly basin, as the term "basin" suggests, is topographically highly vulnerable to

the pollution resulting from traffic volumes. see http://en-gb.topographic-
map.com/places/Caerphilly-139466/ which clearly shows the "lie of the land".  An extract from

Air-Quality.org.uk states: "Concentrations of pollutants can be greater in valleys than for areas of
higher ground. This is because, under certain weather conditions, pollutants...

The Health of the residents MUST take president, Do nothing approach violates the human rights
to clean air quality of the residents in the streets, Hoping that Lorries wagons and cars ALL
become Euro 5 compliant is pipe dream in the 5 year time frame and more and more cars

increase on the roads year on year the N02 level can increase!, this doesn't mean that all of the
population is going to be driving them either CCBC are fantasists, the traffic flow will increase as

more and more developments are granted, businesses in New

Something needs to be done as soon as possible

The proposal I have mentioned in the previous question is a valid but also far more cost effective
proposal than others but also an idea which will see significant changes to better suit the current

tenants in the affected area.

if the do minimum approach is the preferred option, CCBC are playing roulette with a known
public health issue.

Page 169



22

See above - do minimum now will result in much more cost and a greater impact on people’s lives
now.  You only have to look at the M4 at the Brynglas Tunnels to see that not acting early enough
leads to greater difficulties and much more expense if delayed.  It is also of interest to those that

visit the area concerned using bicycles etc.

Current road is a bottle neck A roundabout is needed instead of Crumlin traffic lights  Then a dual
carriageway from new roundabout to mc Donald’s roundabout in Pontypool  If that means

compulsory purchasing anything in the way so be it

I regularly visit my friend who lives in number 5. I had to sit in my car for 8 mins the other day
befor I could find a safe time to open my door and get out of the car.

A duel carriageway is needed from crumlin all the way to pontypool, congestion is not going to
write itself just by ignoring the problems.  There will be more and more cars as more housing

developments pop up in the area, and the problems relating to the quarry and extra traffic
involved with that is only going to add to the problems.

The volume of traffic traveling towards Pontypool and back has increased tremendously over the
last few years. Any accident that occurs on this stretch of road causes standstills. Example a

recent one last week caused  the road to be closed for several hours. The village of Hafodyrynys
had traffic diverting from the Pant,through  Swfrydd around the BonPren and Pantygassyg. These

small roads and lanes are not safe for the volume of traffic that used them.   Several hundred
houses have been built in the area in the last few years and are still being built putting more

strain on this stretch of road.   The reconstruction at the lights in Crumlin only made this road
worse affecting  Vi...

It is not just an issue for residents, but for motorists as well. It wold be practical to have better
connection between Pontypool and Crumlin area. Thousands of people would gain time, save on

fuel cost, reduce pollution.  Demolish those houses, and expand roads to double lanes.

The preferred option is not acceptable. It doesn't meet pollution targets very quickly, so us
residents still have to put up with black dust, noise and excess speeds. New housing

developments  that are going to be built in the local area, detailed in the report will cause further
vehicles to use the A472. Meeting pollution targets seem to be a bigger priority to the council
than the health and wellbeing  of the residents. The offers made  to the residents of Woodside

terrace would not allow them to move to other properties.

Provide a bypass or knock the houses down no quality of life for the residents

Do minimum may not provide a long lasting solution if thresholds for health are reviewed and
revised downward. Good cross valley infrastructure is desperately needed given the non viability
of using the M4 when travelling via the Bynglas tunnels and this is an opportunity to begin to link
the various dual carriageways already in place thereby alleviating two issues. Do minimum is okay

if it’s an interim whilst more major solution is sought.

All the while you delay this decision the residents are living in a polluted atmosphere. You assume
that things will naturally reduce due to vehicle  emissions reducing, but this is not guaranteed -

and what harm is still being done in the meantime

Do minimum(nothing) does not protect residents from harmful fumes for the next few years
having already been subjected to fumes for years. There are families with children living on that

road. By "do minimum" council are advocating their responsibility. Relocating families best option
for residents!

Page 170



23

Do minimum is the councils way of saving themselves money. They are not thinking about the
residents interest or health.

Do minimum does not solve the issues for residents. I visited a family residing there last summer
constant traffic pollution day and night so difficulty getting some sleep. Not being able to open

your windows what a nightmare. The council needs to act Now.

Just seems like an easy but lazy option for CCBC to wait until cars become "greener". As a regular
user of this road to get to and from work daily I see delays all the time and would like to see a

quicker solution to this constant problem. I understand the Welsh Government are willing to help
fund the solution sooner with demolition of the main row of houses along this stretch of road.

Please see above for reason. These houses have been on rumoured to be knocked down for many
of years! The money the council spent to the road works have made the road more dangerous

than before.

I think that the environment is hugely important, if not the most important thing in this time. Our
children need to be safe in their homes and local area, not just safe from crime and hazards but
also safe from toxic environments and pollution which can cause more damage in the long run.

Also to the wildlife and nature around the area. "Do minimum" is shirking the responsibility of the
council to protect the safety of the population and also the environment. We have been "doing

minimum" for far too long.

Health , Safety  just because the council cant be bothered to do anything it does not mean that
the residents have to continue to suffer.  This has been going on for years and we are being

messed around and treated like with are the lowest of the low.  I don't see how it would affect
Mental Heath - This is horrific and insinuating that we are poor and suffer with mental health

issues.

JUST KNOCK THEM DOWN, PUT A DUAL CARRIAGEWAY IN AND HOUSE THE POOR BUGGERS
SOMEWHERE NICE WITH CLEAN AIR

A well formulated plan at whatever expense would see long term benefits and I believe a cost
saving in the long term as a "do minimum approach will lead to further improvements being

required at additional. Expense" - perhaps the motto should be "do it once and do it properly"

Definite improvements need to be made not just for the residents of Woodside houses but also
the commuters who are continually caught in the jams in this area. HGV vehicles cause a big issue

due to their inability to climb Hafodyrynys hill at pace, causing added congestion and air quality
issues.  A restriction on such vehicles as well as a better traffic management plan at the Swffryd

and Crumlin junction I would anticipate to allow sufficient improvements to the residents
allowing them to remain in their residence and improving congestion at peak times. Similar

restrictions as implemented on Kendon Hill should be considered as this route has seen mass
improvements since HGV restr...

Page 171



24

Firstly, there is insufficient evidence that this will definitely achieve the required limits at all.
Secondly, even if it does it will not achieve within the shortest timeframe. This leaves the
residents exposed to these unacceptable NO2 levels for a further 6 YEARS!   This is wholly

unacceptable. The health of the residents should not be secondary to a reasonable relocation
package. The remuneration package needs to be increased to remove the financial hardship

element of the demolition exercise. None of the residents I hav...

The council has a duty of care to CCBC residents. It is avoiding such responsibility in favour of
money saving.

I disagree with the do minimum preference. I am concerned about your health.

I am 74 this year, with the air pollution and the heavy traffic up and down our hill shaking the life
out of our houses which is making them unsafe. I feel that for these houses to come down before

they fall down is our only and best option so the sooner the better as far as I'm concerned.

Relying on valley residents to purchase more economical cars in the next few years is absurd! In
the interim house prices on the road will continue to decline and the residents will continue to

suffer with extreme pollution levels/ speeding traffic. Caerphilly councils air quality consultation
has made my house unsellable due to the time taken to conclude.

I live on the road and I want to see the air quality improve I think the best option is to demolish
the houses for this to happen.

1/ Do minimum option relies of motorists changing to electric vehicles etc.  2/ Does not alter the
fact the amount of traffic using this road can only increase. We are at a critical point now with the
amount of traffic using this road.  3/ We have had deaths on this road. More could/will happen.

For the same reasons as above. This option prolongs our exposure to unacceptable levels of
pollution, which will only worsen our respiratory problems having a detrimental affect on our

quality of life.

This is not the best option for the residents affected.  It is leaving matters to chance.  If the
modelling does not materialise then the resident would have to wait longer for the quality of the

air to be improved.  Demolition would achieve this much quicker than is being suggested in all
residents agree to their home loss payment and are able to identify suitable alternative

accommodation.

Even if we don't suffer an extra 100 lorries a day from the quarry, the pollution in this entire area
is still dire. I have a BLACK air filter, through which air is filtered into my house. The filter is placed
in my attic. According to the Council, there should be no pollution at my front door, never mind in

my attic.

There isn't a lot of information available on the Do Minimum option.  This is also putting
unnecessary stress on residents.   One minute we are being told the preferred option is to knock

down our houses, the next we are being told the council have decided to do nothing.

This street is a highly polluted area with people still living in it and the view of the council to do
nothing is in affect helping to shorten the lives of these residents.
The traffic is increasing every year, can’t see the point in waiting.

knock the place down and rehouse the residents elsewhere. The road is a nuisance, it should be
dualled.

Page 172



25

The 'Do minimum' option is based on the hope that commuters using the road will change their
cars to more greener engines, which will reduce the level of pollution.  This is a busy road and

traffic will only increase over the coming years, due to a number of housing developments in the
local and surrounding area and many people are not in the financial position to replace their

current cars with greener engines.  There is no guarantee that this will work and the residents and
council will be back to discussing the demolition

If the council are serious about pollution, then they need to commission a county wide pollution
survey on all roads in the county, not just cherry pick roads that someone has a connection to - as
unfortunately, people will come to that conclusion, that someone somewhere has gained from
this - it is what people think of the council, not individuals, the whole council, its past saving..

Page 173



Public

PILOT STUDY QUESTIONNAIRE

Page 174



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT WSP
Project No.: 70054924 | Our Ref No.: June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council

Page 175



HYY_(2)HYY_(2)

Hafodyrynys Business QuestionnaireHafodyrynys Business Questionnaire

Page:1

SnapSnap snapsurveys.comsnapsurveys.com

Hafodyrynys Business Questionnaire

This report was generated on 11/02/19. Overall 21 respondents completed this questionnaire.
The report has been filtered to show the responses for 'All Respondents'.

The following charts are restricted to the top 12 codes. Lists are restricted to the most recent
100 rows. 

Business Name: 

Hazrem Environmental Ltd

JR Gilbert Engineering ltd

Aztech Assemblies Ltd.

Unitech Services Group Ltd

Teleshore UK Ltd

Braces Bakery

Oakwood Student Accommodation Ltd

A.Schulman Inc Ltd

BULLEN TRADING CO LTD

TWT Logistics Ltd

IG Doors Limited

D S SMITH

J.R & A.G Diack Ltd

Border Group

Rob Morris Groundworks Ltd

Blackwood Engineering

rob morris group

Water Regulations Advisory Scheme Limited

Kay Premium Marking Films Ltd

The Pure Option

What is the first half of your business postcode (e.g. CF1) ? We use this to better 
understand the responses to the consultation by looking at where people work.

NP11 3EH

NP12

NP12

NP11

NP12

NP11

NP11

NP11

NP11 3PL

CF82

NP12

NP11

NP11

NP11

NP12

NP13

np12

NP11

NP11

NP13

Position within the business:

Director (10)

Owner (4)

Manager (3)

 Chief Executive Officer (2)

Other (1)

21%

16%

11%

5%

53%

If other, please specify: 

Assistant plant manager & Transport Manager

Env,  H & S Co-Ordintaor

Page 176

UKRCC004
Text Box
Businesses names have been removed from these questionnaire results.



HYY_(2)HYY_(2)

Hafodyrynys Business QuestionnaireHafodyrynys Business Questionnaire

Page:2

SnapSnap snapsurveys.comsnapsurveys.com

Please can you confirm the following:

90%

10%

What type of organisation are you representing?

Small/Medium sized enterprises (SMEs), retailer, trader or service provider (10)

Industry or manufacturing (5)

Freight/haulage organisation (2)

Public sector or civil service (1)

Other (1)

Government organisation (-)

Bus organisation or operative (-)

Campaign or charity group (-)

Healthcare professional/provider (-)

Educational or academic institution (-)

Environmental professional (-)

Taxi driver (-)

5%

11%

5%

26%

53%

If other, please specify

Laundry Facilty (Nuclear)

groundworks, demolition, aggregate recycling

Page 177



HYY_(2)HYY_(2)

Hafodyrynys Business QuestionnaireHafodyrynys Business Questionnaire

Page:3

SnapSnap snapsurveys.comsnapsurveys.com

What is the total number of employees within your local branch?

21-50 (5)

11-20 (4)

0-10 (3)

51-100 (3)

101-200 (3)

201-350 (2)

350-500 (-)

500+ (-)

10%

15%

25%

20%

15%

15%

Approximately what percentage of your workforce currently commutes to work via the 
A472 where the proposed Clean Air Zone (CAZ) would be located?

5-10% (6)

11-20% (4)

0-5% (3)

21-50% (3)

71-100% (3)

51 - 70% (1) 5%

15%

30%

20%

15%

15%

Does your business provide vehicles for staff i.e. pool cars/business vehicles?

No (12)

Yes (8)

60%

40%

If you have answered yes to Q8, please state how many business vehicles you have:

4

Three cars

8

35

65

1

1

Page 178



HYY_(2)HYY_(2)

Hafodyrynys Business QuestionnaireHafodyrynys Business Questionnaire

Page:4

SnapSnap snapsurveys.comsnapsurveys.com

To help us understand your fleet composition, please could you advise how many 
vehicles per each category below: (HGV)

0-10 (2)

11-20 (1)

21-50 (1)

51-100 (-)

101-200 (-)

201-300 (-)

300+ (-)

50%

25%

25%

To help us understand your fleet composition, please could you advise how many 
vehicles per each category below: (Van)

0-10 (5)

21-50 (2)

11-20 (-)

51-100 (-)

101-200 (-)

201-300 (-)

300+ (-)

71%

29%

To help us understand your fleet composition, please could you advise how many 
vehicles per each category below: (Coach)

0-10 (1)

11-20 (-)

21-50 (-)

51-100 (-)

101-200 (-)

201-300 (-)

300+ (-)

100%

Page 179



HYY_(2)HYY_(2)

Hafodyrynys Business QuestionnaireHafodyrynys Business Questionnaire

Page:5

SnapSnap snapsurveys.comsnapsurveys.com

To help us understand your fleet composition, please could you advise how many 
vehicles per each category below: (Bus)

0-10 (1)

11-20 (-)

21-50 (-)

51-100 (-)

101-200 (-)

201-300 (-)

300+ (-)

100%

To help us understand your fleet composition, please could you advise how many 
vehicles per each category below: (Car)

0-10 (4)

11-20 (1)

21-50 (-)

51-100 (-)

101-200 (-)

201-300 (-)

300+ (-)

80%

20%

To help us understand your fleet composition, please could you advise how many 
vehicles per each category below: (Motorcycle/Moped)

0-10 (1)

11-20 (-)

21-50 (-)

51-100 (-)

101-200 (-)

201-300 (-)

300+ (-)

100%

Page 180



HYY_(2)HYY_(2)

Hafodyrynys Business QuestionnaireHafodyrynys Business Questionnaire

Page:6

SnapSnap snapsurveys.comsnapsurveys.com

To help us understand your fleet composition, please could you advise how many 
vehicles per each category below: (Minibus)

0-10 (1)

11-20 (-)

21-50 (-)

51-100 (-)

101-200 (-)

201-300 (-)

300+ (-)

100%

To help us understand your fleet composition, please could you advise how many 
vehicles per each category below: (LGV)

0-10 (1)

11-20 (-)

21-50 (-)

51-100 (-)

101-200 (-)

201-300 (-)

300+ (-)

100%

Page 181



HYY_(2)HYY_(2)

Hafodyrynys Business QuestionnaireHafodyrynys Business Questionnaire

Page:7

SnapSnap snapsurveys.comsnapsurveys.com

Following on from question 10, please could you indicate what percentage of your 
vehicles (if any), are compliant with the following euro emission standard for each 
vehicle category below: (HGV Euro 6 diesel)

11-20 (2)

0 (1)

6-10 (1)

100 (1)

1-5 (-)

21-40 (-)

41-50 (-)

51-60 (-)

61-70 (-)

71-80 (-)

81-90 (-)

91-99 (-)

40%

20%

20%

20%

Page 182



HYY_(2)HYY_(2)

Hafodyrynys Business QuestionnaireHafodyrynys Business Questionnaire

Page:8

SnapSnap snapsurveys.comsnapsurveys.com

Following on from question 10, please could you indicate what percentage of your 
vehicles (if any), are compliant with the following euro emission standard for each 
vehicle category below: (Van Euro 4 Petrol/Euro 6 diesel)

0 (1)

1-5 (1)

6-10 (1)

11-20 (1)

41-50 (1)

100 (1)

21-40 (-)

51-60 (-)

61-70 (-)

71-80 (-)

81-90 (-)

91-99 (-)

17%

17%

17%

17%

17%

17%

Page 183



HYY_(2)HYY_(2)

Hafodyrynys Business QuestionnaireHafodyrynys Business Questionnaire

Page:9

SnapSnap snapsurveys.comsnapsurveys.com

Following on from question 10, please could you indicate what percentage of your 
vehicles (if any), are compliant with the following euro emission standard for each 
vehicle category below: (Coach Euro 6 diesel)

0 (1)

1-5 (-)

6-10 (-)

11-20 (-)

21-40 (-)

41-50 (-)

51-60 (-)

61-70 (-)

71-80 (-)

81-90 (-)

91-99 (-)

100 (-)

100%

Page 184



HYY_(2)HYY_(2)

Hafodyrynys Business QuestionnaireHafodyrynys Business Questionnaire

Page:10

SnapSnap snapsurveys.comsnapsurveys.com

Following on from question 10, please could you indicate what percentage of your 
vehicles (if any), are compliant with the following euro emission standard for each 
vehicle category below: (Bus Euro 6 diesel)

0 (1)

1-5 (-)

6-10 (-)

11-20 (-)

21-40 (-)

41-50 (-)

51-60 (-)

61-70 (-)

71-80 (-)

81-90 (-)

91-99 (-)

100 (-)

100%

Page 185



HYY_(2)HYY_(2)

Hafodyrynys Business QuestionnaireHafodyrynys Business Questionnaire

Page:11

SnapSnap snapsurveys.comsnapsurveys.com

Following on from question 10, please could you indicate what percentage of your 
vehicles (if any), are compliant with the following euro emission standard for each 
vehicle category below: (Car Euro 4 petrol/Euro 6 diesel)

1-5 (4)

0 (-)

6-10 (-)

11-20 (-)

21-40 (-)

41-50 (-)

51-60 (-)

61-70 (-)

71-80 (-)

81-90 (-)

91-99 (-)

100 (-)

100%

Page 186



HYY_(2)HYY_(2)

Hafodyrynys Business QuestionnaireHafodyrynys Business Questionnaire

Page:12

SnapSnap snapsurveys.comsnapsurveys.com

Following on from question 10, please could you indicate what percentage of your 
vehicles (if any), are compliant with the following euro emission standard for each 
vehicle category below: (Motorcycle/Moped Euro 4 petrol/Euro 6 diesel)

0 (1)

1-5 (-)

6-10 (-)

11-20 (-)

21-40 (-)

41-50 (-)

51-60 (-)

61-70 (-)

71-80 (-)

81-90 (-)

91-99 (-)

100 (-)

100%

Page 187



HYY_(2)HYY_(2)

Hafodyrynys Business QuestionnaireHafodyrynys Business Questionnaire

Page:13

SnapSnap snapsurveys.comsnapsurveys.com

Following on from question 10, please could you indicate what percentage of your 
vehicles (if any), are compliant with the following euro emission standard for each 
vehicle category below: (Minibus Euro 4 petrol/ Euro 6 diesel)

0 (1)

1-5 (-)

6-10 (-)

11-20 (-)

21-40 (-)

41-50 (-)

51-60 (-)

61-70 (-)

71-80 (-)

81-90 (-)

91-99 (-)

100 (-)

100%

Page 188



HYY_(2)HYY_(2)

Hafodyrynys Business QuestionnaireHafodyrynys Business Questionnaire

Page:14

SnapSnap snapsurveys.comsnapsurveys.com

Following on from question 10, please could you indicate what percentage of your 
vehicles (if any), are compliant with the following euro emission standard for each 
vehicle category below: (LGV Euro 6 diesel)

0 (1)

1-5 (-)

6-10 (-)

11-20 (-)

21-40 (-)

41-50 (-)

51-60 (-)

61-70 (-)

71-80 (-)

81-90 (-)

91-99 (-)

100 (-)

100%

Does your business deliver to customers (business and private) via the A472?

Yes (go to question 13) (17)

No (go to question 16) (3)

85%

15%

Page 189



HYY_(2)HYY_(2)

Hafodyrynys Business QuestionnaireHafodyrynys Business Questionnaire

Page:15

SnapSnap snapsurveys.comsnapsurveys.com

How many deliveries does your business make in a typical week that travel through the 
A472? (Please select the number of delivers per day) (Monday)

0-5 (12)

6-10 (1)

11-20 (1)

21-50 (1)

101-200 (1)

51-100  (-)

201-300 (-)

300+ (-)

6%

75%

6%

6%

6%

How many deliveries does your business make in a typical week that travel through the 
A472? (Please select the number of delivers per day) (Tuesday)

0-5 (13)

6-10 (1)

21-50 (1)

101-200 (1)

11-20 (-)

51-100  (-)

201-300 (-)

300+ (-)

81%

6%

6%

6%

Page 190



HYY_(2)HYY_(2)

Hafodyrynys Business QuestionnaireHafodyrynys Business Questionnaire

Page:16

SnapSnap snapsurveys.comsnapsurveys.com

How many deliveries does your business make in a typical week that travel through the 
A472? (Please select the number of delivers per day) (Wednesday)

0-5 (11)

6-10 (1)

11-20 (1)

21-50 (1)

101-200 (1)

51-100  (-)

201-300 (-)

300+ (-)

7%

73%

7%

7%

7%

How many deliveries does your business make in a typical week that travel through the 
A472? (Please select the number of delivers per day) (Thursday)

0-5 (13)

6-10 (1)

21-50 (1)

101-200 (1)

11-20 (-)

51-100  (-)

201-300 (-)

300+ (-)

81%

6%

6%

6%

Page 191



HYY_(2)HYY_(2)

Hafodyrynys Business QuestionnaireHafodyrynys Business Questionnaire

Page:17

SnapSnap snapsurveys.comsnapsurveys.com

How many deliveries does your business make in a typical week that travel through the 
A472? (Please select the number of delivers per day) (Friday)

0-5 (12)

11-20 (2)

6-10 (1)

101-200 (1)

21-50 (-)

51-100  (-)

201-300 (-)

300+ (-)

75%

13%

6%

6%

How many deliveries does your business make in a typical week that travel through the 
A472? (Please select the number of delivers per day) (Saturday)

0-5 (4)

51-100  (1)

6-10 (-)

11-20 (-)

21-50 (-)

101-200 (-)

201-300 (-)

300+ (-)

80%

20%

Page 192



HYY_(2)HYY_(2)

Hafodyrynys Business QuestionnaireHafodyrynys Business Questionnaire

Page:18

SnapSnap snapsurveys.comsnapsurveys.com

How many deliveries does your business make in a typical week that travel through the 
A472? (Please select the number of delivers per day) (Sunday)

0-5 (1)

51-100  (1)

6-10 (-)

11-20 (-)

21-50 (-)

101-200 (-)

201-300 (-)

300+ (-)

50%

50%

How many of the above deliveries would take place during the morning peak traffic 
times (between 07:00 and 10:00) ?

3 - 5

2

0

2

Variable Not quantifiable

Somewhere in the region of 150 deliveries across 5 vehicles

2

10%

1-2

20%

NONE

22

3

2

Typically this would be "0" as most of our bookings are in the afternoon.

zero

Page 193



HYY_(2)HYY_(2)

Hafodyrynys Business QuestionnaireHafodyrynys Business Questionnaire

Page:19

SnapSnap snapsurveys.comsnapsurveys.com

How many of the above deliveries would take place during the evening peak traffic times 
(between 16:00 and 19:00)?

10 - 15

1

0

2

Variable , not quantifiable

5 Vehicles carrying an estimate of 30 deliveries

0

10%

0

20%

50 %

2

0

0

Collections are usually booked for the afternoon around midday - 1pm.  Guess it may be 0-1 per day.

50%

What impact do you feel restricting access to vehicles along the A472 would have on 
your business?

Very negative (9)

Negative (7)

Neutral  (2)

Don't know (1)

Very positive (-)

Positive (-)

47%

37%

5%

11%

A proposed Clean Air Zone could be similar to the London's Low Emission Zone (LEZ), 
which also imposes a defined boundary which the most polluting vehicles are charged 
for entering. With this in mind, do you think the London LEZ charges for the vehicles 
that do not meet the minimum emission requirements are too much, too little, or about 
right for Caerphilly's Clean Air Zone? (HGVs £100)

Too much (18)

About right (2)

Too little (-)

90%

10%

Page 194



HYY_(2)HYY_(2)

Hafodyrynys Business QuestionnaireHafodyrynys Business Questionnaire

Page:20

SnapSnap snapsurveys.comsnapsurveys.com

A proposed Clean Air Zone could be similar to the London's Low Emission Zone (LEZ), 
which also imposes a defined boundary which the most polluting vehicles are charged 
for entering. With this in mind, do you think the London LEZ charges for the vehicles 
that do not meet the minimum emission requirements are too much, too little, or about 
right for Caerphilly's Clean Air Zone? (Buses £100)

Too much (18)

About right (1)

Too little (-)

5%

95%

A proposed Clean Air Zone could be similar to the London's Low Emission Zone (LEZ), 
which also imposes a defined boundary which the most polluting vehicles are charged 
for entering. With this in mind, do you think the London LEZ charges for the vehicles 
that do not meet the minimum emission requirements are too much, too little, or about 
right for Caerphilly's Clean Air Zone? (Coaches £100)

Too much (17)

About right (3)

Too little (-)

16%

90%

A proposed Clean Air Zone could be similar to the London's Low Emission Zone (LEZ), 
which also imposes a defined boundary which the most polluting vehicles are charged 
for entering. With this in mind, do you think the London LEZ charges for the vehicles 
that do not meet the minimum emission requirements are too much, too little, or about 
right for Caerphilly's Clean Air Zone? (Taxis £12.50)

Too much (17)

About right (2)

Too little (-)

11%

90%

Page 195



HYY_(2)HYY_(2)

Hafodyrynys Business QuestionnaireHafodyrynys Business Questionnaire

Page:21

SnapSnap snapsurveys.comsnapsurveys.com

A proposed Clean Air Zone could be similar to the London's Low Emission Zone (LEZ), 
which also imposes a defined boundary which the most polluting vehicles are charged 
for entering. With this in mind, do you think the London LEZ charges for the vehicles 
that do not meet the minimum emission requirements are too much, too little, or about 
right for Caerphilly's Clean Air Zone? (Private vehicles £12.50)

Too much (18)

About right (2)

Too little (-)

10%

90%

If there was a daily charge at the above rates, how would you be most likely to respond?

Re-route the journey (12)

Re-locate your business (7)

Upgrade your vehicle (5)

Pay the fee (2)

Cancel the trip (1)

Use another mode of public/sustainable transport (-)

5%

35%

25%

10%

60%

Do you feel your suppliers and/or customers will be affected by potential vehicle access 
restrictions on the A472?

Yes (18)

Don't know (2)

No (-)

90%

10%

Page 196



HYY_(2)HYY_(2)

Hafodyrynys Business QuestionnaireHafodyrynys Business Questionnaire

Page:22

SnapSnap snapsurveys.comsnapsurveys.com

If you answered yes to question 19, please indicate why you think that this is the case in 
the space provided below:

Delays to delivery schedules and cancellation of work (due to the increased impact on drivers hours)

Any additional costs incurred would need to be passed on.

Increased journey length / time

Critical shipments and turnaround times to nuclear power station sites across UK.

Deliveries and couriers will travel their own routes and any charges will impact on pricing all ways

This road is used as our main access to the M4 and M50, Raw materials are delivered daily

Any costs put onto our suppliers will eventually make its way to us.

Our customers have many options of who to buy from Cost is critical in our business.

IT WOULD MAKE MY BUSINESS LESS ACCESSIBLE TO BOTH CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Potential delays in receiving their deliveries/collections

Additional costs and delivery schedules

Delay of goods and or epensive to travel here

costs would passed on to the customer; they might go elsewhere - detrimental to the business

their company would be less productive

Would affect companies delivering products which are seeking approval from us

Increased charges to business from suppliers/couriers.

We would have to relocate outside as this would push our prices up which would cripple our business

What steps (if any) has your business already taken to reduce air pollution? (tick all that 
apply)

13%

20%

20%

40%

47%

7%

13%

47%

33%

20%

Page 197



HYY_(2)HYY_(2)

Hafodyrynys Business QuestionnaireHafodyrynys Business Questionnaire

Page:23

SnapSnap snapsurveys.comsnapsurveys.com

If other, please specify

All of our HGVs are post 2014 build, so are fitted with Adblue NOx reduction equipment.

None apply

Vehicle renewal plans in place which replaces older vehicles with new.

We are a welsh government gold Corporate Health Standard Company and have ISO 14001 also
cycle to wo

Do you have any further comments or suggestions relating to the improvement of air 
quality along the A472 and what it means for your business?

Restricting traffic or imposing a chargeable clean air zone will only move this problem South.

No, not my area of expertise

Demolition of the properties on south side of the A472 as only long term feasible solution .

we supply the whole bereavement services U.K. wide.Only other, road infrastructure improved to m4

We're committed to replacing the fleet in line to a minimum of euro 6 compliance.

Access should be improved not restricted, S.wales is already disadvantaged by infrastructure.

DUEL CARRAGE WAY FOR THE WHOLE A472 FROM CRUMLIN TO PONTYPOOL.

NONE

The Residents should be relocated, then action plan to demolish in due course.

For the residents it would be better if the houses were demolished, it is clearly affecting them.

I've tried to put comment in this field but not enough room!

I am very sympathetic to the residents, something must be done to improve air quality

The effect on local business could be dramatic with extra charges on services.  Employees re-routing

All options currently proposed will make Caerphilly and Blaenau Gwent unattractive to business

I confirm that I wish to submit the information entered into this form to Caerphilly County 
Borough Council. I understand that  this information to be collated via Snap Surveys, a 
third party organisation (https://www.snapsurveys.com/survey-software/privacy-policy-
uk/) and for it to be used as described in Caerphilly County Borough Council's privacy 
notice (https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/FOI/PrivacyNotices/Privacy-Notice-
Consultations-Surveys.aspx).

100%

Page 198



Public

OPTION DRAWINGS

Page 199



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT WSP
Project No.: 70054924 | Our Ref No.: June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council

Page 200



   KEY

    PRIMARY SIGNAL HEAD

                                   SECONDARY SIGNAL HEAD

NOTES

1. THIS IS A C.A.D. DRAWING AND SHOULD NOT BE AMENDED BY HAND.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS IN METERS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

3. THIS DRAWING SHOULD BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL OTHER

        RELEVANT ENGINEERING DETAILS, DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATION.

4. ANY DISCREPANCIES SHOULD BE REPORTED TO THE  ENGINEER IMMEDIATELY

        SO THAT CLARIFICATION CAN BE SOUGHT PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT

        OF WORKS.

5. ALL WORKS ARE TO BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH

       COUNCIL SPECIFICATIONS AND STANDARDS.

6. CONTRACTOR TO ESTABLISH ALL UTILITY AND DRAINAGE LOCATIONS AND

        COORDINATE SAFE  WORKING PROCEDURES BEFORE ANY EXCAVATION

        WORKS TAKE PLACE.

7. THE WORKS SHALL BE PROGRAMMED TO ENSURE A CLEAR FOOTWAY IS

        AVAILABLE FOR PEDESTRIANS THROUGHOUT THE WORKS.

8. DIAGRAM NUMBERS TO TSRGD REFER TO THOSE SET OUT IN THE TRAFFIC

        SIGNS REGULATIONS AND GENERAL DIRECTIONS 2016.

9. ALL ROAD MARKINGS ARE TO BE WHITE THERMOPLASTIC SCREED UNLESS

        STATED OTHERWISE.

10. THE KERB AND THRESHOLD LEVELS SHOULD NOT BE ALTERED BY THE

        RE-SURFACING OF THE FOOTWAY.

N

G

A467

A467

A472

INSET A

XXX XXX

S2 - FOR INFORMATION

wsp.com

 1 Capital Quarter, Tyndall St, Cardiff, CF10 4BZ, UK

T+ 44 (0) 292 076 9200

APPROVED:

DRAWING No:

SCALE @ A1:

TITLE:

SITE/PROJECT:

DESIGNED:

CHECKED:

DATE:

REV:

ARCHITECT:

CLIENT:

DRAWING STATUS:

F
i
l
e

 
n

a
m

e
 
\
\
U

K
.
W

S
P

G
R

O
U

P
.
C

O
M

\
C

E
N

T
R

A
L

 
D

A
T

A
\
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
\
7

0
0

5
4

9
X

X
\
7

0
0

5
4

9
2

4
 
-
 
H

A
F

O
R

D
Y

R
Y

N
Y

S
 
N

O
2

 
W

E
L

T
A

G
 
S

T
A

G
E

 
3

\
0

3
 
W

I
P

\
A

C
A

D
\
O

P
T

I
O

N
 
1

 
-
 
R

E
T

I
M

E
 
A

4
7

2
 
A

2
6

7
 
S

I
G

N
A

L
S

\
O

P
1

 
-
 
G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 
A

R
R

A
N

G
E

M
E

N
T

.
D

W
G

,
 
p

r
i
n

t
e

d
 
o

n
 
1

2
 
F

e
b

r
u

a
r
y
 
2

0
1

9
 
0

8
:
2

0
:
1

3
,
 
b

y
 
E

v
a

n
s
,
 
A

s
h

l
e

i
g

h

DRAWN:

WSP UK Ltd

c

PROJECT NO:

70054924

70054924-OP1-100 P01

HAFODYRYNYS , CAERPHILLY

OPTION 1 - RETIMING OF A472/A467

SIGNALISED JUNCTION

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

1:500 RM DM

AE AE February 19

REDUCING THE RIGHT TURN GREEN TIME WOULD BE VERY LOW COST.

THIS WOULD JUST REQUIRE THE TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINTENANCE COMPANY TO

VISIT SITE AND REDUCE THE GREEN TIME, APPROXIMATELY £500.

P
age 201

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUS STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
CHK

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
APP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
P01

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
01/01/1901

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
XXX

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
FIRST ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
INSET A    SCALE 1:200



   KEY

PRIMARY SIGNAL HEAD (8 no.)

          SECONDARY SIGNAL HEAD (5 no.)

PEDESTRIAN GUARDRAIL (57 Lin.m)

400mm x 400mm RED BLISTER TACTILE PAVING FOR CONTROLLED

CROSSING POINTS

DROPPED KERBS  (21.6m 24 units)

RIGHT TRANSITION KERB (5.4 Lin.m 6 units)

LEFT TRANSITION KERB (5.4 Lin.m 6 units)

HB2 KERB (172.5 Lin.m)

EXISTING CARRIAGEWAY RESURFACING EXTENTS (2350m²)

RE-SURFACING 'FLEXIBLE FOOTWAY CONSTRUCTION; (41m2)

                              SURFACE COURSE: 20mm THICK, 6mm NOMINAL SIZE TO

                              BSEN13108:PART 1:  CLAUSE 7.6 WITH 160/220 PEN ASPHALT CONCRETE

                              BINDER AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH CLAUSE 912 OF THE SPECIFICATION

                              FOR HIGHWAY WORKS 1998, AS AMENDED.

                              500mm OF TOPSOIL AND GRASS SEEDING (78.7m²)

                               EXISTING CARRIAGEWAY

                               PROPOSED FULL CARRIAGEWAY CONSTRUCTION (56.5m²)

NOTES

1. THIS IS A C.A.D. DRAWING AND SHOULD NOT BE AMENDED BY HAND.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS IN METERS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

3. THIS DRAWING SHOULD BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL OTHER

        RELEVANT ENGINEERING DETAILS, DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATION.

4. ANY DISCREPANCIES SHOULD BE REPORTED TO THE  ENGINEER IMMEDIATELY

        SO THAT CLARIFICATION CAN BE SOUGHT PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT

        OF WORKS.

5. ALL WORKS ARE TO BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH

       COUNCIL SPECIFICATIONS AND STANDARDS.

6. CONTRACTOR TO ESTABLISH ALL UTILITY AND DRAINAGE LOCATIONS AND

        COORDINATE SAFE  WORKING PROCEDURES BEFORE ANY EXCAVATION

        WORKS TAKE PLACE.

7. THE WORKS SHALL BE PROGRAMMED TO ENSURE A CLEAR FOOTWAY IS

        AVAILABLE FOR PEDESTRIANS THROUGHOUT THE WORKS.

8. DIAGRAM NUMBERS TO TSRGD REFER TO THOSE SET OUT IN THE TRAFFIC

        SIGNS REGULATIONS AND GENERAL DIRECTIONS 2016.

9. ALL ROAD MARKINGS ARE TO BE WHITE THERMOPLASTIC SCREED UNLESS

        STATED OTHERWISE.

10. THE KERB AND THRESHOLD LEVELS SHOULD NOT BE ALTERED BY THE

        RE-SURFACING OF THE FOOTWAY.

N

G

FULL DEPTH CARRIAGEWAY CONSTRUCTION

TO REPLACE EXISTING TRAFFIC ISLANDS

XXX XXX

S2 - FOR INFORMATION

wsp.com

 1 Capital Quarter, Tyndall St, Cardiff, CF10 4BZ, UK

T+ 44 (0) 292 076 9200

APPROVED:

DRAWING No:

SCALE @ A1:

TITLE:

SITE/PROJECT:

DESIGNED:

CHECKED:

DATE:

REV:

ARCHITECT:

CLIENT:

DRAWING STATUS:

F
i
l
e

 
n

a
m

e
 
\
\
U

K
.
W

S
P

G
R

O
U

P
.
C

O
M

\
C

E
N

T
R

A
L

 
D

A
T

A
\
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
\
7

0
0

5
4

9
X

X
\
7

0
0

5
4

9
2

4
 
-
 
H

A
F

O
R

D
Y

R
Y

N
Y

S
 
N

O
2

 
W

E
L

T
A

G
 
S

T
A

G
E

 
3

\
0

3
 
W

I
P

\
A

C
A

D
\
O

P
T

I
O

N
 
2

 
-
 
S

I
G

N
A

L
I
S

A
T

I
O

N
 
O

F
 
A

4
7

2
 
B

4
4

7
1

\
O

P
2

 
-
 
G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 
A

R
R

A
N

G
E

M
E

N
T

 
A

.
D

W
G

,
 
p

r
i
n

t
e

d
 
o

n
 
1

2
 
F

e
b

r
u

a
r
y
 
2

0
1

9
 
0

8
:
2

0
:
5

7
,
 
b

y
 
E

v
a

n
s
,
 
A

s
h

l
e

i
g

h

DRAWN:

WSP UK Ltd

c

PROJECT NO:

70054924

70054924-OP2-100 P01

HAFODYRYNYS , CAERPHILLY

OPTION 2 - SIGNALISATION OF A472/B4471

PRIORITY T- JUNCTION

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

1:500 RM DM

AE AE February 19

P
age 202

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
CHK

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
APP

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
P01

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
01/01/1901

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
XXX

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
FIRST ISSUE



N

G

6

.
5

0

2

.
0

0

N

G

6

.
5

0

2

.
0

0

   KEY

                                 FULL 'FLEXIBLE' FOOTWAY CONSTRUCTION; (634m²)

                                 SURFACE COURSE: 20mm THICK, 6mm NOMINAL SIZE TO

BSEN13108:PART 1:  CLAUSE 7.6 WITH 160/220 PEN ASPHALT

CONCRETE BINDER AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH CLAUSE 912 OF THE

SPECIFICATION FOR HIGHWAY WORKS 1998, AS AMENDED.

                                 BINDER COURSE: 50mm THICK, 20mm NOMINAL SIZE ASPHALT

CONCRETE

                                 SUB-BASE: 150mm GRANULAR SUB-BASE

  EXISTING RETAINING WALL STRUCTURE

 EXISTING PROPERTIES TO BE DEMOLISHED

 EXISTING PROPERTIES TO REMAIN

500mm OF TOPSOIL , GRASS SEEDING & PLANTING

EDGING KERB

NOTES

1. THIS IS A C.A.D. DRAWING AND SHOULD NOT BE AMENDED BY HAND.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS IN METERS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

3. THIS DRAWING SHOULD BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL OTHER

        RELEVANT ENGINEERING DETAILS, DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATION.

4. ANY DISCREPANCIES SHOULD BE REPORTED TO THE  ENGINEER IMMEDIATELY

        SO THAT CLARIFICATION CAN BE SOUGHT PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT

        OF WORKS.

5. ALL WORKS ARE TO BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH

       COUNCIL SPECIFICATIONS AND STANDARDS.

6. CONTRACTOR TO ESTABLISH ALL UTILITY AND DRAINAGE LOCATIONS AND

        COORDINATE SAFE  WORKING PROCEDURES BEFORE ANY EXCAVATION

        WORKS TAKE PLACE.

7. THE WORKS SHALL BE PROGRAMMED TO ENSURE A CLEAR FOOTWAY IS

        AVAILABLE FOR PEDESTRIANS THROUGHOUT THE WORKS.

8. DIAGRAM NUMBERS TO TSRGD REFER TO THOSE SET OUT IN THE TRAFFIC

        SIGNS REGULATIONS AND GENERAL DIRECTIONS 2016.

9. ALL ROAD MARKINGS ARE TO BE WHITE THERMOPLASTIC SCREED UNLESS

        STATED OTHERWISE.

10. THE KERB AND THRESHOLD LEVELS SHOULD NOT BE ALTERED BY THE

        RE-SURFACING OF THE FOOTWAY.

XXX XXX

S2 - FOR INFORMATION

wsp.com

 1 Capital Quarter, Tyndall St, Cardiff, CF10 4BZ, UK

T+ 44 (0) 292 076 9200

APPROVED:

DRAWING No:

SCALE @ A1:

TITLE:

SITE/PROJECT:

DESIGNED:

CHECKED:

DATE:

REV:

ARCHITECT:

CLIENT:

DRAWING STATUS:

F
i
l
e
 
n
a
m

e
 
\
\
U

K
.
W

S
P

G
R

O
U

P
.
C

O
M

\
C

E
N

T
R

A
L
 
D

A
T

A
\
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
\
7
0
0

5
4

9
X

X
\
7

0
0
5

4
9

2
4

 
-
 
H

A
F

O
R

D
Y

R
Y

N
Y

S
 
N

O
2

 
W

E
L
T

A
G

 
S

T
A

G
E

 
3
\
0
3
 
W

I
P

\
A

C
A

D
\
O

P
T

I
O

N
 
5

 
-
 
D

E
M

O
L

I
T

I
O

N
 
O

F
 
A

4
7
2

 
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

I
E

S
\
O

P
5
 
-
 
G

E
N

E
R

A
L
 
A

R
R

A
N

G
E

M
E

N
T

 
E

 
(
6

.
5
M

 
S

E
T

B
A

C
K

 
F

O
O

T
P

A
T

H
)
.
D

W
G

,
 
p

r
i
n
t
e
d

 
o
n
 
1

9
 
F

e
b
r
u
a
r
y
 
2
0
1
9
 
1
1
:
3
6
:
2
4
,
 
b

y
 
S

m
i
t
h
,
 
G

e
r
a

i
n

t

DRAWN:

WSP UK Ltd

c

PROJECT NO:

70054924

70054924- P01

HAFODYRYNYS , CAERPHILLY

OPTION 8 -

CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

1:500 RM DM

GS GS February 19

P
age 203

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
CHK

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
APP

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
P01

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
01/01/1901

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
XXX

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
FIRST ISSUE

UKRCC004_1
Text Box
Option 3 - Demolition of Dwellings at Woodside Terrace

UKRCC004_2
Text Box

UKRCC004_3
Line



N

G

CRUMLIN

SWFFRYD

HAFODYRYNYS

N

G

PANTYGASSEG

N

G

PONTYPOOL

PONTYMOILE

   KEY

PEAK HOUR HGV BAN ZONE

NOTES

1. THIS IS A C.A.D. DRAWING AND SHOULD NOT BE AMENDED BY HAND.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS IN METERS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

3. THIS DRAWING SHOULD BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL OTHER

        RELEVANT ENGINEERING DETAILS, DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATION.

4. ANY DISCREPANCIES SHOULD BE REPORTED TO THE  ENGINEER IMMEDIATELY

        SO THAT CLARIFICATION CAN BE SOUGHT PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT

        OF WORKS.

5. ALL WORKS ARE TO BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH

       COUNCIL SPECIFICATIONS AND STANDARDS.

6. CONTRACTOR TO ESTABLISH ALL UTILITY AND DRAINAGE LOCATIONS AND

        COORDINATE SAFE  WORKING PROCEDURES BEFORE ANY EXCAVATION

        WORKS TAKE PLACE.

7. THE WORKS SHALL BE PROGRAMMED TO ENSURE A CLEAR FOOTWAY IS

        AVAILABLE FOR PEDESTRIANS THROUGHOUT THE WORKS.

8. DIAGRAM NUMBERS TO TSRGD REFER TO THOSE SET OUT IN THE TRAFFIC

        SIGNS REGULATIONS AND GENERAL DIRECTIONS 2016.

9. ALL ROAD MARKINGS ARE TO BE WHITE THERMOPLASTIC SCREED UNLESS

        STATED OTHERWISE.

10. THE KERB AND THRESHOLD LEVELS SHOULD NOT BE ALTERED BY THE

        RE-SURFACING OF THE FOOTWAY.

XXX XXX

S2 - FOR INFORMATION

wsp.com

 1 Capital Quarter, Tyndall St, Cardiff, CF10 4BZ, UK

T+ 44 (0) 292 076 9200

APPROVED:

DRAWING No:

SCALE @ A1:

TITLE:

SITE/PROJECT:

DESIGNED:

CHECKED:

DATE:

REV:

ARCHITECT:

CLIENT:

DRAWING STATUS:

F
i
l
e

 
n

a
m

e
 
\
\
U

K
.
W

S
P

G
R

O
U

P
.
C

O
M

\
C

E
N

T
R

A
L

 
D

A
T

A
\
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
\
7

0
0

5
4

9
X

X
\
7

0
0

5
4

9
2

4
 
-
 
H

A
F

O
R

D
Y

R
Y

N
Y

S
 
N

O
2

 
W

E
L

T
A

G
 
S

T
A

G
E

 
3

\
0

3
 
W

I
P

\
A

C
A

D
\
O

P
T

I
O

N
 
3

 
-
 
P

E
A

K
 
H

O
U

R
 
H

G
V

 
B

A
N

\
O

P
3

 
-
 
G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 
A

R
R

A
N

G
E

M
E

N
T

.
D

W
G

,
 
p

r
i
n

t
e

d
 
o

n
 
1

2
 
F

e
b

r
u

a
r
y
 
2

0
1

9
 
0

8
:
2

2
:
0

3
,
 
b

y
 
E

v
a

n
s
,
 
A

s
h

l
e

i
g

h

DRAWN:

WSP UK Ltd

c

PROJECT NO:

70054924

70054924-OP3-100-1 P01

HAFODYRYNYS , CAERPHILLY

OPTION 3 - PEAK HOUR HGV BAN

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

SHEET 1

CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

1:5000 RM DM

AE AE February 19

P
age 204

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
CUTLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
CUTLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
CUTLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
CUTLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
CUTLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
CUTLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
CUTLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
CUTLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
CHK

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
APP

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
P01

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
01/01/1901

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
XXX

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
FIRST ISSUE

UKRCC004_4
Text Box
Option 4



   KEY

PEAK HOUR HGV BAN ZONE

NOTES

1. THIS IS A C.A.D. DRAWING AND SHOULD NOT BE AMENDED BY HAND.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS IN METERS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

3. THIS DRAWING SHOULD BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL OTHER

        RELEVANT ENGINEERING DETAILS, DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATION.

4. ANY DISCREPANCIES SHOULD BE REPORTED TO THE  ENGINEER IMMEDIATELY

        SO THAT CLARIFICATION CAN BE SOUGHT PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT

        OF WORKS.

5. ALL WORKS ARE TO BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH

       COUNCIL SPECIFICATIONS AND STANDARDS.

6. CONTRACTOR TO ESTABLISH ALL UTILITY AND DRAINAGE LOCATIONS AND

        COORDINATE SAFE  WORKING PROCEDURES BEFORE ANY EXCAVATION

        WORKS TAKE PLACE.

7. THE WORKS SHALL BE PROGRAMMED TO ENSURE A CLEAR FOOTWAY IS

        AVAILABLE FOR PEDESTRIANS THROUGHOUT THE WORKS.

8. DIAGRAM NUMBERS TO TSRGD REFER TO THOSE SET OUT IN THE TRAFFIC

        SIGNS REGULATIONS AND GENERAL DIRECTIONS 2016.

9. ALL ROAD MARKINGS ARE TO BE WHITE THERMOPLASTIC SCREED UNLESS

        STATED OTHERWISE.

10. THE KERB AND THRESHOLD LEVELS SHOULD NOT BE ALTERED BY THE

        RE-SURFACING OF THE FOOTWAY.

N

G

C

R

U

M

L
I
N

S

W

F

F

R

Y

D

PONTYPOOL

PONTYMOILE

N

G

XXX XXX

S2 - FOR INFORMATION

wsp.com

 1 Capital Quarter, Tyndall St, Cardiff, CF10 4BZ, UK

T+ 44 (0) 292 076 9200

APPROVED:

DRAWING No:

SCALE @ A1:

TITLE:

SITE/PROJECT:

DESIGNED:

CHECKED:

DATE:

REV:

ARCHITECT:

CLIENT:

DRAWING STATUS:

F
i
l
e

 
n

a
m

e
 
\
\
U

K
.
W

S
P

G
R

O
U

P
.
C

O
M

\
C

E
N

T
R

A
L

 
D

A
T

A
\
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
\
7

0
0

5
4

9
X

X
\
7

0
0

5
4

9
2

4
 
-
 
H

A
F

O
R

D
Y

R
Y

N
Y

S
 
N

O
2

 
W

E
L

T
A

G
 
S

T
A

G
E

 
3

\
0

3
 
W

I
P

\
A

C
A

D
\
O

P
T

I
O

N
 
3

 
-
 
P

E
A

K
 
H

O
U

R
 
H

G
V

 
B

A
N

\
O

P
3

 
-
 
G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 
A

R
R

A
N

G
E

M
E

N
T

.
D

W
G

,
 
p

r
i
n

t
e

d
 
o

n
 
1

3
 
F

e
b

r
u

a
r
y
 
2

0
1

9
 
1

5
:
1

2
:
3

0
,
 
b

y
 
E

v
a

n
s
,
 
A

s
h

l
e

i
g

h

DRAWN:

WSP UK Ltd

c

PROJECT NO:

70054924

70054924-OP3-100-2 P01

HAFODYRYNYS , CAERPHILLY

OPTION 3 - PEAK HOUR HGV BAN

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

SHEET 2

CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

1:5000 RM DM

AE AE February 19

P
age 205

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
CHK

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
APP

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
P01

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
01/01/1901

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
XXX

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
FIRST ISSUE

UKRCC004_5
Text Box
Option 4

UKRCC004_6
Text Box
PEAK PERIOD HGV BAN



   KEY

AREA OF CLEAN AIR ZONE IMPLEMENTATION

NOTES

1. THIS IS A C.A.D. DRAWING AND SHOULD NOT BE AMENDED BY HAND.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS IN METERS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

3. THIS DRAWING SHOULD BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL OTHER

        RELEVANT ENGINEERING DETAILS, DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATION.

4. ANY DISCREPANCIES SHOULD BE REPORTED TO THE  ENGINEER IMMEDIATELY

        SO THAT CLARIFICATION CAN BE SOUGHT PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT

        OF WORKS.

5. ALL WORKS ARE TO BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH

       COUNCIL SPECIFICATIONS AND STANDARDS.

6. CONTRACTOR TO ESTABLISH ALL UTILITY AND DRAINAGE LOCATIONS AND

        COORDINATE SAFE  WORKING PROCEDURES BEFORE ANY EXCAVATION

        WORKS TAKE PLACE.

7. THE WORKS SHALL BE PROGRAMMED TO ENSURE A CLEAR FOOTWAY IS

        AVAILABLE FOR PEDESTRIANS THROUGHOUT THE WORKS.

8. DIAGRAM NUMBERS TO TSRGD REFER TO THOSE SET OUT IN THE TRAFFIC

        SIGNS REGULATIONS AND GENERAL DIRECTIONS 2016.

9. ALL ROAD MARKINGS ARE TO BE WHITE THERMOPLASTIC SCREED UNLESS

        STATED OTHERWISE.

10. THE KERB AND THRESHOLD LEVELS SHOULD NOT BE ALTERED BY THE

        RE-SURFACING OF THE FOOTWAY.

N

G

N

G

N

G

XXX XXX

S2 - FOR INFORMATION

wsp.com

 1 Capital Quarter, Tyndall St, Cardiff, CF10 4BZ, UK

T+ 44 (0) 292 076 9200

APPROVED:

DRAWING No:

SCALE @ A1:

TITLE:

SITE/PROJECT:

DESIGNED:

CHECKED:

DATE:

REV:

ARCHITECT:

CLIENT:

DRAWING STATUS:

F
i
l
e

 
n

a
m

e
 
\
\
U

K
.
W

S
P

G
R

O
U

P
.
C

O
M

\
C

E
N

T
R

A
L

 
D

A
T

A
\
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
\
7

0
0

5
4

9
X

X
\
7

0
0

5
4

9
2

4
 
-
 
H

A
F

O
R

D
Y

R
Y

N
Y

S
 
N

O
2

 
W

E
L

T
A

G
 
S

T
A

G
E

 
3

\
0

3
 
W

I
P

\
A

C
A

D
\
O

P
T

I
O

N
 
4

 
-
 
C

L
E

A
N

 
A

I
R

 
Z

O
N

E
\
O

P
4

 
-
 
G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 
A

R
R

A
N

G
E

M
E

N
T

.
D

W
G

,
 
p

r
i
n

t
e

d
 
o

n
 
1

3
 
F

e
b

r
u

a
r
y
 
2

0
1

9
 
0

8
:
1

7
:
0

3
,
 
b

y
 
E

v
a

n
s
,
 
A

s
h

l
e

i
g

h

DRAWN:

WSP UK Ltd

c

PROJECT NO:

70054924

70054924-OP4-100 P01

HAFODYRYNYS , CAERPHILLY

OPTION 4 - CLEAN AIR ZONE

IMPLEMENTATION

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

1:5000 RM DM

AE AE February 19

P
age 206

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
CUTLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
CUTLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
CUTLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
CUTLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
CUTLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
CUTLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
CUTLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
CUTLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
CHK

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
APP

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
P01

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
01/01/1901

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
XXX

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
FIRST ISSUE

UKRCC004_7
Text Box
Option 5 -



Public

PRELIMINARY DESIGN DRAWINGS -
PREFERRED OPTION

Page 207



HAFODYRYNYS, CAERPHILLY – WELTAG STAGE THREE REPORT WSP
Project No.: 70054924 | Our Ref No.: June 2019
Caerphilly County Borough Council

Page 208



   KEY

    PRIMARY SIGNAL HEAD

                                   SECONDARY SIGNAL HEAD

NOTES

1. THIS IS A C.A.D. DRAWING AND SHOULD NOT BE AMENDED BY HAND.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS IN METERS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

3. THIS DRAWING SHOULD BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL OTHER

        RELEVANT ENGINEERING DETAILS, DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATION.

4. ANY DISCREPANCIES SHOULD BE REPORTED TO THE  ENGINEER IMMEDIATELY

        SO THAT CLARIFICATION CAN BE SOUGHT PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT

        OF WORKS.

5. ALL WORKS ARE TO BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH

       COUNCIL SPECIFICATIONS AND STANDARDS.

6. CONTRACTOR TO ESTABLISH ALL UTILITY AND DRAINAGE LOCATIONS AND

        COORDINATE SAFE  WORKING PROCEDURES BEFORE ANY EXCAVATION

        WORKS TAKE PLACE.

7. THE WORKS SHALL BE PROGRAMMED TO ENSURE A CLEAR FOOTWAY IS

        AVAILABLE FOR PEDESTRIANS THROUGHOUT THE WORKS.

8. DIAGRAM NUMBERS TO TSRGD REFER TO THOSE SET OUT IN THE TRAFFIC

        SIGNS REGULATIONS AND GENERAL DIRECTIONS 2016.

9. ALL ROAD MARKINGS ARE TO BE WHITE THERMOPLASTIC SCREED UNLESS

        STATED OTHERWISE.

10. THE KERB AND THRESHOLD LEVELS SHOULD NOT BE ALTERED BY THE

        RE-SURFACING OF THE FOOTWAY.

 
R

=
∞

 
R

=
∞

 
R

=
∞

 
R

=
∞

 
R

=

∞

 
R

=

∞

 

R

=

∞

 

R

=

∞

 

R

=

∞

 

R

=

∞

 
R

=

∞

 
R

=

∞

XXX XXX

S2 - FOR INFORMATION

wsp.com

 1 Capital Quarter, Tyndall St, Cardiff, CF10 4BZ, UK

T+ 44 (0) 292 076 9200

APPROVED:

DRAWING No:

SCALE @ A1:

TITLE:

SITE/PROJECT:

DESIGNED:

CHECKED:

DATE:

REV:

ARCHITECT:

CLIENT:

DRAWING STATUS:

F
i
l
e

 
n

a
m

e
 
\
\
U

K
.
W

S
P

G
R

O
U

P
.
C

O
M

\
C

E
N

T
R

A
L

 
D

A
T

A
\
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
\
7

0
0

5
4

9
X

X
\
7

0
0

5
4

9
2

4
 
-
 
H

A
F

O
R

D
Y

R
Y

N
Y

S
 
N

O
2

 
W

E
L

T
A

G
 
S

T
A

G
E

 
3

\
0

3
 
W

I
P

\
H

W
 
H

I
G

H
W

A
Y

S
\
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

\
1

0
1

_
G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 
A

R
R

A
N

G
E

M
E

N
T

.
D

W
G

,
 
p

r
i
n

t
e

d
 
o

n
 
1

4
 
J
u

n
e

 
2

0
1

9
 
1

5
:
1

5
:
4

5
,
 
b

y
 
M

i
l
e

s
,
 
A

l
e

x

DRAWN:

WSP UK Ltd

c

PROJECT NO:

70054924

70054924-OP1-100 P01

HAFODYRYNYS , CAERPHILLY

###

CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

1:1000 DM

AM AM May 19

N

G

P
age 209



   KEY

    PRIMARY SIGNAL HEAD

                                   SECONDARY SIGNAL HEAD

NOTES

1. THIS IS A C.A.D. DRAWING AND SHOULD NOT BE AMENDED BY HAND.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS IN METERS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

3. THIS DRAWING SHOULD BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL OTHER

        RELEVANT ENGINEERING DETAILS, DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATION.

4. ANY DISCREPANCIES SHOULD BE REPORTED TO THE  ENGINEER IMMEDIATELY

        SO THAT CLARIFICATION CAN BE SOUGHT PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT

        OF WORKS.

5. ALL WORKS ARE TO BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH

       COUNCIL SPECIFICATIONS AND STANDARDS.

6. CONTRACTOR TO ESTABLISH ALL UTILITY AND DRAINAGE LOCATIONS AND

        COORDINATE SAFE  WORKING PROCEDURES BEFORE ANY EXCAVATION

        WORKS TAKE PLACE.

7. THE WORKS SHALL BE PROGRAMMED TO ENSURE A CLEAR FOOTWAY IS

        AVAILABLE FOR PEDESTRIANS THROUGHOUT THE WORKS.

8. DIAGRAM NUMBERS TO TSRGD REFER TO THOSE SET OUT IN THE TRAFFIC

        SIGNS REGULATIONS AND GENERAL DIRECTIONS 2016.

9. ALL ROAD MARKINGS ARE TO BE WHITE THERMOPLASTIC SCREED UNLESS

        STATED OTHERWISE.

10. THE KERB AND THRESHOLD LEVELS SHOULD NOT BE ALTERED BY THE

        RE-SURFACING OF THE FOOTWAY.

XXX XXX

S2 - FOR INFORMATION

wsp.com

 1 Capital Quarter, Tyndall St, Cardiff, CF10 4BZ, UK

T+ 44 (0) 292 076 9200

APPROVED:

DRAWING No:

SCALE @ A1:

TITLE:

SITE/PROJECT:

DESIGNED:

CHECKED:

DATE:

REV:

ARCHITECT:

CLIENT:

DRAWING STATUS:

F
i
l
e

 
n

a
m

e
 
\
\
U

K
.
W

S
P

G
R

O
U

P
.
C

O
M

\
C

E
N

T
R

A
L

 
D

A
T

A
\
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
\
7

0
0

5
4

9
X

X
\
7

0
0

5
4

9
2

4
 
-
 
H

A
F

O
R

D
Y

R
Y

N
Y

S
 
N

O
2

 
W

E
L

T
A

G
 
S

T
A

G
E

 
3

\
0

3
 
W

I
P

\
H

W
 
H

I
G

H
W

A
Y

S
\
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

\
1

0
2

_
C

R
O

S
S

 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
S

_
R

E
C

O
V

E
R

.
D

W
G

,
 
p

r
i
n

t
e

d
 
o

n
 
1

4
 
J
u

n
e

 
2

0
1

9
 
1

5
:
1

7
:
2

9
,
 
b

y
 
M

i
l
e

s
,
 
A

l
e

x

DRAWN:

WSP UK Ltd

c

PROJECT NO:

70054924

70054924-OP1-100 P01

HAFODYRYNYS , CAERPHILLY

###

CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

1:1000 DM

AM AM June 19

N

G

PLAN

SCALE - 1:2000

CROSS SECTIONS

SCALE - 1:200

P
age 210



   KEY

    PRIMARY SIGNAL HEAD

                                   SECONDARY SIGNAL HEAD

NOTES

1. THIS IS A C.A.D. DRAWING AND SHOULD NOT BE AMENDED BY HAND.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS IN METERS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

3. THIS DRAWING SHOULD BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL OTHER

        RELEVANT ENGINEERING DETAILS, DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATION.

4. ANY DISCREPANCIES SHOULD BE REPORTED TO THE  ENGINEER IMMEDIATELY

        SO THAT CLARIFICATION CAN BE SOUGHT PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT

        OF WORKS.

5. ALL WORKS ARE TO BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH

       COUNCIL SPECIFICATIONS AND STANDARDS.

6. CONTRACTOR TO ESTABLISH ALL UTILITY AND DRAINAGE LOCATIONS AND

        COORDINATE SAFE  WORKING PROCEDURES BEFORE ANY EXCAVATION

        WORKS TAKE PLACE.

7. THE WORKS SHALL BE PROGRAMMED TO ENSURE A CLEAR FOOTWAY IS

        AVAILABLE FOR PEDESTRIANS THROUGHOUT THE WORKS.

8. DIAGRAM NUMBERS TO TSRGD REFER TO THOSE SET OUT IN THE TRAFFIC

        SIGNS REGULATIONS AND GENERAL DIRECTIONS 2016.

9. ALL ROAD MARKINGS ARE TO BE WHITE THERMOPLASTIC SCREED UNLESS

        STATED OTHERWISE.

10. THE KERB AND THRESHOLD LEVELS SHOULD NOT BE ALTERED BY THE

        RE-SURFACING OF THE FOOTWAY.

N

G

XXX XXX

S2 - FOR INFORMATION

wsp.com

 1 Capital Quarter, Tyndall St, Cardiff, CF10 4BZ, UK

T+ 44 (0) 292 076 9200

APPROVED:

DRAWING No:

SCALE @ A1:

TITLE:

SITE/PROJECT:

DESIGNED:

CHECKED:

DATE:

REV:

ARCHITECT:

CLIENT:

DRAWING STATUS:

F
i
l
e

 
n

a
m

e
 
\
\
U

K
.
W

S
P

G
R

O
U

P
.
C

O
M

\
C

E
N

T
R

A
L

 
D

A
T

A
\
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
\
7

0
0

5
4

9
X

X
\
7

0
0

5
4

9
2

4
 
-
 
H

A
F

O
R

D
Y

R
Y

N
Y

S
 
N

O
2

 
W

E
L

T
A

G
 
S

T
A

G
E

 
3

\
0

3
 
W

I
P

\
H

W
 
H

I
G

H
W

A
Y

S
\
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

\
1

0
2

_
C

R
O

S
S

 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
S

.
D

W
G

,
 
p

r
i
n

t
e

d
 
o

n
 
1

4
 
J
u

n
e

 
2

0
1

9
 
1

5
:
1

4
:
1

3
,
 
b

y
 
M

i
l
e

s
,
 
A

l
e

x

DRAWN:

WSP UK Ltd

c

PROJECT NO:

70054924

70054924-OP1-100 P01

HAFODYRYNYS , CAERPHILLY

###

CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

1:1000 DM

AM AM May 19

P
age 211



   KEY

    PRIMARY SIGNAL HEAD

                                   SECONDARY SIGNAL HEAD

NOTES

1. THIS IS A C.A.D. DRAWING AND SHOULD NOT BE AMENDED BY HAND.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS IN METERS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

3. THIS DRAWING SHOULD BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL OTHER

        RELEVANT ENGINEERING DETAILS, DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATION.

4. ANY DISCREPANCIES SHOULD BE REPORTED TO THE  ENGINEER IMMEDIATELY

        SO THAT CLARIFICATION CAN BE SOUGHT PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT

        OF WORKS.

5. ALL WORKS ARE TO BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH

       COUNCIL SPECIFICATIONS AND STANDARDS.

6. CONTRACTOR TO ESTABLISH ALL UTILITY AND DRAINAGE LOCATIONS AND

        COORDINATE SAFE  WORKING PROCEDURES BEFORE ANY EXCAVATION

        WORKS TAKE PLACE.

7. THE WORKS SHALL BE PROGRAMMED TO ENSURE A CLEAR FOOTWAY IS

        AVAILABLE FOR PEDESTRIANS THROUGHOUT THE WORKS.

8. DIAGRAM NUMBERS TO TSRGD REFER TO THOSE SET OUT IN THE TRAFFIC

        SIGNS REGULATIONS AND GENERAL DIRECTIONS 2016.

9. ALL ROAD MARKINGS ARE TO BE WHITE THERMOPLASTIC SCREED UNLESS

        STATED OTHERWISE.

10. THE KERB AND THRESHOLD LEVELS SHOULD NOT BE ALTERED BY THE

        RE-SURFACING OF THE FOOTWAY.

CROSS SECTIONS

SCALE - 1:200

SECTION A-A

1:2 EARTHWORKS TIE IN

SECTION B-B

RETAINING WALL OPTION

XXX XXX

S2 - FOR INFORMATION

wsp.com

 1 Capital Quarter, Tyndall St, Cardiff, CF10 4BZ, UK

T+ 44 (0) 292 076 9200

APPROVED:

DRAWING No:

SCALE @ A1:

TITLE:

SITE/PROJECT:

DESIGNED:

CHECKED:

DATE:

REV:

ARCHITECT:

CLIENT:

DRAWING STATUS:

F
i
l
e

 
n

a
m

e
 
\
\
U

K
.
W

S
P

G
R

O
U

P
.
C

O
M

\
C

E
N

T
R

A
L

 
D

A
T

A
\
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
\
7

0
0

5
4

9
X

X
\
7

0
0

5
4

9
2

4
 
-
 
H

A
F

O
R

D
Y

R
Y

N
Y

S
 
N

O
2

 
W

E
L

T
A

G
 
S

T
A

G
E

 
3

\
0

3
 
W

I
P

\
H

W
 
H

I
G

H
W

A
Y

S
\
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

\
1

0
3

_
D

E
T

A
I
L

 
C

R
O

S
S

 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
S

.
D

W
G

,
 
p

r
i
n

t
e

d
 
o

n
 
1

9
 
J
u

n
e

 
2

0
1

9
 
0

9
:
0

2
:
4

3
,
 
b

y
 
M

i
l
l
w

a
r
d

,
 
I
a

n
t
o

DRAWN:

WSP UK Ltd

c

PROJECT NO:

70054924

70054924-OP1-100 P01

HAFODYRYNYS , CAERPHILLY

###

CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

1:1000 DM

AM AM June 19

N

G

PLAN

SCALE - 1:2000

P
age 212



   KEY

    PRIMARY SIGNAL HEAD

                                   SECONDARY SIGNAL HEAD

NOTES

1. THIS IS A C.A.D. DRAWING AND SHOULD NOT BE AMENDED BY HAND.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS IN METERS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

3. THIS DRAWING SHOULD BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL OTHER

        RELEVANT ENGINEERING DETAILS, DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATION.

4. ANY DISCREPANCIES SHOULD BE REPORTED TO THE  ENGINEER IMMEDIATELY

        SO THAT CLARIFICATION CAN BE SOUGHT PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT

        OF WORKS.

5. ALL WORKS ARE TO BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH

       COUNCIL SPECIFICATIONS AND STANDARDS.

6. CONTRACTOR TO ESTABLISH ALL UTILITY AND DRAINAGE LOCATIONS AND

        COORDINATE SAFE  WORKING PROCEDURES BEFORE ANY EXCAVATION

        WORKS TAKE PLACE.

7. THE WORKS SHALL BE PROGRAMMED TO ENSURE A CLEAR FOOTWAY IS

        AVAILABLE FOR PEDESTRIANS THROUGHOUT THE WORKS.

8. DIAGRAM NUMBERS TO TSRGD REFER TO THOSE SET OUT IN THE TRAFFIC

        SIGNS REGULATIONS AND GENERAL DIRECTIONS 2016.

9. ALL ROAD MARKINGS ARE TO BE WHITE THERMOPLASTIC SCREED UNLESS

        STATED OTHERWISE.

10. THE KERB AND THRESHOLD LEVELS SHOULD NOT BE ALTERED BY THE

        RE-SURFACING OF THE FOOTWAY.

XXX XXX

S2 - FOR INFORMATION

wsp.com

 1 Capital Quarter, Tyndall St, Cardiff, CF10 4BZ, UK

T+ 44 (0) 292 076 9200

APPROVED:

DRAWING No:

SCALE @ A1:

TITLE:

SITE/PROJECT:

DESIGNED:

CHECKED:

DATE:

REV:

ARCHITECT:

CLIENT:

DRAWING STATUS:

F
i
l
e

 
n

a
m

e
 
\
\
U

K
.
W

S
P

G
R

O
U

P
.
C

O
M

\
C

E
N

T
R

A
L

 
D

A
T

A
\
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
\
7

0
0

5
4

9
X

X
\
7

0
0

5
4

9
2

4
 
-
 
H

A
F

O
R

D
Y

R
Y

N
Y

S
 
N

O
2

 
W

E
L

T
A

G
 
S

T
A

G
E

 
3

\
0

3
 
W

I
P

\
H

W
 
H

I
G

H
W

A
Y

S
\
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

\
1

0
4

_
L

O
N

G
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
.
D

W
G

,
 
p

r
i
n

t
e

d
 
o

n
 
1

4
 
J
u

n
e

 
2

0
1

9
 
1

5
:
2

1
:
2

1
,
 
b

y
 
M

i
l
e

s
,
 
A

l
e

x

DRAWN:

WSP UK Ltd

c

PROJECT NO:

70054924

70054924-OP1-100 P01

HAFODYRYNYS , CAERPHILLY

###

CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

1:1000 DM

AM AM June 19

N

G

PLAN

SCALE - 1:2000

P
age 213



3.0

3.00.5

0.7

0.5

2.4

EGL

EGL

XXX XXX

S2 - FOR INFORMATION

wsp.com

 1 Capital Quarter, Tyndall St, Cardiff, CF10 4BZ, UK

T+ 44 (0) 292 076 9200

APPROVED:

DRAWING No:

SCALE @ A1:

TITLE:

SITE/PROJECT:

DESIGNED:

CHECKED:

DATE:

REV:

ARCHITECT:

CLIENT:

DRAWING STATUS:

F
i
l
e

 
n

a
m

e
 
\
\
U

K
.
W

S
P

G
R

O
U

P
.
C

O
M

\
C

E
N

T
R

A
L

 
D

A
T

A
\
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
\
7

0
0

5
4

9
X

X
\
7

0
0

5
4

9
2

4
 
-
 
H

A
F

O
R

D
Y

R
Y

N
Y

S
 
N

O
2

 
W

E
L

T
A

G
 
S

T
A

G
E

 
3

\
0

3
 
W

I
P

\
H

W
 
H

I
G

H
W

A
Y

S
\
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

\
S

K
0

2
_

C
R

O
S

S
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
S

.
D

W
G

,
 
p

r
i
n

t
e

d
 
o

n
 
1

9
 
J
u

n
e

 
2

0
1

9
 
0

9
:
0

7
:
0

0
,
 
b

y
 
M

i
l
l
w

a
r
d

,
 
I
a

n
t
o

DRAWN:

WSP UK Ltd

c

PROJECT NO:

70054924

70054924- P01

HAFODYRYNYS , CAERPHILLY

INDICATIVE CROSS SECTIONS

CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

1:1000 DM

AM AM June 19

N

G

PLAN

SCALE - 1:2000

3m PEDESTRIAN FOOTWAY

INCLUDING 0.5m OFFSET FOR

STREET FURNITURE IE TOP OF

WALL, FENCE AND LIGHTING

COLUMNS

INDICATIVE 1 IN 2

EARTHWORKS SLOPE. WALL

DETAIL / LEVEL DIFFERENCE

SHOWN IN CROSS SECTIONS.

EXISTING HOUSING

FOOTWAY EXTENTS DEVELOPED USING AIR

QUALITY EXTENTS AS A GUIDE. THIS OPTION

DOES NOT INCLUDE A SAFETY MARGIN

BETWEEN THE MAPPED AIR QUALITY ZONE.

P
age 214



10m DEEP

BOREHOLE

STEEP EMBANKMENT

WATERCOURSE

10m DEEP

BOREHOLE

STEEP EMBANKMENT

WATERCOURSE

10m DEEP

BOREHOLE

STEEP EMBANKMENT

WATERCOURSE

© 2019 Microsoft Corporation © 2019 HERE 

XXX XXX

S2 - FOR INFORMATION

wsp.com

 1 Capital Quarter, Tyndall St, Cardiff, CF10 4BZ, UK

T+ 44 (0) 292 076 9200

APPROVED:

DRAWING No:

SCALE @ A1:

TITLE:

SITE/PROJECT:

DESIGNED:

CHECKED:

DATE:

REV:

ARCHITECT:

CLIENT:

DRAWING STATUS:

F
i
l
e

 
n

a
m

e
 
\
\
U

K
.
W

S
P

G
R

O
U

P
.
C

O
M

\
C

E
N

T
R

A
L

 
D

A
T

A
\
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
\
7

0
0

5
4

9
X

X
\
7

0
0

5
4

9
2

4
 
-
 
H

A
F

O
R

D
Y

R
Y

N
Y

S
 
N

O
2

 
W

E
L

T
A

G
 
S

T
A

G
E

 
3

\
0

3
 
W

I
P

\
H

W
 
H

I
G

H
W

A
Y

S
\
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

\
S

K
0

3
_

B
O

R
E

 
H

O
L

E
 
L

O
C

A
T

I
O

N
S

.
D

W
G

,
 
p

r
i
n

t
e

d
 
o

n
 
1

4
 
J
u

n
e

 
2

0
1

9
 
1

5
:
2

6
:
4

5
,
 
b

y
 
M

i
l
e

s
,
 
A

l
e

x

DRAWN:

WSP UK Ltd

c

PROJECT NO:

70054924

70054924-WT3-SK03 P01

HAFODYRYNYS , CAERPHILLY

###

CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

AS SHOWN DM

AM AM June 19

N

G

N

G

N

G

N

G

CROSS SECTION C-C

SCALE - 1:200

CROSS SECTION B-B

SCALE - 1:200

CROSS SECTION A-A

SCALE - 1:200

INSET A

SCALE - 1:200

INSET B

SCALE - 1:200

INSET C

SCALE - 1:200

INSET A

INSET B

INSET C

KEY

LOCATION OF REQUIRED BOREHOLE

BH1

BH2

BH3

A

4

7

2

 

H

A

F

O

D

Y

R

Y

N

Y

S

 

R

O

A

D

SITE LOCATION

P
age 215



CROSS SECTIONS

H SCALE - 1:200

V SCALE - 1:100

SECTION A-A

1:2 EARTHWORKS TIE IN

SECTION B-B

RETAINING STRUCTURE OPTION

RETAINING

STRUCTURE

2.45m

3.50m

1.35m

3.00m

CARRIAGEWAY (A472)

10.09m

1.34m

CARRIAGEWAY (A472)

12.23m

WATERCOURSE

XXX XXX

S2 - FOR INFORMATION

wsp.com

 1 Capital Quarter, Tyndall St, Cardiff, CF10 4BZ, UK

T+ 44 (0) 292 076 9200

APPROVED:

DRAWING No:

SCALE @ A1:

TITLE:

SITE/PROJECT:

DESIGNED:

CHECKED:

DATE:

REV:

ARCHITECT:

CLIENT:

DRAWING STATUS:

F
i
l
e

 
n

a
m

e
 
\
\
U

K
.
W

S
P

G
R

O
U

P
.
C

O
M

\
C

E
N

T
R

A
L

 
D

A
T

A
\
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
\
7

0
0

5
4

9
X

X
\
7

0
0

5
4

9
2

4
 
-
 
H

A
F

O
R

D
Y

R
Y

N
Y

S
 
N

O
2

 
W

E
L

T
A

G
 
S

T
A

G
E

 
3

\
0

3
 
W

I
P

\
H

W
 
H

I
G

H
W

A
Y

S
\
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

\
S

K
0

4
_

C
R

O
S

S
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
S

 
F

O
R

 
C

O
M

M
E

N
T

.
D

W
G

,
 
p

r
i
n

t
e

d
 
o

n
 
1

4
 
J
u

n
e

 
2

0
1

9
 
1

5
:
2

8
:
0

2
,
 
b

y
 
M

i
l
e

s
,
 
A

l
e

x

DRAWN:

WSP UK Ltd

c

PROJECT NO:

70054924

70054924-WT3-SK04 P01

HAFODYRYNYS , CAERPHILLY

CROSS SECTIONS FOR

COMMENT

CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

AS SHOWN DM

AM AM June 19

N

G

PLAN

SCALE - 1:2000

PROPOSED FOOTWAY

P
age 216



PUBLIC

1 Capital Quarter
Tyndall Street
Cardiff
CF10 4BZ

wsp.com

Page 217



Appendix 2 

1 
 

Caerphilly County Borough Council 
WelTAG Stage 3 Feasibility Study  

 
Consultation Summary Report 

Introduction 
 

The European Union Ambient Air Quality Directive (2008/50/EC) sets legally binding limits for 
concentrations of certain air pollutants in outdoor air termed ‘limit values’. The A472, Hafod-yr-Ynys 
Road exceeds the limit value for nitrogen dioxide (NO2) and Caerphilly County Borough Council is 
investigating measures to bring forward reductions in NO2 to ensure compliance with the Ambient Air 
Quality Directive in the shortest possible time. 

A feasibility study has predicted that a ‘Do Minimum’ scenario, which involves public awareness 
raising and educational campaigns would achieve compliance by 2025.  The study also assessed a 
number of options and concluded that demolition of the houses at 1-20 Woodside Terrace to include 
1&2 Woodside Shops and Yr Adfa will achieve compliance with the air quality limit values in the 
shortest possible time; by 2022. 

Caerphilly Council’s Cabinet have considered the findings from the study. Following deliberations 
regarding the potential impact on the mental health and well-being of the residents, together with 
the potential to create financial hardship; the Cabinet agreed to consult on the ‘Do Minimum’ option 
as the preferred option for securing compliance with the Air Quality Directive. In addition, the Council 
have lobbied Welsh Government for additional financial support, in order to prevent those affected 
residents being forced into financial hardship in the event that the demolition option is subsequently 
required. 

Following the Cabinet Decision and the outcome of the Feasibility Study, a 10 week Public 
Consultation commenced on Tuesday 02 April to allow people to submit their views on the draft 
version of the Stage 3 Feasibility Study Report  prior to the submission of the final report to Welsh 
Government on 30 June 2019. 

Page 218



Appendix 2 

2 
 

 

 

Method 
 

All stakeholders have been sign posted to the consultation by social media, with additional e-mails 
and written correspondence being sent to key stakeholders / groups to maximise the number of 
responses received during the consultation period. 

 

Engagement 
Key engagement mechanisms included: 

• Online - via the CCBC Website, social media (including Facebook and Twitter)  
• E-mails and written correspondence (letters to local residents) 
• Paper Questionnaires – hand delivered to residents directly affected by the outcome of the 

feasibility study.  
•  

Social Media 
The consultation was promoted via social media at the outset of the consultation period with 
occasional social media reminders thereafter. 

Survey 
The questionnaire was designed to seek residents, stakeholder and visitors views on  

• The Cabinet decision to support ‘Do minimum’ as a preferred option whilst lobbying Welsh 
Government for additional  funding should the demolition option be pursued, and;   

• The outcome of the WelTAG Stage 3 Feasibility Study to demolish 23 properties to the 
Southern side of the A472. 

Respondents were asked whether they agreed or disagreed in relation to each of the options set out 
for delivering compliance with the European Union Ambient Air Quality Directive (2008/50/EC) in the 
‘shortest possible time’.  There was also provision within the questionnaire to explain why they 
agreed/disagreed with any of the options put forward and to note any equality implications.   

Page 219



Appendix 2 

3 
 

Survey Findings 
A total of 54 responses were received and have been included in this analysis.  Not all respondents 
answered every question and where the number of responses to a question is lower,  this figure is 
noted in brackets next to the heading of the relevant question.  

Respondent Profile (n=54) 
A profile of respondents provides context for an analysis of the responses received.   

As shown in Graph 1, the largest proportion (31) of those who responded indicated that they were 
residents living in the borough.  In addition 12 respondents indicated that they are residents of 1-20 
Woodside Terrace, 1&2 Woodside Shops and Yr Adfa.  Under the ‘other’ category 4 people indicated 
that they were either friends or relatives of those living in Woodside Terrace. 

 

Graph 1:  Interest in Consultation (n=54) 

 

 
Gender (n= 54) 
Of those who gave a response to this question, 25 were female and 29 were male. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 220



Appendix 2 

4 
 

 
Age Groups (n=53)   
 

As shown in Graph 2, the largest proportion of respondents were aged 50 and 

over.  

 

Equalities (n=53) 

53 of the respondents felt that their responses to the public consultation was not influenced 
positively or negatively by any of the characteristics listed within Q9 of the questionnaire.  However 1 
respondent commented that their answer was influenced by the fact that he/she has 3 small children 
who all depend on her.  

 

Options Appraisal 

Feasibility Study (n=52) 

It can be seen from Graph 3 below that there is a divide of opinion in relation to the feasibility 
outcome.  Of the 52 respondents who answered the question, 22 people agreed with the outcome of 
the feasibility study i.e. to demolish the properties.  However, 30 people disagreed with this option. 

 

 

 

 

Page 221



Appendix 2 

5 
 

Graph 3: Do you agree or disagree with the outcome of the Hafod-Yr-Ynys Air Quality Feasibility 
Study WelTAG Stage 3 Report?  (n =52) 

 

 

Respondents were additionally asked to give reasons why they agreed/disagreed with the feasibility 
study.  Whilst the figures above suggest that 30 respondents disagreed with demolition, the 
comments that accompanied this answer did not always appear consistent with this view. 

Key themes in support of the feasibility outcome include: 

• Demolition is the only option that will bring about compliance with the EU Directive 
• Concerns for the impact on residents, in particular health concerns 
• Concern that the air quality situation will worsen over years at a quicker rate than green 

technology 
• Increased housing development within the area will further add to air quality issues 
• That improvements to air quality need to be made elsewhere not just at Woodside Terrace 
• Severe uncertainty around predictions in the reduction of NO2 to reach compliance by 2025.  
• In the absence of restricting traffic type and volume, demolition is the only other option. 
• Road Safety concerns – volume of traffic 
• The area is extremely dilapidated 

Key themes to emerge in disagreement with the feasibility outcome include: 

• Improvements to air quality can be made in other ways e.g. restricting traffic type and volume 
and improving the road network to reduce congestion  

• Unreasonable to offer 10% of market value to residents. 
• Re-utilise alternate traffic route through Swffryd (B4471) seen as a better option to relieve 

issue. 

Page 222



Appendix 2 

6 
 

• Impact on residents has not been fully considered. 
• Ambiguity surrounding reliance on vehicular emission modelling outcomes. 
• No faith in assumption that residents on other side of the road aren’t affected. 
• The health impact assessment (in relation to demolition) does not take into consideration the 

psychological impacts on residents. 
• Residents need safer environment to live in. Volume of traffic makes it an unhealthy place to 

live. 
• Traffic flows are underestimated considerably. 
• Demolition is the only option! 

 

Do minimum (n=53) 

In relation to the ‘Do minimum’ option, 49 people disagreed with the CCBC cabinet proposal and 4 of 
the respondents agreed. One respondent did not answer. 

Graph 4: Do you agree or disagree with the proposal that ‘Do minimum’ is the preferred option? 
(n=53) 

 

 

Key themes in support of the ‘Do minimum’ option included: 

• Residents in properties included in the demolition proposal not wishing to leave their home 
• Tackling the traffic emissions by taking the higher pollution vehicles off the roads and 

replacing with greener equivalents should be the priority of Government 
 

 

Page 223



Appendix 2 

7 
 

Key themes in disagreement with the ‘Do minimum’ option included: 

• Do minimum is not an option as it is not compliant with EU directive 
• ‘Do minimum’ does not feature in the content of the feasibility study and is not an option 
• ‘Do minimum’ will have a detrimental effect on the lives of the residents 

o This is a public health issue - everything possible should be done to reduce the impact 
on people’s health 

• Air quality will worsen if nothing is done to address the issues 
• Traffic and congestion is an ongoing issue in the area and needs to be resolved 

 

Discussion 

Upon review of the data, it is apparent that the majority of people who responded to the question in 
relation to the feasibility study disagreed with the outcome of the report (30/54). Out of the 
respondents who disagreed, respondents further commented on the reasoning for their choice. For 
those who disagreed with the conclusions in the feasibility study (demolition), comments provided 
suggest that respondents felt that demolition will not encourage reductions in traffic emissions 
borough wide and feel that this is something that should be further considered. 

Others felt that the air quality issues at Hafodyrynys could be effectively managed/reduced by other 
means such as further road infrastructure improvements, i.e. alternative traffic routes/diversions, 
construction of a by-pass to name a few. However, it should be noted that options such as a bypass 
which would offer an alternative route have been considered in earlier stages of the study and have 
been ruled out based on the timescales it would take to deliver the option. 

Some residents living in the nearby vicinity felt that their properties should be included within the 
demolition proposal, however, real time data and modelling outcomes conclude that properties on 
the north side of the A472 are currently in compliance with the air quality limit value for NO2 and 
demolition of the properties on the south side of the A472, will reduce the concentrations of nitrogen 
dioxide within the area even further.  For this reason, the properties on the north side of the A472 or 
properties in the wider vicinity have not been included within the demolition proposal. 

Some of the comments provided in support of the disagreement with the feasibility outcomes (little 
faith in modelling methodology and the under representation of traffic flows) still acknowledged that 
demolition of the properties is an option to resolve the issue going forward, not only to reduce the 
air quality issues within the area but also for road safety purposes. 

Of those people who agreed with the feasibility outcome (22), respondents chose to provide further 
justification for their answers. Respondents raised concerns for the resident’s health and prolonged 
suffering of those living at the properties. Respondents also chose to mention that it was the option 
that would achieve compliance with the EU directive and acknowledge that demolition should not 
leave residents in financial hardship should the option be implemented. 

Page 224



Appendix 2 

8 
 

Of those who wished to elaborate on their reasoning for disagreeing with ‘Do minimum’ it was felt 
that CCBC were not taking the air quality, or health of the residents seriously. 

One respondent felt that ‘Do minimum would be acceptable as an ‘interim’ option prior to working 
on a long-term resolution, whilst other respondents felt the Local Authority were absolving their 
responsibility to address the issue at hand. 

Although 22 of 52 respondents agreed with demolition, a majority (49/53 respondents) disagreed 
with the do minimum option.  In addition, whilst there are mixed views relating to demolition, it 
would appear that a number of respondents did feel that demolition would be a better option going 
forward than do minimum.  

Page 225



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 226



 
 
 

CABINET – 26TH JUNE 2019 
 
 
SUBJECT: REGENERATION GRANTS – WIDER CONSULTATION  
 
REPORT BY:  INTERIM CORPORATE DIRECTOR - COMMUNITIES 
 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 Following a review undertaken on the revenue and capital grant schemes currently 

administered by the Council’s Regeneration Division, a report was presented to 
Cabinet on the 27th February 2019 detailing how a new Caerphilly Enterprise Fund 
could operate to streamline and simplify the process of making a grant application. 
This Cabinet report is attached at Appendix 1. 

 
1.2 Further to consideration of the report, officers were tasked with undertaking a 

consultation exercise in respect of the proposed change set out by officers in the 
original Cabinet report.  This report outlines the results of the consultation which has 
been undertaken, predominantly with the voluntary sector and community groups, 
over a 4 week consultation period.  

 
1.3 For completeness this report also summarises the potential to combine the five 

existing grant programmes into a single “Caerphilly Enterprise Fund” with a 
refocus towards offering improved support to start up businesses, stimulating 
economic growth, filling identified supply chain voids and supporting job creation.   

 
 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 A report went before Cabinet on the 27th February 2019, detailing how a new grants 

regime could concentrate more activity on developing business growth and creating 
employment opportunities within the County Borough. The report outlined that the 
primary focus of a new Caerphilly Enterprise Fund (CEF) should be on economic 
growth. 

 
 
2.2 Although the proposed grant regime would be open for community groups and social 

enterprises they would in future be required to evidence how their projects encourage 
economic activity. As the report advocated discontinuing the Community 
Regeneration Fund to fund the CEF, the recommendations to Cabinet on the 27th 
February 2019 requested that Cabinet note the contents of the report and approve a 
wider consultation exercise with the voluntary sector and community groups on the 
principles set out in the report. 

Page 227

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 5



 
2.3  This report outlines the results of the wider consultation. 
 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 That Cabinet: 
 
3.1 Note the consultation feedback on the proposals presented within the original report 

presented to Cabinet on the 27th February 2019.  
 
3.2 Approve that the existing grants, namely the Commercial Improvement Grant; 

Business Development Grant; Business Start Up Grant and Community 
Regeneration Fund are amalgamated to provide a new Caerphilly Enterprise Fund 
with immediate effect. 

 
3.3 Approve that the existing core grant allocations are re-aligned to provide greater 

economic outputs within the county borough under the Caerphilly Enterprise Fund 
umbrella.  

 
3.4 Approve that the existing Community Regeneration Fund be discontinued. 
 
3.5 Approve that Officers request that the geographic boundary for the Oakdale 

Community Benefit Fund be increased from 1.5 miles to 2 miles but should not be 
available outside of the county borough. 

 
3.6 Considers and endorses the protocols outlined within the original cabinet report for 

determining grant applications. 
 
 
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 To offer improved support to businesses and to maximise economic growth 
 
4.2 To standardise the process for grants administration throughout the Regeneration 

Division and to improve the systems by which the Regeneration and Planning 
Division controls and administers grants. 

 
 
 
5. THE REPORT 
 
 Background 
 
5.1 The report presented to Cabinet on the 27th February 2019 advocated a new grants 

regime that would concentrate more activity on developing business growth and 
creating employment opportunities within the County Borough. It is recommended 
that the primary focus of a new Caerphilly Enterprise Fund should be on: 

 
 Business Start Ups in all sectors (less than 12 months trading); 

 Underutilised/empty town centre commercial properties; 

 Small and Medium Sized Enterprises;  

 Established Community Groups or Social Enterprises; 

 Filling identified supply chain voids identified by CCBC Procurement; 

Page 228



 Projects that help create or safeguard jobs - contributing to the Council’s 

Well Being Goals. 

 
 
5.2 The full Cabinet Report is attached at Appendix 1 
 
5.2 Although the grant regime would be open for community groups and social 

enterprises they will need to evidence that their projects focus on economic activity. 
 
5.3 It is proposed that the Community Regeneration Fund programme be discontinued 

and the budget should be vired into the Caerphilly Enterprise Fund. Officers will 
continue to offer support and guidance to groups looking for funding and will actively 
signpost them to suitable available external grants.    

 
5.4 If approved, the new Caerphilly Enterprise Fund will offer funding support under two 

categories; the first being Business Support and the second being Property 
Improvement. It is also proposed that the existing geographical boundary for the 
Oakdale Community Benefit Fund is extended from 1.5 miles to 2 miles 

 
 

Table 1: Proposed Grant Limits and Intervention Rates 
 
 

Fund Proposed Grant Available Intervention Rate 

   

Caerphilly Enterprise Fund - 
Theme 1 “Business Support” 

£200- £2,000 revenue 
Up to 45% 

Caerphilly Enterprise Fund -  
Theme 2 “Property 

Improvement” 
Up to £10,000 capital 

Up to 50% 

Oakdale Community Benefit 
Fund 

Up to £3,000 capital 
Up to £3,000 revenue 

Up to 80% 

 
 

5.5 The good work that the voluntary sector and community groups undertake is fully 
recognised and greatly appreciated, however the recommendations contained in the 
report will make the overall grants system simpler and easier to navigate.  It is also 
apparent that there are a number of external funding mechanisms that voluntary and 
community groups are able to bid into to secure monies for localised community 
projects. Officers will continue to offer support and guidance to groups looking for 
funding and will actively signpost them to suitable available external grants.    

 
5.6 It was considered appropriate to undertake a wider consultation exercise on the 

proposal to discontinue the CRF due to the likely impact this would have on its 
current beneficiaries. Cabinet requested that a further report outlining the 
consultation results be presented to them. 

 Consultation 

5.7 In order to reach as many groups as possible it was considered appropriate to 
undertake a varied series of consultation exercises/events including: 

Page 229



 Officers attended the Voluntary Sector Liaison Committee held on the 14th 
March 2019, where the proposed enterprise fund was explained and 
feedback received from committee members; 

 A delegation of voluntary sector organisations was invited to meet with the 
Head of Regeneration and Planning to voice their concerns over the 
proposals. This meeting was held on the 29th April 2019. 

 Webpage Questionnaire – A short consultation questionnaire focusing on 
the review of CCBC Regeneration Grants was posted on the “Have Your 
Say” section of the CCBC webpage for 4 weeks, along with the February 
Cabinet report in order to give people a better understanding of the 
proposals. GAVO and the Council’s policy team have signposted all 
known voluntary sector and community groups to participate. To balance 
this, the Council’s Business Support Team also asked local businesses to 
respond to the consultation.  The Town and Community Councils were 
notified that the consultation was taking place. 

 

Feedback  

5.8 The next section outlines the feedback received as the result of the consultation 
exercise outlined above. 

Voluntary Sector Liaison Committee and Subsequent Meeting on 29th April 

5.9 The main threads running through the feedback received at the Voluntary Sector 
Liaison Committee and the meeting between the Head of Regeneration Planning and 
voluntary sector reps on the 29th April can be summarised as follows: 

 The grants have been a constant in recent years and local groups have 
become accustomed to utilising the CRF to act as match-funding towards 
external funding bids for larger sums of money. As such it has been very 
productive at levering in external funding for local projects, many of which 
help with the prosperity of the local economy. 

 Although not necessarily economically focused, a large number of the 
projects supported through CRF, do provide services or support that have 
a positive impact on the communities’ economic strength. Instances such 
as providing childcare to allow parents to work or providing training to 
improve a person self-confidence/self-esteem may not make direct 
impacts but they do help enormously. 

 Concern that groups that are not constituted as Social enterprises or 
Community Interest Companies will miss out totally, even though they 
provide valuable services that do have an economic impact. 

 That the eligibility criteria will be so tight as to exclude groups from 
actually bidding into the CEF 

 Perceived that the CRF had more stringent conditions than the business 
grants in operation. Queries over which set of conditions would win out. 

 That the list of alternative grants available to these groups outlined in the 
original Cabinet report are not easy to access and listing these as an 
alternative source of funding is therefore misleading. 

Page 230



 

 Caerphilly Have Your Say Webpage Consultation Results 

5.10 There were 54 respondents of which 28 were voluntary sector organisations, 4 were 
social enterprises and 25 were businesses 

5.11 All of the respondents had received some form of grant from the regeneration grant 
programmes previously, with 49% benefitting from the Community Regeneration 
Fund. 

5.12  Between 50% and 60% of respondents supported a new grant scheme focusing on 
developing business growth and employment opportunities, be it for start ups, SME’s 
or targeted at town centre businesses.. This is counterbalanced with 55% strongly 
supporting grants being focused on community groups and social enterprises. A 
further 26% agree with this focus. 

5.13  55% of respondents considered that the focus of the CEF should be on established 
community groups or social enterprises; followed by small and medium sized 
businesses (34%); and underutilised/empty properties in town centres (29%).  

5.14 The online survey requested that participants outline the reason for their responses 
and this led to a large mixture of comments which can be viewed in detail in 
Appendix 2 – Regeneration Grants Consultation Survey Report/Responses.  

5.15  A short synopsis of the comments made is as follows: 

 Small and medium sized businesses need more support and grant aid helps 
enormously; 

 Start-up businesses need as much support as possible to become successful; 

 Community groups do not have access to the funding that private businesses 
have and will find it hard to access funding under the new regime; 

 Taking away the grant that offers support to the voluntary sector is short-sighted; 

 The focus on supporting economic growth is too narrow – vibrant communities 
are more than this; 

 The CRF is a very effective tool at supporting groups to provide much needed 
services and facilities in a number of communities across the county borough. 
Many of the projects provide pathways to employment;  

 Community Groups should not have to compete with businesses for this grant; 

 Several replies stating that the funding should not be used to fill supply chain 
voids;  

 Concentrate grants to town centres. 

5.16 When asked whether they would apply for grant under the new fund there was an 
even split between those saying yes (41%) and those saying no (41%) with 19% 
stating they may. 

5.17  A small amount of correspondence has also been received independently from the 
exercises outlined above. This has predominantly come from voluntary sector 

Page 231



organisations and community groups who all support the retention of the CRF grants 
programme. 

5.18 Town and Community Councils have been notified of this proposals and the on line 
consultation process. Two Town Councils have filled in the on-line survey and 
Blackwood Town Council have emailed the council to express their displeasure with 
the proposals to stop the CRF grants. 

 

Conclusion   

5.19 The survey results show a clear split in the responses between the replies of 
businesses and those of community groups/voluntary sector.  

5.20 It is clear that voluntary sector /community groups feel threatened by the proposals 
and are apprehensive about being able to secure funding under the CEF. This is 
reflected in both the feedback from the voluntary sector liaison committee, the 
correspondence received and also from the survey results. 

5.21  Local businesses however stress that they need as much help as possible in a 
challenging economic climate to succeed. 
 

 

6. ASSUMPTIONS 

6.1 It is assumed that there will be a sufficient internal budget to allow the Regeneration 
Service to continue operating a grants regime in the future. 

6.2  The need for MTFP savings has put a massive strain on internal budgets and 
2019/20 has seen ‘one year only savings’ being introduced against the business 
grants. These could be introduced permanently from 2020/21 to help make the 
necessary departmental savings. 

6.3 That the extensive consultation exercise will have captured the views of those people 
wishing to express an opinion on the proposals set out in the original Cabinet report. 

 
7.  LINKS TO RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES 
 
 Corporate Plan 2018-2023.   

 
7.1 The report recommendations contributes towards or impacts predominantly on the 

following Corporate Well-being Objectives:     
 
 Objective 2 - Enabling employment. 
 

Objective 6 - Support citizens to remain independent and improve their well-being. 
 

 
8. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS 
 
8.1 This proposal contributes to the Well-being Goals of the Council and is aimed at 

improving the economic well-being of the County Borough. 
 

Page 232



8.2 As such, the proposals align with the following well-being goals: 
 

 A prosperous Wales – financial contributions to targeted business sectors will 
support opportunities for development of a skilled population in an economy 
which generates wealth and employment opportunities; 

 A resilient Wales – targeted grant support will foster social, economic resilience 
and the capacity to adapt to change; 

 A more equal Wales – the grant programmes encourage applications from a 
wide range of sectors and organisations, community, voluntary or business, and 
reflect a broad opportunity for participation;  

 A Wales of cohesive communities – the grant programmes support measures 
to provide attractive and well connected communities through financial support to 
community based projects and environmental improvements;  

 A globally responsible Wales – the grant programmes support measures which 
improve the economic, social and environmental well-being of the County 
Borough. 

 
8.3 The report recommendations are consistent with the five ways of working as defined 

within the sustainable development principle in the Act.  The five ways of working of 
the sustainable development principle, listed in the Act are: 

 Long Term – The importance of balancing short-term needs with the need to 
safeguard the ability of future generations to meet their long-term needs 

 Prevention - How acting to prevent problems occurring, or getting worse, may 
help public bodies meet their objectives 

 Integration – Considering how the public body’s well-being objectives may 
impact upon each of the well-being goals, on their other objectives, or on the 
objectives of other public bodies 

 Collaboration – Acting in collaboration with any other person (or different 
parts of the body itself) that could help the body to meet its well-being 
objectives 

 Involvement – The importance of involving people with an interest in 
achieving the well-being goals, and ensuring that those people reflect the 
diversity of the area which the body serves. 

 
 
9. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1  An EQLA screening has been completed in accordance with the Council’s Strategic 

Equality Plan and supplementary guidance and some potential for unlawful 
discrimination and or low level or minor negative impact have been identified 
affecting one or more of the target equality groups.  

 
9.2 A full EQLA has been carried out as part of the original Cabinet Report setting out 

officers proposals to introduce a Caerphilly Enterprise Fund. (Appendix 1) 
 
 
 
10. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 These are covered in detail in the original cabinet report. However it should be noted 

that the one year only savings identified for 2019/20 in the original report, may 
become permanent savings for 2020/21 onwards.  

Page 233



 
11. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 Currently Business Support and Funding Team officers are the primary contact for 

the business growth grants with enquires relating to property improvements directed 
to the Urban Renewal team.  

 
11.2 The restructuring of the Regeneration and Planning Department will identify roles and 

responsibilities for officers with regards to this new grants model, should it be 
implemented 

 
12. CONSULTATIONS 
 
12.1 All consultation responses are reflected in the report. 
 
 
13. STATUTORY POWER  
 
13.1 The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 Local Government Acts. 
 
 
Author: Allan Dallimore, Regeneration Services Manager 
  

Consultees: Cllr Sean Morgan, Cabinet Member for Economy, 
Infrastructure, Sustainability & Wellbeing of Future Generations Champion 
(Chair)  
Christina Harrhy – Interim Chief Executive 
Mark S. Williams, Interim Corporate Director Communities 

 Stephen Harris, Interim Head of Business Improvement Services and Section 
151 Officer 
Rhian Kyte, Head of Regeneration and Planning 
Robert Tranter, Head of Legal Services/Monitoring Officer 

  Antony Bolter, Group Manager (Strategy Funding & Support) 
  Glenn Cooper, Project Officer, Urban Renewal Team 
  Clair Vokes, Grants Officer (Strategy Funding and Support) 
  Tina McMahon, Community Regeneration Manager 
  Dave Roberts, Principal Group Accountant   
  Nadeem Akhtar, Group Accountant, Corporate Finance 
  Kath Peters, Corporate Policy Manager 
  Alison Palmer, Community Planning Co-Ordinator 
  Vicki Doyle, Policy Officer, Statistics and Funding 

Anwen Cullinane, Senior Policy Officer – Equalities and Welsh Language 
Shaun Watkins, Principal Personnel Officer 

 
 
Appendices: 
 
Appendix A 
Cabinet Report – 27th February 2019 
 
Appendix B 
Regeneration Grants Consultation Survey Report/Responses. 

Page 234



 

1 
 

  
 
 

APPENDIX A  

CABINET – 27TH FEBRUARY 2019  
 

SUBJECT: REVIEW OF CCBC REGENERATION GRANTS  
 

REPORT BY: INTERIM CORPORATE DIRECTOR - COMMUNITIES 

 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT   
 
1.1 Following a review undertaken on the revenue and capital grant schemes currently 

administered by the Council’s Regeneration Division, it is recommended that existing grants 
be amalgamated into a combined “Caerphilly Enterprise Fund“ that focuses delivery on 
developing business growth and creating employment opportunities. To accommodate this 
officers propose merging several grant programmes including the Community Regeneration 
Fund and focusing their budgets into the Caerphilly Enterprise Fund. Approval to consult more 
widely on these proposals is being sought from Cabinet. 

 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 The current grant schemes are administered by both the Urban Renewal and the Business 

Support & Funding Teams within the Regeneration Division and offer financial support to both 
the commercial/business sectors and community/voluntary sectors. The current grant 
schemes are as follows: 

  
 Business Grants      Administered By 
 

 Commercial Improvement Grant (CIG)   Urban Renewal Team 
 Business Development Grant (BDG)   Business Support & Funding Team 
 Business Start Up Grant (BSUG)    Business Support & Funding Team 

 
 

Community / Voluntary Grants 
 

 Community Regeneration Fund (CRF)  Business Support & Funding Team 
 Oakdale Community Benefit Fund (OCBF) Business Support & Funding Team 

 
 
2.2 The above are a mixture of revenue and capital funded grants and as such there is a 

requirement to manage and keep them separate.  
 
2.3 This Report provides an evaluation of the current grant schemes and outlines the potential to 

combine the grants into a single “Caerphilly Enterprise Fund” with a refocus towards 
offering improved support to start up businesses, stimulating economic growth, filling identified 
supply chain voids and supporting job creation. The report requests further consultation with 
the voluntary sector and community groups on the proposals within the report. 

 
 

Page 235



 

2 
 

 
 
 
3. LINKS TO STRATEGY 
 
3.1 The scheme supports the Well-being Objectives set out in the Caerphilly County Borough 

Council Corporate Plan 2018-2023, specifically “Enabling Employment”. 
 
3.2 The scheme supports the Council’s Anti Poverty Strategy,  whilst supporting and encouraging 

economic growth and business development which are themes running through the Council’s 
Regeneration Strategy entitled ‘A Foundation for Success 2018-2023’. 

 
3.3 The grants programme will have a positive impact upon the social, economic and 

environmental well-being of the area and community it serves.  In particular the grants 
contribute to the following goals within the Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 
2015: 

 A resilient Wales 

 A sustainable Wales 

 A prosperous Wales 

 A Wales of cohesive communities 

 A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh Language 
 
 
4. THE REPORT 
 

Background 
4.1 Grants are administered by the Urban Renewal Team and Business Support & Funding Team 

within the Regeneration and Planning Division. Urban Renewal administers a Commercial 
Improvement Grant Scheme (CIG), which is a capital budget targeted towards retail and 
commercial property improvements in towns and villages within the County Borough. The 
Business Support and Funding Team administer the Business Start Up Grant (BSUG) which 
is revenue funded and Business Development Grant (BDG) to the business sector which is 
made up of a capital and revenue budget.  

 
4.2 Two additional grants are aimed at the community/voluntary sector, namely: the Community 

Regeneration Fund (CRF) which is a mixture of capital and revenue funding along with the 
Oakdale Community Benefit Fund (OCBF) which also consists of revenue and capital monies. 

 
4.3 Officers have undertaken a comprehensive review of the current regeneration grant regimes, 

including the option to merge the grants into a single, targeted grant with the aim of offering a 
greater focus on: supporting start up businesses; encouraging economic growth; filling 
identified supply chain voids and stimulating and supporting job creation within the County 
Borough. 

  

Overview of current Regeneration Grant Schemes 
 
4.4 The following existing grant schemes are funded by the Council’s internal capital and revenue 

annual budget allocations. There are no conditions which would preclude changes or mergers 
of the Commercial Improvement Grants or Business Support Grants. However, the 
Community Grants Programmes will require Cabinet Approval to revise (see also paragraph 
7.6). 

 
 Commercial Improvement Grants (Urban Renewal Team) 
4.5 Financial assistance is offered for improvements to commercial, retail and industrial premises 

located in town and village centres within the County Borough. Eligible works include the 

Page 236



 

3 
 

conversion, extension, improvement or modification of existing commercial buildings, and the 
conversion of other buildings into commercial, industrial or community use. The scheme offers 
a grant rate of up to 50%, with the maximum amount of grant offered to any one property not 
exceeding £15,000. In recent years the annual budget allocation for the CIG scheme has 
been £50,000 per annum. There are currently over 50 expressions of interest for this fund. 
 
Business Support Grants- (Business Support & Funding Team) 

 
4.6 Targeted at both existing businesses and new start ups. The Business Development Grant 

(BDG) currently supports established businesses to purchase capital equipment, IT 
equipment, software, marketing and web site development and some internal building works 
to upgrade their premises. Grant funding of up to 45% of the project cost is offered to a 
maximum of £2,000 per project.  The annual budget for 2018/19 is £51,251 although it is 
expected to reduce by £25,000 for one year only in 2019/20.  

 
4.7 The Business Start Up Grant (BSUG) is designed to help residents of the County Borough 

set up a full time business for the first time. Grant funding of up to 50% of the eligible project 
costs, to a maximum of £500 is offered. The annual budget for 2018/19 is £5,000. 
Applications are invited all year round for both BDGs and BSUGs subject to budget availability 
and are assessed with a recommendation for grant award or refusal as and when the full 
assessment has been completed by the case officer. This is not a CCBC core budget and is 
funded by TATA steel who provides the Council with this benefit fund. 

 
Community Regeneration Fund (Business Support & Funding) 

4.8 This fund enables community and voluntary sector organisations in the County Borough to bid 
for capital and/or revenue funding to take forward initiatives they have developed as part of 
the community planning process. Funding is available up to a maximum of 80% of the total 
project costs. Applicants can apply for a maximum of £25,000 in capital.  Revenue funding for 
one year can be offered, subject to the availability of resources, up to a maximum of £30,000. 
The annual budget for 2018/19 is £199,057 (£100,057 revenue and £99,000 Capital). This 
allocation will reduce in 2019/20 due to the need to establish MTFP savings. 
 

4.9 Applications are invited up to five times a year, subject to the availability of resources where 
applications are discussed and assessed at a Grants Panel meeting.   

  
 Oakdale Community Benefit Fund (OCBF) 
4.10 The Oakdale Community Benefit Fund was established during the development of two 2MW 

wind turbines amounting to circa £10,000 per annum for the duration of the lease period (25 
years). The purpose of the OCBF is to support and benefit viable and sustainable 
communities within 1.5 miles of the turbines, which comprises the communities of Argoed, 
Croespenmaen, Kendon, Oakdale, Penmaen, Pentwyn and Trinant. A grant of up to 80% of 
total project costs is available with the maximum grant available limited to £3,000 capital 
and/or £3,000 revenue in a single year.  It should be noted that this is not a CCBC core 
budget and as such it will be restricted to the terms and condition imposed by the developer 
who provides the Council with the benefit fund. 
 
Evidence of Impact 

 
4.11 This section outlines how the grants have been used over the last 3 years, identifies the 

positive impact of the various programmes and considers the appropriate level of funding 
support under the proposed “Caerphilly Enterprise Fund”: 

 
Commercial Improvement Grants (CIG) 

4.12 In the financial 5 year period between 2013 and 2018 a total of 16 CIG were awarded for 
improvement works to properties in towns and villages throughout the County Borough. 

Page 237



 

4 
 

Although the maximum grant award is £15,000 under this programme, the average grant 
award was £9,100. Evidence therefore suggests that reducing the maximum grant approval to 
£10,000 will still stimulate economic activity and will also allow more applications to be 
processed per annum. 

 
Business Grants (BDG & BSUG) 

4.13 Evidence from the 3 previous years suggests that BDG grants at a maximum of £2,000 do 
help create jobs in small businesses. When compared against the recent LIF programme, 
(which had an average grant rate of nearly £6,000) the evidence shows that the BDG regime 
appear to be better value for money. Although it could be argued that a more targeted 
approach with a maximum grant to £10,000 would help deliver greater impact to fewer 
businesses, the facts show that awards at a lower level do help business growth and create 
more jobs overall than a more targeted approach. 

 
4.14 Small BSUG grants have been offered at a maximum rate of £500 per application. Feedback 

from officers administrating the grant suggests that this level of support is ideal to help start 
lifestyle micro businesses. With a small budget of £5,000 which is derived from an annual 
donation from TATA Steel,  it appears illogical to increase the grant level as this would 
dramatically reduce the number of new businesses that could be supported. Also by retaining 
the core elements of the grant this will also help any future awards to comply with the terms 
and conditions imposed by TATA Steel. 

 
 Community Regeneration Grants 
4.15  This fund enables community and voluntary sector organisations in the County Borough to 

take forward valuable projects that have a positive impact on the community. Since 2011 a 
wide range of groups have received grant aid at up to 80% intervention rate. Churches, sports 
clubs, scout groups, OAP groups and local community partnerships are regular recipients of 
the grant with bigger organisations such as GAVO and Inside Out also receiving monies from 
the fund.  

 
4.16 The Voluntary sector and community organisations play a large and critical role in helping 

local communities develop and grow. They are able to access external funding that the 
Council cannot bid into and have been very successful in the Caerphilly county borough 
council area at securing external funding for a myriad of projects.  It must be noted that large 
numbers of local people have and do currently benefit from projects supported by the 
Community Regeneration Fund. The Voluntary Sector and community organisations have 
traditionally utilised this budget to add value to the community. The Community Regeneration 
Fund has enabled third sector organisations to grow and thrive. Significant match funding has 
been levered in from other sources: between 2011/12 and 2016/17 a total of £1,897,312 was 
awarded via the Community Regeneration Fund, which levered in match funding of 
£3,351,769 from a variety of sources. However, the projects do not have an economic focus 
and the review of past spend shows that only a small proportion were targeted at 
employment, training, skills or personal development.  

 
4.17 With an underlying climate of financial cut backs to the Regeneration service area, officers 

would recommend that Cabinet consider refocusing the Community Regeneration Grant 
budget towards projects with an economic focus.  In an age of austerity, it is imperative that 
the resources that the Council has available to it are channelled to give the greatest long- 
term sustainable impact. 

 
 Oakdale Community Benefit Fund 
4.18 This fund derives from an annual contribution from the private company who operate wind 

turbines in the area. It enables community and voluntary sector organisations in the Oakdale 
area (as defined in paragraph 4.10 above) to bid for funding to take forward projects delivering 
a social, economic or environmental impact on the area or community concerned.  Since 

Page 238



 

5 
 

2014, many small community groups have benefited from the Fund, receiving grant aid at up 
to 80% intervention rate. 

 
4.19 As with the Community Regeneration Fund, although valuable to communities, most of the 

funding does not have a demonstrable impact on the local economy.  However, if changes are 
made that impact on the Community Regeneration Fund budget, then it will be desirable to 
continue with this fund and possibly extend the geographic reach to provide wider community 
benefits. 
 
Proposed New Grant Regime 

 
4.20 It is proposed that a new grants regime should concentrate more activity on developing 

business growth and creating employment opportunities within the County Borough. It is 
recommended that the primary focus of a new Caerphilly Enterprise Fund should be on: 

 
 Business Start Ups in all sectors (less than 12 months trading); 

 Underutilised/empty town centre commercial properties 

 Small and Medium Sized Enterprises (e.g. those with less than 250 employees, 

with turnover not exceeding €50 million (approx. £45 million) and / or a balance 

sheet not exceeding €43 million (approx. £38.7 million); 

 Established Community Groups or Social Enterprises; 

 Filling identified supply chain voids identified by CCBC Procurement; 

 Projects that help create or safeguard jobs - contributing to the Council’s Well 

Being Goals. 

4.21 The Council’s Corporate Plan 2018-2023 outlines a number of core Well Being objectives that 
the Council will strive to deliver. Objective Two is Enabling Employment. The new grant 
regime outlined in this report will be a key tool that will allow the Council to influence / improve 
the levels of employment in the county borough. It is therefore considered appropriate to re 
focus the ‘grant’ budget allocated to Regeneration and Planning towards business growth and 
job provision in the county borough.  

4.22 Following a review and critical appraisal of the current grant regimes, it is clear that there is 
scope to amalgamate the existing business-focused grant schemes, based on the clear 
commonality of their main economic objectives and administrative processes. If Cabinet are 
minded to progress with a standardisation of current regeneration grants, it is recommended 
that the three business focused grants (CIG; BSUG and BDG) are combined into a single 
fund, namely the Caerphilly Enterprise Fund with the OCDF continuing to be administered 
separately.  

 
4.23 More radically, officers propose discontinuing the Community Regeneration Fund programme 

and focusing it’s budget into the Caerphilly Enterprise fund. The good work that the voluntary 
sector and community groups undertake is fully recognised and greatly appreciated but it is 
apparent that there are a number of external funding mechanisms that they are able to bid 
into to secure monies for localised community projects. Larger funding bodies such as the Big 
Lottery, Garfield Weston Trust and Coalfields Community Grants offer substantial grants to 
such groups. At this current moment in time, It has been established that there are upwards of 
twenty external grants available to these groups (See Appendix 1) and even though it is 
proposed that the CRF fund is closed, officers will continue to offer support and guidance to 
groups looking for funding and will actively signpost them to suitable available external grants.    

 
4.24 The proposed new Caerphilly Enterprise Fund will prioritise those projects that can 

demonstrate job creation, safeguarding of existing jobs and which can lever in private sector 
investment. It will be aimed predominantly at businesses looking to grow within the county 

Page 239



 

6 
 

borough. Although the grant regime will be open for community groups and social enterprises 
they will need to evidence that their projects focus on economic activity. 

 
4.25 It is proposed that from 2019/20, the new Caerphilly Enterprise Fund will offer funding support 

under two categories; the first being Business Support and the second being Property 
Improvement: 

 

 Fund 1 – Business Support Grants that will operate in a very similar manner to the 
BDG and BSUG and will utilise the Council’s core revenue allocation to offer grants of up 
to £500 to micro businesses and up to £2,000 to help create jobs and economic growth in 
small businesses, social enterprises and community groups. As this is predominantly 
targeted at supporting small businesses it is intended to offer grant to businesses that can 
prove they require it. There are concerns that small grants are being awarded to 
businesses with very large turnovers and that the grants have little impact on such large 
companies. Therefore grant applicants will need to provide financial evidence of the 
‘need’ of the grant based on turnover, cashflow and the liquidity of the business.  

 
The Council’s Procurement Division have identified that there are opportunities for 
business growth to fill voids in the Council’s supply chain. It is envisaged that this fund will 
be used as a tool to try and encourage the local business community to fill these gaps in 
provision. 

 
This fund will be open to community businesses, in particular social enterprises to bid 
into. 

 
 Fund 2 – Property Improvement Grants that will operate in a very similar manner to 

the existing CIG regime outlined above, with a focus on bringing empty or underutilised 
buildings back into beneficial use. This thematic will operate using a capital allocation 
and will offer capital grants of up to £10,000.    

4.26 It is proposed that the existing Business Development Grant budget will form the core of the 
Fund 1 budget.  The annual budget for 2018/19 is £51,251with a similar budget allocation in 
20/21. 
 
Pease note that under the current budget proposals, this budget is expected to reduce 
by £25,000 for one year only in 2019/20. 

 
4.27 As part of the MTFP savings for 2019/20 it is proposed that the indicative Community 

Regeneration Grant revenue budget allocation is reduced from £100,000 to £50,000. It is 
further proposed that the remaining indicative £50,000 be allocated from the CRF to the 
Caerphilly Enterprise Fund to be refocused on economic outputs under Theme 1 – Business 
Support.  

 
Please note that under the current budget proposals the residual £50k outlined above 
has been identified as a temporary ‘one year only’ cut in order to balance the budget 
for 2019/20. 

 
4.28 Likewise it is recommended that the 2019/20 £99k indicative capital allocation for the 

Community Regeneration fund be vired to the Caerphilly Enterprise Fund Theme 2 – Property 
Improvements. This would result in the Community Regeneration Fund having a zero budget 
which would therefore effectively end that programme. 

 
4.29 Section 7 of this report sets out in more detail the proposed allocations to be made to the new 

Caerphilly Enterprise fund and its two sub-categories for 2019/20.  
    

Page 240



 

7 
 

4.30 With extreme pressure on senior managers to make savings for MTFP, it is likely that these 
grants programmes will come under scrutiny. It is therefore imperative that available 
resources are aligned to make the greatest impact and help take forward the Council’s 
Corporate Objectives. 

 
4.31  The Evidence of Impact section (4.11 – 4.19 above) outlines key evidence that has led 

officers to propose the maximum grant available under each of the priority funding categories 
as outlined in Table 1 below: 
 
 
Table 1: Proposed Grant Limits and Intervention Rates 
 

Fund Proposed Grant Available Intervention Rate 

   

Caerphilly Enterprise Fund - 
Theme 1 “Business Support” 

£200- £2,000 revenue 
Up to 45% 

Caerphilly Enterprise Fund -  
Theme 2 “Property 

Improvement” 
Up to £10,000 capital 

Up to 50% 

Oakdale Community Benefit 
Fund 

Up to £3,000 capital 
Up to £3,000 revenue 

Up to 80% 

 
 
4.32 It is further recommended that any grant funded project would need to demonstrate that it will 

contribute to improving the economic, social, environmental and cultural well being of the 
County Borough: 

 
Economic  
There will need to be evidence of job creation (at least one job) where grants of up to £5,000 
are awarded. Where larger grants are awarded additional job creation will need to be 
evidenced. 

 
Environmental 
Property Improvement Grants must deliver environmental enhancements. Projects to 
refurbish empty, vacant or underutilised commercial premises will be prioritised.  

 
Social/Cultural 
Social enterprises/businesses must demonstrate how their project will contribute to their future 
growth and development. 

 
4.33 It is proposed that the existing geographical boundary for the Oakdale Community Benefit 

Fund is extended from 1.5 miles to 2 miles.  This would add the communities of Markham, 
Cefn Fforest, Blackwood, part of Newbridge and Crumlin to the existing eligible communities 
of Argoed, Croespenmaen, Kendon, Oakdale, Penmaen, Pentwyn and Trinant.  It also brings 
in the communities of Llanhilleth, Brynithel and Aberbeeg in Blaenau Gwent and it should be 
noted that a number of similar schemes across the UK cut across local boundaries.  However 
it is not suggested that communities outside Caerphilly CBC should have access to this fund. 
As this fund is provided from a contribution from a private company then they would need to 
agree to the expansion of the boundary. 

 
 
 
 

Page 241



 

8 
 

 
 

Approval Process – Options  
 
4.34 Two options for the grants approval process have been considered as part of this review: 

 Written Procedure via Case Officer Grants Approval Report (Report certified by Case 
Officer, Line Manager, Grants Manager, Head of Service in consultation with Cabinet 
Member) 

 Panel Meeting and Assessment – Case Officer Recommendations discussed at 
regular Panel meetings with designated Panel members (including Case Officer, 
Grants Manager, Head of Service, minimum quorum required)  

 
4.35 On balance, it is recommended that the current written procedure process is retained for all 

new business grants under the Caerphilly Enterprise Fund that require grant funding of less 
than £5,000. This approach has worked for a number of years and has been effective and 
more responsive to business focused grants, as it allows projects to be assessed in a timely 
manner, on a rolling basis as they are received. It should also be noted that this process has 
been subjected to detailed external audits when the EU supported Local Investment Fund was 
delivered (up to April 2015).  

 
4.36 It is acknowledged, however, that more scrutiny may be required for grant awards above 

£5,000. It is therefore recommended that a grants panel is established to assess grant 
applications over this £5,000 threshold both for revenue and capital bids. Grant panel 
membership would consist of: 

 
 Project Officer presenting report 
 Section/Team  Manager 
 Grants Manager, Corporate Finance 
 Cabinet Member for Economy, Infrastructure, Sustainability & Wellbeing of 

Future Generations 
 Head of Regeneration and Planning 

 
4.37 All grant applications will undergo a stringent review, both those that go to panel and those 

under £5,000 that will be awarded directly. There are already review procedures in place for 
the existing grants and officers have developed these to be applicable for the grant regime. 

 
 
5. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS 
 
5.1 This proposal contributes to the Well-being Goals as set out in Links to Strategy above. It is 

consistent with the five ways of working as defined within the sustainable development 
principle in the Act and is aimed at improving the economic well being of the County Borough. 

 
5.2 As such the proposals align with the following well being goals: 
 

 A Prosperous Wales – financial contributions to targeted business sectors will support 
opportunities for development of a skilled population in an economy which generates 
wealth and employment opportunities; 

 A resilient Wales – targeted grant support will foster social, economic resilience and the 
capacity to adapt to change; 

 A more Equal Wales – the grant programmes encourage applications from a wide range 
of sectors and organisations, community, voluntary or business, and reflect a broad 
opportunity for participation.  

 A Wales of cohesive communities – the grant programmes support measures to provide 
attractive and well connected communities through financial support to community based 

Page 242



 

9 
 

projects and environmental improvements.  
 A globally responsible Wales – the grant programmes support measures which improve 

the economic, social and environmental well being of the County Borough.  
  
 
6.  EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1  An EIA screening has been completed in accordance with the Council’s Strategic Equality 

Plan and supplementary guidance and some potential negative impact has been identified 
affecting one or more of the target equality groups.  

 
6.2 A full EQLA has been carried out and is appended to the report. Please see Appendix 2. 
 
 
7.      FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
7.1 The review has highlighted that up until 2018/19 that community focused grants have had an 

overall budget of nearly three times that of the funding targeted at the business community. 
Even the latest 2018/19 budget is nearly twice that of business orientated grants. This report 
seeks to alter this balance. Proposed budget allocations for 2019/20 are set out in table 2 
below.  

 
7.2 In order to meet MTFP targets it has been proposed that several of the grant allocations are 

reduced from 2019/20 onwards and amalgamated into the two Enterprise Funds identified in 
section 4.25. Table 2 outlines those proposed for 2019/20.  

 
7.3 The 2018/19 approved budgets for CRF are £100,057 revenue and £99K capital.  The 

proposal in this report is that the CRF be closed and the £100K revenue budget be split 
between a £50K MTFP saving and a £50K virement into the Caerphilly Enterprise Fund 
Thematic 1.  
As noted above, under the current budget proposals, the residual £50k has been 
identified as a temporary ‘one year only’ cut in order to balance the budget for 2019/20. 
Likewise there will be a ‘one year only’ £25k reduction in the BDG allocation. 

 
7.4  The Community Regeneration capital budget of £99k will be redirected towards the property 

focused category of the proposed Caerphilly Enterprise Fund.  
 
7.5 These proposals are reflected in Table 2 below. In short, this report recommends the closure 

of the Community Regeneration Fund, with monies being refocused towards delivering 
tangible economic outputs. 

 
Table 2: Proposed Grant Structure and Core Allocations 

 

Proposed Grant Regime  Proposed Core Allocations 

 Revenue Capital Total 

Caerphilly Enterprise Fund  - Fund 1 
Small businesses  

£101,251 
£26,251 
for 19/20 

 

£0 
£101,251 

£26,251 for 19/20 

Caerphilly Enterprise Fund  - Fund 1 
Micro businesses £5,000 £0 £5,000 

Caerphilly Enterprise Fund  - Fund 2 
Property Grants 

£0 £149,000 £149,000 

Page 243



 

10 
 

Proposed Grant Regime  Proposed Core Allocations 

 Revenue Capital Total 

Total for Business Grants £106,251 
£31,251 for 

19/20 
£149,000 

£255,251 
£180,251 for 

19/20 

    

Community Regeneration Grant £0 £0 £0 

Oakdale Community Benefit Fund 
£10,000 £0 £10,000 

Total for Community Grants 
£10,000 £0 £10,000 

 
7.6  It should be noted that any decisions relating to the CRF grants programme, will need to be 

viewed against the existing relationship between the Council and the Voluntary Sector. The 
Compact / Partnership Agreement is currently being renewed and will be presented in its final 
form to the Voluntary Sector Liaison Committee. Via the Compact Agreement, the Voluntary 
Sector Liaison Committee is a consultee on changes to third sector funding and should be 
included in the consultation process.  It is therefore suggested that the recommendations in 
this report be presented to the voluntary sector and community groups (probably through 
consultation with the Voluntary Sector Liaison Committee) as part of a consultation process 
before implementation. 

 
 
8.      PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 

 
8.1 Currently Business Support and Funding Team officers are the primary contact for the 

business growth grants with enquires relating to property improvements directed to the Urban 
Renewal team.  

 
8.2 The restructuring of the Regeneration and Planning Department will identify roles and 

responsibilities for officers with regards to this new grants model, should it be implemented. 
 
 
9. CONSULTATIONS 
 
9.1 A wider consultation process is proposed with the voluntary sector and community 

organisations before implementation of the new grants programme. The results of this 
consultation will be reported back to Cabinet.  The views and comments of consultees to date 
have been reflected in the report and certain concerns are outlined below. A response to each 
concern is outlined in italics below each bullet point.  

 
9.2 The Community Regeneration Fund was previously administered by the Council’s Policy 

Section. They are extremely concerned at the proposals to amalgamate the funds and refocus 
all of them on enterprise and job creation/employment. So rather than reflect their views and 
comments within the body of the report, it is considered prudent to summarise their views on 
the proposed refocusing of the current grant regime below.   

 

 The Community Regeneration Fund has enabled third sector organisations to grow and 
thrive  The report fails to mention the significant match funding that the community grant 
programmes lever in from other sources.   Between 2011/12 and 2016/17 a total of 
£1,897,312 was awarded via the Community Regeneration Fund, which levered in match 
funding of £3,351,769 from a variety of sources, which is a massive amount of economic 
benefit for the county borough as a whole. 

Page 244



 

11 
 

 
Regeneration Officer Comments - The proposed grant regime is not being established 
to deter community groups from applying but with the overall budget being cut year on 
year the grant regime needs to have a clear focus. This focus, as outlined in the report, 
will be on stimulating the local economy and as such the grants regime will concentrate 
on more defined economic outcomes. The voluntary sector and community groups do 
have access to a range of alternative funding bodies outside of this grants programme 
that they can apply to and expertise exists within the Council to continue to help signpost 
organisations and groups to these funding sources.  

 

 It appears very unjust that the focus is moving from supporting our local communities to 
only supporting businesses.  The proposals in the report will make the majority of third 
sector organisation ineligible for the funding and, those that are will have to compete with 
the business sector.  External grant sources such as EU funding were used to top up 
Council budgets to great effect.  Many of the projects funded via the community grant 
schemes also included employing staff, so to suggest that the proposed changes will give 
a greater economic focus is not fully accurate.   

 
Regeneration Officer Comments - The recommendations in this report must be viewed 
in the wider context. Budgets for discretionary grants have seen severe cutbacks and 
although it is acknowledged that the CRF has had some positive economic benefits, its 
primary focus has always been around supporting community orientated projects. With 
dwindling resources, there is a need to make the process more competitive and it has 
been determined that there should be a refocus on projects that bolster the local 
economy.  Groups who have traditionally accessed the CRF fund will still be able to bid 
into the fund but with more focused projects. Again it is worth re-iterating that all voluntary 
and community groups would acknowledge that there are numerous alternative funding 
mechanisms for community group support. Circa twenty alternative funding sources exist 
that these groups will still have access too and officers will signpost towards. Although 
budgets are being cut there will still exist a very strong and well staffed Community 
Regeneration Team offering support to these communities on a daily basis. 
 

 The report suggests that most of the CRF funding does not have a demonstrable impact 
on the local economy, and this is not the case.  Had it not been for the seed funding 
provided by the Community Regeneration Fund, development projects like Newbridge 
Memo, Van Road Church in Caerphilly, Rudry Village Hall and many others simply may 
not have happened. 

 
Regeneration Officer Comments - This report does acknowledge the positive impact 
that the grants have had over time, but it also clearly argues that the Council must 
prioritise its reducing resources. It is believed that the best return on this budget will be to 
take a more focused economic approach to its distribution in order to bolster the 
robustness of local communities. 
 

 There is a need to consult with the voluntary sector in relation to the proposed changes.  
This is enshrined in the Compact agreement, which the Council is a primary signatory to.  
The Compact / Partnership Agreement is currently being renewed, having been approved 
in principle by the Public Services Board in September and will be presented in its final 
form to the Voluntary Sector Liaison Committee in due course.  CCBC is a prime 
signatory to the Compact and the Funding Code of Practice.  Via the Compact 
Agreement, the Voluntary Sector Liaison Committee is a consultee on changes to third 
sector funding and should be included in your consultation.  It is suggested that this report 
be presented to the Voluntary Sector Liaison Committee as part of the consultation 
process 

 

Page 245



 

12 
 

Regeneration Officer Comments - A full consultation process with the voluntary sector 
and community groups will be undertaken as part of the wider consultation process before 
the new grants regime goes live. This engagement will also allow the Council to highlight 
replacement funding opportunities available to these groups.  
 

 The report makes reference to the Well-being of Future Generations Act.  The Act 
requires that all public bodies consider the social, economic, environmental and cultural 
benefits of everything that they do, so a focus purely on economic benefits would not be 
in keeping with the spirit of the Act.  The vast majority of the projects previously funded 
via the CRF have impacts on multiple benefits, including economic. 

 

 Regeneration Officer Comments - The Well Being of Future Generations Act has been 
considered in delivering this report. Focusing the impact of grants towards maximising 
local economic activity will, it is believed, have the most profound effect on local 
communities well being. Stimulating more favourable economic conditions and new 
employment opportunities will have a plethora of positive outputs and outcomes on the 
local community as people’s overall financial security/stability and well-being improves.  
 

 The report requires a full EQLA be carried out as many CRF funded projects are aimed 
specifically at these targeted groups. These target groups need to be fully consulted 
before the report is approved by Cabinet.  

 
Regeneration Officer Comments - This has been undertaken as part of the Cabinet 
report consultation mechanism. The full EQLA is attached at Appendix 2. 
 

 In a wider context Community Asset Transfer is becoming more of a focus for the Council 
in the current financial climate.  With ever diminishing resources it is unlikely that Council 
will be able to maintain the range of community venues within the county borough such as 
community centres, sporting facilities, changing rooms etc.  It will be difficult to expect 
community organisations to take on these sorts of facilities if the Council cannot offer 
financial support with grant funding. External funding sources that they can be signposted 
to and offered support. 

 
Regeneration Officer Comments - The CRF is a discretionary grants regime. 
Community and voluntary groups would be advised not to look to build support from this 
funding source into their building management or financial management models as further 
cuts are very probable.  
 

 
10. PROPOSAL SUMMARY 
 
10.1 The report advocates the merging of the current Commercial Improvement Grant, the 

Business Development Grant, the Business Start Up Grant and the Community Regeneration 
Fund into the Caerphilly Enterprise Fund which will concentrate more activity on developing 
business growth and creating employment opportunities within the County Borough. The 
proposals will simplify the grants application process and seek to standardise grants 
administration throughout the Regeneration Division. Officers seek approval to undertake a 
consultation exercise with community groups and the voluntary sector over the proposals; in 
particular the recommendation to effectively discontinue the Community Regeneration Fund 
and refocus its budget into delivering this new grants programme.  

 
  
 
 
 

Page 246



 

13 
 

 
11. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
11.1 That Cabinet note the content of the report and the principles set out in it. 
 
11.2 That Cabinet approve officers conducting a wider consultation exercise with the voluntary 

sector and community groups on the contents of the report. 
 
11.3 That following consultation, a further report be presented to Cabinet. 
 
 
 
12. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
12.1 Primarily to allow officers to consult more widely on proposals to offer improved support to 

businesses and to maximise economic growth.  
 
13. STATUTORY POWER  
 
13.1 Sections 70 and 71(1) of the Government of Wales Act 2006 and sections 126-128 of the 

Housing Grants, Construction and Regeneration Act 1996.   
 
Author: Allan Dallimore, Team Leader, Urban Renewal 
 
Consultees: Cllr Sean Morgan, Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Economy, Infrastructure, 

Sustainability & Wellbeing of Future Generations 
Christina Harrhy – Interim Chief Executive 
Mark S Williams, Interim Corporate Director (Communities)  
Rhian Kyte, Head of Regeneration and Planning 

  Antony Bolter, Group Manager (Strategy Funding & Support) 
  Glenn Cooper, Project Officer, Urban Renewal Team 
  Clair Vokes, Grants Officer (Strategy Funding and Support) 
  Tina McMahon, Community Regeneration Manager 
  Dave Roberts, Principal Group Accountant   
  Nadeem Akhtar, Group Accountant, Corporate Finance 
  Kath Peters, Corporate Policy Manager 
  Alison Palmer, Community Planning Co-Ordinator 
  Vicki Doyle, Policy Officer, Statistics and Funding 

Anwen Cullinane, Senior Policy Officer – Equalities and Welsh Language 
Shaun Watkins, Principal Personnel Officer 
 

Apendices: 
 
Appendix 1 – Voluntary Sector/Community Group: Sources of External Grants 
Appendix 2 – Equalities Impact Assessment 
 
 

Page 247



 

14 
 

Appendix 1 
 
 

GRANT SCHEME 
NAME PROVIDER GRANT DESCRIPTION WHO CAN APPLY 

CAPITAL / 
REVENUE GRANT AMOUNT 

MATCH FUNDING 
REQUIRED 

Technical Assistant 
Grant 

CCBC To support charities and 
voluntary organisations in 
Caerphilly undertaking a 
capital project with costs 
associated with technical 
assistance 

Voluntary or Charitable 
organisations in Caerphilly 

Capital Up to £4800 including 
VAT 

Not stated 

Welsh Church 
Fund 

CCBC To promote the activities of 
voluntary organisations that 
benefit the people of 
Caerphilly and enrich local 
communities 

Registered voluntary charities, 
movements and institutions which 
contribute towards community life, 
community organisations, 
community based projects, churches 
and chapels 

Capital Smaller Projects up to 
£5,000 or larger 
projects up to a 
maximum of £10,000 

Up to £5000 fully 
funded for larger 
projects of over £5000, 
the remaining amount 
will be subject to a 
grant rate of 75% up to 
a maximum grant of 
£10,000  

Health & 
Wellbeing Grant 

Aneurin Bevan 
University 
Health Board 

The purpose of the Health, 
Social Care and Wellbeing 
Grant is to support voluntary 
organisations working within 
the Caerphilly County Borough 
area on projects related to 
improving the health and 
wellbeing of residents. 

Voluntary or community 
organisation, charity, community 
interest company or social 
enterprise operating in Caerphilly 
County Borough 

Capital & 
Revenue 

Max £4000 fully funded or match 
funded 

GAVO Cash 4 U 
Grant 

GwirVol 
Partnership 

The purpose of the Cash 4 U 
Grant is to fund exciting and 
worthwhile projects that 
create more Volunteering 
opportunities for young people 
aged 14-25. 

Voluntary organisations Capital & 
Revenue 

    

P
age 248



 

15 
 

Garfield Weston 
Foundation 

Garfield 
Weston 
Foundation 

Supports a wide range of  
charitable acitivity in the UK in 
areas such as arts, community, 
education, environment, 
youth, faith, health, welfare, 
museums and heritage 

UK registered charities, Charitable 
Incorporated Organisations, 
Educational establishments 
including schools & universities, 
Churches, Housing Associations, 
Museums and Galleries 

Capital & 
Revenue 

Regular grants of up 
to £100,000 or Major 
Grants of £100,000 
and above 

Match Funding 
required.  Capital 
projects 10% of total 
project cost.  Revenue 
projects 10-20% of 
organisations total 
income/salary.  Like to 
see evidence of 50% 
funding before applying 
for grant 

Coalfields 
Community Grants 
- Wales 

The Coalfields 
Regeneration 
Trust 

The programme is for 
community and voluntary 
organisations that can clearly 
demonstrate that a grant will 
impact positively on people 
living in the former Coalfield 
Communities of Wales 

Community & Voluntary 
Organisations 

Capital & 
Revenue 

From £500 up to 
£7000 

Fully funded up to 
£7,000 or can be used 
to match fund 

Gwent High 
Sheriffs' 
Community Fund 

Community 
Foundation in 
Wales 

Funding is available for 
community-based initiatives 
and projects that reduce crime 
and improve community safety 
in Gwent.  The fund aims to 
provide a safer and better 
quality of life for the people of 
Gwent 

Community groups, voluntary 
organisations and local charities in 
Gwent, ie the local authority areas 
of Newport, Blaenau Gwent, 
Torfaen, Monmouthshire and 
Caerphilly. 

Capital Max £5000   

National Lottery 
Awards for All - 
Wales 

Big Lottery 
Fund 

Grants are available for 
community organisations, 
schools and statutory bodies in 
Wales to help improve local 
communities and the lives of 
people most in need 

Voluntary and community 
organisations, including: registered 
charities, constituted groups and 
clubs, not-for-profit companies and 
community interest companies, 
social enterprises, schools, statutory 
bodies including town, parish, and 
community council. 

Capital & 
Revenue 

Grants between £300 
and £10,000 

Fully funded up to 
£10,000 or match 
funded  

P
age 249



 

16 
 

Wales - People 
and Places 

Big Lottery 
Fund 

People and Places aims to 
support people and 
communities working together 
and using their strengths to 
make positive impacts on the 
things that matter to them the 
most 

Voluntary or community 
organisation, registered charities, 
constituted groups or clubs, 
community interest companies, 
social enterprises, schools, statutory 
bodies including town, parish or 
community council 

Capital & 
Revenue 

Medium grant offers 
from £10,001 to 
£100,000 for projects 
lasting up to 5 years 
and Large grant offers 
from £100,001 to 
£500,000 for projects 
lasting up to 5 years 

Funding is available for 
all eligible costs of the 
project but applicants 
are encouraged to seek 
funding from other 
sources 

People's Postcode 
Trust 

People's 
Postcode 
Lottery 

Provides project based funding 
fo rup to 12 months in lenght 
ranging from £500 - £20,000 to 
organisations within Great 
Britain.  The current themes of 
the Trust are: Poverty 
Prevention, Employability 
Programmes and Human 
Rights through combatting 
discrimination 

Registered charity, CIO/SCIO, 
Constituted voluntary or community 
group, social enterprise, community 
interest company, not-for-profit 
organisation, local club or other 
constituted community group 

Capital & 
Revenue 

£500 - £20,000   

Tesco Bags of Help Tesco / 
Groundwork 

Bags of Help is Tesco's local 
community grant scheme 
where the money raised by the 
carrier bage charge in tesco 
stores is being used to fund 
thousands of community 
projects across the UK. The 
projects must meet the criteria 
of bringing benefits to the 
community. 

voluntary or community 
organisations including registered 
charities/companies, schools, health 
bodies, NHS Hospital Trust, 
Foundation Trust, Parish/Town 
Councils, Local authorities and social 
housing providers 

Capital From £1000 to £4000 
can be awarded 

Fully funded or match 
funded if larger project 

Tudor Trust  Tudor Trust Core funding, unrestricted 
funding, project grants, capital 
grants  

organisations/charities seeking 
support for work that has a 
charitable purpose 

Capital & 
Revenue 

No limit set Fully funded 

P
age 250



 

17 
 

Local Community 
Projects Fund 

Greggs 
Foundation 

The Local Community Projects 
Fund awards grants of up to 
£2000 to enable not for profit 
organisations to do something 
they otherwise couldn't afford 
to. 

Organisations supporting people in 
need.  Any not for profit 
organisation can apply, however 
larger organisations with a turnover 
in excess of £300,000 will be 
unsuccessful 

Capital £2,000 Fully funded 

Esmee Fairbairn 
Foundation 

Esmee 
Fairbairn 
Foundation 

Grants available to 
organisations doing legally 
charitable work in the UK that 
focuses on the Foundation's 
funding priorities in the arts, 
children and young people, the 
environment, food or social 
change 

Charities and not-for-profit 
organisations with a regular annual 
turnover of at least £50,000  

Capital & 
Revenue 

Max £500,000 Match funding is not 
required however, it 
may help to have 
funding commitments 
from other sources and 
a credible investment 
raising plan 

Tampon Tax 
Community Fund 

Department 
for Digital, 
Culture, 
Media and 
Sport 

Grants are available to local 
not-for-profit organisations for 
local projects that improve the 
lives of disadvantaged women 
and girls in local communities 
across the UK 

Registered UK charities, constituted 
community groups, companies 
limited by guaranteed with 
charitable aims, community interest 
companies, co-operatives, credit 
unions, social enterprises  

Revenue £10,000 Fully funded or match 
funded 

Trusthouse 
Charitable 
Foundation 

The 
Trusthouse 
Charitable 
Foundation 

Grants are available to smaller 
charitable and not-for-profit 
organisations in the UK to fund 
community support, arts, 
education and heritage 
projects in areas of extreme 
urban deprivation or remote, 
socio-economically deprived 
rural areas 

Established charitable organisations 
including CICs, social enterprises, 
not-for-profit registered companies, 
voluntary organisations 

Capital & 
Revenue 

Max £60,000 Applicants must have 
secured a minimum of 
50% of the total project 
cost before applying for 
both capital & revenue 
projects 

P
age 251



 

18 
 

Co-op Local 
Community fund 

Co-op 
Membership 

Helps pay for local projects 
that co-op members care 
about through 1% of own 
brand sales and carrier bag 
charges 

Charities, local community groups or 
not-for-profit organisations 

Capital & 
Revenue 

    

ACT Foundation 
(ACT) 

ACT 
Foundation Provides grants to individuals 

and other UK charities with the 
aim of enhancing the quality of 
life for people in need, 
specifically the mentally and 
physically disabled and the 
aged. 

UK registered charities Not specified No upper limit but 
most grant awards are 
for under £10,000 

  

Armed Forces 
Covenant Fund 
Trust - Veterans 
Community 
Centres 
Programme 

Ministry of 
Defence 

The funding is to be used to 
improve existing community 
centres used by veterans. 

Registered charity or CIC that 
already supports the Armed Forces 
Community 

Capital £30,000 Fully Funded 

Baily Thomas 
Charitable Fund 

Baily Thomas 
Charitable 
Fund 

The Charity aims to support 
work for the aid and relief of 
those affected by learning 
disability 

Voluntary organisations which are 
registered charities or are 
associated with a  registered charity 

Capital or 
Revenue 

two grant schemes - 
small grants from 
£250 up to £10,000 or 
general grants over 
£10,000 

Can be match      
funded 

Improving Lives 
Grant Programme 

The Henry 
Smith Charity 

Grants for small and medium 
sized organisations in the UK 
to support projects and the 
running costs of organisations 

Charities and not-for-profit 
organisations including social 
enterprises 

Capital & 
Revenue 

£20k - £60k    

P
age 252



 

19 
 

Appendix 2 
 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT FORM 
October 2018 

 

THE COUNCIL’S EQUALITIES STATEMENT 
 

This Council recognises that people have different needs, requirements and goals and we 
will work actively against all forms of discrimination by promoting good relations and mutual 
respect within and between our communities, residents, elected members, job applicants and 
workforce. 
 

We will also work to create equal access for everyone to our services, irrespective of ethnic 
origin, sex, age, marital status, sexual orientation, disability, gender reassignment, religious 
beliefs or non-belief, use of Welsh language, BSL or other languages, nationality, 
responsibility for any dependents or any other reason which cannot be shown to be justified. 
 
The Council is required to have due regard to the need to: 

 eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct that is 
prohibited by the Equality Act 2010 

 advance equality of opportunity between people who share a relevant protected characteristic and 
those who do not 

 foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not.  
 
The Act explains that having due regard for advancing equality involves:  

 removing or minimising disadvantages experienced by people due to their protected 
characteristics 

 taking steps to meet the needs of people from protected groups where these are different from the 
needs of other people  

 encouraging people with protected characteristics to participate in public life or in other activities 
where their participation is disproportionately low.  
 
The protected characteristics are: 

 

 Age  Race 

 Disability  Religion, Belief or Non-Belief 

 Gender Re-assignment  Sex 

 Marriage and Civil Partnership  Sexual Orientation 

 Pregnancy and Maternity  Welsh Language* 
 

*  The Welsh language is not identified as a protected characteristic under the Equality Act 2010, 
however in Wales we also have to treat Welsh and English on an equal basis as well as promoting 
and facilitating the use of the Welsh language. 

 
Further advice on completing impact assessments can be found on the equalities pages of Corporate 
Policy Unit Portal. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 253



 

20 
 

 
THE EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 

NAME OF NEW OR 
REVISED PROPOSAL* 

 
Establishment of a new Caerphilly Enterprise Fund which 
combines all of the current grant funding programmes run 
under the Regeneration Department. 

 
 

DIRECTORATE  
Communities 
 
 

SERVICE AREA  
Regeneration & Planning – Urban Renewal and Business 
Support & Funding Teams 
 
 

CONTACT OFFICER Allan Dallimore 
Urban Renewal Team Leader 
dallia@caerphilly.gov.uk 
01443 866441 
 

DATE FOR NEXT REVIEW 
OR REVISION 

 
N/A 
 

 
*Throughout this Equalities Impact Assessment Form, ‘proposal’ is used to refer to what is 
being assessed, and therefore includes policies, strategies, functions, procedures, practices, 
initiatives, projects and savings proposals.  
 
The aim of an Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is to ensure that Equalities and Welsh Language 
issues have been proactively considered throughout the decision making processes governing work 
undertaken by every service area in the Council as well as work done at a corporate level. 
 
The Council’s work across Equalities, Welsh Language and Human Rights is covered in more detail 
through the Equalities and Welsh Language Objectives and Action Plan 2016-2020. 
 
When carrying out an EIA you should consider both the positive and negative consequences of your 
proposals. If a project is designed for a specific group e.g. disabled people, you also need to think 
about what potential effects it could have on other areas e.g. young people with a disability, BME 
people with a disability. 
 
There are a number of supporting guidance documents available on the Corporate Policy Unit 
Portal and the Council’s Equalities and Welsh Language team can provide advice as the EIA is being 
developed.  Please note that the team does not write EIAs on behalf of service areas, the support 
offered is in the form of advice, suggestions and in effect, quality control. 
 
Contact equalities@caerphilly.gov.uk for assistance. 

Page 254

mailto:equalities@caerphilly.gov.uk


 

21 
 

 

PURPOSE OF THE PROPOSAL 
 

1 What is the proposal intended to achieve? 
(Please give a brief description and outline the purpose of the new or updated proposal 
by way of introduction.) 
 
A draft cabinet report presents a proposal to combine the existing regeneration grants into a single 
“Caerphilly Enterprise Fund” with a refocus towards offering improved support to start up businesses, 
stimulating economic growth, filling identified supply chain voids and supporting job creation.  Officers 
have undertaken a review of the current regeneration grant regimes, and have recommended merging 
the grants into a single, targeted grant regime with an economic output focus.  This Caerphilly Enterprise 
Fund will look to streamline the existing grants processes and have one point of access, making it easier 
to navigate for applicants. 
 
The Cabinet report proposes the refocusing of all regeneration grants towards economic outputs under a 
streamlined grants protocol. The report advocates that part of the Community Regeneration Fund (CRF) 
budget be identified as a possible MTFP saving and the remainder re-refocused towards supporting 
business and property grants that the department operates. The current 2018/19 approved budgets for 
CRF are £100,057 revenue and £100,000 capital. Likewise, it is proposed that the Community 
Regeneration Fund capital budget be re-directed towards the property focused category of the proposed 
Caerphilly Enterprise Fund.  
 
Effectively the report recommends the closure of the current CRF programme of grant funding as it 
operates at present. Whilst the purpose of the Community Regeneration Fund (CRF) has been to foster 
and enhance viable and sustainable communities within Caerphilly county borough, it is acknowledged 
that with reduced internal resources, the focus of grant activity should be focused on economic outputs.  
It is further acknowledged that there are external grants bodies who offer similar funding for local 
projects. The new Caerphilly Enterprise Fund will not exclude community groups from bidding into it, but 
the focus of the grants will be much narrower.  It is acknowledged that the new grant regime may mean 
that some community groups will no longer be able to bid in for funding.  
 

 
 

  

2 Who are the service users affected by the proposal? 
(Who will be affected by the delivery of this proposal? e.g. staff members, the public 
generally, or specific sections of the public i.e. youth groups, carers, road users, people 
using country parks, people on benefits etc.  Are there any data gaps?) 
 
The proposed Caerphilly Enterprise Fund will offer improved support to start up businesses and will offer 
a streamlined grants application process to existing SME’s that will be easier to access, be more 
responsive to the needs of the business community and help stimulate economic growth. Local 
businesses and entrepreneurs will benefit from a more focused and better funded grants programme.  
 
The Enterprise fund will harmonise the existing Regeneration grants processes under one umbrella.  The 
current CRF is used by voluntary and community groups to deliver community based projects that must 
have one of more of the following aims: 

 they will enhance employment prospects and skills of local people, particularly the young and 
those at a disadvantage, and promote equality of opportunity 

 they will protect and improve the local environment and infrastructure, and bring land and buildings 
into effective use 

 they will enhance the quality of life of people through social, cultural and recreational opportunities 

 they will promote and encourage local people to secure a sustainable future for local communities 
and/or encourage regeneration. 

 

Page 255



 

22 
 

With the proposed new regime, community groups and social enterprises will only be able to submit bids 
aimed at the first of the bullet points above, specifically  at economic outputs 
 
In 2017-18, £129K revenue and £167K capital was allocated to 17 projects in 5 bidding rounds  The 
ability to fund third sector projects for anything other than economically focused projects would be lost if 
the current funding levels were identified as MTFP savings or vired to the new Caerphilly Enterprise 
Fund.  

 
The existing CRF Fund has traditionally enables community and voluntary sector organisations in the 
county borough to bid for funding to take forward initiatives they have developed for the benefit of the 
local community or service users.   Since its inception in 2011 a wide range of groups have received 
grant aid at up to 80% intervention rate. Churches, sports clubs, scout groups, Older people groups and 
local community partnerships are regular recipients of the grant with bigger organisations such as GAVO 
and Inside Out also receiving monies from the fund. These groups will still be able to bid into the 
enterprise fund but will need to have more focused projects. In addition, Council officers will continue to 
work with these groups to sign post them to the various external grant bodies that they can access 
 
 
A wider consultation process will be conducted with the voluntary sector and community groups 

 

 
 

IMPACT ON THE PUBLIC AND STAFF 
 

3 Does the proposal ensure that everyone has an equal access to all the services 
available or proposed, or benefits equally from the proposed changes, or does 
not lose out in greater or more severe ways due to the proposals? 
(What has been done to examine whether or not these groups have equal access to 
the service, or whether they need to receive the service in a different way from other 
people?) 
 
The proposed Caerphilly Enterprise Fund will be delivered using protocols and processes that comply 
with the Council’s Strategic Equality Plan and the Welsh Language Measure. All documentation will be 
bi-lingual.  
 
The application will include questions regarding welsh language and equalities and how the grantee will 
pay due regard to both.  
 
The application process will be easier to navigate for potential grant applicants. The programme will be 
open , transparent and more streamlined 
 
The creation of the Caerphilly Enterprise Fund will effectively bring a single application process  for 
applicants to bid into for projects.  The Voluntary Sector and community groups will be advised on how 
best to bid under this fund and will also be signposted to other funding opportunities for projects. 
 
A wider consultation exercise is advocated before the proposals are implemented 

 
 
 

Page 256



 

23 
 

 

4 Is your proposal going to affect any people or groups of people with protected 
characteristics? 
(Has the service delivery been examined to assess if there is any indirect effect on any groups?  
Could the consequences of the policy or savings proposal differ dependent upon people’s 
protected characteristics?) 

Protected 
Characteristic 

Positive, 
Negative, 
Neutral 

Relevance of the Policy or Practice 

Age negative 
Some grants have been awarded to help these groups. Possible 
negative impact if they are discontinued 

Disability negative 
Some grants have been awarded to help these groups. Possible 
negative impact if they are discontinued 

Gender 
Reassignment 

neutral  

Marriage & Civil 
Partnership 

neutral  

Pregnancy and 
Maternity 

neutral  

Race neutral  

Religion & Belief negative 
Some grants have been awarded to help these groups. Possible 
negative impact if they are discontinued 

Sex neutral  

Sexual Orientation neutral  

 

5 In line with the requirements of the Welsh Language Standards. (No.1) 
Regulations 2015, please note below what effects, if any (whether positive or 
adverse), the proposal would have on opportunities for persons to use the 
Welsh language, and treating the Welsh language no less favourably than the 
English language. 
(The specific Policy Making Standards requirements are Standard numbers 88, 89, 90, 
91, 92 and 93.  The full detail of each Standard is available on the Corporate Policy 
Unit Portal.  Although it is important that what is outlined in the proposal is available in 
Welsh and English, please consider wider impacts on Welsh speakers.) 
 
Consideration has been given to the how the project will be delivered having due regard for the Welsh 
language. 
 
All information and promotional material made available to the public will be in line with the requirements 
of the Welsh Language Standards and is produced bilingually.  All application forms under the proposed 
Caerphilly Enterprise Fund will also be available bilingually. Officers will ensure that the Welsh 
Language Standards which relate to Grants are adhered to as part of the process. 
 

 
 

 

 

Page 257



 

24 
 

 
INFORMATION COLLECTION 
 

6 Please outline any evidence and / or research you have collected which supports 
the proposal?  This can include an analysis of service users. 
(Is this service effectively engaging with all its potential users or is there higher or lower 
participation of uptake by one or more protected characteristic groups? If so, what has 
been done to address any difference in take up of the service?  Does any savings 
proposal include an analysis of those affected?) 
 
 
Commercial Improvement Grants 
In the financial 5 year period between 2013 and 2018 a total of 16 CIG were awarded for improvement 
works to properties in towns and villages throughout the County Borough. Although the maximum grant 
award is £15,000 under this programme, the average grant award was £9,100. Evidence therefore 
suggests that reducing the maximum grant approval to £10,000 will still stimulate economic activity and 
will also allow more applications to be processed per annum. The Council holds a very large database for 
property owners who have submitted an Expression of Interest. To date there are  over 60 expressions of 
interest, 
 
 
Business Grants (BDG & BSUG) 
 Evidence from the 3 previous years suggests that BDG grants at a maximum of £2,000 do help create 
jobs in small businesses. When compared against the recent LIF programme, (which had an average 
grant rate of nearly £6,000) the evidence shows that the BDG regime appear to be better value for 
money. Although it could be argued that a more targeted approach with a maximum grant to £10,000 
would help deliver greater impact to fewer businesses, the facts show that awards at a lower level do 
help business growth and create more jobs overall than a more targeted approach. Evidence shows that 
the full budget is fully expended ‘year on year’ with strong demand for the grants programme. 
 
 Small BSUG grants have been offered at a maximum rate of £500 per application. Feedback from 
officers administrating the grant suggests that this level of support is ideal to help start lifestyle micro 
businesses. With a small budget of £5,000 which is derived from an annual donation from TATA Steel,  it 
appears illogical to increase the grant level as this would dramatically reduce the number of new 
businesses that could be supported. Also by retaining the core elements of the grant this will also help 
any future awards to comply with the terms and conditions imposed by TATA Steel. 
 
Current Community Regeneration Fund 
Since 2011 a wide range of groups have received grant aid at up to 80% intervention rate. Churches, 
sports clubs, scout groups, OAP groups and local community partnerships have been regular recipients 
of the grant with bigger organisations such as GAVO and Inside Out also receiving monies from the fund. 
Between 2011/12 and 2016/17 a total of £1,897,312 was awarded via the Community Regeneration 
Fund, which levered in match funding of £3,351,769 from a variety of sources, However in 2017/18 the 
fund was under-subscribed. 
 
It has been established that there are circa twenty external bodies who offer grant support to the 
voluntary sector and community groups and it is proposed that CCBC groups use these to a greater 
extent than they have to date.  
 
Information  will be gathered during the consultation period with the voluntary sector and community 
groups and will be reflected in the final report to Cabinet on this proposal.  
 
 

 
 
 

Page 258



 

25 
 

 
 

CONSULTATION 
 

7 Please outline the consultation / engagement process and outline any key 
findings. 
(Include method of consultation, objectives and target audience.  What steps have 
been taken to ensure that people from various groups have been consulted during the 
development of this proposal?  Have you referred to the Equalities Consultation and 
Monitoring Guidance?) 
 
Before implementing the move towards an overarching Caerphilly Enterprise Fund that concentrates on 
economic outputs it is proposed that the new grants protocol will go to the Voluntary Sector Liaison 
Committee (and or the voluntary sector/community groups individually) The VSLC is a consultee on 
changes to third sector funding and as such will have a chance to comment on the proposals from this 
stance.  In addition, the Cabinet report recommends that Cabinet approve wider consultation with 
community groups and voluntary sector organisations on the proposals within the report. 

 

 

MONITORING AND REVIEW 
 

8 How will the proposal be monitored? 
(What monitoring process has been set up to assess the extent that the service is 
being used by all sections of the community, or that the savings proposals are 
achieving the intended outcomes with no adverse impact? Are comments or complaints 
systems set up to record issues by Equalities category to be able analyse responses 
from particular groups?)  
 
 
The Caerphilly Enterprise Fund grants, like the current business grants, will have an inbuilt monitoring 
protocol. 
 
Officers within the Regeneration team will have the specific role of monitoring not only who grants have 
been awarded to but also the impact off the grants on those businesses/organisations who they are 
awarded to. 

 
 

9 How will the monitoring be evaluated? 
(What methods will be used to ensure that the needs of all sections of the community 
are being met?) 
 
Officers monitor the grants and evaluate them using a set of criteria that the grants are awarded against. 
The criteria currently do not include for impact on protected characteristics. 
 
However the Council will ensure that residents of Caerphilly are potentially able to benefit from the 
economic impacts of grant award and that grant applications are encouraged from all geographic 
locations. 

 
 

10 Have any support / guidance / training requirements been identified? 
(Has the EIA or consultation process shown a need for awareness raising amongst 
staff, or identified the need for Equalities or Welsh Language training of some sort?) 

Page 259



 

26 
 

 
Officers need to encourage collaborative working and encourage all grant applicants and recipients to 
work to sustainable development principles (I-CLIP – involvement, collaboration, long term, integration, 
prevention) and use the medium of Welsh where possible and practicable. 

 
Officers from within the Council’s Community Regeneration and Economic Development section will 
continue to offer support and advice to community and voluntary groups as to how best to take projects 
forward and benefit from external grant bodies 

 
 
 

11 If any adverse impact has been identified, please outline any mitigation action. 
 
Officers will ensure that all partners and local organisations are aware of the new Caerphilly Enterprise 
Fund and are encouraged to submit applications.  
 
There are a large number of external community and voluntary sector grants programmes and vehicles 
that the Council can help signpost groups to, that will help alleviate any negative impact of the CRF fund 
being withdrawn 

 
 

 

12 What wider use will you make of this Equality Impact Assessment? 
(What use will you make of this document i.e. as a consultation response, appendix to 
approval reports, publicity etc. in addition to the mandatory action shown below?) 
 
The assessment will underpin delivery of the Caerphilly Enterprise fund to ensure that all communities, 
groups, their protected characteristics are given the same opportunity to access the funding. 
 
The EIA will be appended to the Cabinet report 

 
 

 
 

Page 260



 

27 
 

13 An equality impact assessment may have four possible outcomes, through more 
than one may apply to a single proposal.  Please indicate the relevant outcome(s) 
of the impact assessment below.   

Please tick as appropriate: 
 

No major change – the impact assessment demonstrated that the proposal 
was robust; there was no potential for discrimination or adverse impact.  All 
opportunities to promote equality have been taken.  
 

Adjust the proposal – the impact assessment identified potential problems 
or missed opportunities.  The proposal was adjusted to remove barriers or 
better promote equality.   
 

Continue the proposal – the impact assessment identified the potential 
problems or missed opportunities to promote equality.  The justification(s) for 
continuing with it have been clearly set out.  (The justification must be 
included in the impact assessment and must be in line with the duty to have 
due regard.  Compelling reasons will be needed for the most important 
relevant proposals.) 
 

Stop and remove the proposal – the impact assessment identified actual or 
potential unlawful discrimination.  The proposal was stopped and removed, 
or changed. 

 

  

Completed by: Allan Dallimore 

Date: 20.11.18 

Position: Team Leader, Urban Renewal 

Name of Head of Service: Rhian Kyte – Head of Regeneration and 
Planning 

 

 

 

X 

 

Page 261



APPENDIX B 

 

REVIEW OF CCBC REGENERATION GRANTS  

CONSULTATION REPORT 

 

 

INTRODUCTION 

A report was presented to Caerphilly County Borough Council’s Cabinet on the 27th 

February 2019 on the review of CCBC Regeneration Grants.  The report sought 

Cabinet approval to consult more widely on proposals to merge several Council run 

grant programmes into a Caerphilly Enterprise Fund that focuses delivery on 

developing business growth and creating employment opportunities. The rationale 

behind combining the grants into a single fund is to offer improved support to start-up 

businesses, stimulate economic growth, fill identified supply chain voids and support 

job creation. 

This report provides a summary of findings of a survey undertaken as part of the 

wider consultation process. 

 

 

METHOD 

A voluntary sector, business and stakeholder consultations was undertaken from 

Friday 12th April to 13th May 2019.  During this time a variety of methods were used 

to encourage and enable all sectors to get involved and have their say. 

 

Survey 

The questionnaire was designed to target all businesses and voluntary sector 

organisations across the borough who were eligible for previous grant schemes and 

to seek their views on the new proposed merged grant scheme.  A copy of the 

survey is included in Annex 1. 

 

Engagement 

Key engagement mechanism included: 

 

 Online – via the CCBC Website, social media (including Facebook and 

Twitter) 

 Email alerts and correspondence to all business and voluntary sector 

databases 

 Face to Face engagement with the businesses and voluntary sector 

organisations 

 Voluntary Sector Liaison Committee and Newsline 

 

 

Social Media  

The consultation was promoted via social media with a reach of 2,735 individuals via 

Twitter and 5,466 via Facebook through both the main Council pages and the 

Caerphilly Business page.  The social media activity is shown in Annex 2. 

Page 262



APPENDIX B 

 

SURVEY FINDINGS 

A total of 54 responses were received and have been included in this analysis.  

Where the number of responses to a particular question is higher / lower than this 

figure this is noted in brackets in the text of the relevant question. 

 

Respondent Profile 

A profile of respondents provides context for an analysis of the responses received. 

 

As shown in the graph below, the largest proportion (53%) of those who responded 

indicated that they were from Voluntary Sector Organisations.  A further 34% Limited 

Companies, 13% Sole Traders, 8% Social Enterprises, 6% other and the lowest 

response being 4% of Partnership businesses. (Note: responses are not mutually 

exclusive meaning that respondents were able to select more that one response 

therefore, the total does not equal 100%) 

 

 
 

Previous Grant Received 

From the number of respondents who completed this survey 35 of them have 

previously received grant funding through the Regeneration grant schemes leaving 

the remaining 19 as being either unsuccessful or new potential applicants.  The 

below chart shows the breakdown of grants received with 49% of the respondents 

have previously received Community Regeneration Funding. 

 

 

Page 263



APPENDIX B 

 

Focus of New Grant Scheme 

The third question of the survey was emphasised around the new proposed grant 

schemes main focus on developing business growth and employment opportunities 

and whether they agreed or disagreed with the identified areas.  Below shows the 

results from each identified area.  

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

Page 264



APPENDIX B 

 

 

 
 

 
From this question the majority of the respondents strongly disagreed that the focus 

should be around start-up businesses or filling identified supply chain voids identified 

by CCBC Procurement.  However the majority agreed that it should have a focus 

around job creation or safeguarding of jobs, supporting SME’s, Social Enterprises 

and Community Groups along with underutilised / empty town centre commercial 

properties. 

 

It was also opened up for respondents to provide reasons for their decisions.  

Evidence of these has been provided in Annex 3 with 46 mixed comments provided. 

 

Apply for New Fund 

The respondents were asked if they would be encouraged to apply for the new fund 

after reading the primary focus.  The respondents were equally encouraged and not 

encouraged to apply for the new fund with 19% of them being unsure. 

 

 
 

 

Page 265



APPENDIX B 

 

 

Survey Comments 

 

REGENERATION GRANT CONSULTATIONS COMMENTS 

Below are a number of comments made by respondents of the survey….. 

As a small to medium sized business operating in the Caerphilly borough it has been a 
struggle to get our business off the ground and develop it into a company that is sustainable 
for both staff and the business. Whilst start up grants seem a good idea, with no track record 
and many businesses failing in the 1st year I feel the grants available could be better spent 
elsewhere. I am dubious that supply chain voids can be correctly identified and funds placed 
into the right hands by procurement teams as historically this has not been the case. If you 
wish the Caerphilly borough to prosper in my opinion the way forward would be with small to 
medium sized business growth, the full utilization of empty town centres and the safety of the 
jobs currently held in the community. 
 
we are a small business in the Caerphilly area, pay alot of money in business rates, we have 
to pay for our own waste to be removed, an extra cost and burden, we are looking to invest 
in more technology and create jobs, any help with funding, grants would be a big help 
Concentrate on what makes the borough work. 
 
Start up businesses need as much help as possible. Town centres are dying, ploughing 
more money in to them won't adjust peoples attitudes which have changed over the last 5 
years. Small & medium sized businesses need as much help as can be given. My 
experience of community groups & social enterprises is not good. Funding shouldn't be given 
direct but in form of advice and guidance. It's a global economy; supply chain voids shouldn't 
be focused on. Safe guarding jobs is good. 
 
WE NEED TO FOCUS ON REVIVING TOWN CENTRES BEFORE EVERYTHING ELSE. 
OF COURSE IT HASN'T HELPED BY THIS SHORT SIGHTED COUNCIL CLOSING ALL 
THE TOILETS. 
 
A socialist council which is what the public believe they have elected would not blithely give 
public money away in the form of grants but would own the 'underutilised /empty town centre 
shops' you mention and would also have the ability to employ directly if we can afford to give 
the money away! The proposals are capitalist proposals which is very disappointing 
considering we have a labour council. 
 
While supporting small businesses is clearly important, there are other, commercial sources 
that they should be able to access for funding: and anything that the Council can offer is still 
going to be small beer compared to the number of small businesses out there. Charities and 
community groups, on the other hand, will find it difficult to make a ‘commercial’ case to a 
bank or similar, and therefore will find it hard to access commercial loans, since, by 
definition, they are not in it to make a profit. They are, however, very worthy of support by the 
Council: they are often the only organisations in a position to ‘take up the slack’ from cut 
backs in Council services. We have considered applying for the current Regeneration grant, 
but have found its criteria too restrictive: the need to get all consents in place and to get 
three tenders for everything, for example. Those criteria are difficult to achieve when a 
charity is trying to start a new initiative, and probably affect a charity more than, say, a small 
business, which would probably be seeking funding to develop what it already does, rather 
than start something new. If you haven’t been able to move all of the money you had in the 
Regeneration fund budget, it may be that your conditions were too tight. 
 

Page 266



APPENDIX B 

 

I don't disagree with any of the above statements however the question is leading! I Do Not 
agree with the inclusion of a third sector grant in this funding pot!!! The focus of much of the 
3rd sectors work is early intervention. It isn't based on getting people into work. However this 
happens and very successfully. Moreso infact than pure small business startups. However 
you are acting in a very short sighted manner. Many of the Vol orgs that receive community 
regen funding go on to be successful employers. BUT THIS IS NOT THE FOCUS THE 
FOCUS IS EARLY INTERVENTION!! I answered no go the question below because you are 
proposing taking away the one grant that the borough offers to support the 3rd sector. Don't 
abandon them you need them more than you think as budgets across your directorates are 
cut it's the 3rd sector who through preventative and early intervention will help to keep costs 
down. Not the small start up businesses who use the funding buy equipment and computers 
then close down taking it all with them. Also it's important to note: In the last community 
regen funding round all applications came from 3rd sector applications!!! It is also very 
important to note that small business start up grants, schemes, and small low interest loans 
are readily available. I have a list of over 40 which I can share with you should you need 
them. The 3rd sectors access to funding which fits their need is getting smaller each year. I 
ask you to reconsider. Support your third sector in the way they support you with everything 
they have... 
 
I have benefited from a business development grant in the past and believe they have been 
instrumental in me being able to grow and expand my business. 
 
The priorities in the report of focus on "start up businesses, stimulating economic growth, 
filling identified supply chain voids and supporting job creation." is too narrow. The wider 
objectives of the Council of community cohesion, vibrant communities, healthy lifestyles etc 
are excluded from these priorities and this proposal will much to the detriment of the many 
community groups for whom the CRF has been a major source of support. 
 
Support for proven growth businesses is important along with the support of startups. The 
world is a small place and supporting projects that bring work to the area is vital. The 
continued support of colleges to provide a pool of young apprentices may not be part of this 
scheme but skills are severely lacking at all levels in our sector (engineering). Face to face 
contact with businesses is also important so that we feel we are listened to regarding whats 
available grant wise. We have grown from 6 to 38 people on an average salary close to 
£30,000 the main issue halting growth is taking on further debt not finding more customers. 
Support in machine purchase and small infrastructure grants (switch to LED lighting etc) 
would help to generate more employment. 
 
I think that there should be more funding available for small and medium enterprises, its 
great getting grants when you start up a business but businesses that have been established 
a number of years struggle too. 
 
I disagree with the reduction of funds for voluntary sector, especially Community 
Regeneration Fund, and Oakdale CB Fund, which has a specific local focus. There is no 
evidence that supporting the business sector has any positive impact as the Council does 
not monitor results 'down the line', i.e., 
checking to see if the business is still trading or has increased the number of staff it employs 
after a few years. This response is submitted on behalf of: 1. Oakdale & Penmaen 
Community Partnership and 2. Oakdale Community Centre. 
 
The community regeneration grant has supported many voluntary organisations and groups 
to provide much needed services and facilities across the borough. It has also encouraged 
and provided these groups to apply for and receive match and additional funding that would 
of been otherwise unobtainable without the community regeneration funding. Businesses 
have many other streams of acquiring money to support them. While there are other funding 
streams available for the voluntary sector, many of them have very specific criteria and 

Page 267



APPENDIX B 

 

require the group to be a registered charity which would not apply to many of the groups who 
would be considering applying for the community regeneration grant. 
 
I disagree with the reduction of funds for the voluntary sector, especially Community 
Regeneration Fund, and Oakdale CB Fund, which has a specific local focus. Widening the 
area of benefit of the Oakdale Fund would seriously harm organisations currently benefitting 
as many do not have access to other funding streams. There is no evidence that supporting 
the business sector has any positive impact as the Council does not monitor results 'down 
the line', i.e., checking to see if the business is still trading or has increased the number of 
staff it employs after a few years. 
 
I see that you say Community Groups or Social Enterprises will need to prove economic 
worth, but it depends how you quantify that. In my experience such groups and enterprises 
can damage local businesses. If they use government funds and volunteers to undercut local 
businesses who can't compete on that level, then it may appear on paper they are creating 
paid jobs and boosting the economy. But if that's at the expense of a local business who was 
paying taxes and not receiving public funds in the same way, it's damaging the economy in a 
way that can't be measured. I understand fostering community spirit is vitally important in the 
Valleys, and such schemes are useful for youngsters coming up trying to get skills in such 
areas. But if you are paying these youngsters a wage below industry standards (using the 
public funds that subsidise you), then what happens to these youngsters once they have 
gain the necessary skills and try to set up their own business. They aren't receiving public 
funds, so they can't be as cheap as Community Groups or Social Enterprises. They aren't 
going to be able to get work to sustain themselves, and generally are either forced into 
jobs outside their fields or to large cities like London or Bristol where such work exists that 
pays enough to live. 
 
Community and/or voluntary groups should NOT have to compete directly with business 
enterprises regarding employment/business opportunities and growth. They are two distinct 
and separate roles within the community and should not be shoe-horned into one category. 
 
Community funds should be what they say they are and grant monies should be ring-fenced 
for the volunteer sector to improve their communities where local residents give freely of 
their time to improve the communities in which they live. With council cutbacks already 
having a considerable impact on the lack of local services and provision, its left to volunteers 
to provide some of the work historically carried out by councils. I see no evidence to suggest 
supporting local businesses with grant funds brings about secured employment or business 
success and this appears to be a money saving tactic where funds are looking to be 
redirected to balance the councils books. Our particular volunteer organisation in Oakdale 
sees landscaping, litter picking, community centre support and improvement schemes being 
funded by such Grant's and with volunteers carrying out the work enhances the area and 
environment for all villagers and removing funding for materials to carry out this work through 
redirected monies will make these operations redundant. 
 
Get rid of Caerphilly CBC 
 
This fund was set up for use of local communtity projects not to bolster up council funds for 
business projects. My council tax along with thousands of other council tax payers both 
privaye and business should br used for council projects. Considering the council tax has 
risen this year substantially I find it despicable that funds set aside for community projects 
are being considered ad a means to bolster up the council's mismanagement of funds in 
recent years e.g. paying out thousands to dishonest councillors put on "garden leave". 
 
We are a self advocacy charity for people with learning disabilities, who are at present 
working with people with learning disabilities to get them to speak up for themselves and 
challenge discrimination, For the last 2 years we have been facilitating Protection Of 

Page 268



APPENDIX B 

 

Vulnerable Adults (now called safeguarding) training. This has been so successful that we 
have also decided to facilitate other courses such as, Learning disability awareness, working 
with the workforce development team . Also we are working with the Welsh Ambulance to 
facilitate training on when and when not to ring for an ambulance and other tips about 
accidents, Our new project is to go into schools and teach students, aged 7 to 11 - we have 
facilitated 300 students so far. That's why we believe that we can be a small enterprise. 
 
Important to support new businesses as well as companies wishing to expand. 
 
It seems pretty clear on the document that all of the areas will be catered for in the new 
proposal. 
 
Given the limited amount of funds I believe that more could be achieved by focussing on 
smaller Enterprises (therefore, exclude medium sized). Ideally the grants would target new 
job creation rather than safeguarding. If an ongoing business is struggling to safeguard jobs 
then either the market is against them or they are not executing well enough but either way I 
believe the grants available are too small to make a significant impact. I also believe that the 
grants are too small to have significant affect on supply chain voids. But the grants could 
make a huge difference to small start-ups or community projects. I work for a medium sized 
company and won't be applying for the grants as we are profitable and able to generate our 
own resources. I apply that this is appropriate. 
 
While it is important to support businesses and social enterprises that enhance and equip 
the workforce I believe it is short-sighted to withdraw funding that supports grass-roots 
community groups - such as the Community Regeneration Fund - as it is often these 
voluntary sector organisations that provide the basic low-level interventions that act as the 
first steps of an individual's pathway into work. For many individuals who have been long-
term unemployed, have never attained formal qualifications or have severe self-esteem and 
confidence issues (as well as any other barriers) it is highly unlikely that they will be able to 
secure and sustain more formal placements and meet the requirements of the schemes. 
Before these hard outcomes can be achieved there must be work to build the individual's 
interpersonal skills, confidence and time-management skills that are often developed by 
being a member of a smaller voluntary organisation where they can experience being part of 
a team, developing new skills in a supportive environment and building the courage to attend 
formal training days to gain qualifications - grass roots organisations often ensure these 
initial opportunities are informal and accommodating in a way that businesses cannot. They 
are then able to encourage individuals to progress to the more formal employment schemes 
that the proposed funds wills be supporting. It saddens me that investment in businesses is 
coming at the expense of investment in voluntary organisations, who often have the same 
revenue and capital costs to consider as businesses. At a time when many funding streams 
for the voluntary sector are being reduced or dissolved I am disappointed that our council are 
following suit, despite the obvious implications this will have on the county's ability to meet 
the Well-being Goals under the Well-being of Future Generations Act as the 3rd sector is 
absolutely vital to creating and sustaining cohesive communities. 
 
Not pet projects which get continuous funding and remain unsustainable. I do not see why 
supply chain gaps must be identified by Caerphilly procurement. Post brexit we will have 
local fresh produce gaps. Limited horticulture and farms still not diversifying. We will have 
the need to revitalise our towns through markets and different to online shopping 
experiences. Social enterprises should be seen as viable businesses not prop up projects 
moving into a new phase of funding. 
 
The Community Regeneration Fund has supported Voluntary Sector groups for many years 
and this support for voluntary groups has been invaluable. Through its capital grants, it has 
supported funding to enable voluntary groups to restore important buildings in towns and 
villages throughout the borough. Revenue grants have also provided support to fund local 

Page 269



APPENDIX B 

 

employment to carry out such work. The restoration of these buildings enhance the local 
environment, prevent the need for new build, prevent buildings falling into disuse and 
attracting unsocial behaviour from drug users etc. The community can take pride in their 
restored buildings. These organisations provide /building’s to house many community 
activities, an important factor in supporting the well being of members of the community, 
which the council supports as a Welsh Assembly Directive. How do you quantify Health 
and Well Being? By providing activities and events that people can attend helps combat 
loneliness and isolation in a growing number of older folk in our community and promotes 
cohesion among community members. These organisations provide community support, 
makes provision for social activities near people's homes, especially for those who do not 
wish/ cannot travel/ afford to go into the cities to find similar events. Local provision of 
activities is at a price people can afford. Therefore we need to protect the current CRF at all 
costs. To concentrate on Community Enterprise Schemes to the disadvantage of the work of 
the voluntary sector must not happen. How long will some of these schemes last? What 
happens to equipment when they fail? A registered charity's assets would go to a similar 
organisation if that organisation closed. What will happen when an enterprise scheme 
fails? The criteria for the new Community Enterprise Scheme must broaden its criteria to 
allow Voluntary Organisations to be able to apply to a grant scheme which operates from a 
level playing field. Current proposals are concentrate far too much in favour of Community 
Enterprise Schemes. Other funders, as suggested by the council also have criteria far too 
limited to enable voluntary sector groups to apply. 
 
Focus needs to be on what the community groups are currently providing and with the help 
of funding services can be sustained and increased. 
 
Voluntary Community groups require support in the form of grant funding and as volunteer-
led groups, they cannot give employment opportunities but opportunities for people to 
volunteer within their community. It is essential that voluntary community groups are still 
supported with grant-funding opportunities This is not a very detailed survey asking for 
people's opinions on the proposed changes. 
 
I feel that the aim of the Community Regeneration Fund has always been to enable 
Voluntary Organisations to provide facilities in their local communities mainly to 
disadvantaged, vulnerable and neglected groups. The grants have been used to support a 
variety of projects from repairing and improving buildings, providing start-up sums for new 
activities and ensuring the continuation of valuable existing activities. Voluntary 
Organisations employ a certain number of people, usually living locally. Through their grant-
funded activities they create and maintain local employment, whether by employment of local 
builders, support to un-paid carers and be-frienders, providers of local classes and training in 
a wide range of fields - healthy living, digital skills, support to volunteers and paid 
carers of vulnerable people Above all, voluntary organisations and volunteers are 
enormously good value because so many people give their time and effort to the community 
UNPAID AND WITHOUT PERSONAL REWARD. They contribute immeasurably to the 
Council's well-being agenda and seem to be increasingly called upon by the council to take 
over the council's functions. It seems perverse to be discouraging Voluntary Sector 
Organisations and volunteers at the very time when they are called upon to do more and 
more for the community. It is not the case that grants are readily available from other 
sources since funding bodies in general are cutting back as they less money to distribute 
and are facing higher demands. Many volunteers are older people with inadequate computer 
skills and find the grant application process laborious and time-consuming and can be easily 
discouraged by successive refusals. The promotion of business is important but it has to be 
remembered that the driving force behind businesses to personal gain, not the well-being of 
the community. Many business start-ups fail, many jobs provided do not last very long. There 
are alternative sources of funding and questions could be asked as to why the tax-payer 
should be funding businesses in the first place. 
 

Page 270



APPENDIX B 

 

I think there is a real opportunity to tackle village/town high streets with a new type of retail 
though start ups. We need to ensure that a continual flow of New Business come through the 
system allowing for failures as well as the successful ones. 
 
As someone who struggled to find any good quality help from anything when starting up a 
business that was something new to the market, I think "Business Start-ups in all sectors" is 
an important one. There are services to help new businesses, but mostly for specific types. A 
lot of towns are being degraded purely for the lack of services that aren't just another hair 
dressers and for the number of empty buildings not in use. I also think anything to do with 
well-being is a major priority in these days and times where the rate of mental health in 
young children and adults is increasing dramatically. 
 
I think all the above points above are important. It would be good to focus on regeneration of 
the town centre and have a more diverse range of shops. I hope that CCBC tries to fill supply 
chain voids with local companies as much as possible. My only concern is funding for Social 
Enterprises, as many have failed in the past. Perhaps they need more scrutiny and/or 
guidance in the future. 
 
I think it important to support community groups, having applied to countless external grants 
(Lottery, Coalfield etc) and being unsuccessful because they have limited funding and 
therefore greater competition for the funding. Please support the volunteers who give up 
countless hours of their own time to make our County Borough a better place. 
 
I think it important to support community groups, having applied to countless external grants 
(Lottery, Coalfield etc) and being unsuccessful because they have limited funding and 
therefore greater competition for the funding. Please support the volunteers who give up 
countless hours of their own time to make our County Borough a better place. 
 
Because you asked to take part in consultation 
 
Us small businesses need support. We need help to get tenable start up businesses that are 
in line with welsh government policy and meet the council's strategy for development and 
regeneration and are actually needed in the area . Small medium business and not large 
chains or multinational take over as they have economy of scale and opportunities not open 
to us small guys. We would like to expand and develop but lackaffordable and achievable 
investment opportunities , if these were available we would create jobs , offer tourists 
opportunities and make an environmental impact using regenerative stewardship of the land 
as well as keeping residents here spending their money locally and drawing them here from 
the city's . . A token amount is negiable for us . If you want all these long term benefits you 
need to properly invest short term and embrace our vision financially as long as its in line 
with policy and strategy and you think there is a market for it.. We have experienced 
increasing energy costs which we can not sustain, our ageing equipment doesn’t help so 
new energy efficient equipment would really help us, this is unachievable for us . . We need 
a grants that we can install renewable energy sources , these may benefit the community 
where there is surplus, as well as allowing us to develop our business rather than stagnate 
or lose it. Although seasonal we create opportunities for younger workers who find it hard to 
get jobs locally th8s needs to be seen as valuable in the same way as other permanent, full 
time job creation is . . We need to invest in regenerative agriculture and agroforestry , keep 
supply chains as local as possible. With the growing climate concerns we have a massive 
opportunity here and could lead the way . We have massive vision but without financial help 
we are stuck .. The biggest challenge thwarting development we face as a,sme is the vat 
barrier , it stifles us . Perhaps some relief ( or rise) so we could make the massive leap we 
need to meet the additional tax , which would put us out of business now before the vision 
was realised that would put us in the position of being able to sustain it .this is a crazy 
situation to be in. In regards to identifying supply chains and the allocation of funding for 

Page 271



APPENDIX B 

 

certain projects over others this could be open to criticism. I think careful thought should go 
into transparency and processes to justify decisions. 
 
Stop wasting money on social and community enterprises, charities, voluntary third sector 
etc as these generate no wealth and often fulfil roles better undertaken by private enterprise. 
They soak up cash better spent in developing proper commercial ventures. The new 
approach is a step in the right direction!! 
 
I fully appreciate the focus of the council on increasing jobs through business start-ups and 
projects that help safeguard or generate new jobs. However, what I observe is that town 
centre commercial properties are increasingly used by the major charities to sell goods to 
raise money for their charities. I assume that these properties do not generate income for the 
council, because I know that business rent is waived for charities. So unless utilization is 
through commercial use, it will not assist budgets, although it may preserve town centres 
from dilapidation. I do not agree with removing all focus from grant funding to community 
projects aimed, not at generating jobs, but at improving the quality of life for those living in 
the borough. Although you say that you will focus on established groups, later in the 
document you say that officers will focus on signposting these initiatives to larger funds such 
as Big Lottery, Garfield Weston etc. of which you provide a list. Looking through that list, 
there are several things to point out - firstly, these are open to a wider geographical area 
than CCBC, and hence competition for funds is very high. Secondly - some of these funds 
have a very narrow applicability - e.g. Gwent only, focus on women and girls only, armed 
forces veterans only, or learning disability only. Many (especially the larger ones) require 
match funding, for which CRF has been useful, and many are small - e.g. £2000 to £5000, 
so of limited help to larger projects. Whilst focus on jobs and business is good, it fails to 
recognize the increasing elderly population in the Borough - for whom neither of these things 
will improve their quality of life. The voluntary sector is moving towards focus on these areas 
- with opportunities for fellowship, dementia cafes and memory halls etc. These activities are 
flourishing thanks to CRF funding in the past to help provide appropriate buildings in which 
these things can happen. I totally endorse the comments made by the present administrators 
of CRF, and find the answers form the regeneration officer to be unsatisfactory - basically 
saying that "yes, the grant has done great work, but because there is alternative funding 
available across the rest of the country, we will not be continuing this". Basically the borough 
will be reliant on outside funders to support the continuation of this work. I wonder how many 
of these external funders will respond positively when they know that CCBC does not 
support its own??. 
 
Expecting enterprise or the third sector to take over small under utilised buildings doesn't 
work and sets them up to fail. 
 
While accepting the need for a robust strategy to encourage job creation and to underpin 
support for existing jobs in the borough, we should not lose sight of the fact that voluntary 
organisations often engage in projects that provide an important "pathway" for people to find 
employment by offering useful volunteering opportunities. This is over and above enhancing 
the well-being of people living in local communities because of improvements in the physical, 
economic and social environment. 
 
I think this grant should be restricted to Voluntary Organisations who do good work 
throughout the community usually for vulnerable people. There are other ways of funding 
business. 
 
Voluntary organisations create jobs and should continue to benefit from this grant. 
 
Voluntary sector organisations create jobs so I believe they should be given preference for 
the grant 

Page 272



APPENDIX B 

 

I feel the voluntary section, such as the community centre I represent would not have an 
opportunity to apply for grants. Whilst I agree that the proposal 'could' provide employment 
opportunities. Our centre provides many different opportunities to the wider community to 
take part in, for all age ranges. This is as important to the community as employment. We 
have birthday parties, church on a Sunday, Zumba, Kick boxing, baby club to name just a 
few things. Therefore I feel strongly the voluntary section should not be discounted. 
 
I think the CRF grant should be reserved for voluntary sector organisations to help fund the 
valuable work they do in the community. The voluntary sector create jobs to at least a 
greater extent as businesses. 
 
Teimlwn bod yr awgrymiadau i newid y gronfa dan sylw yn mynd i gael effaith niweidiol ar y 
sector gwirfoddol. Mae yna perygl y bydd y newidiadau yn golygu na all nifer o fudiadau yn y 
Trydydd Sector ymgeisio am gyllid o'r gronfa. Mae nifer o'r mudiadau hyn yn gwneud 
cyfraniad gwerthfawr tu hwnt i'w cymunedau lleol ac yn cyfrannu i'r economi leol mewn 
amrywiaeth o ffyrdd. Mae'n bwysig bod unrhyw newidiadau yn cydnabod y cyfraniadau hyn 
ac os yw'r gronfa yn newid ei fod yn agored i amrywiaeth o fudiadau. Er efallai nad yw rhai 
mudiadau yn creu swyddi, mae'r gwasanaethau maent yn cynnig yn cefnogi nifer o drigolion i 
ddychwelyd i'r gweithle, dilyn hyfforddiant, gwirfoddoli a magu hyder. Mae'r gwasanaethau 
hyn yn cael effaith gwerthfawr a chadarnhaol ar lles trigolio 

 

Page 273



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 274



 
CABINET – 26TH JUNE 2019 

 
SUBJECT: ENERGY AND CARBON REPORT 
 
REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION AND CORPORATE 

SERVICES   
 

 
1.1 The attached report was considered by the Housing and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee at 

its meeting on the 11th June 2019. 
 
1.2 The Scrutiny Committee supported the existing initiatives outlined in section 5.6 to 5.17 of the 

Officer’s report and recognised that further work needed to be done to reduce our carbon 
footprint and become a net carbon neutral local authority by 2030. 

 
1.3 With regard to the key opportunities and projects going forward Members supported the 

principle of an Energy Plan and then sought clarification on the identification of possible 
Council sites for solar and wind power generation.  Officers confirmed that Property Services 
were looking at a number of land assets where there may be opportunities for both.  
Reference was made to the potential for hydroelectric generation and it was noted that this 
was very limited due to fall and volume limitations.  However a feasibility study had identified 
the potential of the stream adjacent to the visitor centre at Cwmcarn Forest Drive but its 
viability required further investigation.   

 
1.4 The Scrutiny Committee also supported the principle of woodland development and again 

queried any identified sites.  Members were advised that similar to sites for wind and solar 
farms, location identification was at a very early stage but there was definite potential for 
development.  Members were then updated on the possible impact that the Ash Tree die-back 
programme across Wales could have on woodlands and Officers confirmed that further 
reports would be brought forward on this issue.  

 
1.5 In terms of the Electric Vehicle Strategy and Action Plan assurance were sought that the 

charging infrastructure would be spread throughout the county borough.  Officers confirmed 
that there would be 8-9 sites developed in order to ensure county wide coverage. 

 
1.6 Members noted the wider economic benefits but concerns were expressed in relation to the 

capital spends required in order to take projects forward and the length of payback periods.  
Officers outlined how the Salix invest to save scheme operated and confirmed that a 10 year 
payback was standard and assurances given that the payback timeframe would always be 
aligned to ensure that it never exceeded the lifespan of the technology. 

 
1.7 The Scrutiny Committee welcomed opportunities that would reduce fuel poverty and would 

also welcome projects that would increase PV roof installations on Council housing/buildings.  
 
1.8 Having fully considered its content the Housing and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee 

unanimously supported the principle of a Draft Energy Plan and the recommendations 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 275

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 6



contained within the Officer’s report and 
 
  RECOMMENDED that Cabinet: - 
 

(i) acknowledge the volume and diversity of work on carbon conservation that has 
already been undertaken as outlined in Appendix 1: Summary Report on 
initiatives to date. 

 
(ii) note the views of Scrutiny regarding the proposed overarching aims of the new 

Energy Plan to make us a carbon neutral council, and the associated proposed 
projects that will assist in delivering that aim. 

 
(iii) consider the next steps in the development of the Energy Plan and offer 

Scrutiny consideration one a draft is developed. 
 
1.9 Cabinet are asked to consider the attached report and the above recommendation from the 

Scrutiny Committee. 
 
 
Author:  E. Sullivan (Senior Committee Services Officer) 

 
Appendices:- 
Appendix 1 Report to Housing and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee on 11th June 2019 – 

Agenda Item 7 

Page 276



 
 
 

HOUSING AND REGENERATION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE –  
11TH JUNE 2019 

 

SUBJECT:  ENERGY AND CARBON REPORT 
 
REPORT BY: INTERIM CORPORATE DIRECTOR COMMUNITIES 
 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 The report outlines the progress made in respect of energy conservation and carbon 

reduction predominantly through its Carbon Reduction Strategy.  The report outlines 
the need for a new overarching plan which will assist the Council in meeting it’s 
“Green energy” ambitions whilst aligning the authority with Welsh Government’s and 
the Cardiff Capital Region (CCR) aspirations for decarbonisation. It also 
demonstrates how the Council can make radical improvements via some key 
opportunity areas and projects.   

 
 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 The report firstly summarises the positive track record that the authority has through 

introducing and implementing measures to reduce energy consumption and reduce 
its carbon footprint. It sets out the benefits attained from that work and outlines how 
this will be further enhanced by exploring and maximising the Council’s assets. The 
existing Carbon Reduction Strategy period ends in 2019, so there is a need to 
develop a new overarching strategy for the Council.  Part of this process will be the 
development of an Energy Plan which sets out our overarching objective of being a 
carbon neutral council and identifies a number of projects that the Council can take 
forward over the short, medium and long term that will move us towards this 
overarching aim. 

  
 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 To acknowledge the volume and diversity of work on carbon conservation that has 

already been undertaken, as outlined in Appendix 1: Summary report on initiatives to 
date. 

 
3.2 To seek the views of the Committee regarding the proposed overarching aims of the 

new Energy Plan to make us a carbon neutral council, and the associated proposed 
projects that will assist in delivering that aim. 
 

3.3  The committee consider the next steps in the development of the Energy Plan and to 

Page 277



offer scrutiny consideration once a draft is developed. 
 
 
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 The Council needs to build on the progress made over the last decade through the 

implementation of the Carbon Reduction Strategy.  In order to continue that work the 
Council needs to take a coordinated approach to carbon/energy management. This 
report advocates a wider approach to reducing energy consumption and investing in 
energy efficiency using the Council’s own assets to drive forward this agenda through 
the development of a new Caerphilly County Borough Council Energy Plan. 

 
4.2 Taking this wider approach will certainly assist the Council in fulfilling its Green 

energy potential as well as demonstrating the current obligations we have already, 
set out by Welsh Government and Westminster Government. Importantly it will also 
help future-proof the local authority going forward.  In order to shape the Energy Plan 
it is imperative that the Council first understands what problems it is trying to solve in 
order to align potential projects to deliver maximum impact. 

 
 
5. THE REPORT 
 
5.1 The requirement for the Authority to continue to be proactive stems from a suite of 

internal and external drivers and influences. Continuing energy cost increases are a 
prime external driver; whilst the need to develop a replacement Carbon Reduction 
Strategy and the opportunity to take a commercial approach to some of our assets 
are internal ones. Importantly, we brand ourselves as the “Green” council and we 
know there is still much to do to maximise our full potential in terms of Green energy 
credentials. 

 
5.2 There is also a changing legislative landscape and a change in focus particularly by 

Welsh Government. The launch of Welsh Government’s Prosperity for All:  Low 
Carbon Wales in March 2019 outlines the following vision:   

 
 “In 2050, Wales will be among the best places in the world to live, learn, work and 

do business. Our businesses, public services, third sector and government will 
have worked together to achieve the goals that we set in the ground-breaking 
Well-being of Future Generations Act and the target to reduce emissions by at 
least 80% against the 1990 baseline”. 

 
5.3 Welsh Government advocates a low carbon pathway that requires decarbonisation 

across a number of sectors, such as power, buildings and transport. This means that 
the Council needs to ensure that long lived infrastructure for these sectors support 
low carbon options and avoid locking in high carbon infrastructure and behaviour. It 
will mean investing in infrastructure in the low carbon economy as soon as possible,  

 
5.4 Regionally there is also pressure to accelerate decarbonisation. Cardiff Capital 

Region City Deal is working towards creating an overarching regional energy 
strategy. It is likely that the objectives set by this regional energy strategy will mirror 
and support those set out by Welsh Government. We have already identified through 
our Regeneration Strategy that the Green energy sector provides an important 
opportunity for us to develop an economic and environmental eco-system. 

 
  

 

Page 278



WORK TO DATE 
 
5.5 Caerphilly County Borough Council has been active in energy conservation methods 

and techniques since 2005, and is able to demonstrate many good examples of 
success as outlined below: 

 
 Carbon Reduction Strategy  
5.6 The authority has a Carbon Reduction Strategy which is due to expire in 2019.  This 

10 year strategy focusses in on reducing carbon emissions on non domestic 
buildings and street lighting. The strategy has been founded on the principles of: 
Good Housekeeping; Invest to Save; Asset Management and renewable energy all of 
which have played a major role in significant energy efficient projects being delivered 
by the authority. The Carbon Reduction Strategy identified a 45% reduction target 
and the Council have been working towards this over the last decade. Initial out-turn 
figures indicate that the Council is close to achieving this target. 

 
 Invest to Save 
5.7 The authority has a proven track record in delivering energy and carbon 

improvements using the Invest to Save model. The authority was a founding member 
(2004) of the national Salix scheme, which provides interest free loans from a 
revolving investment pot for technologies such as lighting (as in Ty Penallta), boiler 
controls or insulation to name a few. There have been 120 projects delivered in 
schools across the county borough. The authority has £800k to reinvest and is the 
top performer in Wales on the volume of annual carbon saved. The County Borough 
is also placed highly in UK national league tables. It is the eighth placed authority 
within the Salix scheme and is the highest placed Welsh Authority. Overall against all 
public sector organisations we are placed 16th out of 110 organisations. 

 
5.8 As at 1st April 2018, the Salix scheme is reported to save £475,882 annually off the 

authority’s gas and electricity bill. The Council’s annual utility bill would have been 
significantly higher had the projects not been implemented. Our annual carbon 
savings through the Salix scheme is 2,930 tonnes and in 17/18 this equated to 
£51,861 saved on carbon tax. As the cost of carbon tax and utility costs increase and 
as we continue to add to the projects implemented, the annual savings continue to 
increase.  

  
Renewables  

5.9 The Council has invested in 19 medium sized Photo Voltaic (PV) arrays and 45 
smaller demonstration PV schemes that have offset grid electricity consumption by 
621 MWh (CCBC have also exported power to the grid).  These PV’s schemes have 
resulted in a total of 583 tonnes of carbon saved at today’s conversion rate; and a 
total Feed In Tariff revenue to the authority of circa £390k.   

 
 Street Lighting 
5.10 Caerphilly CBC has a current street lighting stock of approximately 27,500 units, 

which since 2009 have been subject to a number of energy saving measures (inter-
urban road part-night lighting, replacement of conventional lamps with low-energy 
alternatives, dimming etc.). In 2015-16 a capital investment was made for the 
replacement of approximately 8,200 lights with LED gear trays (replacing the lighting 
elements only) and approximately 1250 LED lanterns replacing life expired sodium 
lanterns within residential areas. To date these changes have brought a reduction in 
energy of 4,239,776 kWh and 1747 tonnes of CO2. 

 
5.11 At the beginning of April 2019 the Council has begun a program to convert all the 

county borough’s remaining street lanterns to LED and at the same time implement 

Page 279



part night lighting, between the hours of midnight and 5.30am, to all lighting, except 
at junctions and in major town centres. Once the additional savings of 6,884,477KWh 
and 2,836 are realised, the Council will have contributed to energy reductions of 
11,124,253 kWh and 4583 tonnes of Co2. This equates to a 63% reduction in CO2 
from Highway energy alone and 17.6% towards the Authority’s 45% target. The new 
programme will see millions of pounds invested in replacing the remaining 
luminaires. The energy savings to date have been approx. £500,000. The energy 
savings for the current LED/part night initiative will realise an additional £940,000 in 
avoided costs/savings.  

 
 Housing  
5.12 Reducing energy consumption has been the key objective of the Council when 

considering its own housing stock. Over a third of the Council’s stock has now 
benefitted from external wall insulation. A large proportion has also benefitted from 
the introduction of more efficient condensing boilers and loft insulation. This work has 
been supplemented by the introduction of double glazing on all of the Council’s 
housing stock. Some innovative projects have been trialled, including the installation 
of Solar PV on stock at Ty Coch, Rhymney and air source heat pumps at properties 
in Rudry.  The Council were also partners in the off grid housing exemplar at Maes Yr 
Onn to design and deliver a modern farmhouse and family home. 

 
CCBC Office Stock 

5.13 The Council, wherever possible is looking to reduce energy costs associated with 
running its own office buildings. Much progress has been made in reducing the 
electricity consumption in Ty Penallta for example. 108 roof top PV panels have been 
installed, changes have been made to the heating and cooling controls strategy and 
the original tungsten and fluorescent lighting is progressively being replaced with the 
latest low energy LED fittings.  

 
Housing Association Developments  

5.14 All of the zoned Housing associations active in the county borough are absolutely 
committed to addressing the Welsh Government’s low carbon agenda and housing 
delivery challenges in Wales.  Those HA’s zoned in the locality have been working 
towards a decarbonisation agenda for some time and have been working to higher 
standards than volume house builders. 
 

 Utility Billing 
5.15 Between 2005-2013 the authority’s energy team checked all non domestic Gas and 

Electricity bills.  Post 2013 the team has been paying those bills.  This has improved 
accuracy and speed of payment and prevents overpayment.  Importantly this has led 
to accurate energy consumption/cost reporting on all Council owed buildings.  This 
covers circa 7,880 invoices (including credits and rebills) with a value of £3.65m. 

 
 Sustainable transport 
5.16 Transport accounts for 14% of Welsh carbon emissions, and although vehicles are 

becoming increasingly efficient, this figure has barely moved since the 1990 
baseline.  Significant work has already been undertaken to reduce the emissions 
from Council vehicles, with a drive to phase out older vehicles and replace them with 
more efficient and cleaner new (Euro 6 compliant) vehicles.  Work has also been 
undertaken to support staff to travel more sustainably, including: establishing a car 
share scheme; providing pool bikes; promoting low emission vehicles through a 
salary sacrifice car scheme; and installing shower and changing facilities to 
encourage people to cycle to work. The Authority also operates a “Cycle to Work 
Scheme, and has recently taken ownership of an electric bike which is available for 
staff to use    

Page 280



 
 Electric Vehicles  
5.17 The Authority recently approved an Electric Vehicle Strategy and Action Plan setting 

out its vision to “Introduce an electric vehicle infrastructure across Caerphilly county 
borough, to maximise the economic, social and environmental benefits and 
opportunities that the electric vehicle agenda will provide, and for electric vehicles to 
be a fundamental part of our fleet”.  The key aims are to: 

 
•           Provide electric vehicle infrastructure across the Caerphilly County Borough. 
•           Lead by example incorporating electric vehicles into our fleet and trial new 

  technologies as they evolve. 
•           Work with private developers to incorporate electric vehicle infrastructure into 
 new builds and developments. 
•           Work with our partners and local businesses to encourage them to adopt a 
 similar approach to electric vehicles and their infrastructure. 

 
5.18 Continuing and expanding on this good work will bring about a number of benefits for 

the Council, its residents and indigenous businesses 
 

REDUCING OUR CARBON FOOTPRINT CAN HAVE MULTIPLE BENEFITS:  
 
5.19 Although the Council has worked hard to reduce its current carbon footprint, we do 

still impact negatively on our environment. The Carbon Reduction Strategy 
concentrated on non domestic buildings and street lighting and looked to reduce 
energy consumption and associated carbon emissions. The Council has accurate 
data in relation to consumption and carbon for both that as allowed us to measure 
the impact of this strategy. . The starting carbon emission in 2007/08 was circa 
27,718 tonnes dropping to circa 23,227 tonnes in 2017/18. Unfortunately outside of 
the Carbon Reduction Strategy there isn’t a carbon map to currently outline the 
authority’s overall carbon footprint which would include additional areas such as 
waste, transport and social rented housing.  

 
 5.20 The positive impact of the interventions that we have already made and measured 

can be further increased through the implementation of this new Energy Plan and it is 
of paramount importance that the Council seeks to measure the impact that these 
interventions will have. The Council advocates that carbon reduction should be the 
primary benefit and this should be our focus moving forward even if options that 
maximise carbon reduction are financially more expensive. 

 
5.21 Our overall ambition is to become a net carbon neutral local authority by 2030. 

This motion has been signed by the Cabinet plus the leaders from the two other 
political groups and has the support of the Environment and Sustainability Scrutiny 
Committee. The Energy Plan will set out opportunities for delivery against the 
objective to become carbon neutral and reduce and/or offset our non-domestic 
building and street lighting annual carbon emissions from its current level of circa 
23,000 tonnes to zero by 2030. The plan will also enable us to quantify and agree a 
carbon reduction strategy for other areas such as transport, waste and social rented 
housing. Key benefits are as follows: 

  
Carbon Reduction 

5.22 Carbon is one of the main greenhouse gas emissions that are directly responsible for 
the change in climatic conditions around the world.  More and more extreme weather 
events are resulting in people losing their health, wealth and general wellbeing.  
Reducing carbon emissions must remain our key focus in driving forward the Energy 
Plan. 

Page 281



 Social benefits  
5.23 Making homes more energy efficient will reduce fuel bills and is a key tool in reducing 

fuel poverty.  Improving access to efficient, integrated transport will enable residents 
to access employment and will tackle inequalities. 

 
 Direct Financial Benefits  
5.24 As well as the environmental and social benefit to Carbon reduction there is also a  

financial benefit to the authority.  Each tonne of carbon generated from building 
usage in 18/19 will cost £18.30. The annual cost for 17/18 was £337,415.  From 1st 
April 2019 the Climate Change Levy tariff has increased for Electricity by 45% and 
Gas by 67% on last year’s figures.  Through the authority’s invest to save scheme, 
we have shaved 3,078 tonnes off the annual carbon bill, 922 tonnes of this from 
schools. These are continual annual saving and as new projects are added, the value 
grows. 

 
5.25 Energy improvement projects, including good housekeeping and invest to save 

opportunities, reduce the electricity bill value and carbon emissions by reducing 
consumption at source.  It reduces the overall bill and reduces carbon taxes outright 
and also protects budgets.  Some Invest to save opportunities can result in a steady 
revenue stream.  The authority sells its electricity, generated from a PV scheme on 
the roof of Islwyn Indoor Bowls, to the club, bringing in a regular income stream to 
the authority.  It also helps safeguard the bowls club as they are purchasing from the 
Council at a cheaper rate than they could obtain from grid suppliers.  

 
 Legislative compliance 
5.26 The authority is included in the Carbon Reduction Commitment scheme which has 

come at a financial cost, however non-compliance in the scheme could have resulted 
in fines (max £1M) and / or prosecution.  The authority also has to provide Display 
Energy Certificates and Energy Performance Certificates in line with the Energy 
Performance Building Directive.  It is to be assumed over time greater legal 
responsibility will be imposed on the authority to adhere to decarbonisation targets 
and it makes perfect sense to move towards wide scale reductions ahead of this 

 
 Future proofing  
5.27 Energy prices for gas and electricity are influenced by many factors such as: 

weather, location, green tariffs, political agenda and generation constraints.  Local 
generation for local consumption can mitigate against grid price rises and future proof 
against cost increase, however this must go hand in hand with reducing consumption 
at source.  Local generation can provide some opportunities to raise revenues. 

 
 Wider economic benefits  
5.28 Delivering on this agenda will have wider economic benefits.  Proposals within the 

Energy Plan will bring opportunities to local  businesses, including but not restricted 
to: 

o Offering direct employment for a local workforce to manage projects once 
they are established. 

o Local businesses will have the opportunity to benefit from construction/build 
contracts. 

o Local firms will be encouraged to supply goods and services during 
construction and once the projects are operational.  

o Some local businesses will benefit from clean renewable energy. 
o Attracting inward investment into the county borough offering clean energy for 

business use at certain locations. 
 
5.29 Individual projects may contribute to one or all of these benefits.  The Council has 

Page 282



land, building and assets that provide the authority with the opportunity to implement 
projects that will bring forward some or all of the benefits outlined above. Some will 
focus on improving carbon reduction, others on economic prosperity, some will serve 
to alleviate social and energy poverty and some will bring more opportunities for job 
creation than others. All future projects will need to be considered in terms of the 
benefits they bring to the authority and its residents. 

 
KEY OPPORTUNITES/PROJECTS 
 

5.30 There are a number of projects that the Council can incorporate into their evolving 
Energy Plan. These can be identified against short, medium and long term 
timescales for implementation.  For this report it has been assumed that short 
timelines are up to 24 months, medium are between two and 5 years and long term 
are 5 years plus.  

 
5.31 Each of these projects will help the Council move towards reducing our carbon 

footprint and move us towards our goal of becoming a net carbon neutral authority by 
2030. The Energy Plan will seek to measure how each project impacts positively on 
reducing carbon production and where appropriate energy savings to the council. A 
standard set of measurements are currently used to measure our carbon production 
in certain arenas of operation such as non domestic building management. The level 
of kilowatt hours of energy (gas and electricity) used by the Council is carefully 
measured and is then converted into “quantity of carbon generated” data. This will be 
a primary source of measurement going forward but will be refined for each project.  

 
5.32 The following section gives a pen portrait of projects that the Council could readily 

take forward.  
 
Solar Power generation - Medium (24-60 months)   

5.33 In recent weeks the authority has undertaken an initial survey to establish if available 
land would be suitable for large scale renewable energy projects.  From an initial 14 
sites the Council has now established that large scale PV could be explored at five 
sites within the county brorough. Additional consideration will be given to other 
available public sector land across the county borough, although The Council is 
aware that Western Power Distribution report infrastructure constraints for exported 
power between Rhymney and Abergavenny until 2026.  Perhaps the most exciting 
prospect is the prospect of introducing solar farms on publicly owned open air car 
parks. With improvements in associated technologies, it is now possible to set up  
arrays of solar panels so they  permit vehicles to park underneath them. 

 
5.34 Smaller PV installations remain an option on buildings such as Tredomen House 

(circa £55k), Tredomen Innovation Centre and schools.  Funding would be required 
to proceed and structural roof surveys will be needed, so no sites can be guaranteed 
at this stage.  Approval will be required from Western Power Distribution before any 
power is exported onto the grid.  Maximum benefit is derived from aligning PV 
schemes to buildings that have extended operating hours to absorb the power being 
generated at all times. 
 

 Anaerobic Digester - Short (0-24 Months) 
5.35 Anaerobic Digesters (AD) break down feeder fuels such as food waste and maize to 

generate a biogas.  The gas is burnt to generate electricity. Bryn Quarry which is 
2.1km away from the Ty Penallta estate has an Anaerobic digester. Initial 
discussions with the company that owns it, indicates a willingness to discuss the 
option of the authority buying their electricity, which would be beneficial to both 
parties as it would increase their revenue stream whilst possibly reducing authority 

Page 283



energy costs.  This opportunity could feed the Tredomen estate/campus and possibly 
a wider catchment of properties.  Additional added benefits could include the use of 
authority land to grow feeder crops for the Anaerobic Digester.     

 
 Wind Turbines - Medium/Long (24-60+ Months) 
5.36 The Council already has a partnership project between CCBC and the Partnership 

for Renewables, where two wind turbines have been installed on council owned land 
on Oakdale Business Park. Each turbine has a generating capacity of 2 Megawatts, 
capable of powering 2,000 homes.  As part of the project a Community Benefit 
scheme was established which provides £10,000 to local projects each year of the 25 
year lifetime of the scheme. 

 
5.37 The authority’s recent land review did not identify any obvious sites for Wind Turbine 

generation. However, the Heads of the Valleys may provide suitable opportunity for 
an energy belt to feed the grid and local industry.  Large wind turbines have the 
potential for good power generation and therefore revenue generation, they require a 
smaller footprint than solar farms and are easier to safeguard against vandalism. As 
reported previously, Western Power Distribution is aware of grid infrastructure 
constraints in the area and a dialogue continues on this matter.  

  
 Electric Vehicle Strategy and Action Plan -  Short (0-24 Months)  
5.38 As part of the work on the Electric Vehicle Action Plan, CCBC is leading on a 

feasibility study to determine the most suitable sites for electric vehicle charge points 
in the 5 Gwent local authorities, for all types of vehicles including cars, vans and 
bikes. It will also identify the grid connection availability and approximate costs, along 
with the most appropriate type of charging unit and options for income 
generation.   The study will form the basis of a bid for the Office for Low Emission 
Vehicles (OLEV) funding. The aim is to identify a cost-effective regional approach for 
electric vehicle charge point infrastructure across Gwent. 

 
5.39 Linked to this, work is being undertaken to install charge points at the Tredomen 

Campus for fleet vehicles and visitors. The Council will look to roll out additional EV 
charging points across the authority.  Caution must be taken to ensure the correct 
type of chargers are installed. They vary from very slow to super-fast and the latter 
are expensive to install but the authority need to future proof against improving 
battery systems. 

 
5.40 CCBC is also leading on a strategic fleet review for each Gwent Local Authority and 
 PSB Partner to break down current vehicle usage and quantify the benefits and any 
 potential issues of introducing ultra-low emission vehicles (ULEV’s) into their fleet 
 (i.e. identifying opportunities for replacing existing fleet with more efficient ultra-low 
 emission vehicles (ULEVs).  

 
Stage Coach Metro Link Medium (12-24 months)  

5.41 The Council has warmly welcomed the news that Stagecoach will deliver one of 
Europe’s largest single investments in electric buses for Caerphilly, after securing 
£2.9m in grant funding from the UK Government.  Stagecoach will invest £3.6 million 
in the ground-breaking project, which is supported by CCBC, the Cardiff Capital 
Region Transport Authority and the Welsh Government. The combined investment of 
£6.5 million will deliver a new 16 vehicle fleet of zero emission buses and associated 
infrastructure over the next two years. 

 
5.42 Opportunities exist to use this as a catalyst for change towards greener and cleaner 

vehicles, particularly in the Caerphilly basin area where the Stagecoach services will 
be most concentrated. The Council has targeted the current rail/bus terminal in 

Page 284



Caerphilly town centre for redevelopment and investigatory work is currently 
underway to establish how the new station can become an electric vehicle hub, 
accommodating the electric bus fleet and electric cars, taxis and bikes.  

 
5.43 The Stagecoach project can also provide the stimulus to work more intently towards 

a council owned electric fleet as outlined above.  
  

Valleys Metro - Short/Medium/Long (0-64months+) 
5.44 The £700m+ investment in the Valleys Metro will create many opportunities to 

stimulate a see-change in peoples attitude to travel. Although not directly affecting 
the authority’s own targets, it is the spin offs for active travel and more sustainable 
means of travel that the Council can help to promote. Establishing new park and 
rides and/or expanding existing ones to encourage people to use the improved train 
service is fundamental to reducing congestion, emissions and fuel use. The use of 
active travel routes to better link communities with these public transport hubs is also 
a key factor in getting people to think differently about their mode of travel  

 
 Agile Working Short (0-24 months) 
5.45 Still on the Transport theme, the introduction of agile working within the local 

authority will reduce the need for staff to travel unnecessarily and could reduce the 
need for office space. This would result in reduced energy consumption and bills. 
The Council is already developing an Agile working plan as part of the emerging 
Workforce Plan. 

 
5.46 There are a number of opportunities that can be taken forward when the Council 

considers its existing housing stock and proposed new housing provision in the 
county borough. The Council can concentrate on making its own stock more energy 
efficient, look to introduce innovative measures to also make new builds more energy 
efficient and be proactive in promoting  opportunities for making both existing and 
new stock energy generators. 
 
Housing Association New Build - Short/Medium/Long (0-64months+) 

5.47 The Council will continue to work with and support our active Registered Social 
Landlords to deliver ground-breaking innovative housing schemes within the county 
borough using their Social Housing Grant (SHG) allocations and Innovative Housing 
Programme (IHP) monies. Several of the schemes have planning permission or are 
close to getting on site.  Examples include: the LINC Housing Association scheme at 
the Magistrates Court in Caerphilly, which will be developed to Passive House 
standards; and the United Welsh Scheme at Cwm Ifor Primary School, which will 
deliver highly energy efficient timber frame housing using the Beattie Passive 
system. Both schemes will use high performance insulation, making the buildings 
completely draught free, effectively eliminating heat loss to create buildings with very 
low environmental impact. The Council can support RSL’s to continue to focus on 
energy saving construction by offering support in securing the necessary finances, be 
it SHG or IHP monies. This Passive House philosophy is based on a well-insulated 
and almost air tight envelope with tightly controlled ventilation. As we live in a cool 
climate heat recovery of expelled air is essential so the building services are a key 
component. Few Passive House standard homes have been delivered in the UK. 

 
 Reducing Fuel Poverty - Short/Medium/Long (0-64months+)  
5.48 The Council has been concentrating its efforts with its own council stock on reducing 

fuel poverty and improving insulation, through a number of energy supplier grants 
and the Welsh Government Arbed scheme. In the short term these initiatives to 
reduce tenants’ heating bills will continue to be a primary focus of the Council’s 
housing staff. 

Page 285



 Maximising Assets - Short/Medium/Long (0-64months+)  
5.49 Caerphilly CBC can become much more proactive in using its own assets (primarily 

land in this instance) to drive its carbon agenda forward by working closer with 
partnering organisations such as Housing Associations and housing developers. For 
instance, the capital value of its own assets (i.e. capital receipts for land) can be 
offset by carbon reduction initiatives such as building to Passive house standards. By 
accepting reduced value on land in exchange for innovative building techniques the 
council could resolve to stimulate good quality energy efficient developments. 

 
Partnerships with Housing Associations - Short/Medium/Long (12-64months+) 

5.50 The Council working in partnership with zoned Housing Associations has targeted a 
number of large housing developments to use innovative housing techniques to help 
take forward the decarbonisation agenda in the medium term. The Council are 
working closely with Pobl Housing Association to deliver the Chartist Village at the 
former Ty Pontllanfraith site and United Welsh are working towards developing land 
at Ty Du Nelson for the development of over 200 blended tenure homes.  

 
 Modular Build - Short/Medium/Long (12 -64months+)  
5.51 Modular off site construction techniques are considered by many housing 

associations within South Wales to be a real alternative to traditional construction 
techniques. Seven regional housing associations have commissioned consultants to 
explore the opportunities to work together to create enough forward demand for 
modular build to make it viable for modular construction companies to set up within 
the region. CCBC is heavily involved in this dialogue and hope to be able to benefit 
from any inward investment opportunities that stem from the region by offering 
suitable sites for locating these companies   

 
 Caerphilly Homes New Build Programme - Short/Medium/Long (12-64months+)   
5.52 The Council is committed to delivering new council housing. The same innovative 

housing techniques being employed by the housing associations will be considered 
by the authority on its new build stock, helping to reduce fuel consumption by its 
tenants and in doing so  help contribute positively towards addressing fuel poverty.  

 
 WHQS Successor Programme - Short/Medium/Long (12-64months+)    
5.53 Post WHQS completion in 2020 there is currently an understanding that resources 

will thereafter be focused on the energy agenda. Officers have recently opened a 
dialogue with the Welsh Government Energy Services to explore how the authority 
could act as a pilot authority to lead any new initiatives.   

 
 Existing Housing Stock – Energy Production Short/Medium/Long (6-64months+)   
5.54 There are opportunities to create energy from PV’s on our own housing stock. The 

Council is currently exploring the best model for taking this forward. One option 
available is to work in partnership with private companies who offer a fully rounded 
package (including covering costs of installation, paying fee for using our assets and 
offering benefits of green energy to tenants).Officers are tasked with establishing the 
most beneficial model for the Council to progress. 
 
Plot Shop – Self Build Short/Medium/Long (12-64months+)  

5.55 Welsh Government has announced an initiative to encourage potential home owners 
to develop their own homes. Through the Development Bank of Wales Welsh 
Government will invest £40m into the Plot Shop – Self Build Fund scheme, which  will 
help to deliver additional housing throughout Wales. CCBC are in the process of 
identifying suitable sites eligible for the scheme and will be able to set design 
standards for the new housing. One of Welsh Government’s key aims of the scheme 
is to develop housing that has highest levels of energy efficiency.  As part of the 

Page 286



process of bringing sites forward the council will need to prepare a ‘Passport’ for 
each plot which sets out the all the relevant parameters for the development, which 
could include decarbonisation and energy efficiency aspirations. On sites with a 
larger number of plots, consideration could be given to the use of communal heating 
and power systems where they are appropriate 

 Changing Planning/Building Control Legislation (24 months+) 

5.56 The Council, along with the Public Service Board would like to lobby Government to 
use planning legislation and building regulations to ensure properties use less 
carbon. Examples of this would include provision within planning legislation to require 
electric vehicle charging points within new residential developments.. Building 
regulations could further advocate the use of more environmentally friendly materials. 

Woodland development - Short/Medium (6-36 Months) 
5.57 The Welsh Government Low Carbon Delivery Plan 2019 proposes the development 

of a new national park.  The Council could look to establish a new Caerphilly Forest 
in line with the national plan which could offset and lock out carbon emissions from 
the county borough.  . 

 
 Community Partnership work/tree planting Short/ Medium (6 -36 months) 
5.57 The Caerphilly Climate Change Strategy was formally launched in November 2009.  

Since then partners have worked together to reduce Carbon emissions and to 
combat climate change.  In total 12 climate change woodlands have been planted 
across the county borough.  Further opportunities exist to plant additional woodlands 
on Council owned land, particularly in our country parks, which could make a 
significant contribution to off-setting Carbon emissions and could help develop the 
Caerphilly Forest concept mentioned above. 

 
 Water consumption -Short (0-24 Months). 
5.58 The authority needs to consider water conservation as part of its carbon and energy 

strategy.  Water takes energy to distribute, and process before and after use.  Welsh 
Water are now starting to issue electronic billing which will allow the authority to 
monitor and report on consumption.  It is also an area where we can reduce costs as 
well as carbon emissions. 

 
 Waste Management - Short/Medium/Long (0-64months+)   
 5.59 Prosiect Gwyrdd is a high profile waste management facility that generates electricity 

for sale to the grid with the Council playing a major role in its development. In 
addition to this we have local arrangements in place, such as food waste being 
converted into green energy via the Anaerobic Digester at Bryn Quarry.  There may 
be further opportunities for the authority to link digestible waste into this scheme or 
gain additional benefit from it. 

 
5.60 In addition, the Council has been generating electricity from landfill gas at the former 

Trehir Landfill Site (small scale generation).  This scheme has been operating for 
some 5-6 years and has been reported to Scrutiny previously.  

  
 Opportunities for heat clusters in the County Borough - Short/Medium/Long (12-

64months+) 
 5.61 Opportunities for the provision of community heating systems are being 

investigated on new build schemes, be they residential, commercial or industrial 
where there is an opportunity for a heat cluster. The Council are currently actively 
looking to introduce a scheme in the county borough and are working with the Welsh 

Government Energy Service to develop viable options.  

Page 287



Hydroelectric Viability Overview– medium (24-36 months) 
5.62 In 2014, a study was undertaken with the aim of identifying potential sites for hydro 

schemes within the county borough, a partnership project was established with 
Carbon Trust Wales.  Consultants were appointed to complete a hydro viability study 
and overview of the opportunities for hydroelectric generation from high head and low 
head systems within the county borough. 

 

5.63 Phase one of the study involved a high level screening study of the area which 
identified 11 medium high head sites and 13 low head sites.  Of these sites five were 
shortlisted for preliminary feasibility studies. Despite three schemes progressing to 
preliminary system design and specification for appropriate type and scale of 
technology, none of the schemes were considered to be viable.   

 
5.64 The study did identify the potential for generation from the stream adjacent to the 

visitor centre at Cwmcarn Forest Drive.  An initial feasibility study has been 
undertaken and although there are some issues it does appear that this site offers 
the greatest potential for hydro electricity generation across the Authority’s land 
holdings.  The site offers the potential for any scheme to provide educational and 
tourism opportunities as well.  Further investigation is needed to clarify whether or 
not a viable scheme could be developed. 
 

 Beyond Caerphilly Boundaries 
 
5.65 The authority does not have any viable Hydroelectric opportunities, but it is possible 
 for the authority to consider partnerships outside of the authority on all major forms of 
 renewable energy projects including hydro, solar, wind, and possibly tidal.  
 
5.66 Partnerships could also be developed with other local authorities to identify arable 

farm land to grow the crops necessary to feed into the anaerobic digestor described 
in section 5.35 above. 

 

6. CONCLUSION   

6.1 Over the last decade, the Council has worked hard to reduce carbon emissions. The 
Salix Invest to Save scheme alone has delivered 2,930 tonnes of annual carbon 
savings across 266 non domestic building projects. These values will grow, with new 
LED lighting being installed at key buildings including Ty Penallta as outlined above. 
many examples to prove this.   

6.2 However, we need to increase our pace and focus upon reducing our carbon 
footprint and moving us towards being a carbon neutral council. This will also enable 
us to respond to Welsh Government’s recent statement of intent referring to 
decarbonisation (Prosperity for All: Low Carbon Wales) and also influence the work 
being undertaken by the Cardiff Capital Region.  The best way to achieve this is to 
develop an overarching carbon/energy strategy that reflects this ambition and sets 
out a route-map on how we intend to deliver this objective. 

6.3 Opportunities exist to adopt a commercial perspective on the projects outlined above 
and there is a growing realisation that the benefits stemming from these projects can 
spread more widely into the local communities within the county borough. The 
Council must decide which benefits are most important so it can focus its activity 
accordingly to where most impact can be made. 

Page 288



6.5 In order to develop the strategy and set out a proposed route-map of deliverable 
projects, it is proposed to set up an officer group to firstly develop the strategy but 
thereafter deliver the projects identified within it. 

6.6 Further scrutiny consideration would be welcomed once the draft strategy and 
Energy Plan is developed prior to formal adoption as Council policy. 

 

7. ASSUMPTIONS  

7.1 A number of assumptions have been made in writing this report.  The first is that 
Welsh Government will tighten its approach towards decarbonisation and the use of 
clean energy. The production of WG’s Prosperity for All: Low Carbon Wales in March 
2019 is a clear indication of their direction of travel .It is also safe to assume that that 
legislation on carbon reduction will increase over the next 10 years as central 
government look to address the current levels of carbon production. 

7.2 Energy prices continue to increase and it is predicted that this rise will continue. 
Hence it makes economic sense to invest now in reducing energy consumption and 
look at opportunities for green energy production. Related to this, it is assumed that 
there will be no central government grants in the immediate future to help the Council 
take these opportunities forward. 

7.3 Fuel poverty exists within the county borough and is particularly focused on areas of 
deprivation often centred around traditional council housing estates. Investment in 
the Council’s housing stock to reduce energy consumption is helping, but clean 
energy production that tenants can benefit from will help further. 

7.4 It is assumed that there will be an Increase in population. This will put more strain 
and demand on resources and infrastructure. 

7.5 An assumption has been made when it comes to specific projects that the necessary 
volume of assets, be they buildings or land, will be available to take projects through 
to fruition and accumulate the benefits mentioned earlier.  

 

8.  LINKS TO RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES  
 
8.1      The following Council policies are relevant to the development of an Energy Strategy: 

 CCBC Carbon Reduction Strategy 2009-2019 

 CCBC Sustainable Development Strategy 

 A Foundation for Success 2018-2023 

 Caerphilly County Borough  Local Development Plan up to 2021 
  

Corporate Plan 2018-2023.   
8.2 Carbon reduction and renewable energy generation work supports the following 

Corporate Well-being Objectives, identified within the CCBC Corporate Plan 2018-
2023: 

   
Objective 2 - Enabling employment.  The green economy is likely to be one of 
the fastest growing sectors in the coming years.  Development of a Carbon 
Strategy will incorporate projects which will have the potential to generate 
significant new jobs.  There is also the potential to offer energy at a reduced rate 
for business to encourage inward investment and jobs. 
 

Page 289



Objective 3 - Address the availability, condition and sustainability of 
homes throughout the county borough and provide advice, assistance or 
support to help improve people’s well-being.  Making existing houses more 
energy efficient or retrofitting renewable energy technology has the potential to 
reduce fuel bills and could move some residents out of fuel poverty.  The 
Strategy will consider the opportunities to increase the sustainability of new 
building through the Planning process. 
 
Objective 4 - Promote a modern, integrated and sustainable transport 
system that increases opportunity, promotes prosperity and minimises the 
adverse impacts on the environment.  The inclusion of sustainable transport 
and in particular electric vehicles, in the proposed Strategy will have the potential 
to contribute significantly to this objective. 
 

 
9. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS  
 
9.1 The development of Carbon reduction and renewable energy projects contribute to 

several of the Well-being goals within the Well-being of Future Generations Act 
(Wales) 2015, including: 

 A prosperous Wales 

 A resilient Wales 

 A healthier Wales 

 A more equal Wales 

 A Wales of cohesive communities 

 A globally responsible Wales 
 
9.2 Carbon reduction and renewable energy projects are consistent with the five ways of 

working as defined within the sustainable development principle in the Act.   
 
9.3 The five ways of working of the sustainable development principle, listed in the Act 

are: 

 Long Term – taking action to improve our energy efficiency and to generate 
clean energy will enable progress towards a low carbon society that uses 
resources efficiently it will reduce our dependency on fossil fuels and will 
reduce the contribution that we make to climate change. 

 Prevention – Providing opportunities for the use of ultra-low emission vehicles 
to help mitigate climate change and reduce air pollution and the resulting 
health issues. 

 Integration – The proposal contributes to the Corporate Well-being Objectives 
identified within the CCBC Corporate Plan 2018-2023 as set out in section 
8.2. 

 Collaboration – The proposal will require a collaborative approach with PSB 
Partners, and others.  

 Involvement – Local residents, staff and visitors all have an important role to 
play in developing and delivering the Strategy and will be involved at all 
stages of the work.  

 
 
10. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
  
10.1 Making homes more energy efficient will reduce fuel bills and is a key tool in reducing 

fuel poverty.  Improving access to efficient, integrated transport will enable residents 
to access employment and will help to tackle inequalities. 

Page 290



  
10.2  An EIA screening has been completed in accordance with the Council's Strategic 

Equality Plan and supplementary guidance. No potential for unlawful discrimination 
and/or low level or minor negative impact has been identified, therefore a full EIA has 
not been carried out.  

 
 
11. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 The Council has been using Salix funding for the Invest to Save scheme since 2004.  

We have recently taken on an additional £4.1m from Salix for the street lighting 
project and we would be able to attract additional funding from this route for new 
projects.  This is an interest free loan basis. 

 
11.2 The Council may resolve to use internal financial reserves in order to take forward 

new energy schemes in the future. 
 
11.3 In developing a suite of short, medium and long term projects there will be a need to 

establish which are feasible and viable options for the Council to pursue.  Technical 
support will be required to undertake this task and this will come at a cost. The 
Council is looking at a number of ways of financing this initial work including using its 
own reserves and working with the Welsh Government Energy Service to secure 
external grant  

 
11.4 Once projects have been prioritised they will require business plans to be developed. 

This will include more detailed design and the analysis of financial plans. Again the 
Council will look at a number of financing options including using its own monies and 
grant aid 

 
11.5 While the Council will look at funding the construction/implementation of these 

projects, itis aiming to deliver projects that will pay for themselves over time. It must 
however be acknowledged that the end of the feed in tariff rate means that some 
renewable energy payback periods will be considerable. On buildings this could be 
between 7.5 to 15 years and this excludes ongoing maintenance costs. 

 
 
12. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS  
 
12.1 There are no personnel implications relevant to this report. 
  
 
13. CONSULTATIONS 
 
13.1 The views of consultees have been included within the report 
 
 
14. STATUTORY POWER  
 
14.1 Local Government Measure 2009. 
 Local Government Acts. 
 
 
Author: Paul Rossiter, Energy and Water Officer /Paul Cooke, Senior Policy 

Officer /Allan Dallimore, Regeneration Services Manager   
 

Page 291



Consultees: Cllr Sean Morgan, Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Economy, 
Infrastructure, Sustainability & Wellbeing of Future Generations 

                             Cllr Lisa Phipps, Cabinet Member for Homes and Places  
Cllr John Ridgewell – Chair of Regeneration and Housing Scrutiny 
Committee 
Cllr Mrs Christine Forehead – Vice Chair of Regeneration and Housing 
Scrutiny Committee 
Christina Harrhy - Interim Chief Executive 
Mark S Williams - Interim Corporate Director Communities 
Rhian Kyte – Head of Regeneration and Planning  

                             Marcus Lloyd – Head of Infrastructure 
Stephen Harris – Interim Head of Business Improvement Services & Sec 
151 Officer 
Mark Williams – Interim Head of Property 

 Richard (Ed) Edmunds - Corporate Director for Education & Corporate 
Services 
Dave Street - Corporate Director - Social Services 
Lisa Lane – Monitoring Officer 
Rob Tranter - Head of Legal Services/Monitoring Officer 
Shaun Watkins – Human Resources Manager 
Sean Couzens, Chief Housing Officer 

 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix 1 Summary Report On Initiatives To Date 
 

Page 292



Appendix 1 

 

CCBC Energy & Carbon Report - Summary report 

on initiatives to date. 
 

The aim of this short  report is to pull together in one place, all the work that the 

Authority has done, or is doing on energy and climate change issues.  This can then 

be used  as a basis for identifying and prioritising the work that the Council  would 

like to do going forward.. 

 

The report is structured to identify what we have done to date, and is divided into:  

 Corporate Energy Projects – Co-ordinated by Corporate Energy & Water 

Team 

 Housing Projects – Co-ordinated by Housing and WHQS Teams 

 Community/Climate Change/Other/Co-ordinated by the Policy Team ( 

previously the SD & Living Environment Team) 

 

 

Section 1:  What have we done to date? 
 

 

Corporate Energy Projects – Co-ordinated by Corporate 

Energy & Water Team 
 

WHERE HAVE WE COME FROM? 
 
Prior to 2005 energy management within the authority lacked strategy, direction and 
accountability. There were many gaps in data, processes and application of energy 
management: 
 
Carbon Strategy 
There was no formal and agreed Carbon Reduction Strategy in place. 
 
Investment 
The invest to save scheme was established in 2004 using Salix and Caerphilly 
Funding.   

 
Strategic Indicator 
There was little by way of formal reporting to the Sustainable Development Advisory 
Panel. 
There was no central record of total authority energy consumption (kWh) or costs 
and there was little reliable data for individual buildings due bills being issued directly 

Page 293



from the supplier to the individual building.  This impacted on benchmarking for 
buildings. 

 
There was no formal energy awareness training taking place.  

 

There were no energy audits available for the majority of authority buildings, 
therefore no reference to the potential for energy saving.  Building managers did not 
have the data required to take objectives decisions. 
 
 
Billing 
Payment of energy bills was delegated to the building manager/head teacher 
resulting in poor control of payments. One school paid a credit note statement 
thinking it was a bill. 

 
Individual building managers and head teachers entered into stand alone energy 
contracts which were not always the best available at the time. Some sites entered 
long-term contracts and some buildings were left on expensive out of contract tariffs 
for extended periods of time. One leisure centre had no formal gas supplier for eight 
years. 
 
 
WHERE ARE WE NOW? 
 
Invest To Save. 
We are recognised as one of the leading participants within the UK’s Salix Invest To 
Save scheme and we regularly perform well on various KPI’s.  We are Wales’s top 
authority in carbon emissions saved in the Salix scheme, and figure highly in the 
national league tables. 

 
To date we have spent £2.2M to reduce energy consumption in our buildings through 
invest to save and have achieved an annual energy cost saving of over £525k. In 
doing this we have reduced our annual carbon footprint by over 3,101 tonnes to 
date, of which 1,355 tonnes has been registered since the start of the carbon 
reduction strategy in 2009. Furthermore our carbon tax payments have been 
reduced considerably.  

 

The £2.2m was spent installing as much insulation as possible in e.g. schools as well 
as other buildings.  Other technologies include; Street Lighting control,  plant room 
insulation; energy efficient LED lighting and controls; utilising variable speed drives 
on pumps; installing building energy management systems to improve heating and 
cooling control; installing Voltage Optimisation units and heat recovery units amongst 
other technologies. 

 

Over 266 projects have been installed across authority buildings, 120 of these in 
schools. 

 

We are the best performing authority in Wales and figure highly in national league 
tables. 

Page 294



Strategic Indicators  
After the establishment of the carbon reduction strategy and carbon management 
group, we now report carbon performance annually.  Adjusted baseline emissions 
were 24,238 tonnes on 07/08 falling to approximately 16,907 (before weather 
correction) in 17/18.  An overall reduction of circa 30%, at this point in time. 

 
We now have one of the most comprehensive Fynnon scorecards and dashboards in 
the authority, supported by pinpoint reporting for individual buildings energy 
consumption, cost and carbon data. 

 
We have up to date building energy benchmarks for key building types and detailed 
energy audits for all key buildings. 

 
Education finance will be issued with annual energy reporting to improved accuracy 
it brings to their reports. 

 

There is a statutory requirement to report carbon emissions and purchase carbon 
credits accurately to the environment agency under a scheme called Carbon 
Reduction Commitment.  2017/18 emissions were 19,063 tonnes and cost £338k. 

 

Further legislative requirements include the generation of Display Energy Certificates 
and Energy Air Conditioning inspection reports. 
 
 
Billing. 
 
Central collection of bills and extraction of data is fundamental to monitoring and 
reporting.  The Energy Team now receives all electricity and gas invoices for all sites 
on the Crown Commercial Services Contract.  We check each invoice for accuracy 
and pay them, with a reported administrative savings of £8 -10 per invoice.  We paid 
circa £3.6 million in 17/18. 

 
We are the central point of contact for suppliers and council officers.  We ensure all 
sites are on appropriate contracts and arrange all connections and disconnections of 
supplies. 

 

We are currently dealing with major supplier billing issues with EDF Energy and 
British Gas on behalf of the authority. 
 
In 18/19 we started to receive and centrally pay some electronic water invoices for 
non domestic buildings, the intention being that most non domestic buildings will be 
billed this way by the end of the first year. 
 
 
Carbon Strategy  
 
In 2009 the authority approved an ambitious aspirational Carbon Reduction Strategy.   
Caerphilly’s target is to reduce its carbon emissions (buildings and street lighting) by 
45% of the 07/08 emissions levels resulting in carbon emissions falling by 10,907 

Page 295



tonnes.  This is a 10 year strategy that expires in 2019.  The strategy focuses on four 
key areas and is summarised thus: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Housing Projects – Co-ordinated by Housing and WHQS 

Teams 
 

In 1997, to comply with the Home Energy Conservation Act (HECA), the Council 

prepared a report outlining how it aimed to improve the energy efficiency of the 

housing stock to all tenures by 30% within the ensuing 10 years. Whilst currently 

HECA still applies in England, the Welsh Assembly Government  revised the original 

target of 30% by 2007 to 12% as set out in its policy agreement targets.  

At the end of 2006/07 this Authority’s progress to date was 12.01% and the Policy 

agreement target of 12% had been met.  

 

The use of the Home Energy Efficiency Scheme (HEES) played a significant role in 

improving the energy efficiency of homes within Caerphilly CBC. Since 2003 -  3,645 

households had improvements carried out at an estimated cost of £3,237,408. In 

addition to the HEES scheme over 2500 households had energy efficiency measures 

carried out via the energy suppliers Energy Efficiency Commitment Scheme (EEC). 

 

 

5% 

Renewable Technologies 
Biomass boilers, Wind 
Solar thermal, GSHP 

Design & Asset Management 
Low CO2 new build 
Property rationalisation 
Procurement changes 

Invest to Save 
Insulation and heat recovery 
Lighting and controls 
Combined heat and power (CHP) 
Plant / fleet replacement 

Good Housekeeping 
Metering and Targeting 
Behaviour change and training 
Regular inspection & Audit 

10% 

20% 

30% 

40% 

50% 

60% 

Lower cost 
Existing skills 
Shorter term 
Methodical  
approach 

Higher cost 
New skills 
Longer term 
Innovative  
approach 

Lower cost 
Existing skills 
Shorter term 
Methodical  
approach 

Higher cost 
New skills 
Longer term 
Innovative  
approach 

10% 

20% 

10% 

Page 296



What has been carried out within the last 5 years 

 

Strategic Energy Performance Investment Programme (Arbed) 

This programme was introduced by the Welsh Government in 2009 to bring social, 

environmental and economical benefits to Wales and co-ordinate investment into the 

energy performance of Welsh Homes. This scheme is more commonly known as 

ARBED which means ‘Save’. 

 

The Council was successful with a bid for an Arbed project at Fochriw. This project 

now completed was project managed by Melin Homes. Some 300 plus private sector 

and 58 council properties benefited from a mixture of measures made up from 

External Wall Insulation, Gas condensing boilers, voltage optimisers and positive 

input ventilation. The estimated value of the works is in the region of £2.5 - 3 million 

and was funded by the Welsh Government. 

 

A further successful bid was submitted for upgrading the energy efficiency of 115 

private dwellings at Hollybush. This entailed installing a gas main into the village and 

residents receiving a gas central heating installation with condensing boilers and up 

to date controls. 

 

The Community Energy Saving Programme (CESP)  

CESP is a central government initiative that required gas and electricity suppliers to 

deliver energy saving measures to domestic customers in low-income areas. CESP 

has been designed to promote a ‘whole house’ approach to improving the energy 

efficiency of homes. 

 

There are several CESP projects that have been undertaken within the county 

borough over the last 5 years. A synopsis of each scheme is as follows:- 

 

British Gas CESP Scheme: 

The council entered into an agreement with British Gas to improve the energy 

efficiency of council properties at Markham and Pantside. The approximate value of 

the works is £1 million. (CCBC £600,000 & British Gas £400,000)   

 

Markham 

58 properties received external wall insulation, there were also 31 condensing 

boilers installed at these properties. 

 

Pantside 

79 properties received external wall insulation, 18 condensing boilers were installed 

at these properties. 

 

 

Page 297



SSE (Swalec) CESP Scheme 

An agreement was entered into with SSE (Swalec) to improve the council properties 

within the following lower super output areas. The measures carried out and  

programmed were:- 

i Porset/Lansbury Park 

126 properties (wimpy no-fines) received external wall insulation; there were 

1condensing boiler/heating renewal and 45 loft insulation upgrades. 

 

ii Rhymney 

168 properties received external wall insulation (Tanybryn/Maerdy View), there are 

also 95 condensing boiler/heating renewals and 6 loft insulation upgrades. 

 

iii  Gilfach 

155 properties (wimpy no-fines) received external wall insulation, there are also 6 

condensing boiler/heating renewals and 120 loft insulation upgrades. 

 

iv Fochriw 

96 properties (wimpy no-fines) received external wall insulation; there are also 45 

condensing boiler/heating renewals and 70 loft insulation upgrades. 

 

v Cefn Hengoed 

42 properties programmed to receive boiler/heating renewals and 70 loft insulation 

upgrades. 

 

The estimated value of the work was £4.4 million. (SSE £3.1million & CCBC £1.3 

million). 

 

 

Community Energy Saving Programme - Blackwood (SERS / British Gas) 

22 Council properties at Morrison Street and 12 properties at Attlee Road received 

external wall insulation. This work was funded by British Gas and carried out by 

SERS at a cost of £1.00 CCBC contributed £7,888 for additional work. 

Estimated cost of EWI works £240,000 

 

In addition to the above schemes there have been a number of private housing 

CESP projects carried out. These projects are at:- 

 

Brithdir & Trethomas 

SERS a local specialist external wall insulation company undertook a CESP project 

to private householders within Brithdir and Trethomas. Approximately 350 properties 

have received external wall insulation as part of this project.  

 

 

 

Page 298



Cefn Hengoed  

EDF energy targeted the private homes within the Cefn Hengoed area. It is 

understood that at least 100 private sector properties received external wall 

insulation which included some 38 condensing boiler renewals. 

 

Bryn Carno Rhymney. 

29 Private properties at Bryn Carno is receiving external wall insulation at Bryn 

Carno. These works were project managed by UWHA and being funded by the 

Welsh Government and an Energy company. 

 

Energy Company Obligation – (SERS / Scottish Power) 

334 Wimpy no-fines flats in the areas below received external wall insulation. This 

work was funded by Scottish Power and carried out by SERS at a cost of £1.00 

CCBC anticipated contribution is £41,500 for additional work. 

Gelligaer = 180 flats complete 8 omitted due to 31 March deadline. 

Porset Park = 40 flats complete 

Pontlottyn = 86 flats complete 8 omitted due to 31 March deadline. 

Gilfach = 28 flats complete 8 omitted due to 31 march deadline 

Estimated cost of EWI works £1,480,000 

 

Cyd Cymru 

Cyd Cymru – is a collective energy switching scheme developed to offer people in 

Wales an opportunity to save money by coming together to buy fuel “in bulk”. 

 

The scheme has been developed by Cardiff Council and the Vale of Glamorgan 

Council, with support from the Welsh Government’s “Regional Collaboration Fund”.  

Cyd Cymru was developed in the Autum of 2013. 

 

Caerphilly CBC signed upto the CYD Cymru Charter in January 2015 and became 

active in promoting the scheme just before CYD CYmru commenced with its 3rd 

switch. Following the successful completion of Switch 3 of Cyd Cymru  can reveal 

the final results for numbers switching and savings made.  Over 5,600 households 

registered for the scheme with just over 2,000 households switching (36% 

conversion rate).  The average saving per household was just over £250 per annum 

resulting in savings across Wales of over £525,000. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 299



Community/Climate Change/Other/ Co-ordinated by the 

Policy Team (previously the SD & Living Environment 

Team) 
 

Sustainable Development 

 

The Council has had a long commitment to sustainable development and to reducing 

its resource consumption.  It approved its first sustainable development policy in 

1997, and has built on this foundation.  In 2008 the Sustainable Development 

Strategy, Living Better, Using Less, was published.  It sets out the approach that 

the Authority is taking to sustainable development and our vision for a sustainable 

county borough. It sets out our strategy for tackling the issues and explains how we 

will manage and monitor the process and how we will report on progress 

 

Information on sustainable development and the work of the Team can be found at: 

http://your.caerphilly.gov.uk/sustainablecaerphilly/content/welcome 

 

Future Generations Advisory Panel (Formerly he Sustainable Development 

Advisory Panel) 

The Sustainable Development Advisory Panel (SDAP) was set up in February 2002.  

In June 2016 it became the Future Generations Advisory Panel (FGAP), to reflect 

the new requirements of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act.  It 

consists of 11 elected members across all political parties. It is currently chaired by 

the Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Economy, Infrastructure, Sustainability & 

Wellbeing of Future Generations.   FGAP has a remit to look at any aspect of 

sustainable development within the Council, or within the wider County Borough, and 

makes recommendations direct to Cabinet.  

 

Welsh Declaration on Climate Change. 

In April 2006, Caerphilly County Borough Council signed the Welsh Declaration on 

Climate Change. 

 

Climate Change Challenge Week 

CCBC held a climate change challenge week held during March 2007 to raise 

awareness of the potential impact of climate change and encourage individuals to 

make a difference.  Achievements during the week included: 

 4,051 pledges undertaken,  

 99 people attended workshops,  

 60 people received personal travel plans from SEWTA,  

 90 people attended the free viewings of the Al Gore film 'An Inconvenient 

Truth'. 

 

Page 300

http://your.caerphilly.gov.uk/sustainablecaerphilly/content/welcome


Corporate Improvement Objectives 

In the Corporate Improvement Plan 2005 – 2008, one of the Council's 12 key 

objectives was "To improve the sustainability of Council operations". Progress 

on this was measured against 5 aims, which included – “To reduce our contribution 

to global warming and climate change” – measured by “Reduce the tonnes of C02 

emissions in Council buildings”.  Reducing Carbon emissions has remained a 

corporate priority since then.   

 

Sustainable Development Charter 
In July 2011 Caerphilly County Borough Council signed the Welsh Government’s 
Sustainable Development Charter. The aim of the Charter is to contribute to making 
Wales a sustainable nation by encouraging organisations to work with the Welsh 
Government to deliver sustainable development objectives. 
 
By signing the charter, we committed to make sustainable development our central 
guiding principle, and to promote and deliver wellbeing through our decisions and 
operations. 
 
 

ICT Services 

The Policy Team and Energy Management Team work closely with ICT Services on 

projects to reduce carbon emissions.  ICT currently represents about 2% of CCBC’s 

total CO2 emissions.  Within that 2%, 39% can be attributed to PCs and monitors, 

23% to servers and cooling, 15% to fixed-line telecom, 9% to mobile telecom, 7% to 

LAN and office telecom, and 6% to printers. 

 

The Authority took a decision to replace all CRT monitors with Flat Panel Monitors 

and energy efficient PCs.  This process was completed for corporate buildings in 

2012 and dramatically reduced power consumption with LCD display using about 

60% less electricity than CRTs. 

 

The deployment of multi function printers (MPF’s) to consolidate local printers, 
scanners and fax machines onto single devices began in 2008.  270 MFP’s have 
been deployed to replace approximately 1,300 individual devices. 
 
In December 2009, power management was introduced on all PCs and laptops.   

 

The Authority is moving from PCs to IGel thin clients, where applicable, to reduce the 

support costs and also the power consumption. With this technology the devices run 

on approximately 12 watts of electricity rather than the 50-60 watts used by a 

standard PC. 

 

 

 

 

Page 301



Caerphilly Solar Schools Project  

 

The Caerphilly Solar Schools project was developed in 2009, delivered by the Policy 

Team (previously the Sustainable Development Team) and has run over 5 project 

phases. To date 4Kw solar PV installations have been installed on 45 schools in the 

Caerphilly county borough. In total £361,311 external funding has been secured to 

support the programme along with £100K from the Carbon Reduction Budget.  

 

Each system has an estimated electricity generation of 3,196Kwh per school per 

year, estimated electricity saving of £415 per year and an estimated CO2 saving of 

1.9 tonnes per school per year.  

 

Overall, for the 45 systems, this gives an estimated energy generation of 

143,820Kwh per year, estimated electricity saving of £18,675 per year and estimated 

CO2 saving of 85.5 tonnes per year. 

 

As part of the programme a Caerphilly Solar Schools Resource pack was developed, 

to support schools incorporating renewable energy and energy efficiency into the 

curriculum. The pack contains primary and secondary lesson plans, examples of 

audits and action plans and advice on energy efficiency.  It has been distributed to 

every school in the Caerphilly county borough, with extra resources (solar PV kits) 

available for schools to borrow. 

 

 

Active Travel Work 

 

As part of the authority’s carbon reduction and active travel work, the Policy Team 

has established a pool bike scheme for staff, to encourage them to commute to work 

by bike and support the health and well-being agenda. There are currently 16 pool 

bikes available for staff to use based at Penallta House and Tir-Y-Berth depot. 

 

 

Eco Schools   

Every school in the county borough is an Eco School. At present, 88% of our schools 

have achieved their green flag award, with 43% achieving the prestigious Platinum 

award (4th green flag award and highest award). The remaining 12% of schools are 

working towards their green flag award, with 10% having achieved the silver award 

and 2% the bronze award. 

 

The Policy Team runs Eco School training covering all 8 Eco School topic areas, for 

teachers, Eco Coordinators and support staff.  

 

Page 302



A specific session focussed on Energy & Water. The aim was to run short sharp 

sessions (2hrs max) providing the attendees with the information to go away and 

start making a difference. 

 

The sessions covered the following: 

• Importance of topic area and reasons to take action 

• Ideas for actions/projects 

• No cost/ low cost/ higher cost actions 

• Curriculum links and links to Literacy & Numeracy Framework 

• Ideas to monitor and evaluate actions 

• Benefits to the school and wider community 

• Other alternatives (e.g. renewable technology 

• Links with other schemes (Healthy Schools, Fairtrade Schools etc.) 

The sessions supported a variety of schools and helped them move forward on their 

Eco Schools award programme. 

 

Wind Turbines at Oakdale Business Park 

A partnership project between CCBC, led by Economic Development, and 

Partnership for Renewable successfully installed 2 wind turbines on Oakdale 

Business Park.  Planning permission was granted in 2011.  Each turbine has a 

generating capacity of 2 Megawatts, capable of powering 2,000 homes.  As part of 

the project a Community Benefit scheme was established this will provide £10,000 to 

local projects each year of the 25 year lifetime of the scheme. 

 

Renewable energy baseline for the county borough 

The Policy Team in partnership with the Strategic & Development Plan Team 

undertook a Renewable Energy Baseline Assessment (REBA) for the county 

borough to inform the preparation of the Draft Renewable Energy Assessment for 

Caerphilly County Borough. The REBA was carried out in accordance with the 

guidance contained in “Planning for Renewable and Low Carbon Energy – A Toolkit 

for Planners” which was published by the Welsh Government in July 2010. 

 

The study was undertaken to inform discussions on whether or not a countywide 

renewable energy target or site specific provision would be appropriate in any future 

review of the Local Development Plan (LDP).  

 

The report provides a series of recommendations to facilitate the development of 

suitable forms of renewable and low carbon energy in order to move towards a low 

carbon economy and thus help to tackle the causes of climate change. 

 

 

Hollybush Sustainable Energy Study 

Heads of the Valleys funding was secured to undertake a study into energy issues 

for Hollybush. With 120 properties, the village was the largest in the county borough 

Page 303



that is not connected to the gas network. The majority of properties are pre 1920 

solid wall terraced properties. The study included door to door surveys collecting 

data on energy use, fuel type, income etc on which to base findings and 

recommendations. 

 

Hollybush was one of the two successful areas in the county borough under Arbed II 

funding. The project involved extending the existing gas mains network to the village 

and to installing gas central heating to each property. Work was completed in 2014 

to install full gas central heating systems for residents. 

 

 

RDP SUSTAINABLE ENERGY PROGRAMME 

 

In 2011 two RDP Sustainable Energy Officers were appointed under axis 4 of the 

plan, which ran until the end of December 2014. The officers were based in the SD & 

LE Team.  The main aim of their project was to engage with farm households and 

rural businesses to reduce energy use and promote the uptake of renewable energy. 

Energy costs are rising and energy security is an increasing issue.   

 

There are approximately 320 farms in the RDP eligible wards in the County Borough; 

many of these are primarily hill farms. The majority of the farmhouses were built 

before 1900, and are considered “hard to treat” being of solid wall construction. 

Around 96% are off the mains gas grid, and over half of farmers believe that they 

spend more than 10% of their income on fuel bills. 

The help provided to eligible farms & businesses was in a 3 tiered system of support: 

 Level 1: Information and advice 

o Telephone and email advice on energy efficiency and renewable energy 

o Information on grants/loans, signposting to external organisations 

o Desktop solar power assessments 

o Factsheets – covering the different renewable energy technologies, 

including biomass, heat pumps, microhydro, solar photovolatic, solar 

thermal and wind. 

 

 Level 2. Surveys and support 

 Level 3.  Exemplar projects 

 

Hydro Viability Overview in Caerphilly County Borough 

Established with the aim of developing micro hydro schemes within the county 

borough, a partnership project was established with Carbon Trust Wales.  

Consultants were appointed to complete a hydro viability study and overview of the 

opportunities for hydroelectric generation from high head and low head systems 

within the county borough. 

 

Page 304



Under phase 1 of the study a high level screening study of the area was undertaken 

to assess the viability for low and high head hydro developments.  The consultant 

carried out a desk based high-level assessment of all appropriate rivers and streams 

in the Caerphilly Borough area for hydro energy development potential.  Phase 1 of 

the project initially identified 11 medium to high head sites and 13 low head sites.   

 

Following further screening 5 priority sites were shortlisted for preliminary feasibility 

studies (initial assessments), which included head, flow rate etc and assessment of 

potential generation capacity.  

 

A preliminary system design and specification for appropriate type and scale of 

technology was produced for 3 schemes, along with a financial appraisal of the 

hydro development.  Advice on any planning and environmental issues associated 

with the development was also produced, coupled with an assessment of any 

existing electrical usage and infrastructure. 

 

Business cases were prepared for each of these schemes. A scheme at Gibbs weir, 

on the Sirhowy was progressed to detailed feasibility but was withdrawn due to the 

number of risks involved in the development of the scheme.  This weir has 

subsequently been removed by NRW to allow salmon to navigate further up the 

Sirhowy.   Projects at Nant y Twyn and Nant Twynyrharris schemes were not taken 

forward by the landowners. 

 

Maes Yr Onn - Off Grid Living exemplar 

In late 2011 Caerphilly County Borough Council’s RDP Sustainable Energy Team 

put together a partnership with the Building Research Establishment (BRE) and SSE 

to design and deliver a modern farmhouse and family home for the Davies family 

who had secured planning permission to build near Manmoel. 

 

The site had no access to mains electricity, water, gas or sewerage services. 

 

The solution included designing the property to minimise heat loss from every part of 

the building fabric, so the envelope of the building was designed as a super-

insulated home. SSE’s Contracting division installed all the power, heating and water 

supply technologies. These included:  

 a 20kW biomass boiler  

 a 3.9kW solar photovoltaic array linked to a battery system with a small diesel 

generator as backup, and 

 rainwater-harvesting technology with a 5500 litre tank located in the basement 

plant room.  

 

Living off grid means that the family needs to be constantly aware of their 

consumption to ensure that there is no wasteful use of lights and appliances. Over 

Page 305



the past two years, Constructing Excellence in Wales and the Wales School of 

Architecture, at Cardiff University, have been monitoring the family’s use of the 

various renewable energy technologies and the overall energy and water 

consumption.  

 

The project has been hailed as an exemplar in sustainable low carbon living, and 

has won several high profile accolades including the top prize at the Royal Town 

Planning Institute Wales awards.  In June 2014 the project was visited by one of the 

most senior UK representatives in the European Union, Shan Morgan, UK Deputy 

Permanent Representative to the EU.  She was very impressed with the project and 

in particular was interested in how the technology could be replicated in properties 

both on and off the grid to encourage people to change their behaviour and use 

energy and water more sustainably. 

 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE ADAPTATION 

 

During 2011 the Authority started the process of developing a Climate Change 

Adaptation Plan.  The SD & LE Team engaged with a broad range of Council 

Service Areas to begin the process.   

 

Part 1 involved the development of a Local Climate Impacts Profile (LCLIP).   A 

database of extreme weather events between 2003 and 2013 was collated by 

reviewing local media reports.   

 

Meetings were undertaken with 43 senior officers covering each of the 18 Service 

within the Authority.  One hundred and twenty eight impacts were identified, of which 

33 were rated as a high priority for further assessment. 

 

The study made a total of 14 recommendations, divided into two areas: 

 

 Existing work and reviews where consideration of climate change adaptation 

issues should be included.  This includes 5 recommendations under 3 

headings: 

o Strategies and Plans 

o Review of policies and procedures 

o Financial considerations 

 

 Specific additional work on climate adaptation issues.  This includes 9 service 

specific recommendations 

 

 

 

Page 306



LIVING ENVIRONMENT PARTNERSHIP / GREENER CAERPHILLY 

 

The Policy Team supported and co-ordinated the work of Greener Caerphilly, 

previously the Living Environment Partnership, on environmental issues, including 

climate change, in the county borough.    

 

The Team now supports the Public Services Board, Well-being Plan Action Area “To 

protect and enhance the local natural environment” 

 

Well-being Action Area - To protect and enhance the local natural environment 
This is one of the 5 themes of the Well-being Plan.  It was agreed as a priority based 
on the findings from the Caerphilly Well-being Assessment.  It includes 3 priority 
areas of activity: 
 

 Protect, enhance and promote our natural environment, including encouraging 
and supporting community involvement  

 Identify and remove the barriers to people accessing green spaces  

 Increase the contribution that the environment makes to the health and well-

being of residents 

 

Caerphilly Climate Change Strategy 

The Living Environment Partnership played a lead role in co-ordinating a partnership 

approach to tackling climate change.  The Partnership’s Climate Change Working 

Group developed the Climate Change Strategy for the county borough, which was 

formally launched at the Standing Conference in November 2009.  Since then work 

has been ongoing to raise awareness of the issues and to develop projects in 

response to the issues. 

 

Climate Change Commitment 

A Climate Change Commitment was developed as an innovative way of engaging 

with individuals, organisations and businesses to enable them to reduce their 

greenhouse gas emissions and take simple steps to save energy, reduce the amount 

of fossil fuels used, and lower the climate change impacts of everyday activities. 

 

The pledges had 3 levels. Level 1 activities were simple changes in behaviour such 

as switching appliances off rather than leaving them on standby. These small steps 

only require simple changes that little or no financial investment. Level 2 pledges 

include using public transport more often or improving the insulation in a house. 

These actions require more effort and may include some financial investment. 

Level 3 actions which include installing renewable energy generation equipment or 

having UK only holidays require more commitment and investment. 

 

Over the 3 years that the commitment was promoted 5,635 residents made a 

commitment to combat climate change. 

Page 307



 

Climate Change Woodlands 

The Climate Change Woodlands concept was developed as a public engagement 

tool. It linked with the Climate Change Commitment scheme, and enabled 

signatories to make a pledge to do their bit to tackle climate change and plant a tree 

as a long-lasting and publicly-visible sign of that commitment and to help absorb 

carbon dioxide and reduce their local contribution to global climate change. 

 

In total 12 Climate Change Woodlands have been planted across the county 

borough. 

 

Electric Vehicles and Charging Infrastructure 

 

The Policy Team are leading on the authorities electric vehicle work. To date the 

following has been achieved. 

 

In September 2018 the CCBC Electric Vehicle Strategy and Action Plan was 

approved by Cabinet. The strategy sets out the proposed approach to supporting the 

installation of electric vehicle infrastructure to maximise the economic, social and 

environmental benefits and opportunities that electric vehicles provide, and for 

electric vehicles to be a fundamental part of the council’s own fleet. 

 

As part of the work to deliver the Strategy Action Plan, the Caerphilly Policy Team 

are leading on a Gwent Regional Electric Vehicle Charge Point Feasibility Study to 

identify sites suitable for EV charging across the Gwent region, linking to the OLEV 

On Street Residential Charge Point Fund and the OLEV Workplace Fund. The study 

involves all 5 Gwent local authorities and the 4 PSB Partners (ABUHB, SWFRS, 

Gwent Police and Natural Resources Wales). 

 

The Caerphilly Policy Team are also leading on the Gwent Regional Fleet Review, 

involving all 5 local authority partners and 3 PSB Partners (ABUHB, SWFRS and 

Gwent Police). £75K funding has been secured from the Welsh Government 

Decarbonisation Team to deliver this project. 

 

The project aims of the Gwent Regional Fleet Review are to: 

 Undertake individual and a strategic overview fleet reviews for each eight 

Gwent Local Authorities and PSB Partner, breaking down current vehicle 

usage and quantify the benefits and any potential issues of introducing ultra-

low emission vehicles (ULEV’s) into their fleet (i.e. identifying opportunities for 

replacing existing fleet with more efficient ULEVs)  

 Undertake a grey fleet review to identify the potential savings by introducing 

ULEV pool cars/ vans into the fleet. 

     Contribute to cleaner air for communities in Gwent 

Page 308



     Combine with the EV Feasibility infrastructure review, to encourage ULEV 

visibility to help nudge communities to transition to a cleaner mobility 

environment. 

In 2017 the Policy Team installed 6 electric vehicle slow charge units at Penallta 

House and 5 slow charge units at Tir-Y-Berth Depot. These are designed as slow 

overnight charge points and were required to allow different services to trial electric 

vehicles. These charge points were also designed and installed to support the 

electrification of the Meals Direct Fleet, which was initially planned for 2017. 

 

In August 2018 the Policy Team worked with Facilities to install a fast charge unit, 

dedicated for fleet vehicles at Penallta House. The fast charge unit is currently used 

by the Leader of the authority, for the hybrid vehicle. 

 

Several types of electric vehicles have been trialled over the past two years by 

various services and individual users, all of which have been successful. 

 

The Gwent Regional work is linking with Cardiff Capital Region City Deal (CCRCD). 

The Gwent Region is leading the way on this area of work, but they are sharing their 

resources with the CCRCD to help them catch up. We are looking to hold a regional 

Electric Vehicle dissemination and ‘have a go’ event towards the end of May to give 

potential users, including taxi’s, businesses etc. the opportunity to try an electric 

vehicle. 

 

The Policy Team and Procurement Team are working with Tusker, the CCBC Car 

Salary Sacrifice Scheme to promote electric vehicles to staff. As part of this work 

Tusker are offering free home charging units in May/ June 2019 for employees who 

purchase an electric vehicle during those two months. They are also looking into 

providing a demo vehicle for CCBC staff to use to try before they buy. We are 

waiting for more information on this. 

 

The Policy Team have also taken delivery of an electric bike to support staff 

commuting sustainably and possible over longer distances. The bike also gives staff 

a chance to try before they buy as part of our sustainability and well-being for future 

generations agenda. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 309



Section 2:  What are we currently doing? 
 

 

Corporate Energy Projects – Co-ordinated by Corporate 

Energy & Water Team 
 

See section above 

 

 

Housing Projects – Co-ordinated by Housing and WHQS 

Teams 
 

Arbed scheme at Phillipstown. 

This is the third successful Arbed project that Caerphilly has been successful with a 

bid. Currently works are on site undertaking external wall insulation and voltage 

optimisers to approximately 400 Private & Council properties at Phillipstown at an 

estimated cost of £2.5 million. 

 

Energy Company Obligation (ECO) 

Framework agreement in place to undertake external wall insulation and loft 

insulation within specific lower super output areas, although CCBC will contribute 

funding to the scheme the cost of the works will be subsidised via the carbon savings 

generated. This framework has 2 energy suppliers Eon (rank 1) and SSE (rank 2). 

This agreement is in place until end of March 2017. 

 

What works are proposed 

2015 -16 Wimpy No-fines = 191 properties to receive external wall insulation. 

Properties with less than 200mm loft insulation will receive loft insulation upgrades. 

 

Further investigations will be undertaken to evaluate if properties at Lansbury Park & 

Trecenydd Caerphilly would qualify for ECO funding and be programmed for 2015/16 

– 2017. 

 

Welsh Government Warm Homes Project 

A bid has been submitted to the Welsh Government Warm Homes project to improve 

178 (primarily private sector) homes within several LSOA areas that have not 

benefitted from previous schemes. The bid was submitted in June 2015 and it is 

anticipated that the Welsh Government will confirm the successful project bids in 

September 2015. The potential value of this bid is around £2.4 million and all works 

would need to be completed by end of March 2016. 

 

 

Page 310



Cyd Cymru 

Switch 4 registration opens on 7th September and promotional activities by Cyd 

Cymru are currently being considered. 

 

 

 

Page 311



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 312



 
 

CABINET – 26AIN MEHEFIN 2019 
 
PWNC: ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL SAFONAU’R GYMRAEG 2017-2018 AC 

ADRODDIAD CYNNYDD BLYNYDDOL AR STRATEGAETH YR 
IAITH GYMRAEG 2017-2022 

 
ADRODDIAD GAN: CYFARWYDDWR CORFFORAETHOL, ADDYSG A 

GWASANAETHAU CORFFORAETHOL 
 
 
1. PWRPAS YR ADRODDIAD  
 
1.1 Er mwyn hysbysu’r aelodau a cheisio eu cadarnhad o'r cynnydd a wnaed yn ystod blwyddyn 

ariannol 2018-2019 yn erbyn pedwar maes penodol o waith yr iaith Gymraeg, fel sy'n ofynnol 
o dan y fframwaith rheoleiddio ar gyfer gweithredu Safonau'r Gymraeg. 
 

1.2 Bydd yr adroddiad wedyn yn cael ei gyhoeddi ar-lein erbyn y dyddiad cau ar 30ain Mehefin 
2019, fel sy'n ofynnol gan Safon 158 yr Iaith Gymraeg. 
 

1.3 Mae’r adroddiad hefyd yn darparu diweddariad ar y Strategaeth Cymraeg Pum Mlynedd 2017-
2022 ar gais y Cabinet, gweler Atodiad 1.  

 
 
2. CRYNODEB 
 
2.1 Mae gan y Cyngor ddyletswydd statudol i gynhyrchu adroddiad monitro blynyddol ar 

weithredu materion yr Iaith Gymraeg o dan y ddeddfwriaeth gyfredol ac yn unol â Safon 158. 
 
2.2 Mae'r wybodaeth sy'n ofynnol ar gyfer 2018-2019 yn cwmpasu pedwar maes allweddol 

gofynnol. 
 

Manylion Gofynion i Adrodd Rhif y Safon  
Perthnasol 

 (a’r is-gymal) 
Cwynion gan Aelodau’r Cyhoedd 
 

Rhaid i’r adroddiad blynyddol gynnwys nifer y cwynion a dderbynioch 
yn ystod y flwyddyn honno a oedd yn ymwneud â’ch cydymffurfiad â’r 
safonau yr oeddech o dan ddyletswydd i gydymffurfio â nhw. 
 

147, 148, 149, 
156, 158 (2), 
162, 164 (2), 

168 (a), 170 (2) (d) 

Sgiliau Iaith Staff 
 

Nifer y gweithwyr sydd â sgiliau yn y Gymraeg ar ddiwedd y flwyddyn o 
dan sylw (ar sail y cofnodion a gedwir yn unol â safon 151);  
 

170 (2) (a) 
151 

Darpariaeth Hyfforddiant Cyfrwng Cymraeg 
 

Nifer yr aelodau o staff a fynychodd cyrsiau hyfforddiant a gynigiwyd 
gennych yn Gymraeg yn ystod y flwyddyn (ar sail y cofnodion a gadwyd 
gennych yn unol â safon 152); 
 

170 (2) (b) 
170 (2) (c) 

152 

Page 313

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 7



Os cafodd fersiwn Gymraeg o gwrs ei chynnig gennych yn ystod y 
flwyddyn, canran cyfanswm nifer y staff a fynychodd y cwrs a 
fynychodd y fersiwn Gymraeg (ar sail y cofnodion a gadwyd gennych 
yn unol â safon 152). 
 
Recriwtio i Swyddi Gwag 
 

Nifer y swyddi newydd a’r swyddi gwag a hysbysebwyd gennych yn 
ystod y flwyddyn a gategoreiddiwyd fel swyddi sy’n gofyn: 
 

(i) bod sgiliau yn y Gymraeg yn hanfodol 
(ii) bod angen dysgu sgiliau yn y Gymraeg pan benodir i’r swydd 
(iii) bod sgiliau yn y Gymraeg yn ddymunol 
(iv) nad oedd sgiliau yn y Gymraeg yn angenrheidiol 

 

(ar sail y cofnodion a gadwyd gennych yn unol â safon 154);  

170 (2) (ch) 
154 

 
2.3 Yn ogystal â'r uchod, mae Adroddiad Cynnydd Blynyddol hefyd ar Strategaeth yr Iaith 

Gymraeg 2017-2022, ar gais y Cabinet pan gafodd ei gymeradwyo ym mis Ionawr 2017, sydd 
ynghlwm i’r adroddiad fel Atodiad 1. 

 
 
3. ARGYMHELLION 
 
3.1 Argymhellir bod aelodau'r Cabinet yn nodi cynnwys yr adroddiad blynyddol ac yn cymeradwyo 

cyhoeddi'r wybodaeth hon fel cofnod o gynnydd tuag at, a chydymffurfio â, Safonau'r 
Gymraeg perthnasol. 

 
 
4. RHESYMAU DROS YR ARGYMHELLION 
 
4.1 Yn unol â Safon 158 Hysbysiad Cydymffurfio'r Cyngor, rhaid i'r Cyngor; 
 

• Llunio adroddiad blynyddol sy'n ymdrin â'r ffordd y mae wedi cydymffurfio â'r Safonau 
Cyflenwi Gwasanaethau y mae'n ddyletswydd arnynt i gydymffurfio â hwy yn ystod y 
flwyddyn honno.   

• Rhaid i’r adroddiad blynyddol gynnwys nifer y cwynion a dderbyniwyd yn ystod y flwyddyn 
honno a oedd yn ymwneud â chydymffurfiad â’r Safonau yr oedd y Cyngor o dan 
ddyletswydd i gydymffurfio â hwy.   

• Cyhoeddi'r adroddiad ar ei wefan erbyn 30ain Mehefin 2019. 
 
 
5. YR ADRODDIAD 
 
5.1 Mae’r adroddiad blynyddol yn amlygu'r wybodaeth berfformiad canlynol; 
 

• Cawsom 4 cwyn ffurfiol a 5 ymchwiliad ffurfiol gan Gomisiynydd y Gymraeg.  O'r 4 cwyn 
ffurfiol a dderbyniwyd, daeth 3 o'r rhain yn ymchwiliadau gan Gomisiynydd y Gymraeg.  
Ymatebwyd i bob un o'r cwynion o fewn terfynau amser corfforaethol a chawsant eu 
cadarnhau.   

 
 O'r 3 cwyn a ddaeth yn ymchwiliadau Comisiynydd y Gymraeg, caewyd 2 gan 

Gomisiynydd y Gymraeg gan nad oedd digon o dystiolaeth gan yr achwynydd, fodd 
bynnag, rydym wedi defnyddio'r cyfle i ddysgu a gwella ein gwasanaeth yn nerbynfeydd 
ein llyfrgelloedd.  Mae trydydd ymchwiliad yn mynd rhagddo ond yn ddiweddar ymatebwyd 
i Hysbysiad Tystiolaeth i gael rhagor o wybodaeth ac rydym nawr yn disgwyl am ymateb a 
chanfyddiadau Comisiynydd y Gymraeg. 

 

Page 314



• Gwelwyd cynnydd dramatig yn nifer y staff sydd â Sgiliau Iaith Gymraeg o gymharu â 
ffigurau'r flwyddyn flaenorol.  Gellir esbonio'r cynnydd yn rhannol gan arolwg staff a 
gynhaliwyd gan Wasanaethau Pobl yn ystod haf 2017, a ofynnodd i'r staff nodi eu sgiliau 
iaith Gymraeg ar sail lefelau 1-5 ALTE (Cymdeithas Profwyr Iaith Ewrop).  Mae'r broses 
gyfredol o gasglu data am sgiliau staff hefyd yn seiliedig ar lefelau sgiliau fel yr 
amlinellwyd yn yr arolwg staff. 

 
• Cafwyd cynnydd pellach yn nifer y staff sy'n dysgu Cymraeg, gyda ffigwr o 144, yn rhannol 

o ganlyniad i gyflwyno'r cwrs hyfforddiant ar-lein 10-awr am ddim sydd wedi'i gyflwyno i 
staff sy'n darparu gwasanaethau derbynfa.  Roedd y cwrs yn targedu'n benodol 
wasanaethau derbynfa a enwyd o dan safonau 65 a 65A, a ddaeth i rym ar 30ain Medi 
2018.  Mae Ymarfer Siopa Cudd annibynnol diweddar, a gynhaliwyd gan y Fenter Iaith, 
wedi adrodd bod y derbynfeydd hyn yn perfformio'n dda. 

 
• Cafodd 632 o swyddi gwag eu hysbysebu.  Hysbysebwyd 6 swydd fel Cymraeg hanfodol.  

Hysbysebwyd 1 swydd lle'r oedd angen dysgu sgiliau Cymraeg, aseswyd bod 626 o 
swyddi'n Cymraeg dymunol ac 1 lle nad oedd angen sgiliau Cymraeg, ac roedd hyn 
oherwydd bod aelodau staff eraill yn y tîm yn meddu ar sgiliau iaith Gymraeg.  Mae gan 
bob swydd lefel Cymraeg dymunol fel lleiafswm y gofynion. 

 
 Mae wedi dod yn amlwg bod rhai swyddi lle nad yw Gwasanaethau Pobl yn rheoli eu 

recriwtio, megis swyddi Prif Swyddogion a swyddi prentisiaid, ac mae hyn wedi golygu nad 
ydynt wedi dilyn y broses orfodol arferol o ran Asesiadau Sgiliau Iaith Gymraeg.  Codwyd 
hyn gyda Gwasanaethau Pobl gyda golwg ar ddefnyddio'r un broses recriwtio ar gyfer pob 
swydd yn y dyfodol ac felly cydymffurfio â Safon 136 yn llawn.  Fel awdurdod rydym wedi 
penderfynu y dylai pob swydd, fel lleiafswm, fod yn Gymraeg dymunol. 

 
Safon 136 
Pan fyddwch yn asesu'r gofynion ar gyfer swydd newydd neu swydd wag, rhaid ichi asesu'r 
angen am sgiliau yn y Gymraeg, a'i chategoreiddio fel swydd pan fo un neu ragor o'r canlynol 
yn gymwys – 
 
(a) bod sgiliau yn y Gymraeg yn hanfodol;  
(b) bod angen dysgu sgiliau yn y Gymraeg pan benodir rhywun i’r swydd;  
(c) bod sgiliau yn y Gymraeg yn ddymunol; neu  
(ch) nad yw sgiliau yn y Gymraeg yn angenrheidiol.  

 
5.2 Yn ychwanegol at adrodd ar y pedair prif faes gwaith, o fewn Atodiad 1 yr adroddiad yw'r 

Adroddiad Cynnydd Blynyddol ar Strategaeth yr Iaith Gymraeg 2017-2022. 
 
5.3  Cymeradwywyd y Strategaeth gan y Cyngor Llawn ym mis Ionawr 2017 gyda chais y Cabinet 

am adroddiad cynnydd blynyddol ar y 6 Maes Strategol.  Mae angen y Strategaeth o dan 
Safon 145 a rhaid i'r Cyngor gyflawni Strategaeth yr Iaith Gymraeg trwy weithio mewn 
partneriaeth â nifer o sefydliadau yn y fwrdeistref sirol.  Mae’r ymatebion a dderbyniwyd gan y 
partneriaid a ymatebodd i’r cais am wybodaeth cynnydd wedi’u cynnwys yn yr adroddiad 
cynnydd. 

 
5.4 Mae nifer o feysydd lle mae gweithio mewn partneriaeth yn digwydd rhwng adrannau'r Cyngor 

a sefydliadau partner cyfrwng Cymraeg i sicrhau bod y camau a nodir yn y Strategaeth yn 
cael eu darparu.   

 
Yn adroddiad y llynedd nodwyd bod y Fforwm Iaith Gymraeg wedi sicrhau cyllid i ddatblygu 
llyfryn ar sut i fod yn ddwyieithog, gan roi taith o enedigaeth ar ba opsiynau sydd ar gael i gael 
mynediad at ofal plant cyfrwng Cymraeg a darpariaeth ysgol er mwyn magu plant dwyieithog.  
Mae'r llyfryn hwn wedi'i gwblhau ac ar hyn o bryd mae'n cael ei ddosbarthu trwy sefydliadau 
partner ac adrannau perthnasol o fewn y Cyngor. 
 

Page 315



5.5 Mewn cyfarfod diweddar o Fforwm y Gymraeg, cafwyd trafodaethau er mwyn diwygio a 
diweddaru rhai o'r targedau, sydd eisoes wedi'u cyflawni, er mwyn sicrhau bod y Strategaeth 
yn parhau i fod yn ddogfen fyw. 

 
5.6 Casgliad 
 
 Mae'n amlwg o gynnwys yr adroddiad bod cynnydd, fodd bynnag, mae meysydd i'w gwella o 

hyd.  Nodwyd y meysydd hyn yn yr ymarfer Siopwr Cudd diweddar a bydd y rhain yn cael eu 
dilyn. 

 
 Mae rhai o'r targedau yn y strategaeth wedi'u cyflawni eisoes, sy'n dangos bod cynnydd a 

rhywfaint o waith da yn cael ei wneud.  Bydd y targedau hyn yn cael eu diwygio a'u diweddaru 
gyda phartneriaid allweddol er mwyn sicrhau nad yw'r targedau hynny'n nad yw wedi’u 
cyrraedd eto ar y trywydd cywir er mwyn cael eu bodloni yn ystod oes y Strategaeth. 

 
 
6. TYBIAETHAU: 
 
6.1 Ni wnaed unrhyw dybiaethau. 
 
 
7. CYSYLLTIADAU Â PHOLISÏAU PERTHNASOL Y CYNGOR 
 
7.1 Mae’r iaith Gymraeg yn thema drawsbynciol o'r Nodau Llesiant o fewn Deddf Llesiant 

Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol (Cymru) 2015 ac mae'n effeithio ar bob polisi, swyddogaeth a 
gweithdrefn y Cyngor, gan gwmpasu'r rhai sydd wedi'u hanelu at y cyhoedd a pholisïau 
mewnol sy'n cynnwys aelodau staff y Cyngor.  Mae'r adroddiad yn cyfrannu at y Nodau 
Llesiant canlynol: 

 
• Cymru sy’n fwy cyfartal 
• Cymru sydd â chymunedau cydlynol 
• Cymru â diwylliant bywiog lle mae'r Gymraeg yn ffynnu 

 
7.1.1 Mae gan y Cynllun Cydraddoldeb Strategol 2016-2020, sy'n cynnwys yr iaith Gymraeg a 

chydymffurfiaeth â Safonau'r Gymraeg fel amcan cydraddoldeb strategol yn ei rinwedd ei hun, 
gysylltiadau uniongyrchol â nifer o bolisïau a strategaethau cyfredol eraill, o fewn y Cyngor ac 
o ran gweithio mewn partneriaeth. 

 
7.1.2 Mae yna hefyd strategaethau neu reoliadau Lywodraeth Cymru y mae gwaith iaith Gymraeg y 

Cyngor yn cysylltu â nhw, gan gynnwys "Mwy Na Geiriau / More Than Just Words" 
(Strategaeth Iaith Gymraeg Cenedlaethol Iechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol), "Cymraeg 2050: 
Miliwn o Siaradwyr Cymraeg " (Strategaeth Iaith Gymraeg Llywodraeth Cymru) a Ffyniant i 
Bawb.  

 
7.2 Cynllun Corfforaethol 2018-2023.   
 
 Mae'r adroddiad hwn yn cysylltu ag amcanion canlynol y cynllun corfforaethol 2018-2023; 
 
 Amcan 1 - Gwella cyfleoedd addysg i bawb 

 

 Amcan 2 - Galluogi cyflogaeth 
 

 Amcan 6 - Cynorthwyo dinasyddion i barhau i fod yn annibynnol a gwella eu lles 
 
 
8. LLESIANT CENEDLAETHAU'R DYFODOL 
 
8.1 Dylai'r adran hon egluro sut mae'r adroddiad yn cyfrannu at y nodau llesiant sef:-  
 

Page 316



• Cymru sy’n fwy cyfartal 
• Cymru sydd â chymunedau cydlynol 
• Cymru â diwylliant bywiog lle mae'r Gymraeg yn ffynnu 

 
• Hirdymor – Sicrhau bod gan staff y sgiliau i ddarparu gwasanaethau dwyieithog nawr ac 

yn y dyfodol 
• Atal – Bydd gwella gwasanaethau ac uwchsgilio staff yn sicrhau bod pawb, waeth beth 

fo'u dewis o ran iaith, yn cael mynediad cyfartal at wasanaethau ac felly'n atal cwynion ac 
ymchwiliadau gan Gomisiynydd y Gymraeg. 

• Integreiddio – Drwy ddarparu gwasanaethau dwyieithog i'r cyhoedd, rydym yn gwneud i 
bawb deimlo'n gyfartal ac yn cael eu gwerthfawrogi.   

• Cydweithio – Mae gweithio mewn partneriaeth yn allweddol i hyn ac yn cynorthwyo'r 
Cyngor i gyflawni ei ddyletswyddau o dan Safonau'r Gymraeg.  Ceir rhagor o dystiolaeth o 
gydweithio â phartneriaid yn Strategaeth Pum Mlynedd y Gymraeg. 

• Cynnwys - Fel y nodwyd o dan yr adran Cydweithio, mae'n rhaid i ni gynnwys ein 
partneriaid er mwyn cyflawni'r Strategaeth Iaith Pum Mlynedd a'n helpu i ddarparu 
gwasanaethau. 

 
 
9. GOBLYGIADAU CYDRADDOLDEB 
 
9.1 Cynhaliwyd asesiadau ac ymgynghoriad llawn Cydraddoldeb a'r Iaith Gymraeg ar y Cynllun 

Cydraddoldeb Strategol wrth ei ddatblygu, felly ni wnaed asesiad llawn ar yr adroddiad 
blynyddol hwn.  Mae'r adroddiad yn asesiad o'r cynnydd a wnaed gan y Cyngor o dan 
Safonau'r Gymraeg. 

 
 
10. GOBLYGIADAU ARIANNOL 
 
10.1 Nid oes goblygiadau ariannol uniongyrchol i'r adroddiad hwn gan fod yr adroddiad blynyddol 

yn cwmpasu'r gwaith a wnaed eisoes yn y flwyddyn ariannol flaenorol.  Fodd bynnag, dylid 
nodi y bydd symud yr agenda yn ei flaen yn golygu goblygiadau ariannol, yn enwedig mewn 
perthynas â hyfforddiant iaith Gymraeg i staff. 

 
 Y gost o gefnogi staff i fynychu cyrsiau i ddysgu Cymraeg ar gyfer y gweithle ar gyfer 

blwyddyn 2018-2019, sy'n cynorthwyo’r Cyngor i ddarparu gwasanaethau dwyieithog o dan y 
Safonau, oedd £3,448.38 

 
 
11. GOBLYGIADAU PERSONÉL 
 
11.1 Nid oes goblygiadau personél i'r adroddiad hwn, er bod hyn yn parhau i gael ei adolygu wrth 

i'r gwaith o weithredu Safonau'r Gymraeg fynd yn ei flaen.  Mae hyn yn berthnasol i adran 4 yr 
adroddiad blynyddol, sy'n canolbwyntio ar Recriwtio ar gyfer Swyddi Gwag. 

 
11.2 Ni chaiff unrhyw swydd ei hysbysebu heb Asesiad Sgiliau Iaith Gymraeg. 
  
 
12. YMGYNGHORIADAU 
 
12.1 Mae holl ymatebion yr ymgynghoriadau wedi cael eu hymgorffori yn yr adroddiad. 
 
 
13. PWERAU STATUDOL 
 
13.1 Rheoliadau Safonau’r Gymraeg (Rhif 1) 2015 Mesur y Gymraeg (Cymru) 2011. 
 
13.2 Deddf Llesiant Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol (Cymru) 2015. 

Page 317



 
Awdur: Anwen Cullinane, Uwch Swyddog Polisi – Cydraddoldeb, y Gymraeg ac 

Ymgynghori (cullima@caerffili.gov.uk)  
Ymgynghorwyr: Richard Edmunds – Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Addysg a Gwasanaethau 

Corfforaethol 
Y Cyng, Barbara Jones, Dirprwy Arweinydd a'r Aelod Cabinet dros Gyllid, 
Perfformiad a Llywodraethu: 
Y Cyng. James Pritchard, Pencampwr Cydraddoldeb 
Christina Harrhy, Prif Weithredwr Dros Dro  
Stephen Harris, Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Gwella Busnes Dros Dro 
Keri Cole, Prif Swyddog Addysg 
Lynne Donovan, Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Pobl 
Kathryn Peters, Rheolwr Polisi Corfforaethol 
Lisa Lane, Swyddog Monitro Dros Dro  
Ros Roberts, Rheolwr Perfformiad 

 
 
Papurau Cefndir: 
Cynllun Cydraddoldeb Strategol 2016-2020 
Amcanion a Chynllun Gweithredu Cydraddoldeb a’r Gymraeg 2016-2020 
Hysbysiad Cydymffurfio – Adran 44 Mesur y Gymraeg (Cymru) 2011 
Adroddiad i'r Cabinet ar 18fed Ionawr 2017 – Strategaeth y Gymraeg 2017-2022 
Dogfennau Canllaw Amrywiol 
(Mae'r rhain ar gael yn electronig er gwybodaeth ar Borthol y Fewnrwyd ac ar dudalennau perthnasol 
y rhyngrwyd ar ddolen www.caerffili.gov.uk/cydraddoldeb) 
 
Atodiadau: 
Atodiad 1 Adroddiad Blynyddol Safonau'r Gymraeg 2018-2019 
 

Page 318

mailto:cullima@caerphilly.gov.uk
http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/cydraddoldeb


 

 

 

Adroddiad Blynyddol 

Safonau’r Gymraeg 

2018-2019 
 

Paratowyd yn unol â gofynion y  
 
 

                        
 
 

30ain Mehefin 2019  

Page 319



 

i 
 

    Cynnwys 
 
 

 Adran Tudalen 

 Cyflwyniad 1 

1. Safonau’r Gymraeg: Cynllun Gweithredu 3 

2. Cwynion gan Aelodau’r Cyhoedd  11 

3. Sgiliau Iaith Staff 17 

4. Darpariaeth Hyfforddiant Cyfrwng Cymraeg 22 

5. Recriwtio i Swyddi Gwag 24 

Atodiad 1  
 

Adroddiad Cynnydd Blynyddol ar Strategaeth y Gymraeg 2017-2022 
 

25 

 

Page 320



 

1 
 

Cyflwyniad 
 
Mae’r adroddiad monitro blynyddol hwn ar gyfer 2018-2019 yn cynnwys y pedwar 
maes sy’n ofynnol o dan y fframwaith rheoleiddio ac mae’n dangos ymrwymiad 
parhaus y Cyngor i ddarparu gwasanaethau dwyieithog i’r cyhoedd ac i aelodau’r staff. 
 

Manylion Gofynion i Adrodd 
Perthnasol 

Rhif y Safon 
(ac is-gymal) 

Cwynion gan Aelodau’r Cyhoedd 
 
Rhaid i’r adroddiad blynyddol gynnwys nifer y cwynion a dderbynioch 
yn ystod y flwyddyn honno a oedd yn ymwneud â’ch cydymffurfiad â’r 
safonau yr oeddech o dan ddyletswydd i gydymffurfio â nhw. 
 

147, 148, 149, 
156, 158 (2), 
162, 164 (2), 
168 (a), 170 (2) (d) 

Sgiliau Iaith Staff 
 
Nifer y gweithwyr sydd â sgiliau yn y Gymraeg ar ddiwedd y flwyddyn o 
dan sylw (ar sail y cofnodion a gedwir yn unol â safon 151);  
 

170 (2) (a) 
151 

Darpariaeth Hyfforddiant Cyfrwng Cymraeg 
 
Nifer yr aelodau o staff a fynychodd gyrsiau hyfforddiant a gynigiwyd 
gennych yn Gymraeg yn ystod y flwyddyn (ar sail y cofnodion a gadwyd 
gennych yn unol â safon 152); 
 
Os cafodd fersiwn Gymraeg o gwrs ei chynnig gennych yn ystod y flwyddyn, 
canran cyfanswm nifer y staff a fynychodd y cwrs a fynychodd y fersiwn 
Gymraeg (ar sail y cofnodion a gadwyd gennych yn unol â safon 152). 
 

170 (2) (b) 
170 (2) (c) 
152 

Recriwtio i Swyddi Gwag 
 
Nifer y swyddi newydd a’r swyddi gwag a hysbysebwyd gennych yn 
ystod y flwyddyn a gategoreiddiwyd fel swyddi sy’n gofyn: 
 

(i) bod sgiliau yn y Gymraeg yn hanfodol 
(ii) bod angen dysgu sgiliau yn y Gymraeg pan benodir i’r swydd 
(iii) bod sgiliau yn y Gymraeg yn ddymunol 
(iv) nad oedd sgiliau yn y Gymraeg yn angenrheidiol 

 
(ar sail y cofnodion a gadwyd gennych yn unol â safon 154);  
 

170 (2) (ch)  
154 

 
  

Page 321



 

2 
 

Daeth 5ed Cynllun Iaith Gymraeg y Cyngor i ben ar 31ain Mawrth 2016 ac mae wedi’i 
ddisodli gan ymrwymiad yng Nghynllun Cydraddoldeb Strategol 2016-2020 diweddaraf 
y Cyngor.  Mae pedwar o’r Amcanion Cydraddoldeb Strategol yn cynnwys yn benodol 
materion y Gymraeg, sef: 
 
Amcanion Cydraddoldeb Strategol 4 - Gwella Mynediad Cyfathrebu 

Amcanion Cydraddoldeb Strategol 6 - Cydymffurfiaeth â Safonau’r Gymraeg  

Amcanion Cydraddoldeb Strategol 10 - Amrywiaeth yn y Gweithle 

Amcanion Cydraddoldeb Strategol 11 - Cydymffurfiaeth Gorfforaethol 

 
Mae Cabinet a Thîm Rheoli Corfforaethol y Cyngor wedi bod yn cymryd rhan 
weithredol mewn trafodaethau a dadleuon ynghylch Safonau’r Gymraeg ers mis 
Ionawr 2014, ac wedi derbyn nifer o adroddiadau a chyflwyniadau er mwyn sicrhau eu 
bod wedi’u hysbysu’n llawn ynghylch cynnydd cyn y dyddiad Hysbysiad Cydymffurfio 
terfynol, sef 23ain Ionawr 2017. 
 
Caiff yr adroddiad blynyddol hwn ei gyhoeddi ar-lein erbyn 30ain Mehefin 2019. 
 
Mae hefyd ar gael i’w lawrlwytho mewn fformat pdf ar wefan y Cyngor ar y dudalen 
benodol ar yr iaith Gymraeg ar www.caerffili.gov.uk/cydraddoldeb. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Mae’r adroddiad hwn ar gael yn Saesneg, ac mewn ieithoedd neu fformatau eraill ar gais. 
This report is available in English, and in other languages or formats on request. 

Page 322

http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/equalities


 

3 
 

1. Cydymffurfio â'r Safonau 
 
Ers i Safonau'r Gymraeg gael eu cyflwyno ar 30ain Mawrth 2016 rydym wedi datblygu 
Rhaglen Waith Cydymffurfio er mwyn sicrhau bod y gwasanaethau a darparwn yn 
unol â'r Safonau, bod staff yn ymwybodol o'u rhwymedigaethau a bod ganddynt y 
sgiliau iaith gofynnol lle y bo'n bosibl. 
 
Crynhoir y Rhaglen Waith Cydymffurfio isod: 
 
 

Gohebiaeth Safonau 4, 5 a 7 
Mae'r safonau hyn yn ymwneud â gohebiaeth sy'n gorfod bod yn ddwyieithog os nad 
ydym yn gwybod dewis iaith, neu'n anfon llythyrau at nifer o bobl ynglŷn â'r un pwnc.  
Rhaid i ni sicrhau bod y papur pennawd hefyd yn cydymffurfio. 
 
Camau a gymerwyd 
• TAFLEN FFEITHIAU ar gyfer staff – Gohebiaeth Gyffredinol – 15/05/17 
• Templed papur pennawd newydd eisoes ar gael 
 
 
Ffôn – Safonau 8, 9, 11, 14, 16, 17, 19, 20, 21 a 22 
Mae'r safonau hyn yn ymwneud â sut rydym yn delio â galwadau ffôn a bod cyfarchiad 
dwyieithog yn cael ei roi.  Rhaid i staff feddu ar y sgiliau iaith perthnasol i ddelio â 
galwadau yn Gymraeg, ac os nad ydynt yn gallu, eu bod yn gwybod pwy yw'r siaradwyr 
Cymraeg sy'n gallu delio â'r mater, a sut i drosglwyddo galwadau. Os nad oes siaradwr 
Cymraeg ar gael i ddarparu'r wybodaeth bwnc-benodol, gellir cysylltu'r alwad â rhywun 
nad yw'n siarad Cymraeg.  
 
Rhaid i ni ddatgan, pan rydym yn cyhoeddi prif rifau ffôn, ein bod yn croesawu galwadau 
yn Gymraeg a rhaid i'n holl systemau ffôn awtomataidd fod yn ddwyieithog. 
 
Camau a gymerwyd 
• TAFLEN FFEITHIAU ar gyfer staff – Cyfarchion dros y Ffôn – 15/05/17. 
• Darparu hyfforddiant i staff i sicrhau eu bod yn gallu rhoi cyfarchion sylfaenol a 

darparu gwasanaethau derbynfa yn ein prif leoliadau 
• Cyhoeddir croeso i alwadau ffôn Cymraeg yn Newsline ers rhifyn mis Mehefin 2017 
• Darparwyd staff â stondinau desg sy'n Ganllawiau Cyfeirio Cyflym – 15/05/17 
• Mae negeseuon ffôn awtomataidd ar gyfer mannau gwasanaeth wedi'u recordio'n 

ddwyieithog 
 
 
Cyfarfodydd - Safonau 24, 24A, 27, 27A, 27D, 29 a 29A  
Mae'r safonau hyn yn ymwneud â sut yr ydym yn gwahodd unigolion i gyfarfodydd a 
phryd y mae'n rhaid i ni gynnig cyfle iddynt ddefnyddio'r Gymraeg.  Os dymunant, rhaid i 
ni wedyn drefnu gwasanaeth cyfieithu ar y pryd er mwyn hwyluso'r cyfarfod hwnnw. 
 

Os ydych yn gwahodd mwy nag un unigolyn i gyfarfod, rhaid gofyn i bawb a ydynt yn 
dymuno defnyddio'r Gymraeg.  Fodd bynnag, os bydd o leiaf 10% yn dymuno defnyddio'r 
Gymraeg, yna rhaid trefnu cyfieithu ar y pryd.  Os yw'n llai na 10%, rhaid rhoi gwybod i'r 

Page 323



 

4 
 

siaradwyr Cymraeg nad yw'n ofynnol ar yr achlysur hwn i ni fodloni eu cais i siarad 
Cymraeg yn y cyfarfod. 
 

Os bydd y cyfarfod â'r unigolyn o ran ei les, a'i fod yn dymuno siarad Cymraeg, yna rhaid 
darparu gwasanaeth cyfieithu ar y pryd er mwyn i'r unigolyn allu siarad yn ei ddewis iaith.  
Rhaid cynnal cyfarfodydd lles gyda chyfieithu ar y pryd os bydd unrhyw un sy'n mynychu 
wedi gofyn iddynt ddefnyddio'r Gymraeg. 
 
Camau a gymerwyd 
• TAFLEN FFEITHIAU ar gyfer staff – Cyfarfodydd ag Unigolion – 15/05/17 
• Wrth wahodd unigolion i gyfarfod mae'n ofynnol i wasanaethau gynnwys brawddeg 

safonol yn gofyn am eu dewis iaith ac os ydynt yn dymuno defnyddio neu gynnal y 
cyfarfod drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg 

 
 

 

Cyfarfodydd a Digwyddiadau Cyhoeddus – Safonau 30, 31, 32, 33, 34, 35 a 36 
Rhaid i unrhyw hysbyseb neu hysbysiad sy’n rhoi cyhoeddusrwydd i gyfarfod 
cyhoeddus/digwyddiad/gweithgaredd ddatgan y gellir defnyddio'r Gymraeg.  
 

Rhaid i unrhyw wahoddiad i gyfarfod cyhoeddus/digwyddiad/gweithgaredd cael ei anfon 
yn Gymraeg ac yn Saesneg a rhaid i'r holl ddeunydd a arddangosir yn y cyfarfod 
cyhoeddus fod yn ddwyieithog, Cymraeg yn gyntaf.  
 

Rhaid gofyn i unrhyw siaradwyr mewn cyfarfod cyhoeddus/digwyddiad/gweithgaredd a 
ydynt am ddefnyddio'r Gymraeg, ac os felly rhaid trefnu cyfieithu ar y pryd.  Rhaid 
hysbysu ar lafar i bawb sy'n mynychu cyfarfod cyhoeddus/digwyddiad/gweithgaredd bod 
croeso iddynt ddefnyddio'r Gymraeg a bod cyfieithu ar y pryd ar gael i'r di-Gymraeg.  
 
Camau a gymerwyd 
• TAFLEN FFEITHIAU ar gyfer staff – Cyfarfodydd Cyhoeddus – 15/05/17 
• TAFLEN FFEITHIAU ar gyfer staff – Trefnu Digwyddiad – 15/05/17 
• Mae Fframwaith Cyfieithu a Dehongli ar waith ers mis Mai 2017 ar gyfer ceisiadau 

cyfieithu ar y pryd 
 
 
Agendâu, Cofnodion a Dogfennau Cyhoeddus eraill – Safonau 41 a 47 
Mae'r Safonau hyn yn ymwneud â chynhyrchu'r dogfennau canlynol yn Gymraeg; 
• Agendâu a chofnodion ar gyfer y Cabinet 
• Agendâu a chofnodion ar gyfer y Pwyllgor Craffu Addysg Gydol Oes a'r Cyngor Llawn 
 

Yn ychwanegol os cynhyrchir dogfen er defnydd y cyhoedd, ac nad yw'n cael ei dal gan 
unrhyw safon arall, rhaid ei chynhyrchu yn Gymraeg os yw'r testun yn awgrymu y dylid ei 
gynhyrchu yn Gymraeg, neu os yw'r gynulleidfa a ragwelir a'u disgwyliadau yn awgrymu y 
dylid ei gynhyrchu yn Gymraeg e.e. adroddiadau sy'n ymwneud ag addysg cyfrwng 
Cymraeg. 
 
Camau a gymerwyd 
• Mae llunio agendâu a chofnodion ar gyfer y Cabinet, Pwyllgor Craffu Addysg Gydol 

Oes a'r Cyngor Llawn yn Gymraeg yn arfer cyfredol 
 
  

Page 324



 

5 
 

Cyhoeddiadau Cyffredinol – Safonau 42, 43, 44, 45, 46 a 47 
Mae'r Safonau hyn yn ymwneud â'r canlynol sy'n cael eu cynhyrchu yn Gymraeg os 
ydynt ar gyfer y cyhoedd neu er mwyn rhoi gwybodaeth i'r cyhoedd; 
• trwyddedau, tystysgrifau, llyfrynnau, taflenni, pamffledi, cardiau, polisïau, 

strategaethau, adroddiadau blynyddol, cynlluniau corfforaethol, canllawiau, codau 
ymarfer neu unrhyw reolau sy'n berthnasol i'r cyhoedd 

 

Rhaid i unrhyw ddatganiad yr ydym yn ei roi i'r wasg fod yn ddwyieithog oni bai bod y 
datganiad yn cael ei gyhoeddi yn ystod "argyfwng" fel y'i diffinnir yn adran 1 o’r Ddeddf 
Argyfyngau Sifil Posibl 2004. 
 

Os cynhyrchir dogfen er defnydd y cyhoedd, ac nad yw'n cael ei dal gan unrhyw safon 
arall rhaid ei chynhyrchu yn Gymraeg os, yw'r pwnc dan sylw yn awgrymu y dylid ei 
chynhyrchu yn Gymraeg neu os yw'r gynulleidfa a ragwelir a'u disgwyliadau o'r 
gynulleidfa yn awgrymu y dylid ei gynhyrchu yn Gymraeg. 
 
Camau a gymerwyd 
• Mae cynhyrchu trwyddedau, tystysgrifau, llyfrynnau, taflenni, pamffledi, cardiau, 

polisïau, strategaethau, adroddiadau blynyddol, cynlluniau corfforaethol, canllawiau, 
codau ymarfer neu unrhyw reolau sy'n berthnasol i'r cyhoedd, yn Gymraeg, eisoes yn 
arfer cyfredol 

• Mae’r Tîm Cyfathrebu yn ymwybodol o'r datganiadau cyhoeddus a gaiff eu cyhoeddi 
 
 
Dogfennau Ymgynghori - Safonau 44, 91, 92 a 93 
Rhaid i'r dogfennau ymgynghori fod yn ddwyieithog a rhaid iddynt ystyried a gofyn am 
sylwadau arnynt;  
 

1. Pa effeithiau, boed yn gadarnhaol neu'n negyddol, y byddai'r cynnig yn ei gael ar; 
neu 

2. sut y gellid datblygu neu ddiwygio'r cynnig fel y byddai'n cael effeithiau cadarnhaol 
neu fwy positif ar; neu 

3. sut y gellid datblygu neu ddiwygio'r cynnig fel na fyddai'n cael effeithiau negyddol, 
neu fel y byddai'n cael effeithiau negyddol llai ar; 

a) y cyfleoedd i ddefnyddio'r Gymraeg 
b) beidio â thrin yr iaith Gymraeg yn llai ffafriol na'r Saesneg 
 
Camau a gymerwyd 
• Mae Canllawiau Ymgynghori a Monitro ar waith ac yn cyfeirio at yr iaith Gymraeg.  

Mae'r ddogfen hon yn cael ei diwygio ar hyn o bryd 
• Mae Rhestr Wirio’r Iaith Gymraeg wrth Ymgynghori yn cael ei chreu fel bod 

swyddogion sy'n cynnal ymarferion ymgynghori yn ymwybodol o'u 
rhwymedigaethau  

• Mae cwestiynau wedi'u gwreiddio yn y broses asesu effaith yn gofyn a yw 
ystyriaethau wedi cael eu rhoi i'r Gymraeg yn y broses ymgynghori 

  

Page 325



 

6 
 

Gwefan, Cyfryngau Cymdeithasol a Dyfeisiau Electronig - Safonau 52, 56, 58 
a 60 
Rhaid i bob tudalen ar wefan y Cyngor fod yn ddwyieithog, yn gwbl weithredol ac nad 
yw’r Gymraeg yn cael ei thrin yn llai ffafriol na'r tudalennau Saesneg.  Rhaid i'r 
rhyngwyneb a'r dewislenni ar y tudalennau fod yn ddwyieithog.  
 

Rhaid i unrhyw gyfrifon cyfryngau cymdeithasol sy’n perthyn i'r Cyngor beidio â thri y 
Gymraeg yn llai ffafriol na'r Saesneg. 
 

Rhaid i beiriannau hunanwasanaeth beidio â thrin y Gymraeg yn llai ffafriol na’r Saesneg 
e.e. peiriannau tocynnau parcio. 
 
Camau a gymerwyd 
• Mae archwiliad o'r wefan gyfan a'i swyddogaethau yn cael ei gynnal.  I'w gwblhau 

erbyn dechrau Gorffennaf 2019 
• Mae'r canllawiau ar ddefnyddio cyfryngau cymdeithasol yn cynnwys adran ar 

Safonau'r Gymraeg a gofynnwyd i'r rhai â chyfrifon gydnabod y gofynion i 
gydymffurfio.  Bydd y gwaith monitro yn dechrau cyn bo hir a bydd y rhai nad ydynt 
yn cydymffurfio yn cael eu hatgoffa o'u rhwymedigaethau 

• Mae peiriannau parcio yn cynnig dewis iaith i bobl 
 
 
Arwyddion Cyhoeddus – Safon 62, 67, 70, 141, 142 a 143 
Rhaid i arwyddion newydd ac adnewyddedig fod yn ddwyieithog a pheidio â thrin y 
Gymraeg yn llai ffafriol na'r Saesneg a rhaid lleoli'r Gymraeg felly mae'n debygol o gael 
ei darllen yn gyntaf. 
 
Camau a gymerwyd 
• Mae arwyddion newydd ac adnewyddedig yn cydymffurfio 
• TAFLEN FFEITHIAU – Arwyddion – 15/05/17 
• Dychwelir yr holl waith cyfieithu a dderbynnir yn y fformat cywir. Mae hyn yn arfer 

cyfredol 
 
 
Ymwelwyr i Adeiladau – Safonau 64, 65, 65A, 67 a 68 
Rhaid darparu gwasanaeth dwyieithog yn y dderbynfa yn adeiladau canlynol y Cyngor   
rhaid peidio â thrin y Gymraeg yn llai ffafriol na'r Saesneg; 
 

- Tŷ Penallta 
- Llyfrgelloedd Bargod, Rhisga, Rhymni, Coed Duon, Caerffili ac Ystrad Mynach; 
- Canolfan Croeso Caerffili; 
- Maenordy Llancaiach Fawr; 
- Gwasanaethau Cofrestru; 
- Canolfannau Hamdden Caerffili, Heolddu, Trecelyn a Rhisga. 
 

Rhaid arddangos arwyddion ar dderbynfeydd sy'n datgan y gellir defnyddio'r Gymraeg. 
Rhaid i staff sy'n siarad Cymraeg mewn derbynfeydd arddangos bathodyn yn datgan 
eu bod yn gallu siarad Cymraeg. 
  

Page 326



 

7 
 

Camau a gymerwyd 
• Cwblhawyd y rhaglen hyfforddi ar gyfer staff yn y dderbynfa yn Nhŷ Penallta a'r 

Ganolfan Gyswllt.  Mae mwy o hyfforddiant yn cael ei gyflwyno ynghyd â chymorth 
parhaus 

• Cymraeg Gwaith - cwrs ar-lein 10-awr wedi'i gyflwyno i staff ers mis Medi 2018  
• Mae pob lleoliad a restrwyd o dan Safon 64 wedi cael y poster i'w arddangos yn y 

dderbynfa yn nodi bod gwasanaeth Cymraeg ar gael  
• Gwybodaeth ar gael i staff ar Borthol yr Uned Polisi Corfforaethol 
• Mae pob dysgwr a siaradwr Cymraeg wedi derbyn lanyard neu fathodyn Iaith Gwaith 
 
Dyfarnu Grantiau – Safonau 71, 72 a 72A 
Rhaid i ffurflenni cais am grantiau fod yn ddwyieithog. Rhaid i unrhyw beth a 
gyhoeddir am grant ddatgan y gellir cyflwyno ceisiadau yn Gymraeg ac na fyddant yn 
cael eu trin yn llai ffafriol na'r Saesneg, mae hyn yn cynnwys amserlenni a bennwyd ar 
gyfer asesiad ac ati. 
 
Camau a gymerwyd 
• TAFLEN FFEITHIAU ar gyfer staff – Grantiau – 15/07/17 
• Edrychodd Adolygiad Thematig Comisiynydd y Gymraeg ar y broses o ddyfarnu 

grantiau.  Mae'r rhan fwyaf o'r gwasanaethau yn cydymffurfio ac mae'r rhai nad 
oeddent yn cydymffurfio wedi'u cynghori yn unol â hynny.  Dywedwyd wrthynt hefyd 
i ofyn am ddewis iaith yr ymgeisydd ac i gyhoeddi'r ffurflenni yn yr iaith honno neu 
i'w cyhoeddi'n ddwyieithog 

 
 
Cyrsiau Addysg - Safonau 84 ac 86 
Rhaid i gyrsiau addysg gael eu cynnig yn Gymraeg oni bai bod asesiad o dan Safon 86 
wedi'i gynnal. 
 
Camau a gymerwyd 
• Gofyn i bobl a ydynt yn dymuno derbyn y cwrs yn Gymraeg ar adeg cofrestru neu 

holi ac yna asesu'r galw am y cwrs drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg 
 
 
Systemau Sain Cyhoeddus - Safon 87 
Rhaid i bob systemau sain cyhoeddus fod yn ddwyieithog gyda'r Gymraeg yn gyntaf. 
 
Camau a gymerwyd 
• Mae'r negeseuon Prawf Larwm Tân a Munud o Ddistawrwydd yn ddwyieithog 
• Gwacáu mewn Argyfwng – Saesneg yn unig 
• Gofynnwyd i Dwristiaeth edrych ar eu rhaglen ddigwyddiadau a'r angen i sicrhau bod 

pob cyhoeddiad cyhoeddus yn ddwyieithog, Cymraeg yn gyntaf 
• Mae negeseuon cyfarch cyhoeddus awtomataidd Llyfrgelloedd yn cydymffurfio'n 

llawn 
 
 
 
  

Page 327



 

8 
 

Llunio Polisi - Safonau 88, 89 a 90 
Rhaid i bolisïau newydd, diwygiedig neu sydd wedi'u hadolygu ystyried yr effaith y 
bydd y polisi'n ei chael ar gyfleoedd i ddefnyddio'r Gymraeg ac ni ddylai drin y 
Gymraeg yn llai ffafriol. 
 
Camau a gymerwyd 
• Diweddarwyd y Canllawiau o ran Goblygiadau Cydraddoldeb mewn Adroddiadau 

Pwyllgor i gynnwys cyfeiriad at y Gymraeg 
 
 
Tudalennau Mewnrwyd / Rhyngrwyd - Safonau 122 a 124 
Rhaid i hafan y fewnrwyd fod yn ddwyieithog, dylai weithredu'n llawn a pheidio â thrin 
y Gymraeg yn llai ffafriol na’r Saesneg.  Rhaid i dudalennau Saesneg nodi bod tudalen 
Gymraeg gyfatebol ar gael, gyda dolen os yw'n berthnasol. 
 
Cam Gweithredu 
• Nid yw mewnrwyd ddwyieithog yn arfer cyfredol.  Mae tudalen benodol ar yr iaith 

Gymraeg ar Borthol yr Uned Polisi Corfforaethol er mwyn i staff gael mynediad at 
wybodaeth 

 
 
Hyfforddiant Iaith Gymraeg a Chyfathrebu â Staff – Safonau 128, 129, 130, 
133, 134 a 135 
Mae'n rhaid i ni ddarparu hyfforddiant Cymraeg i staff os yw'n cael ei ddarparu yn 
Saesneg ar; recriwtio, rheoli perfformiad, cwynion, disgyblu, cynefino, delio â'r 
cyhoedd, iechyd a diogelwch, ar ddefnyddio'r Gymraeg mewn cyfarfodydd, 
cyfweliadau, cwynion ac yn ystod gweithdrefnau disgyblu. 
 

Rhaid rhoi cyfleoedd i staff mewn oriau gwaith i dderbyn gwersi Cymraeg sylfaenol ac i 
weithwyr sy'n rheoli eraill dderbyn hyfforddiant ar ddefnyddio'r Gymraeg yn eu rôl fel 
rheolwyr.  
 

Rhaid i ni roi gwybodaeth i weithwyr newydd am yr iaith Gymraeg a thestun neu logo i 
weithwyr sy'n siarad Cymraeg eu defnyddio mewn llofnodion e-bost sy'n dangos eu 
bod yn barod i ddefnyddio'r Gymraeg, boed yn rhugl neu fel dysgwr. 
 

Rhaid i fersiwn Cymraeg o fanylion cyswllt mewn negeseuon e-bost a negeseuon Allan 
o'r Swyddfa fod yn Gymraeg hefyd. 
 
Cam Gweithredu 
• TAFLEN FFEITHIAU ar gyfer staff - Adnoddau Dynol - 15/05/17 
• Os bydd unrhyw geisiadau am hyfforddiant yn cael eu derbyn byddem yn gweithio 

gyda chynghorau cyfagos i wneud cyrsiau'n hyfyw 
• Cyflwynwyd rhaglen hyfforddiant iaith Gymraeg flynyddol ers 1999, sy'n cynnig 

amrywiaeth o gyrsiau gwahanol i staff, sy'n cynnwys cyrsiau ar-lein, hunan-astudio, 
preswyl ac wythnosol.  Mae 144 o ddysgwyr wedi ymgymryd â hyfforddiant iaith 
Gymraeg yn ystod 2018-2019 

• Dylid cynnwys gwybodaeth am y Gymraeg mewn pecynnau cynefino adnoddau dynol 
• Mae’r Tîm Cydraddoldeb, y Gymraeg ac Ymgynghori yn rhan o raglen sefydlu'r 

gwasanaethau cymdeithasol i ddechreuwyr newydd 
• Mae TG wedi rhoi llofnod dwyieithog awtomatig i bob aelod o staff ar gyfer e-byst 

Page 328



 

9 
 

• Nid yw TG wedi gallu cyn-boblogi neges e-bost ddwyieithog, felly crëwyd stondinau de  
i bob aelod o staff er mwyn codi ymwybyddiaeth o'r gofyniad i sicrhau bod eu neges 
Allan o'r Swyddfa yn ddwyieithog. 

 
 
Arwyddion Gweithle – Safonau 141, 142 a 143 
Rhaid i arwyddion newydd ac adnewyddedig fod yn ddwyieithog a pheidio â thrin y 
Gymraeg yn llai ffafriol na'r Saesneg, a rhaid gosod y Gymraeg fel mae'n debygol o gael 
ei darllen yn gyntaf. 
 
Cam Gweithredu 
• Mae pob arwydd sy'n wynebu'r cyhoedd yn ddwyieithog ac os cynhyrchir rhai 

newydd neu adnewyddedig mae’r Gymraeg yn gyntaf 
 
 
Strategaeth y Gymraeg – Safonau 145 a 146 
Mae'n rhaid i ni gynhyrchu a chyhoeddi strategaeth 5-mlynedd ar y wefan sy'n nodi sut 
rydym yn cynnig hyrwyddo'r Gymraeg a hwyluso'i defnydd yn ehangach yn y 
fwrdeistref sirol.  Rhaid i'r Strategaeth gynnwys –  
 

(a) targed (o ran y ganran o siaradwyr yn eich ardal) ar gyfer cynyddu neu gynnal nifer 
y siaradwyr Cymraeg yn eich ardal erbyn diwedd y cyfnod 5 mlynedd o dan sylw, a  
 

(b) datganiad yn nodi sut yr ydych yn bwriadu cyrraedd y targed hwnnw; a rhaid i chi 
adolygu'r strategaeth a chyhoeddi fersiwn ddiwygiedig ar eich gwefan o fewn 5 
mlynedd i gyhoeddi strategaeth (neu gyhoeddi strategaeth ddiwygiedig). 
 
Camau a gymerwyd 
• Lansiwyd y Strategaeth yn Ffiliffest 2017 gan y Gweinidog dros Addysg Gydol Oes a'r 

Gymraeg 
• Datblygwyd cynllun gweithredu ar y cyd â phartneriaid mewn mudiadau Cymraeg 

lleol, drwy Fforwm y Gymraeg (gweler Atodiad 1) 
• Cyflwynir adroddiad cynnydd bob blwyddyn i'r Cabinet  
• Mae angen diwygio a diweddaru’r targedau a osodwyd yn wreiddiol, gan fod rhai 

wedi'u bodloni eisoes.  Bydd y gwaith diwygio a diweddaru yn cael ei wneud yn ystod 
2019  

• Mabwysiadwyd y Strategaeth gan Fwrdd Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Caerffili ym mis 
Rhagfyr 2018 

 
 
Rhoi Cyhoeddusrwydd i Gydymffurfiaeth – Safonau 161, 167 a 163 
Rhaid i ni gyhoeddi dogfen ar y wefan sy'n datgan y safonau llunio polisi y mae'n rhaid 
i ni gydymffurfio â hwy a sut y gwnawn hynny a rhaid i hwn fod ar gael ym mhob 
swyddfa sydd ar agor i'r cyhoedd. 
 

Rhaid i ni gyhoeddi dogfen ar y wefan sy'n nodi'r safonau gweithredu y mae'n rhaid 
inni gydymffurfio â hwy a sut y gwnawn hynny a rhaid i hwn fod ar gael ym mhob 
swyddfa sydd ar agor i'r cyhoedd. 
 

Rhaid i ni gael trefniadau ar waith i oruchwylio cydymffurfiaeth â'r safonau llunio polisi, 
cyhoeddi'r trefniadau ar y wefan a sicrhau bod y ddogfen ar gael ym mhob swyddfa 
sydd ar agor i'r cyhoedd. 

Page 329



 

10 
 

Camau a gymerwyd 
• Gweler Adroddiad Hysbysiad Cydymffurfiaeth CBSC 30.03.16 ar y wefan 
• Mae’r Hysbysiad Cydymffurfio ar y wefan er mwyn caniatáu i unrhyw ymholiadau 

gan y cyhoedd gael eu trin drwy gael mynediad i'r rhyngrwyd ar eu rhan.  Mae hyn 
wedi cael ei drafod yn dilyn cyfarfod gyda Gwasanaethau Cwsmeriaid 
 
 

Cwynion – Safonau 147, 148, 149, 156, 158 (2), 162, 164 (2), 168 (a), 170 
(2) (d) 
Rhaid i ni gadw cofnod o nifer y cwynion a dderbyniwyd sy'n ymwneud â 
chydymffurfio â'r Safonau. 
 
Camau a gymerwyd 
• Adroddir yn flynyddol yn Adroddiad Blynyddol Safonau'r Gymraeg, a gyhoeddir ar 

wefan y Cyngor erbyn 30ain Mehefin bob blwyddyn 
 
 
Sgiliau Iaith Staff – Safonau 151 a 170 (2) (a) 
Mae'n rhaid i ni gadw cofnod (yn dilyn asesiad) o nifer y cyflogeion sydd â sgiliau iaith 
Gymraeg ar ddiwedd pob blwyddyn ariannol i gynnwys y lefel sgiliau.  
 
Hyfforddiant Iaith Gymraeg – Safonau 152, 170 (2) (b) a 170 (2) (c) 
Rhaid i ni gadw cofnod o nifer y staff sy'n mynychu cyrsiau hyfforddiant drwy gyfrwng 
y Gymraeg a chanran cyfanswm nifer y staff a fynychodd gwrs Cymraeg. 
 
 
Recriwtio – Safonau 154, 170 (2) (ch) a 154 
Rhaid cadw cofnod o nifer y swyddi newydd a’r swyddi gwag a hysbysebwyd gennych 
yn ystod y flwyddyn a gategoreiddiwyd fel swyddi sy’n gofyn: 
 

(a) bod sgiliau yn y Gymraeg yn hanfodol 
(b) bod angen dysgu sgiliau yn y Gymraeg pan benodir i’r swydd 
(c) bod sgiliau yn y Gymraeg yn ddymunol 
(ch) nad oedd sgiliau yn y Gymraeg yn angenrheidiol 
 
Camau a gymerwyd 
• Sgiliau Iaith Staff, Darpariaeth Hyfforddiant a Recriw tio Iaith Gymraeg: 

Caiff y rhain eu hadrodd arnynt yn flynyddol yn Adroddiad Blynyddol Safonau'r 
Gymraeg, a gyhoeddir ar wefan y Cyngor erbyn y 30ain Mehefin bob blwyddyn 

  

Page 330



 

11 
 

2. Cwynion gan Aelodau’r Cyhoedd  
 
Mae Amcan Cydraddoldeb Strategol 11 - Cydymffurfiaeth Gorfforaethol yn 
ymrwymo’r Cyngor i fonitro cwynion ynghylch Cydraddoldeb a’r Gymraeg, a 
chyhoeddwyd canllawiau ar gyfer staff ar Borthol y staff ac ar y wefan allanol, sy’n 
rhoi manylion ynghylch sut y dylai staff ymdrin â’r materion hyn. 

 
Yn ystod 2018-2019, derbyniwyd 4 cais am wasanaeth a 4 cwyn yn ymwneud â'r 
Gymraeg.  Ymatebwyd i bob un ohonynt o fewn terfynau amser a chadarnhawyd pob 
un.  Roedd 1 o'r 4 cais am wasanaeth yn ymwneud â marciau ffordd a'r 3 arall yn 
ymwneud ag arwyddion.   
 
 
Diffiniadau Cyffredinol 
 
Mae cwynion corfforaethol yn gwynion o ganlyniad i fethiant o ran proses neu fethiant 
i weithredu polisi’r Cyngor yn gywir.  Mae’r rhain yn gwynion a allai, yn y pen draw, 
gael eu hanfon at yr Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus neu at Gomisiynydd y 
Gymraeg, er enghraifft. 
 
Caiff materion cod ymddygiad yn ymwneud ag ymddygiad neu agwedd staff eu trin 
drwy gyfrwng prosesau Adnoddau Dynol mewnol.  Fodd bynnag, mae cwynion 
ynghylch Cydraddoldeb a’r Gymraeg yn rhywfaint o hybrid, oherwydd gall methiant 
proses fod o ganlyniad i agweddau neu farn aelod o staff tuag at grŵp penodol, er 
enghraifft. 
 
 
Cwynion yn ôl Cyfadran 
 

CYFADRAN IAITH GYMRAEG 

Prif Weithredwr 0 

Gwasanaethau 
Corfforaethol 1 

Cymunedau 3 

Gwasanaethau 
Cymdeithasol 0 

CYFANSYMIAU 4 

 
 
Themâu ac Amserlenni'r Cwynion 
 
Roedd pob un o’r 4 cwyn ynghylch y Gymraeg yn ymwneud â thorri Safonau'r 
Gymraeg, gan gynnwys methu â darparu gwasanaethau Cymraeg mewn llyfrgelloedd, 
cydymffurfio o ran peiriannau parcio ceir a meysydd gwasanaeth heb staff sy'n siarad 
Cymraeg i ddelio ag ymholiadau.  Atebwyd pob un o’r 4 cwyn a gafwyd o fewn yr 
amserlenni corfforaethol. 
 

Page 331



 

11 
 

Ymchwiliadau Comisiynydd y Gymraeg 
 
Yn 2018-2019 cawsom 5 Ymchwiliad Comisiynydd y Gymraeg newydd, a chafodd 1 a oedd yn parhau o'r flwyddyn ariannol flaenorol, ac mae 
manylion y rhain wedi'u rhestru ar y tudalennau canlynol;  
 
Ymchwiliadau sy'n mynd rhagddynt ers 2017-2018 
 
CSG304 
 

MANYLION YR 
YMCHWILIAD 

CANLYNIAD DIWEDDARIAD 

Derbyniodd Comisiynydd y 
Gymraeg gŵyn gan aelod o'r 
cyhoedd yn honni; 

 

• y cafodd ffurflen adrodd 
Cyngor a Chymorth 
Gwybodaeth ar-lein ar 
wefan y cyngor ei 
chyflwyno yn Gymraeg ac 
nad yw wedi derbyn 
ymateb.  Hefyd bod 
rhywfaint o'r testun ar y 
dudalen we yn uniaith 
Saesneg. 

Penderfynodd yr ymchwiliad... 
 

• Safon 1 –  
Ni wnaeth CBSC fethu â chydymffurfio â 
Safon 1 yn yr achos hwn.  Sail y 
penderfyniad oedd bod y Cyngor wedi 
darparu ymateb Cymraeg i ohebiaeth 
ddyddiedig 22/12/2017 yn unol â gofynion 
Safon 1 

 

• Safon 52 – 
Methodd CBSC â chydymffurfio â Safon 52 
ar y sail bod testun uniaith Saesneg yn 
ymddangos ar un o dudalennau Cymraeg y 
Cyngor ar y we yn Rhagfyr 2017 

Ar 30/10/18 cawsom adroddiad arfaethedig oddi wrth 
Gomisiynydd y Gymraeg yn amlinellu penderfyniad yr 
ymchwiliad hwn a'r camau pellach y mae'n ofynnol i'r 
Cyngor ymgymryd â hwy. 
 

Mae'r camau gweithredu pellach fel a ganlyn; 
 

1. Cynnal adolygiad o'r wefan er mwyn sicrhau bod testun 
pob tudalen o'r wefan ar gael yn Gymraeg. 
  

2. Cymryd camau i sicrhau bod staff sy'n gyfrifol am 
gynnwys y wefan yn ymwybodol o ofynion Safon 52.  

 

3. Paratoi a darparu canllawiau i'r staff sy'n gyfrifol am 
lwytho a monitro cynnwys y wefan er mwyn sicrhau eu 
bod yn cydymffurfio â Safon 52.  

 

4. Darparu digon o dystiolaeth ysgrifenedig i fodloni 
Comisiynydd y Gymraeg ein bod wedi cwblhau camau 
gorfodi 1 – 3.  

 

Dyddiad Cau – 11.07.19 
 

P
age 332



 

12 
 

Ymchwiliadau Newydd 2018-2019 
 
CSG351 
 

MANYLION YR 
YMCHWILIAD 

CANLYNIAD DIWEDDARIAD 

Derbyniodd Comisiynydd y 
Gymraeg gŵyn gan aelod o'r 
cyhoedd yn honni; 

 

• bod gohebiaeth ddyddiedig 
25/04/2018 yn ymwneud â 
methiant i ymateb i e-bost 
Cymraeg a anfonwyd at yr 
Arweinydd y Cyngor ar 
16/10/17 ac fe'i hanfonwyd 
eto ar 15/12/2017, 
12/03/18 ac ar 25/04/18.  

Penderfynodd yr ymchwiliad... 
 

• Safon 1 – 
Methodd CBSC â chydymffurfio â Safon 1 
yn yr achos hwn ar y sail nad oedd y 
Cyngor yn deall bod angen ymateb i 
ohebiaeth gyntaf yr achwynydd yn y 
Gymraeg a anfonwyd at Arweinydd y 
Cyngor.  

 

Cawsom yr adroddiad terfynol ar yr ymchwiliad hwn ar 
22/03/19 ac mae'r camau pellach fel a ganlyn: 
 

 
1. Rhaid i'r Cyngor wneud trefniadau i sicrhau bod 

gohebiaeth Gymraeg a dderbynnir gan Swyddfa Arweinydd 
y Cyngor yn cael ei darllen gan siaradwyr Cymraeg neu'n 
cael ei chyfieithu. 

 
2. Rhaid cynnal adolygiad o'r ohebiaeth Gymraeg a 

dderbyniwyd.  
 
3. Rhaid i Gyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Caerffili ddarparu digon o 

dystiolaeth ysgrifenedig i fodloni Comisiynydd y Gymraeg 
bod cam gorfodi 2 wedi'i gwblhau.  

 
Camau wedi'u cyflawni a thystiolaeth wedi'i 
chyflwyno 28/05/19 

  

P
age 333



 

13 
 

CSG360 
 

MANYLION YR 
YMCHWILIAD 

CANLYNIAD DIWEDDARIAD 

Derbyniodd Comisiynydd y 
Gymraeg gŵyn gan aelod o'r 
cyhoedd yn honni; 

 

• bod staff llyfrgell Rhymni 
yn dysgu Cymraeg ond 
nad ydynt yn defnyddio eu 
sgiliau, ac yn arbennig 
pan roeddent yn ymweld 
â'r Llyfrgell. 

Ymatebodd y Gwasanaeth Llyfrgelloedd i 
Gomisiynydd y Gymraeg ar 11/05/18 gan 
gydnabod mai'r Cyngor sy'n gyfrifol am 
ddarparu gwasanaeth llyfrgell yn Rhymni.   
 
Tynnwyd sylw'r Comisiynydd at y ffaith mai'r 
Dyddiad Cydymffurfio ar gyfer darparu 
gwasanaeth derbynfa yn Llyfrgell Rhymni 
oedd 30/09/18.  16/04/18 oedd dyddiad y 
gŵyn wreiddiol; felly nid oedd Safon 64 
wedi'i thorri.  Esboniwyd hefyd y prosesau 
sydd gennym ar gyfer ymdrin ag aelod o'r 
cyhoedd drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg. 
 

Cadarnhaodd gohebiaeth a dderbyniwyd oddi wrth 
Gomisiynydd y Gymraeg ar 19/12/19, gan nad oedd  
Safon 64 yn dod i rym tan 30/09/18 nid oedd gan CBSC 
ddyletswydd i gydymffurfio â'r Safon ar yr adeg y 
cyflwynwyd y gŵyn ac felly nid oedd yn bosibl parhau 
gyda'r ymchwiliad. 
 
Ymchwiliad wedi cau. 

 
 
  

P
age 334



 

14 
 

CSG369 
 

MANYLION YR 
YMCHWILIAD 

CANLYNIAD DIWEDDARIAD 

Derbyniodd Comisiynydd y 
Gymraeg gŵyn gan aelod o'r 
cyhoedd yn honni; 

 

• bod yr achwynydd wedi cael 
e-bost uniaith Saesneg gan y 
Cyngor yn gofyn am ganiatâd 
i barhau i anfon e-byst i'w 
gyfrif yn dilyn y newidiadau 
diweddar i'r gyfraith ar 
ddiogelu data. 

Ymatebodd y Cyngor i Hysbysiad Tystiolaeth y 
Comisiynydd gan egluro mai dim ond os oeddent 
wedi tanysgrifio i dderbyn y gwasanaeth yn yr 
iaith honno y gallai'r achwynydd fod wedi derbyn 
y neges i'w chyflwyno gan GovDelivery yn uniaith 
Saesneg. 
 
 

Gofynnodd Comisiynydd y Gymraeg am ragor o 
wybodaeth gan yr achwynydd nifer o weithiau ond ni 
chafwyd ymateb. 
 
Cadarnhaodd gohebiaeth a gafwyd oddi wrth 
Gomisiynydd y Gymraeg ar 14/11/18 fod y 
penderfyniad wedi'i wneud i gau'r ymchwiliad. 
 
Ymchwiliad wedi cau. 

 
 
 
  

P
age 335



 

15 
 

CSG441 
 

MANYLION YR 
YMCHWILIAD 

CANLYNIAD DIWEDDARIAD 

Derbyniodd Comisiynydd y 
Gymraeg gŵyn gan aelod o'r 
cyhoedd yn honni; 

 

• mewn cwyn, dyddiedig 
25/10/2018, bod yr 
achwynydd wedi methu â 
derbyn gwasanaeth Cymraeg 
yn Llyfrgell Bargod ar 
25/10/18 
 

Anfonwyd ymateb i Gomisiynydd y Gymraeg ar 
07/11/18 yn cydnabod mai'r Cyngor sy'n gyfrifol 
am ddarparu'r gwasanaeth yn Llyfrgell Bargod. 
 

Roedd hyn hefyd yn cael ei drafod drwy broses 
gwynion y Cyngor. 
 
 

Mae gohebiaeth a dderbyniwyd oddi wrth 
Gomisiynydd y Gymraeg ar 31/01/19 yn cadarnhau, 
yn dilyn sawl cais am wybodaeth bellach o’r 
achwynydd, nad oedd dim wedi dod i law, felly mae'r 
ymchwiliad wedi cau. 
 
Ymchwiliad wedi Cau. 

 
  

P
age 336



 

16 
 

CSG487 
 

MANYLION YR 
YMCHWILIAD 

CANLYNIAD DIWEDDARIAD 

Derbyniodd Comisiynydd y 
Gymraeg gŵyn gan aelod o'r 
cyhoedd yn honni; 

 

• mewn cwyn, dyddiedig 
16/01/19, bod yr achwynydd 
wedi cysylltu â'r Cyngor ar 
15:00 ar 08/01/19 ynghylch 
ymholiad treth y cyngor ar 
01443 815 588 ac nad oedd 
yn gallu trafod ei ymholiad 
yn Gymraeg. 
 

Anfonwyd ymateb at Gomisiynydd y Gymraeg ar 
21/01/19 yn cadarnhau mai CBSC sy’n gyfrifol am 
ddarparu'r gwasanaeth. 
 
Derbyniwyd y Cylch Gorchwyl a'r Hysbysiad 
Tystiolaeth. 

Danfonwyd ymateb i'r Hysbysiad Tystiolaeth ar y 
14/05/19. 
 
Yn aros am ohebiaeth bellach gan y Comisiynydd. 
 
Ar Fynd. 

 
 

P
age 337



 

17 
 

3. Sgiliau Iaith Staff 
 
Mae’r gallu i gofnodi materion yn ymwneud â’r Gymraeg yn nhermau data a 
dadansoddi staff yn rhan annatod o’r system gyflogres o fewn Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol 
Caerffili.  Dangosir ffigyrau diwedd y flwyddyn ariannol hyd at 31ain Mawrth 2018 isod 
ac ar y dudalen nesaf. 
 
O gymharu â'r llynedd, mae nifer y siaradwyr Cymraeg sydd wedi'u cofnodi wedi 
cynyddu'n sylweddol.  Gellir esbonio'r cynnydd yn rhannol gan arolwg staff a 
gynhaliwyd gan Wasanaethau Pobl yn ystod haf 2017, a ofynnodd i'r staff nodi eu 
sgiliau iaith Gymraeg ar sail lefelau 1-5 ALTE (Cymdeithas Profwyr Iaith Ewrop).  Mae'r 
broses gyfredol o gasglu data am sgiliau staff hefyd yn seiliedig ar lefelau sgiliau a 
amlinellwyd yn yr arolwg staff.   
 
Erbyn hyn, mae'r cofnod data wedi'i gwblhau, a chaiff y cynnydd ei adlewyrchu yn y 
ffigyrau isod.  Fodd bynnag, oherwydd ailstrwythuro mewnol mewn meysydd 
gwasanaeth yn ystod y 12 mis diwethaf, nid yw'n bosibl dangos cymhariaeth â'r 
llynedd fel yn y blynyddoedd blaenorol. 
 
Ar amser adrodd y llynedd, roedd cyfanswm nifer y staff a siaradwyr Cymraeg o fewn 
y sefydliad fel a ganlyn; 
 

CYFANSYMIAU’R 
CYNGOR 

2017-2018 2016-2017 
Cyfanswm 

y Staff 
Siaradwyr 
Cymraeg 

% Cyfanswm 
y Staff 

Siaradwyr 
Cymraeg 

% 

8,682 402 4.63 8,767 436 4.97 
 
 

PROFFIL IEITHYDDOL Y GWEITHLU - GALLU YN Y GYMRAEG YN 
ÔL MAES GWASANAETH A RHUGLDER AR 31ain MAWRTH 2019 

 
i) FFIGYRAU STAFF CYFFREDINOL 
 

Cymunedau Cyfanswm y 
Staff 

Siaradwyr 
Cymraeg 

% 

Gwasanaethau Cymunedol a 
Hamdden 811 101 12.45 

Seilwaith 234 24 10.25 

Gwasanaethau Eiddo 59 17 28.81 

Diogelu’r Cyhoedd 109 16 14.67 

Adfywio a Chynllunio 346 39 11.27 

Cyfanswm 1551 194  12.51 
    

  

Page 338



 

18 
 

Addysg a Gwasanaethau 
Corfforaethol 

Cyfanswm y 
Staff 

Siaradwyr 
Cymraeg 

% 

Gwasanaethau Gwella Busnes 966 127 13.15 

Cyllid Corfforaethol 169 23 13.61 

Gwasanaethau Cwsmeriaid a Digidol 145 19 13.10 

Cynllunio a Strategaeth Addysg 171 35 20.47 

Dysgu, Addysg a Chynhwysiant 489 88 17.99 

Y Gyfraith a Llywodraethu 57 8 14.03 

Gwasanaethau Pobl  101 25 24.75 

Ysgolion 3425 899 26.25 

Cyfanswm 5204  1161 22.31  
    

Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a 
Thai 

Cyfanswm y 
Staff 

Siaradwyr 
Cymraeg 

% 

Gwasanaethau Oedolion 1139 127 11.15 

Cymorth Busnes 6 2 33.33 

Cartrefi Caerffili  517 63 12.18 

Gwasanaethau i Blant  275 54 19.64 

Cyfanswm 1939 246 12.69 
    

Cyfansymiau’r Cyngor 8533 1581 18.53 
 
NODIADAU 
  

• Nid yw’r ffigyrau fesul maes gwasanaeth ar gyfer Cyfanswm y Staff a 
Siaradwyr Cymraeg yn gyfartal â'r cyfanswm cyffredinol fesul Cyfadran 
oherwydd bod gan rai aelodau o staff fwy nag un swydd yn y sefydliad a bod y 
swyddi hynny o fewn meysydd gwasanaeth gwahanol. 
 

• Yn unol ag adroddiadau blaenorol, mae’r ffigurau yn 3 i) uchod yn gyfanswm 
nifer y bobl fesul cyfadran sydd wedi cwblhau’r ffurflen Sgiliau Ieithyddol gan 
nodi sgiliau Iaith Gymraeg. 

 

• Mae’r ffigyrau a ddangosir yn 3 ii) i 3 iv) sy’n dilyn, yn cyfeirio at lefelau 
rhuglder siaradwyr Cymraeg fesul maes gwasanaeth ac ni ellir eu cymharu’n 
uniongyrchol â’r cyfansymiau a ddangosir yn 3i) oherwydd er enghraifft yn yr 
isadran Cyllid Corfforaethol (yr ail adran isod yn 3 ii)), mae'r golofn "Lefel 4" yn 
cyfeirio at aelod staff sy’n gallu darllen, siarad, deall ac ysgrifennu at Lefel 4, ac 
nid tri aelod staff gwahanol. 

 
  

Page 339



 

19 
 

i) CYMUNEDAU 
 

Gwasanaethau Cymunedol a 
Hamdden 5 4 3 2 1 Dim 

Sgiliau 
Heb 

Ddatgan 
Gwrando/Siarad 14 9 6 11 57 4 0 
Dealltwriaeth 16 9 8 9 45 13 1 
Ysgrifennu 14 4 10 13 30 29 1 
Cyfanswm Staff â Sgiliau Cymraeg 101       
 
 

Seilwaith 5 4 3 2 1 Dim 
Sgiliau 

Heb 
Ddatgan 

Gwrando/Siarad - - - 2 18 3 1 
Dealltwriaeth - - - 1 19 3 1 
Ysgrifennu - - - 1 15 6 2 
Cyfanswm Staff â Sgiliau Cymraeg 24       
 
 

Gwasanaethau Eiddo 5 4 3 2 1 Dim 
Sgiliau 

Heb 
Ddatgan 

Gwrando/Siarad - 1 1 1 13 1 - 
Dealltwriaeth - 1 1 2 12 1 - 
Ysgrifennu - - 1 1 7 8 - 
Cyfanswm Staff â Sgiliau Cymraeg 17       
 
 

Diogelu’r Cyhoedd 5 4 3 2 1 Dim 
Sgiliau 

Heb 
Ddatgan 

Gwrando/Siarad 3 1 3 2 6 1 - 
Dealltwriaeth 5 2 1 3 3 2 - 
Ysgrifennu 3 - 3 2 4 4 - 
Cyfanswm Staff â Sgiliau Cymraeg 16       
 
 

Adfywio a Chynllunio 5 4 3 2 1 Dim 
Sgiliau 

Heb 
Ddatgan 

Gwrando/Siarad 5 - 1 7 23 3 - 
Dealltwriaeth 5 2 4 3 23 2 - 
Ysgrifennu 5 - 2 6 15 11 - 
Cyfanswm Staff â Sgiliau Cymraeg 39       
 
 

Page 340



 

20 
 

ii) ADDYSG A GWASANAETHAU CORFFORAETHOL 
 

Gwasanaethau Gwella Busnes 5 4 3 2 1 Dim 
Sgiliau 

Heb 
Ddatgan 

Gwrando/Siarad 14 4 2 14 83 8 2 
Dealltwriaeth 14 8 5 15 61 21 3 
Ysgrifennu 15 4 2 10 28 63 5 
Cyfanswm Staff â Sgiliau Cymraeg 127       
 
 

Cyllid Corfforaethol 5 4 3 2 1 Dim 
Sgiliau 

Heb 
Ddatgan 

Gwrando/Siarad - 1 - 4 14 4 - 
Dealltwriaeth - 1 1 1 16 4 - 
Ysgrifennu - 1 - 2 10 10 - 
Cyfanswm Staff â Sgiliau Cymraeg 23       
 
 

Gwasanaethau Cwsmeriaid a 
Digidol 5 4 3 2 1 Dim 

Sgiliau 
Heb 

Ddatgan 
Gwrando/Siarad - 1 2 1 14 1 - 
Dealltwriaeth - 2 1 - 14 1 1 
Ysgrifennu - 1 1 1 7 8 1 
Cyfanswm Staff â Sgiliau Cymraeg 19       
 
 

Cynllunio a Strategaeth Addysg 5 4 3 2 1 Dim 
Sgiliau 

Heb 
Ddatgan 

Gwrando/Siarad - - 1 4 27 3 - 
Dealltwriaeth - 1 2 3 25 4 - 
Ysgrifennu - - 3 - 18 13 1 
Cyfanswm Staff â Sgiliau Cymraeg 35       
 
 

Dysgu, Addysg a Chynhwysiant 5 4 3 2 1 Dim 
Sgiliau 

Heb 
Ddatgan 

Gwrando/Siarad 5 6 - 10 64 3 - 
Dealltwriaeth 6 6 4 9 50 13 - 
Ysgrifennu 6 - 7 5 40 28 2 
Cyfanswm staff â Sgiliau Cymraeg  88       
 
 

Y Gyfraith a Llywodraethu 5 4 3 2 1 Dim 
Sgiliau 

Heb 
Ddatgan 

Gwrando/Siarad - - - 1 6 - 1 
Dealltwriaeth - - 1 - 7 - - 
Ysgrifennu - - - 1 6 1 - 
Cyfanswm staff â Sgiliau Cymraeg 8       
 
 

Page 341



 

21 
 

Gwasanaethau Pobl 5 4 3 2 1 Dim 
Sgiliau 

Heb 
Ddatgan 

Gwrando/Siarad 1 1 2 6 14 1 - 
Dealltwriaeth 1 3 1 4 14 2 - 
Ysgrifennu - 2 - 6 8 9 - 
Cyfanswm Staff â Sgiliau Cymraeg 25       
 
 

Ysgolion 5 4 3 2 1 Dim 
Sgiliau 

Heb 
Ddatgan 

Gwrando/Siarad 162 39 33 168 477 15 5 
Dealltwriaeth 164 56 64 126 414 54 21 
Ysgrifennu 167 30 31 146 288 209 28 
Cyfanswm Staff â Sgiliau Cymraeg 899       
 
 
iii) GWASANAETHAU CYMDEITHASOL A THAI 
 

Gwasanaethau Oedolion 5 4 3 2 1 Dim 
Sgiliau 

Heb 
Ddatgan 

Gwrando/Siarad 13 9 7 6 79 13 - 
Dealltwriaeth 15 11 5 5 71 16 4 
Ysgrifennu 14 7 3 11 39 49 4 
Cyfanswm Staff â Sgiliau Cymraeg  127       
 
 

Cymorth Busnes 5 4 3 2 1 Dim 
Sgiliau 

Heb 
Ddatgan 

Gwrando/Siarad - - - - 1 1 - 
Dealltwriaeth - - - - 1 1 - 
Ysgrifennu - - - - 1 1 - 
Cyfanswm Staff â Sgiliau Cymraeg  2       
 
 

Cartrefi Caerffili 5 4 3 2 1 Dim 
Sgiliau 

Heb 
Ddatgan 

Gwrando/Siarad 2 3 6 6 42 4 - 
Dealltwriaeth 1 7 2 2 34 15 2 
Ysgrifennu 5 3 4 4 19 28 - 
Cyfanswm Staff â Sgiliau Cymraeg  63       
 
 

Gwasanaethau Plant 5 4 3 2 1 Dim 
Sgiliau 

Heb 
Ddatgan 

Gwrando/Siarad 3 - 2 1 46 1 1 
Dealltwriaeth 2 1 2 3 38 7 1 
Ysgrifennu 2 1 1 3 27 19 1 
Cyfanswm Staff â Sgiliau Cymraeg  54       

  
Page 342



 

22 
 

4. Darpariaeth Hyfforddiant Cyfrwng Cymraeg 
 
Mae CBS Caerffili wedi darparu cyrsiau Cymraeg sgyrsiol i staff ac aelodau etholedig 
ers 2001.  Mae'r cyrsiau hefyd ar gael i'r cyhoedd ac aelodau o'r staff o sefydliadau 
partner i’w mynychu.  Mae'r cyrsiau yn amrywio o gyrsiau blasu sylfaenol i 
ddechreuwyr i gyrsiau sy'n darparu ar gyfer y rhai sydd wedi dod yn siaradwyr 
Cymraeg rhugl. 
 
Mae'r data ar gyfer y cyrsiau a gynigir ac a fynychir gan staff CBS Caerffili ar gyfer y 
flwyddyn academaidd 2018-2019 fel a ganlyn; 
 

CWRS 
A GYNIGIWYD 

NIFER Y CYRSIAU 
A GYNIGIWYD 

NIFER Y STAFF A 
FYNYCHWYD 

30 Wythnos  37 53 

Cwrs 10 awr Ar-lein 1 75 

Cwrs Deuddydd Blasu’r Gymraeg 3 14 
‘Say Something in Welsh’ - Cwrs 
Cymraeg Ar-lein 1 2 
   

Tynnu’n Ôl Dd.y.B. 6 
 
 
Ffigyrau Staff Caerffili – 2001-2018 
 

Blwyddyn 
Academaidd 

Cyrsiau 
Blwyddyn 

Cyrsiau 
Blasu 

Cyfanswm 
nifer y 

Dysgwyr 

(Niferoedd 
tynnodd allan 

o’r cw rs) 
2001 – 2002 46 0 46 ( 0 ) 
2002 – 2003 66 0 66 (11) 
2003 – 2004 84 37 121 (17) 
2004 – 2005 70 43 113 (15) 
2005 – 2006 61 77 138 (10) 
2006 – 2007 66 27 93 (12) 
2007 – 2008 68 38 106 (7) 
2008 – 2009 43 58 101 (9) 
2009 – 2010 48 50 98 (13) 
2010 – 2011 50 33 83 (1) 
2011 – 2012 52 21 73 (2) 
2012 – 2013 52 22 74 (3) 
2013 – 2014 61 142 203 (16) 
2014 – 2015 56 58 114 (13) 
2015 – 2016 40 28 68 (14) 
2016 – 2017 45 14 59 (3) 
2017 – 2018 50 61 111 (4) 
2018 – 2019 53 91 144 (6) 

CYFANSYMIAU 1011 800 1811 (152) 
 

Page 343



 

23 
 

Mae’r Cyrsiau Blasu Cymraeg deuddydd yn cael eu rhedeg mewn cydweithrediad â nifer 
o awdurdodau a sefydliadau eraill yn Ne Ddwyrain Cymru.  Mae'r cyrsiau hyn bob amser 
yn boblogaidd, gyda CBS Caerffili yn cynnal cwrs ym mis Gorffennaf 2018, gyda phedwar 
aelod o staff o awdurdodau cyfagos yn bresennol. 
 
Lansiwyd Cwrs Cymraeg 10 awr ar-lein o'r enw Cymraeg Gwaith yng ngwanwyn 2018 ac 
fe'i datblygwyd i'w ddefnyddio gan y rhai sy'n darparu gwasanaethau derbynfa rheng flaen.  
Targedwyd y cwrs hwn at y meysydd gwasanaeth hynny y mae Safon 64 yn effeithio'n 
uniongyrchol arnynt yn y lle cyntaf.   
 

Sa
fo

n 
64

 

Rhaid i unrhyw wasanaeth derbynfa yr ydych yn ei roi ar gael yn Saesneg hefyd 
fod ar gael yn Gymraeg, a rhaid i unrhyw berson sydd am gael gwasanaeth 
derbynfa Cymraeg beidio â chael ei drin yn llai ffafriol na pherson sydd am gael 
gwasanaeth derbynfa Saesneg. 
 

Rhaid cydymffurfio â safon 64 mewn perthynas â’r isod erbyn 30 Medi 2017: 
 

• Prif wasanaeth derbynfa’r corff 
 
Rhaid cydymffurfio â safon 64 mewn perthynas â’r isod erbyn 30 Medi 2018: 
 

• Llyfrgelloedd Bargod, Rhisga, Rhymni, Coed Duon, Caerffili ac Ystrad 
Mynach;  

• Canolfan Croeso Caerffili;  
• Maenordy Llancaiach Fawr;  
• Gwasanaethau Cofrestru yn Nhŷ Penallta  
• Canolfannau hamdden Caerffili, Heolddu, Trecelyn a Rhisga.   

30/09/17 

 
Gellir cynnal y cwrs fesul cam ac mae'n mynd â'r dysgwr drwy gyfres o senarios gyda 
chyfres o gwestiynau i ddilyn.  Ar ôl cwblhau'r cwrs, caiff dysgwyr eu he-bostio i dderbyn 
tystysgrif.  Mae cwrs dilynol ar gael yn awr hefyd a bydd hyn yn cael ei gyflwyno yn Haf 
2019 i'r rhai sydd wedi cwblhau’r 10 awr gyntaf. 
 
Mae rhagor o gyrsiau ar-lein o'r math hwn bellach ar gael ar gyfer meysydd 
gwasanaeth penodol gan gynnwys gofal cymdeithasol a busnes a fydd hefyd yn cael 
eu cyflwyno i feysydd gwasanaeth perthnasol yn Haf 2019. 
 
Ni ofynnwyd am ddarparu cyrsiau drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg, felly nid oes ffigurau hyfforddi 
staff i'w cofnodi.  Mae'r wybodaeth uchod yn cael ei gyhoeddi yma i ddarparu parhad ag 
adroddiadau blaenorol. 
  

Page 344



 

24 
 

5. Recriwtio i Swyddi Gwag 
 
Cafodd 632 o swyddi newydd a swyddi gwag eu hysbysebu ers 30ain Mawrth 2018 eu 
categoreiddio fel swyddi sy’n gofyn: 
 

(i) bod sgiliau yn y Gymraeg yn hanfodol 
 

6 
 

(ii) bod angen dysgu sgiliau yn y Gymraeg pan benodir i’r swydd 
 

1 
 
Mae cyrsiau hyfforddiant iaith Gymraeg wedi bod ar gael am ddim i bob 
aelod o staff ers blwyddyn academaidd 2001-2002 (gweler Adran 3) 

 
(iii) bod sgiliau yn y Gymraeg yn ddymunol, 
 

626 
 

(iv) nad oedd sgiliau yn y Gymraeg yn angenrheidiol 
 

1* 
 

*Aseswyd y swydd hon fel un lle nad oedd sgiliau Cymraeg yn angenrheidiol 
oherwydd sgiliau Cymraeg aelodau eraill y tîm.  Fodd bynnag, mae pob swydd wag 
yn cael ei hysbysebu fel Cymraeg dymunol fel gofyniad sylfaenol. 
 
 

Mae'r Asesiadau Sgiliau Iaith Gymraeg mewn perthynas â swyddi gwag/swyddi 
newydd yn cael eu cynnal fel sy'n ofynnol gan Safon 136, ac maent wedi eu cofnodi 
gan adnoddau dynol ers Hydref 2016.  Wedyn, bydd yr asesiad a thystiolaeth ategol 
yn llunio rhan o’r achos busnes sydd ei angen i gael caniatâd i lenwi swydd wag neu 
greu swyddi newydd. 
 
Rhaid i bob swydd wag neu newydd gael Asesiad Sgiliau Iaith Gymraeg a hysbysebir 
pob swydd fel Cymraeg dymunol fel gofyniad safonol, a bydd yr asesiad yn ystyried 
a oes angen newid hynny i Cymraeg hanfodol. 
 
Mae sawl sefyllfa, lle caiff nifer o swyddi eu recriwtio gan asiantaeth, oherwydd 
dyrchafiad dros dro, neilltuo neu fynegi diddordeb lle nad oes hysbyseb ffurfiol, lle 
efallai na fydd Asesiad Sgiliau Iaith Gymraeg bob amser ar gael ar gyfer y swyddi 
hyn.  Os nad yw Gwasanaethau Pobl yn delio â swyddi, e.e. swyddi prentisiaid diweddar 
a gymeradwywyd gan adroddiad pwyllgor ac nid oedd Asesiad Sgiliau Iaith Gymraeg ar 
gyfer y rolau hyn gan na chawsant eu cymeradwyo drwy broses cymeradwyo arferol y 
Tîm Rheoli Corfforaethol.   
 
Yn yr un modd nid yw swyddi Prif Swyddogion bob amser yn mynd drwy Wasanaethau 
Pobl ac felly ni fyddai unrhyw Asesiad Sgiliau Iaith Gymraeg ar gyfer y swyddi hyn 
ychwaith.

Page 345



 

25 
 

Maes Strategol 1 – Y Teulu Gweledigaeth  – Cynyddu nifer y teuluoedd lle siaredir y Gymraeg gyda phlant 
Blaenoriaethau Strategol 
• Ymestyn cyfleoedd anffurfiol rheolaidd i rieni ddatblygu eu sgiliau Cymraeg er mwyn cynorthwyo eu plant 
• Creu neges gyson ar draws y sector, er mwyn hyrwyddo manteision trosglwyddo'r iaith Gymraeg o fewn y teulu ac yn galluogi plant i gaffael ar yr iaith 

Gymraeg. 
• Codi ymwybyddiaeth o bwysigrwydd ac argaeledd darpariaeth gweithgareddau cyfrwng Cymraeg i deuluoedd.  

 
Rhif. Cam Gweithredu Sylwadau Cynnydd  
1.1 Hyrwyddo mudiadau sy’n hybu’r 

Gymraeg megis Menter Iaith Caerffili, 
Yr Urdd, Mudiad Meithrin, Canolfan 
Cymraeg i Oedolion Gwent ac yn 
benodol eu gweithgareddau a’u 
gwasanaethau i deuluoedd (trwy 
rhyngweithiau cymdeithasol, 
Newsline, Gwasanaeth Gwybodaeth i 
Deuluoedd) 

Mae Uned Gyfathrebu CBSC yn parhau i ddefnyddio ei hamrywiaeth eang o sianeli i hyrwyddo 
digwyddiadau a sefydliadau Cymraeg. Mae'r sianeli hyn yn cynnwys Newsline, cyfryngau 
cymdeithasol, gwefan CBSC a'n llwyfan e-byst marchnata.  Mae enghreifftiau diweddar yn 
cynnwys Ras yr Iaith a drefnwyd gan Mentrau Iaith Cymru. 
 
Mae Cymraeg i blant yn parhau i rannu gwybodaeth am ein grwpiau cefnogi lleol a’r 
manteision o fagu plant yn ddwyieithog gyda’r timoedd Bydwreigiaeth a’r Ymwelwyr Iechyd 
ar draws bwrdd iechyd Aneurin Bevan.  Trefnir cyflwyniadau yn rheoliadd i ddiweddaru’r 
timoedd ar ein darpariaeth. 
 

Mae Cymraeg i blant yn parhau i gynnal grwpiau cefnogi i rieni newydd yng Nghaerffili, 
Trethomas, Risga, Ystrad Mynach.  Cynhelir digwyddiadau Miri Meithrin mewn partneriaeth 
gyda Menter Caerffili. 
 

Mae Cymraeg i blant yn cyfeirio rhieni ymlaen i gwrs dysgu Cymraeg am ddim y Clwb Cwtsh, 
y grwpiau Ti a Fi a’r Cylchoedd Meithrin lleol. 
 

Mae’r Gwasanaeth Gwybodaeth i Deuluoedd yn parhau i hyrwyddo ein grwpiau ac ein 
digwyddiadau ar saneli cyfryngau cymdeithasol y Sir. 
 
Dosbarthu a rhannu gwybodaeth am y Fenter ar unrhyw gyfle gyda darpar ddysgwyr a 
dysgwyr cyfredol trwy ddigwyddiadau, sesiynau dysgu anffurfiol a Sadyrnau siarad. 
 
Cynnwys manylion digwyddiadau yn ebost misol at dysgwyr Dysgu Cymraeg Gwent.  
 

Staff yn ymwybodol o wasanaethau/sefydliadau ac yn eu hyrwyddo pan yn berthnasol. 
 

 

Tîm Cyfathrebu 
 
 
 
 
Cymraeg i Blant 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Teuluoedd yn 
Gyntaf 
 
Canolfan Dysgu 
Cymraeg Gwent 
 
 

 

Atodiad 1 – Adroddiad Cynnydd Blynyddol ar Strategaeth y Gymraeg 2017-2022 

P
age 346



 

26 
 

Mae Gwasanaeth Gwybodaeth i Deuluoedd Caerffili (GGiD) yn gweithio mewn partneriaeth  
â’r Fenter Iaith, Mudiad Meithrin ac unigolion i hyrwyddo addysg Gymraeg, gofal plant,  
gweithgareddau, grwpiau (gan gynnwys Ti a Fi) a digwyddiadau drwy'r flwyddyn o gwmpas y 
fwrdeistref. Mae gwybodaeth fyw, cyfredol ar gael drwy wefan GGiD, tudalennau cyfryngau 
cymdeithasol, llinell gymorth, post ac e-bost. 
 
Mae Menter Iaith Sir Caerffili yn hyrwyddo gwasanaethau ei hunain yn ogystal â 
gweithgareddau a gwasanaethau partneriaid a chyrff eraill. Gwneir hyn trwy system ebostio’r 
Fenter, cyfryngau cymdeithasol, gwefan y Fenter ac wrth gydnabod gwaith partneriaeth ar 
draws ei gwasanaethau. Rydym hefyd yn cydweithio’n agos â Chyngor Caerffili er mwyn 
hyrwyddo ein gwaith ac yn annog partneriaid i gydweithio yn yr un modd. 
 
Mae Tîm Cydraddoldeb a’r Gymraeg Cyngor Caerffili yn hyrwyddo gwaith a gwasanaethau ei 
holl bartneriaid gan gynnwys gwaith y sefydliadau sy'n cael eu cynrychioli ar y Fforwm Iaith.  
Byddwn yn hyrwyddo hyn drwyd ddefnyddio sianeli cyfryngau cymdeithasol a system e-bost y 
Cyngor.  Byddwn bob amser yn annog partneriaid i weithio gyda ni yn yr un ffordd. 

GGiD  
 
 
 
 
 
Menter Iaith 
Caerffili 
 
 
 
 
Polisi 
Corfforaethol  
 
 

1.2 Ffurflenni gwerthuso digwyddiadau yn 
cynnwys cwestiynau ynghylch 
defnydd iaith 
 

Cwblheir ffurflenni adborth Cymraeg i blant ar ddiwedd bob cyfres o 6 sesiwn, sydd yn holi 
cwestiynau am iaith y cartref. 
 
Mae'r Gwasanaeth Addysg Oedolion yn gweithio gyda nifer o asiantaethau ar draws y 
fwrdeistref ac yn hyrwyddo'r Gymraeg lle bynnag y bo'n bosibl.  Rydym wedi cynnig nifer o 
gyrsiau iaith Gymraeg yn ystod y blynyddoedd diwethaf drwy weithio mewn partneriaeth â 
Choleg Gwent a Menter Iaith Caerffili 
 
Yn ystod ein holl gweithgareddau, rydym yn dosbarthu ac yn casglu ffurflenni a gwybodaeth 
gwerthuso digwyddiadau. Mae’r wybodaeth yn cynnwys wybodaeth am barn ac anghenion 
pobl lleol ac yn nodi dewis a defnydd iaith cyfranogwyr. 

Cymraeg i Blant 
 
 
Teuluoedd yn 
Gyntaf 
 
 
 
Menter Iaith 
Caerffili 

1.3 Datblygu adnodd gwybodaeth 
gynhwysfawr (llyfryn/adnodd ar-lein) 
sy’n dangos y gwasanaethau sydd ar 
gael trwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg i 
deuluoedd a’r daith trwy addysg 
cyfrwng Cymraeg yn ogystal â’r 
manteision i ddwyieithrwydd   

Mae Cymraeg i blant yn rhannu’r llyfryn ‘Bod yn Ddwyieithog’ ynghyd a thaflenni hyrwyddo 
eraill gyda’r Ymwelwyr Iechyd, rhieni newydd a phartneriaid. 
 
Mae pob taflen Teuluoedd yn Gyntaf yn cael ei chynhyrchu ar ffurf ddwyieithog ac yn 
bodloni'r Safonau Iaith Gymraeg. 
 
 

Cymraeg i Blant 
 
 
Teuluoedd yn 
Gyntaf 
 
 

P
age 347



 

27 
 

Mae GGiD Caerffili yn darparu amrywiaeth o lyfrynnau PDF dwyieithog a chopïau caled am 
fanteision Dwyieithrwydd/yr iaith Gymraeg ac addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg e.e. "Eich Canllaw i 
Addysg Cyfrwng Cymraeg", "8 rheswm dros gyflwyno'r Gymraeg o'r crud", "Help gyda Gwaith 
Cartref" a chyhoeddiadau cadarnhaol Llywodraeth Cymru am rianta ac ati. 
A hefyd fel 4.9 a 4.10 
 
Mae Fforwm Iaith Sir Caerffili wedi sicrhau cyllid er mwyn cynhyrchu’r adnodd ac erbyn hyn 
wedi cytuno ar gynnwys a gwedd y llyfryn.  Argraffwyd y llyfryn yn Rhagfyr 2018 a 
dechreuwyd ar y broses o’i ddosbarthu yn eang ar draws y Sir.  Fe fydd partneriaid ac 
aelodau’r Fforwm yn medru derbyn cyflenwad o’r llyfryn a’i dosbarthu yn ystod 
gweithgareddau, digwyddiadau a’u gwaith o gefnogi teuluoedd yn lleol.  Fe fydd y Fforwm yn 
trafod ymhellach y cyfle i drosglwyddo’r llyfryn i fod yn adnodd ar-lein yn y dyfodol. 
 
Gweithio gyda'r Fforwm Iaith i ddatblygu llyfryn defnyddiol ar fanteision magu plant 
dwyieithog.  Bydd y ddogfen ar-lein i'w lawrlwytho. 

GGiD 
 
 
 
 
 
Menter Iaith 
Caerffili 
 
 
 
 
 
Polisi 
Corfforaethol 

1.4 Newsline i ddatblygu erthygl 
(dwywaith y flwyddyn) yn hyrwyddo 
gweithgareddau a gwasanaethau 
cyfrwng Cymraeg sydd ar gael yn lleol. 

Mae enghreifftiau o'r ffordd y mae Newsline wedi cael eu defnyddio i hyrwyddo'r Gymraeg 
yn cynnwys: 
• Erthygl ar fuddsoddiad mewn darpariaeth ysgolion Cymraeg newydd ar draws y  

fwrdeistref sirol. 
• Hyrwyddo'r Ras yr Iaith a drefnwyd gan Fentrau Iaith Cymru. 
 
Mae aelodau Fforwm Iaith y Sir yn awyddus i gydweithio gyda’r swyddogion hynny sy’n 
cynhyrchu Newsline er mwyn cynyddu’r deunydd sy’n ymddangos yn y papur sy’n 
hyrwyddo’r cyfleoedd yn lleol i ddefnyddio’r Gymraeg.  Trwy’r Fforwm, mae aelodau wedi 
derbyn wybodaeth ynglyn â sut i ddarparu deunydd ar gyfer y papur ac yn awyddus i 
gydweithio ymhellach er mwyn sicrhau sylw digonol i’r Gymraeg o fewn y papur yn gyson. 
 
Hysbysir Aelodau'r Fforwm Iaith Gymraeg am yr amserlen argraffu ar gyfer Newsline fel bod 
ganddynt ddigon o amser i gyflwyno erthyglau i'w hystyried ar gyfer eu cynnwys yn y rhifyn 
nesaf. 

Tîm Cyfathrebu 
 
 
 
 
 
Menter Iaith 
Caerffili 
 
 
 
 
Polisi 
Corfforaethol 

  

P
age 348



 

28 
 

Maes Strategol 2 – Plant a 
Phobl Ifanc 

Gweledigaeth – Cynyddu'r defnydd o'r Gymraeg ymhlith plant a phobl ifanc, gwella’u 
hymwybyddiaeth o werth y Gymraeg, a sicrhau gwell mynediad i wasanaethau a digwyddiadau 
cymdeithasol drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg 

Blaenoriaethau Strategol 
• Cefnogi addysgwyr er mwyn iddynt allu hyrwyddo gweithgareddau allgyrsiol sydd ar gael drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg 
• Gweithio gyda phobl ifanc i godi eu hymwybyddiaeth o'r Gymraeg fel sgìl gwerthfawr ar gyfer hyfforddiant a chyflogaeth 
• Codi ymwybyddiaeth ymhlith gweithwyr sydd â chyswllt â phlant a phobl ifanc o’r angen i feithrin agweddau cadarnhaol  
• Cynyddu nifer y plant sy'n mynychu addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg  
• Datblygu sgiliau arwain dwyieithog ymysg pobl ifanc er mwyn eu helpu i ddatblygu i fod yn bencampwyr 

 
2.1 Cynnal archwiliad o’r 

cyfleoedd a’r gwasanaethau 
cyfrwng Cymraeg presennol 
ar gyfer plant a phobl ifanc er 
mwyn adnabod bylchau ac 
ardaloedd lle ceir galw uchel.   

Mae'r GGiD yn darparu data blynyddol ar nifer y darparwyr a lleoedd gofal plant cyfrwng Cymraeg 
yn ôl ardal, i'w cynnwys yn asesiadau digonolrwydd gofal plant Llywodraeth Cymru. 
 
Comisiynodd Menter Iaith Sir Caerffili Proffil Iaith o sefyllfa’r Gymraeg yn y sir ym Mai 2016. Yn 
ogystal, mae WESP Caerffili yn nodi’r gwasanaethau cyfrwng Cymraeg sydd ar gael i blant a phobl y 
Sir. Hoffai Menter Iaith Sir Caerffili cydweithio â phartneriaid a Phwyllgor Craffu perthnasol o fewn 
Cyngor Caerffili er mwyn cwblhau archwiliad manwl o’r cyfleoedd a’r gwasanaethau cyfrwng 
Cymraeg presennol ar gyfer plant a phobl ifanc er mwyn adnabod bylchau a’r ardaloedd daearyddol 
hynny lle nad oes digon o wasanaethau cyfrwng Cymraeg. 

GGiD 
 
 
Menter Iaith 
Caerffili 
 
 
 
 

2.2 
(ac 1.1) 

Hyrwyddo mudiadau 
Cymraeg ac yn arbennig eu 
gwasanaethau ar gyfer plant 
a phobl ifanc. 

Gweler 1.1 uchod 
 
Staff yn ymwybodol o wasanaethau/sefydliadau ac yn eu hyrwyddo pan fo hynny'n berthnasol. 
 
 
Fel 1.1  
 
Fel y nodir yn 1.1, mae Menter Iaith Sir Caerffili yn hyrwyddo gwasanaethau ei hunain yn ogystal â 
gwasanaethau a gwaith mudiadau eraill. Gwneir hyn trwy ein system ebostio, cyfryngau 
cymdeithasol, ein gwefan ac yn ystod gweithgareddau’r Fenter. Yn ogystal, yn ystod unrhyw 
ddigwyddiadau cymunedol, rydym yn gwahodd partneriaid. 
 
Mae'r Urdd a'r Fenter Iaith yn parhau i ffurfio partneriaeth gyflenwi gyda Gwasanaeth Ieuenctid 
Caerffili. 

Tîm Cyfathrebu 
 
Teuluoedd yn 
Gyntaf 
 
GGiD 
 
Menter Iaith 
Caerffili 
 
 
 
Gwasanaeth 
Ieuenctid 

  

P
age 349



 

29 
 

2.3 Gweithio mewn partneriaeth 
ag ystod o sefydliadau i godi 
ymwybyddiaeth o werth 
sgiliau iaith Gymraeg fel cyfle 
gyrfa neu gyflogaeth 

Mae tîm gweithrediadau cyflogadwyedd Cronfa Gymdeithasol Ewrop Addysg Oedolion yn gweithio 
gyda nifer o asiantaethau ar draws y fwrdeistref ac yn hyrwyddo'r Iaith Gymraeg lle bynnag y bo 
modd.   Hysbysebwyd cwrs sgiliau derbyn Cymraeg ond ni chawsom unrhyw un yn gwneud cais am le.  
Gofynnir i bob un o'n cyfranogwyr os oes angen iddynt ddarparu cyrsiau yn Gymraeg ond hyd yn hyn 
nid oes neb wedi mynegi diddordeb. 
 
Mae Cymraeg i blant yn cynnal gweithdy ar fanteision dwyieithrwydd gyda myfyrwyr ar gyrsiau Gofal 
Plant Coleg y Cymoedd. 
 
Mae’r Fforwm Iaith yn trafod ar hyn o bryd, digwyddiad ar gyfer Ysgol Gyfun Cwm Rhymni, mewn 
partneriaeth â Gyrfa Cymru. Byddai’r digwyddiad yn gyfle i holl aelodau’r Fforwm i ddosbarthu 
gwybodaeth i fyfyrwyr yr ysgol am y math o wasanaethau maent yn darparu a’r cyfleoedd gyrfaol ar 
gyfer siaradwyr Cymraeg. Mae Menter Iaith Sir Caerffili hefyd yn cynnig cyfleoedd gwirfoddoli niferus 
i siaradwyr Cymraeg ifanc ac ar hyn o bryd yn cefnogi gwirfoddolwyr o fewn ein gwasanaethau gofal 
plant a’n gweithgareddau amrywiol i blant a phobl ifanc. 
 
Mynychwyd digwyddiad gyda stondin wybodaeth yn nigwyddiad Coleg y Cymoedd - 'Sgil Iaith Sgil 
Gwaith'.  Y nod o hyrwyddo gwasanaethau'r cyngor a'r galw mawr am i siaradwyr Cymraeg ddod i 
weithio er mwyn gallu darparu gwasanaethau drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg a chydymffurfio â safonau'r 
Gymraeg. 

Addysg 
Gymunedol 
 
 
 
 
Cymraeg i Blant 
 
 
Menter Iaith 
Caerffili 
 
 
 
 
 
Polisi 
Corfforaethol 
 
 

2.4 Datblygu hyfforddiant 
ymwybyddiaeth iaith ar gyfer 
staff sy’n gweithio gyda 
phlant a phobl ifanc yn 
ogystal â phecyn adnoddau 
er mwyn cefnogi 
darpariaethau i hyrwyddo’r 
Gymraeg a threftadaeth leol. 

Mae gan holl staff a gyllidir trwy’r Gronfa Gymdeithasol Ewrop y cyfle i fynychu cyrsiau i ddysgu’r 
iaith Gymraeg fel rhan o’i datblygiad Proffesiynol, mae rhai wedi dangos diddordeb yn barod ond 
neb eto wedi manteisio ar y cyfle. 
 
Derbyniodd staff Teuluoedd yn Gyntaf hyfforddiant yn 2017/18 ac maent yn parhau i dderbyn 
gwybodaeth am Fesur y Gymraeg fel rhan o'u cynefino. 
 
Mae Menter Iaith Sir Caerffili wedi datblygu pecynnau ymwybyddiaeth iaith amrywiol er mwyn 
cefnogi darpariaethau ar gyfer plant a phobl ifanc. Rydym yn awyddus i gydweithio gyda’r Urdd a 
Gwasanaeth Ieuenctid Caerffili er mwyn datblygu cefnogaeth pellach i brosiectau a gwasanaethau 
ieuenctid. Byddai hwn yn medru cynnig hyfforddiant fel rhan o raglen hyfforddiant y gwasanaeth 
ieuenctid yn ogystal â datblygu pecyn o adnoddau a fyddai’n cynorthwyo staff i hyrwyddo 
Cymreictod a threftadaeth leol. 
 

Addysg 
Gymunedol 
 
 
Teuluoedd yn 
Gyntaf 
 
Menter Iaith 
Caerffili 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 350



 

30 
 

Nid oedd hyn yn bosibl gyda'r swydd hyfforddiant yn wag.  Mae'r swydd bellach wedi'i llenwi a bydd 
yr deiliad y swydd yn sicrhau bod yr hyfforddiant hwn yn cael ei gynnwys yn yr amserlen 
hyfforddiant  ar gyfer y flwyddyn. 

Polisi 
Corfforaethol 

2.5 Ymgynghori a datblygu 
ymgyrch i ddenu pobl ifanc at 
waith ieuenctid, chwaraeon a 
gweithgareddau celfyddydol 
fel arweinwyr 

Mae Menter Iaith Sir Caerffili yn awyddus i weithio gyda’r Urdd, Adran Chwaraeon yr Urdd a 
Gwasanaeth Ieuenctid Cyngor Caerffili er mwyn hyrwyddo cyfleoedd gyrfaol trwy gyfrwng y 
Gymraeg. Mae gennym prinder gweithwyr ieuenctid sy’n medru siarad Cymraeg yn y Sir a’r galw am 
wasanaethau ieuenctid cyfrwng Cymraeg yn cynyddu. Rydym yn awyddus i drafod cynlluniau posib 
ar gyfer ymgyrch hyfforddiant a recriwtio yn ystod y flwyddyn nesaf. 

Menter Iaith 
Caerffili 
 
 
 

2.6 Cynllunio, cydlynu a hyrwyddo 
calendr o weithgareddau gofal 
a chwarae cyfrwng Cymraeg ar 
gyfer   
plant a phobl ifanc 11-18 oed 

Fel 1.1 
 
Er fod Menter Iaith Sir Caerffili yn hyrwyddo amrywiaeth o weithgareddau gofal a chwarae ar gyfer 
plant a phobl ifanc y Sir, fel partneriaid, nid ydym wedi cydweithio ar un calendr o weithgareddau. 
Mae aelodau’r Fforwm Iaith yn cydweithio’n agos ag ysgolion cyfrwng Cymraeg y Sir er mwyn 
hyrwyddo’r amrywiaeth o weithgareddau sydd ar gael i deuluoedd yn y sir ond rydym yn croesawu’r 
cyfle i drafod datblygu calendr sy’n crynhoi’r hyn sydd ar gael i deuluoedd. 

GGiD  
 
Menter Iaith 
Caerffili 

2.7 Cynllunio, cydlynu a 
hyrwyddo calendr o 
weithgareddau gofal, 
chwarae a hamdden cyfrwng 
Cymraeg ar gyfer plant 4-11 
oed. 

Fel 1.1 
 
Er fod Menter Iaith Sir Caerffili yn hyrwyddo amrywiaeth o weithgareddau gofal a chwarae ar gyfer 
plant a phobl ifanc y Sir, fel partneriaid, nid ydym wedi cydweithio ar un calendr o weithgareddau. 
Mae aelodau’r Fforwm Iaith yn cydweithio’n agos ag ysgolion cyfrwng Cymraeg y Sir er mwyn 
hyrwyddo’r amrywiaeth o weithgareddau sydd ar gael i deuluoedd yn y sir ond rydym yn croesawu’r 
cyfle i drafod datblygu calendr sy’n crynhoi’r hyn sydd ar gael i deuluoedd. 

GGiD  
 
Menter Iaith 
Caerffili 

  

P
age 351



 

31 
 

Maes Strategol 3 – Cymunedau Gweledigaeth: Cefnogi grwpiau cymunedol a’u helpu i gynyddu'r defnydd o'r Gymraeg o fewn eu 
hardaloedd 

Blaenoriaethau Strategol 
• Cefnogi gweithgareddau cymunedol cyfrwng Cymraeg presennol a rhannu arfer da.  
• Cefnogi grwpiau cymunedol i brif-ffrydio defnydd o'r iaith Gymraeg a chynnig y cyfle i ddysgwyr ymarfer yr iaith  
• Darparu cymorth penodol i fentrau cymunedol er mwyn eu galluogi i gyflawni eu cynlluniau i hyrwyddo'r iaith Gymraeg.  

 
3.1 Hyrwyddo argaeledd 

gwasanaethau dwyieithog trwy 
sicrhau bod siaradwyr a 
dysgwyr Cymraeg o fewn 
gwasanaethau yn gwisgo llinyn 
neu fathodynnau addas yn 
dangos eu sgil, fe fydd hwn yn 
annog y cyhoedd yn raddol i 
siarad Cymraeg wrth 
ddefnyddio gwasanaethau.   

Cyflogir Ymgynghorydd Cyfrwng Cymraeg GGiD sy’n cael ei dynodi gan lanyard. Mae’n gallu ateb 
ymholiadau cymhleth GGiD drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg. 
 
Mae Menter Iaith Sir Caerffili yn dosbarthu llinynnau a bathodynnau addas i amrywiaeth o 
sefydliadau gan gynnwys ysgolion a busnesau ar draws y Sir. 
 
Rydym yn darparu laynyards a bathodynnau ar gyfer aelodau o staff sydd â sgiliau iaith Gymraeg neu 
sy'n dysgu Cymraeg er mwyn dangos bod gwasanaeth drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg ar gael.  Mae 
gwybodaeth hefyd ar gael ar ein porthol i staff. 

GGiD  
 
 
Menter Iaith 
Caerffili 
 
Polisi 
Corfforaethol 

3.2 Cynllunio a chydlynu ymgyrch 
er mwyn dosbarthu 
bathodynnau ac arwyddion 
iaith Gymraeg ar draws 
busnesau a mudiadau er mwyn 
cefnogi pobl leol i ddefnyddio’r 
Gymraeg. 

Fel rhan o’n Prosiect Y Gymraeg mewn Busnes, mae Menter Iaith Sir Caerffili yn dosbarthu 
bathodynnau ac arwyddion iaith Gymraeg ymysg busnesau a sefydliadau’r Sir. Mae’r prosiect yn 
cefnogi busnesau i gynyddu eu defnydd o’r Gymraeg ac mae dangos yn glir bod gwasanaethau 
dwyieithog ar gael i’r cyhoedd yn rhan bwysig o’r broses.  
 
Mae’r Cyngor yn cydweithio gyda’r Fenter Iaith er mwyn sicrhau bod busnesau lleol yn ymwybodol  
o’r angen i hyrwyddo gwasanaethau trwy’r Gymraeg yn y fwrdeistref sirol - cysylltiadau trwy Fforwm 
Busnes Caerffili. 

Menter Iaith 
Caerffili 
 
 
 
Polisi 
Corfforaethol 

3.3 Cefnogi datblygiad a hyrwyddo 
cyfeirlyfr/ffônlyfr o 
wasanaethau cyfrwng Cymraeg 
lleol. 

Fel 1.1 
 
Yn ystod Ebrill-Mai 2017, lansiodd Menter Iaith Sir Caerffili, cyfeirlyfr o wasanaethau cyfrwng 
Cymraeg o fewn y Sir. Dosbarthwyd y cyfeirlyfr yn eang ar draws y sir a derbyniwyd ymateb 
cadarnhaol iawn i’r adnodd. Rydym yn trafod ar hyn o bryd y posiblirwydd o ddatblygu’r wybodaeth i 
fod yn adnodd ar lein a rhyngweithiol. 
 
Mae hyrwyddo'r gwaith hwn yn mynd rhagddo gyda Menter Iaith Caerffili. 
 

GGiD  
 
Menter Iaith 
Caerffili 
 
 
 
Polisi 
Corfforaethol 

P
age 352



 

32 
 

3.4 Cefnogi a hyrwyddo datblygiad 
Ffiliffest, gŵyl flynyddol Menter 
Iaith Caerffili sy’n dathlu’r iaith 
Gymraeg a threftadaeth leol.   
Byddai hyn yn cynnwys 
cefnogaeth gan adrannau megis 
Twristiaeth, Hamdden, 
Datblygu’r Celfyddydau, 
Gwasanaeth Ieuenctid a 
Chyfathrebu.  

Mae Tîm Cyfathrebu CBSC yn parhau i gefnogi a hyrwyddo'r digwyddiad blynyddol hwn drwy'r holl 
sianeli cyfathrebu sydd ar gael iddo.  
 
Mae Cymraeg i blant yn cefnogi digwyddiad blynyddol Ffiliffest gyda gweithgareddau ar gyfer plant 
meithrin. 
 
Fel 1.1 
 
Yn ystod mis Mehefin 2018, cynhaliodd y Fenter ei gŵyl haf, Ffiliffest, unwaith eto eleni yng 
Nghastell Caerffili. Mynychodd yn agos at 5000 o bobl yr wyl a cefnogwyd y diwrnod gan aelodau’r 
Fforwm yn ogystal â nifer o sefydliadau eraill. Derbyniwyd cefnogaeth gwerthfawr gan swyddogion 
marchnata a chyfathrebu Cyngor Caerffili. 
 

Yn ystod yr ŵyl, darparwyd rhaglen o weithgareddau amrywiol i blant a teuluoedd yn ogystal ag 
ardal gemau fideo a llwyfan gyda cerddoriaeth byw. Cynhelir yr ŵyl unwaith eto yn 2019ar Fehefin 
29ain ac rydym yn awyddus iawn i gydweithio ag adrannau amrywiol y Cyngor er mwyn hyrwyddo a 
datblygu’r ŵyl ymhellach.  

 
Rydym yn cydweithio yn agos gyda’r Fenter Iaith trwy greu cyswllt rhyngddynt hwy a gwasanaethau’r 
Cyngor.  Rydym yn eu cefnogi mewn cyfarfodydd gyda gwasanaethau penodol er mwyn ceisio 
adeiladu perthynas a sicrhau bod y cydweithio yn llwyddiannus. 

Tîm Cyfathrebu 
 
 
Cymraeg i Blant 
 
 
GGiD 
 
Menter Iaith 
Caerffili 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Polisi 
Corfforaethol 

3.5 Sicrhau fod mewnbwn a 
gweithgareddau cyfrwng 
Cymraeg o fewn rhaglen 
digwyddiadau cymunedol 
Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol 
Caerffili (Y Caws Mawr, Parti 
Traeth Coed Duon, 
marchnadoedd Nadolig ayyb). 

Mae Menter Iaith Sir Caerffili yn croesawu unrhw gyfle i gydweithio gyda Cyngor Caerffili er mwyn 
cynyddu’r gweithgareddau cyfrwng Cymraeg sydd ar gael o fewn ei rhaglen digwyddiadau 
cymunedol. 
 

Fe fydd Menter Caerffili yn darparu gwasanaeth cyhoeddiadau cyhoeddus dwyieithog ar ran y 
Cyngor o fewn rhai o’i ddigwyddiadau gan gynnwys Y Caws Mawr yn 2019. 
 
Rydym yn gweithio gydag adrannau'r Cyngor i godi ymwybyddiaeth ac i sicrhau cydymffurfiaeth â 
Safonau'r Gymraeg wrth greu dogfennau marchnata ddwyieithog. 

Menter Iaith 
Caerffili 
 
 

 
 
 
Polisi 
Corfforaethol 

  

P
age 353



 

33 
 

Maes Strategol 4 – Gwasanaethau 
Cymraeg 

Gweledigaeth: Hyrwyddo a gwella argaeledd gwasanaethau cyfrwng Cymraeg yn y 
fwrdeistref. 

Blaenoriaethau Strategol 
• Y safonau iaith perthnasol yn cael eu gweithredu. 
• Dylai uwch reolwyr y cyngor dangos ymrwymiad cryf i'r iaith Gymraeg mewn trefniadau cydweithio a chontractau a dogfennau comisiynu 3ydd parti 
• Dosbarthiadau Cymraeg ar gael i staff y cyngor a sefydliadau partner 

 
4.1 Parhau i annog pob adran o fewn y 

Cyngor i ddefnyddio nwyddau a 
bathodynnau Iaith Gwaith (Safon 68). 

Gweler 3.1 uchod. 
 
Gweler 3.1. uchod 
 
Fel 3.1 

Tîm Cyfathrebu 
 
Polisi 
Corfforaethol 
 
GGiD 

4.2 Cefnogi ac annog siaradwyr Cymraeg 
ymhlith gweithwyr y Cyngor i 
ddefnyddio eu sgiliau iaith Gymraeg yn 
y gweithle. 

Mae'r staff i gyd yn ateb ffonau yn ddwyieithog.  Mae'r staff yn mynychu dosbarthiadau 
Cymraeg os dewisant.  
 
Fel 3.1 
 
Rydym yn gwisgo bathodynnau a lanyards er mwyn i siaradwyr a dysgwyr gael cyfle i 
ddefnyddio eu sgiliau iaith Gymraeg llafar.  Rydym hefyd wedi darparu cyfres o wybodaeth ar 
ein porth i gefnogi staff i ddeall Safonau'r Gymraeg a sut i'w rhoi ar waith. 
 

Uwchben y clociau amser staff ac ar bob lifft ar bob llawr ym mhencadlys y Cyngor,  
mae fframiau ar y wal sy'n dangos Ymadrodd yr Wythnos.  Ceir cyfres ohonynt yn cynnwys 
ymadroddion ar gyfer gwaith a rhai anffurfiol yn ymwneud â gwyliau.  O dan yr ymadroddion 
mae disgrifiad ffonetig o sut i ynganu'r ymadrodd. 
 

Crëwyd cardiau penddesg i staff ar sut i ateb y ffôn yn ddwyieithog, sut i wneud negeseuon 
dwyieithog Allan o Swyddfa, negeseuon peiriant ateb a system ffôn awtomataidd dwyieithog, 
gyda’r Gymraeg yn gyntaf. 
 

Mae gan yr awdurdod drwydded sefydliad ar gyfer Cysgliad ac mae'r feddalwedd ar gael ar 
holl gyfrifiaduron y Cyngor gyda chanllaw staff ar sut i ddefnyddio'r meddalwedd sydd ar gael 
ar Borthol yr Uned Polisi Corfforaethol.  Adnewyddir y drwydded yn flynyddol. 

Teuluoedd yn 
Gyntaf 
 
GGiD  
 
Polisi 
Corfforaethol 

  

P
age 354



 

34 
 

4.3 Cynllunio er mwyn gwella darpariaeth 
gwasanaeth wedi ei seilio ar adborth 
a’r nifer o gwynion a dderbyniwyd. 

Byddwn yn sicrhau bod unrhyw gwynion a dderbyniwyd yn cael eu cofnodi, eu hymchwilio a 
bod unrhyw newidiadau sydd angen, yn cael eu gwneud yn unol â Safonau’r Gymraeg. 

Polisi 
Corfforaethol 

4.4 Datblygu Cynllun Gwobrwyo ar gyfer 
cyrsiau i ddysgwyr yr iaith Gymraeg – 
Dysgwr y Flwyddyn/Gwasanaeth sy’n 
dangos y cynnydd mwyaf ayyb. 

Mae cynlluniau ar y gweill i roi Cynllun Cydnabod Staff ar waith a gobeithir y bydd un o'r 
gwobrau yn un am Wasanaeth neu Dîm sy'n cydymffurfio'n dda neu am Wasanaeth/Tîm 
Dwyieithog y mis. 

Polisi 
Corfforaethol 

4.5 Grwpiau/digwyddiadau ar gyfer 
dysgwyr o fewn y Cyngor i ymarfer eu 
sgiliau iaith Gymraeg. 

Rhannu gwybodaeth yn rheolaidd ar Facebook a Thrydar Cyngor Sir Caerffili a Menter Caerffili 
ar gyfer Sadyrnau Siarad Dysgu Cymraeg Gwent gyda staff i godi ymwybyddiaeth am y 
cyfleoedd sydd ar gael i ymarfer/Siarad Cymraeg tu allan i’r gwaith/dosbarth. 
 
Mae Menter Iaith Sir Caerffili yn awyddus i gefnogi dysgwyr y Gymraeg ar draws y Sir ac yn 
trefnu rhaglen o gyfleoedd wythnosol a misol ar eu cyfer. Rydym yn awyddus i hyrwyddo’r 
cyfleoedd hyn ymysg dysgwyr y Cyngor. 
 
Gyda swyddog hyfforddi nawr yn ei swydd rydym yn gobeithio sefydlu grŵp yn fuan.  
Gobeithir y byddai sefydliadau megis y Fenter Iaith yn dod i mewn i drafod a hyrwyddo eu 
gwasanaethau. 

Canolfan Dysgu 
Cymraeg Gwent 
 
 
Menter Iaith 
Caerffili 
 
 
Polisi 
Corfforaethol 

4.6 Cysylltu â phartneriaid er mwyn canfod 
faint o swyddi iaith Gymraeg hanfodol 
sydd ganddynt, natur y swyddi a sut y 
cânt eu recriwtio. 

Gofynnir i staff Teuluoedd yn Gyntaf a ydynt yn siarad Cymraeg neu unrhyw iaith arall felly 
rydym yn ymwybodol o sgiliau ein timau staff. Mae rhai swyddi Cymraeg hanfodol yn ein Tîm 
Allgymorth Canolfan Adnoddau Arbennig sy'n gweithio mewn ysgolion cyfrwng Cymraeg. 

Teuluoedd yn 
Gyntaf 

4.7 Cysylltu â phartneriaid er mwyn canfod 
pa fudiadau sy’n darparu hyfforddiant 
Ymwybyddiaeth Iaith i staff a sut 
darperir yr hyfforddiant. 

Mae hyfforddiant iaith Gymraeg ar gael i staff mewnol. Rydym bellach yn hyrwyddo'r cyrsiau 
sy'n cael eu hysbysebu ar learnwelsh.cymru i bob partner allanol ac yn eu cysylltu â chymorth 
o Goleg Gwent. 
 
Mae Menter Iaith Sir Caerffili yn medru darparu hyfforddiant Ymwybyddiaeth Iaith wedi ei 
deilwra at adrannau penodol. 

Teuluoedd yn 
Gyntaf 
 
 
Menter Iaith 
Caerffili 

  

P
age 355



 

35 
 

4.8 Defnyddio’r wybodaeth a gasglwyd ym 
mhwynt 4.6 uchod i ddatblygu rhaglen 
marchnata gan gynnwys ffair swyddi 
cyfrwng Cymraeg yn flynyddol er 
mwyn cynyddu ymwybyddiaeth ymysg 
y gymuned a phobl ifanc am gyfleoedd 
gyrfa posib ar gyfer siaradwyr y 
Gymraeg. 

Fel y nodwyd eisoes, mae Menter Iaith Sir Caerffili yn awyddus i gefnogi rhaglen marchnata 
swyddi cyfrwng Cymraeg a’r cyfleoedd o fewn sectorau amrywiol ar gyfer siaradwyr 
Cymraeg. 
 
Mae trafodaethau cychwynnol yn cael eu cynnal rhwng y Swyddogion Iaith Gymraeg 
rhanbarthol, y Mentrau Iaith perthnasol, Gyrfa Cymru a phartneriaid eraill sy'n ymwneud â 
chyflawni’r Strategaeth Iaith Gymraeg Pum Mlynedd.  Byddai’r Cyngor â diddordeb mawr 
mewn sicrhau bod digwyddiad o’r fath yn cael ei gynnal er mwyn codi ymwybyddiaeth 
ymhlith disgyblion ysgolion cyfrwng Cymraeg a myfyrwyr lleol am y galw sydd am siaradwyr 
Cymraeg mewn gweithleoedd ac i sicrhau eu bod nhw’n rhoi gwerth ar yr iaith.  Byddwn yn 
cydweithio fel Fforwm Iaith i geisio trefnu digwyddiad o’r fath. 

Menter Iaith 
Caerffili 
 
 
Polisi 
Corfforaethol 

4.9 Adrannau’r Cyngor i gofnodi manylion 
pan fo aelod o’r cyhoedd yn nodi eu 
bod am gynnal galwadau ffôn trwy 
gyfrwng y Gymraeg (Safon 21). 

Tîm Cymorth Canolog Teuluoedd yn Gyntaf i gadw cofnod o unrhyw alwadau lle’n briodol. 
 
 
Mae GGiD yn cofnodi manylion cysylltiadau mewn lleoliadau a grwpiau sy'n dymuno 
cyfathrebu drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg, ynghyd ag aelodau o'r cyhoedd yn gyffredinol. 
 
Rhaid i adrannau unigol y Cyngor sicrhau eu bod nhw’n cofnodi hyn ac wedyn yn gwneud yn 
siŵr bod pob galwad a wnaed i’r person hynny yn cael eu gwneud yn eu dewis iaith.  Byddwn 
yn gweithio gydag adrannau ar sut i roi systemau tebyg ar waith. 

Teuluoedd yn 
Gyntaf 
 
GGiD  
 
 
Polisi 
Corfforaethol 

4.10 Cynyddu ymwybyddiaeth o 
ddarpariaeth gwasanaethau cyfrwng 
Cymraeg er mwyn cwrdd â gofynnion y 
cynnig gweithredol a chynyddu 
ymwybyddiaeth o’r gallu i gysylltu â’r 
awdurdod lleol trwy gyfrwng y 
Gymraeg dros y ffôn, wyneb yn wyneb 
neu trwy gyfathrebiaeth ysgrifenedig. 

Mae'r Gwasanaeth Addysg Oedolion yn gweithio gyda nifer o asiantaethau ar draws y 
fwrdeistref ac yn hyrwyddo'r Gymraeg lle bynnag y bo'n bosibl.  Gofynnir i bob darpar ddysgwr 
yn ystod y camau ymgysylltu cychwynnol a fyddai'n well ganddynt gael cymorth yn Gymraeg a 
hefyd pe byddai'n well ganddynt gael cyrsiau a gyflwynir yn Gymraeg, hyd yma nid oes unrhyw 
un wedi mynegi diddordeb. 
 
Rhoddwyd cyflwyniad Cymraeg i sefydliadau partner yn 2017/18. 
 
 
Mae’r GGiD yn annog lleoliadau a grwpiau sy'n dymuno cyfathrebu drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg 
ynghyd ag aelodau o'r cyhoedd i gysylltu â'r GGiD gan ddefnyddio'r dull a ddewiswyd ganddynt 
drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg. 
 
 

Addysg 
Gymunedol 
 
 
 
 
Teuluoedd yn 
Gyntaf 
 
GGiD  
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 356



 

36 
 

Mae Menter Iaith Sir Caerffili yn awyddus i gefnogi Cyngor Caerffili wrth gynyddu 
ymwybyddiaeth y cyhoedd o argaeledd gwasanaethau cyfrwng Cymraeg yn ogystal â 
chefnogi’r Cyngor i fesur cynnydd wrth gwrdd â gofynnion y cynnig gweithredol.  
 
Mae templed llythyr y Cyngor yn nodi 'Gallwch ohebu mewn unrhyw iaith neu fformat.  Ni 
fydd gohebu yn Gymraeg yn creu unrhyw oedi.'  Rydym hefyd yn hysbysu yn Newsline. 
‘Rydym yn croesawu galwadau yn Gymraeg’ ac mae'r Gyfadran Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol 
wedi rhedeg hyfforddiant Y Cynnig Gweithredol i staff. 

Menter Iaith 
Caerffili 
 
 
Polisi 
Corfforaethol 

4.11 Datblygu partneriaethau gwell rhwng 
adrannau’r Cyngor a phartneriaid.   

Mae'r Gwasanaeth Addysg Oedolion yn gweithio gyda nifer o asiantaethau ar draws y 
fwrdeistref ac yn hyrwyddo'r Gymraeg lle bynnag y bo'n bosibl.  Rydym wedi cynnig nifer o 
gyrsiau Cymraeg yn y blynyddoedd diwethaf trwy weithio mewn partneriaeth gyda Choleg 
Gwent a Menter Iaith Caerffili. 
 
Mae llawer o drafodaeth gyda phartneriaid dros y flwyddyn wedi ein helpu i godi 
ymwybyddiaeth o'r safonau. 
 
Gwaith partneriaeth wedi’i sefydlu – GGiD a’r Fenter Iaith, Mudiad Meithrin ac ati, 
 
Mewn cyfarfodydd byddwn yn hyrwyddo partneriaethau gwahanol gan gynnwys y 
sefydliadau ar y Fforwm Iaith gyda'r Fenter Iaith os yn berthnasol. 

Addysg 
Gymunedol 
 
 
 
Teuluoedd yn 
Gyntaf 
 
GGiD 
 
Polisi 
Corfforaethol 

  

P
age 357



 

37 
 

Maes Strategol 5 – Y Gweithle Gweledigaeth: Cynyddu’r cyfleoedd i bobl ddefnyddio'r Gymraeg yn y gweithle. 
Blaenoriaethau Strategol 
• Cynyddu sgiliau ac ymwybyddiaeth iaith Gymraeg ymhlith rheolwyr lleol 
• Cynyddu'r wybodaeth iaith Gymraeg am sgiliau ieithyddol y staff sy'n gweithio o fewn y cyngor a sefydliadau partner. 
• Cynyddu cydnabyddiaeth bod y Gymraeg yn sgìl gwerthfawr yn y gweithle 
• Codi ymwybyddiaeth o bwysigrwydd y Gymraeg fel sgìl wrth recriwtio, ymhlith y rhai sy'n gyfrifol am swyddi a chyflogaeth. 
• Galluogi a chefnogi staff rhugl a staff sy'n dysgu i ddefnyddio'r Gymraeg yn y gweithle. 
• Cydymffurfiaeth gan Wasanaethau a Gomisiynir a Darpariaeth Trydydd Parti annibynnol 

 
5.1 Cynyddu gwaith partneriaeth rhwng 

partneriaid a'r Cyngor er mwyn 
hyrwyddo gwerth y Gymraeg. 

Mae parhau i drafod gyda phartneriaid yn ystod y flwyddyn wedi ein helpu i godi 
ymwybyddiaeth o'r Safonau. 
 
Mae GGiD yn cymryd rhan mewn cyfarfodydd a digwyddiadau rhwydweithio er mwyn cynnal 
gwaith partneriaeth da. Digwyddiad rhwydweithio wedi'i drefnu ar gyfer 8fed Mehefin, 2019. 
 
Mae Menter Iaith Sir Caerffili yn gweithio mewn partneriaeth agos ag amrywiaeth o 
adrannau’r Cyngor gan gynnwys: Gwasanaeth Ieuenctid, Blynyddoedd Cynnar a Gofal Plant, 
Datblygu Economaidd, Tim RDP, Cefn Gwlad a Pharciau, Polisi a Chydraddoleb. Mae’r gwaith 
hwn yn cynnwys cyflawni gwaith ar eu rhan neu cydweithio er mwyn datblygu a darparu 
gwasanaethau cyfrwng Cymraeg. Rydym yn awyddus i weld y cyfleoedd hyn yn cynyddu er 
mwyn sicrhau fod y cyhoedd yn medru cael mynediad i drawstoriad eang o wasanaethau 
cyfrwng Cymraeg. Gwelwn fod potensial ehangach i ddatblygu cytundebau lefel gwasanaeth 
gydag adrannau er mwyn gwella’r ddarpariaeth cyfrwng Cymraeg trwy fanteisio ar brofiad ac 
arbenigedd y Fenter. 
 
Mewn cyfarfodydd byddwn yn hyrwyddo partneriaethau gwahanol gan gynnwys y sefydliadau 
sydd ar y Fforwm Iaith â’r Fenter Iaith os yn berthnasol. 

Teuluoedd yn 
Gyntaf 
 
GGID 
 
 
Menter Iaith 
Caerffili 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Polisi 
Corfforaethol 

  

P
age 358



 

38 
 

5.2 Annog busnesau a’r sector wirfoddol i 
ddefnyddio bathodynnau Iaith Gwaith 
er mwyn datblygu delwedd 
ddwyieithog.   

Fel rhan o brosiect Y Gymraeg mewn Busnes, Menter Caerffili, mae’r Swyddog Prosiect yn 
dosbarthu bathodynnau, arwyddion agor a chau a llinynnau i fusnesau a sefydliadau’r Sir. Yn 
ogystal â’r gefnogaeth ehangach i fusnesau, mae’r nwyddau hyn yn sicrhau fod nifer o fusneau 
yn medru datblygu delwedd dwyieithog sy’n annog siaradwyr Cymraeg y Sir i ofyn am 
wasanaeth cyfrwng Cymraeg. 
 
Rydym yn gweithio mewn partneriaeth â’r Fenter Iaith ac yn hapus i gefnogi ac annog 
busnesau bach a'r sector gwirfoddol i ddefnyddio bathodynnau Iaith Gwaith ac ati. 
 
Mae Gwasanaeth Ieuenctid CBSC yn gweithio i sefydlu 2il Glwb Ieuenctid Cymraeg yn ardal 
Tref Caerffili. 

Menter Iaith 
Caerffili 
 
 
 
 
Polisi 
Corfforaethol 
 
Gwasanaeth 
Ieuenctid 

5.3 Datblygu ymgyrch ar y cyd er mwyn 
cynyddu ymwybyddiaeth o 
wasanaethau cyfrwng Cymraeg 
presennol partneriaid megis llinellau 
ffôn, peiriannau hunanwasanaeth.   

Byddem yn hapus i weithio gyda'n gilydd ar yr ymgyrch hon, ac efallai y byddwn yn adeiladu 
ar, ac yn ehangu cyfeiriadur y Fenter Iaith o fusnesau Cymraeg.  Ystyried defnyddio Dewis lle 
bo'n berthnasol. 
 
Mae GGiD yn cofnodi ieithoedd a ddefnyddir mewn lleoliadau, grwpiau a gwasanaethau gofal 
plant ac yn sicrhau bod y wybodaeth hon ar gael drwy'r wefan a thrwy ymholiadau gan y 
ddesg gymorth. 

Polisi 
Corfforaethol 
 
 
GGiD 

5.4 Sicrhau bod hyfforddiant iaith 
Gymraeg ar gael i staff i ddysgu’r iaith 
o lefel sylfaenol i uwch/rhuglder. 

Mae hyfforddiant Iaith Gymraeg ar gael i staff mewnol. Rydym yn hyrwyddo'r cyrsiau a 
hysbysebir ar learnwelsh.cymru i bob partner allanol ac yn eu cysylltu â chymorth o Goleg 
Gwent.  
 
Rydym wedi bod yn darparu Cyrsiau Cymraeg yn y Gweithle i staff ers 2001 o lefel blasu i 
hyfedredd.   Rydym hefyd yn cynnig cyrsiau ar lein megis ‘Say Something in Welsh’ a chwrs 10 
awr ar-lein Cymraeg Gwaith.   Mae’r cyrsiau yn cael eu cynnig mewn modd hyblyg ac am ddim 
gyda staff yn cael eu cefnogi i fynychu cyrsiau. 

Teuluoedd yn 
Gyntaf 
 
 
Polisi 
Corfforaethol 

5.5 Sefydlu hyrwyddo’r Gymraeg fel 
amcan cydnabyddedig i reolwyr fel eu 
bod yn medru darparu tystiolaeth o’r 
gwaith a gyflawnir i gynyddu’r nifer o 
weithwyr sy’n siarad Cymraeg ac i 
hyrwyddo gwasanaethau cyfrwng 
Cymraeg 

Mae Cynllun Gweithredu Iaith Gymraeg ar waith. Teuluoedd yn 
Gyntaf 

  

P
age 359



 

39 
 

5.6 Datblygu adnodd ac ‘App’ sy’n dangos 
yr holl fusnesau a gwasanaethau sydd 
ar gael trwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg yn 
lleol er mwyn hyrwyddo’r cyfleoedd i 
ddefnyddio’r Gymraeg ar draws 
bywyd cymunedol. 

Yn dilyn llwyddiant cynhyrchu cyfeirlyfr o fusnesau a gwasanaethau cyfrwng Cymraeg y Sir, 
mae Menter Caerffili wrthi’n ymchwilio i’r cyfleoedd i ddatblygu’r adnodd fel ‘app’ neu 
fersiwn rhyngweithiol, digidol ohoni. Fe fydd angen sicrhau cyllid digonol ar gyfer y gwaith 
hwn yn ogystal â chasglu adborth gan defnyddwyr presennol yr adnodd. 
 
Lansiodd Menter Iaith gyfeiriadur y gwnaethom gyfrannu ato.  Mae'n rhoi gwybodaeth mewn 
un lle am ba wasanaethau sydd ar gael yn y fwrdeistref sirol.  Mae cynlluniau ar y gweill i 
wneud y cyfeiriadur yn electronig fel y gellir diweddaru'r manylion yn ôl yr angen. 
 
Fel 5.3 

Menter Iaith 
Caerffili 
 
 
 
Polisi 
Corfforaethol 
 
 
GGiD 

5.7 Hyrwyddo’r cyfleoedd i ddilyn gyrfa 
trwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg yn lleol fel 
partneriaeth o fudiadau.    

Yn dilyn llwyddiant cynhyrchu cyfeirlyfr o fusnesau a gwasanaethau cyfrwng Cymraeg y Sir, 
mae Menter Caerffili wrthi’n ymchwilio i’r cyfleoedd i ddatblygu’r adnodd fel ‘app’ neu 
fersiwn rhyngweithiol, digidol ohoni. Fe fydd angen sicrhau cyllid digonol ar gyfer y gwaith 
hwn yn ogystal â chasglu adborth gan defnyddwyr presennol yr adnodd. 
 
Rydym wedi bod yn hyrwyddo swyddi gyda’r cyngor yn nigwyddiad Sgil Iaith Sgil Gwaith Coleg 
y Cymoedd.  Mae angen i ddisgyblion a myfyrwyr adnabod pa mor werthfawr yw’r Gymraeg 
wrth chwilio am swydd neu ddewis gyrfa.  Cynnal trafodaethau ar hyn o bryd ynglŷn â chynnal 
ffair swyddi ar gyfer yr angen am siaradwyr Cymraeg mewn swyddi. 

Menter Iaith 
Caerffili 
 
 
 
Polisi 
Corfforaethol 

  

P
age 360



 

40 
 

Maes Strategol 6 – Y Seilwaith 
(Polisïau ac Arferion) 

Gweledigaeth: Bod cyrff a gwasanaethau yn integreiddio'r Gymraeg i bolisïau a gweithgareddau. 
 

Blaenoriaethau Strategol 
• Sicrhau bod y prosesau asesu effaith yn ystyried materion iaith Gymraeg yn unol â Safonau Iaith Gymraeg 88-90. 
• Sicrhau bod arferion datblygu polisi’r Cyngor yn cydymffurfio â'r Safonau Creu Polisi perthnasol 
• Sicrhau y cynhelir adolygiad o’r Strategaeth hon ar ôl 5 mlynedd fel sy'n ofynnol o dan Safon 146. 

 
6.1 Sefydlu’r Gymraeg fel rhan annatod o 

weithdrefnau/ymarferion ymgynghori 
(fel elfen i’w hystyried yn ogystal â’r 
mudiadau sy’n rhan o’r ymgynghori). 

Mae pob ymgynghoriad wedi bod ar gael yn Gymraeg neu rydym wedi gofyn am ddewis iaith y 
rhai sy'n eu cwblhau. 
 
Mae Menter Iaith Sir Caerffili eisoes yn gweithio mewn partneriaeth â Chyngor B.S.Caerfili er 
mwyn sicrhau fod siaradwyr Cymraeg y Sir yn medru cyfrannu at ymgynghoriadau trwy 
gyfrwng y Gymraeg. Yn ystod y cyfnod dan sylw, mae’r Fenter wedi cefnogi’r Panel Safbwynt, 
trwy gydlynu ac arwain panel cyfrwng Cymraeg. Yn ogystal, bu’r Fenter yn cefnogi’r broses o 
lunio’r Asesiad Lles a’r Cynllun Lles, trwy hwyluso sesiynau cyfrwng Cymraeg gyda’r cyhoedd. 
Byddwn yn parhau i gefnogi yn y modd hwn ac yn croesawu cyfleoedd pellach i gefnogi 
ymarferion ymgynghori Cyngor Caerffili. 
 
Rydym yn sicrhau fod adrannau yn creu ethos ymgynghori yn ddwyieithog ac yn cefnogi 
siaradwyr Cymraeg i gymryd rhan yn yr ymgynghoriadau hynny.  Rydym yn gweithio’n agos 
gyda’r Fenter Iaith sy’n helpu pan fyddwn yn rhedeg ymgynghoriadau fel ar wahanol bynciau.  
Rydym yn hapus i hwyluso’r digwyddiadau ac i gynnal bwrdd o siaradwyr a dysgwyr Cymraeg. 

Teuluoedd yn 
Gyntaf 
 
Menter Iaith 
Caerffili 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Polisi 
Corfforaethol 

6.2 Sefydlu’r Gymraeg fel rhan annatod o 
ddatblygu ac asesu effaith polisïau 
arfaethedig Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol 
Caerffili. 

O dan adran 6 o dempled adroddiadau’r Cyngor sef Goblygiadau Cydraddoldeb dylid ystyried 
yr iaith Gymraeg.  Mae canllawiau ar gael i staff ar ein porthol a dylai pob aelod o staff fod yn 
ymwybodol am Safonau’r Gymraeg a’u hystyried wrth ysgrifennu polisïau.  Dylid sicrhau nad 
oes effaith negyddol ar yr iaith Gymraeg a bod y Gymraeg ddim yn cael ei thrin yn llai ffafriol 
na’r iaith Saesneg. 

Polisi 
Corfforaethol 

6.3 Sefydlu ffactorau iaith Gymraeg fel 
rhan annatod o ddatblygiadau 
cynllunio yn nhermau tai ac ehangu 
darpariaeth addysg, yn arbennig 
lleoedd addysg Gymraeg.   

  

  

P
age 361



 

41 
 

6.4 Annog partneriaid ehangach i ystyried 
y Gymraeg fel rhan annatod o 
ddatblygu ac asesu effaith polisïau a 
gweithdrefnau arfaethedig.   

Parhau i drafod gyda phartneriaid yn ystod y flwyddyn wedi ein helpu i godi ymwybyddiaeth 
o'r safonau. 
 
Staff yr Urdd wedi ymwreiddio o fewn Fforwm Ieuenctid y Gwasanaeth Ieuenctid. 

Teuluoedd yn 
Gyntaf 
 
Gwasanaeth 
Ieuenctid 

 
 

P
age 362


	Agenda
	3 Cynhaliwyd y Cabinet ar 12 Mehefin 2019.
	4 Astudiaeth Ddichonoldeb Ansawdd Aer Hafod-yr-ynys.
	Hafod-Yr-Ynys Air Quality Feasibility Study - Final Plan
	CABINET – 26TH JUNE 2019
	SUBJECT: HAFOD-YR-YNYS AIR QUALITY FEASIBILITY STUDY – FINAL PLAN
	REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION AND CORPORATE SERVICES

	Hafod-Yr-Ynys Air Quality Feasibility Study - Final Plan App
	Environment & sustainability scrutiny COMMITTEE -
	25TH june 2019
	SUBJECT: Hafod-yr-ynys air quality feasibility study - final plan
	REPORT BY: Interim corporate Director, Communities
	1. PURPOSE OF REPORT
	2.1 The national nitrogen dioxide air quality objectives are being exceeded at receptor locations on Hafod-yr-ynys Road.  The continuous nitrogen dioxide monitor at Hafod-yr-ynys forms part of DEFRA’s national Automatic Urban and Rural Network (AURN)....
	3. RECOMMENDATIONS
	4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS
	6. ASSUMPTIONS
	7.  LINKS TO RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES
	9. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS
	10. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
	11. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS
	12. CONSULTATIONS
	13. STATUTORY POWER

	Hafod-Yr-Ynys Air Quality Feasibility Study - Final Plan App 1
	Option 1 GA.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	Option 2 GA.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	OP5 e GA.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	Option 3 GA.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Sheet 1

	Sheets and Views
	Sheet 2


	Option 4 GA.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	101_General Arrangement-Layout1.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	101_General Arrangement-Layout1


	102_Cross Sections_recover-Layout1.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	102_Cross Sections_recover-Layout1


	102_Cross Sections-Layout1.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	102_Cross Sections-Layout1


	103_Detail Cross Sections-Layout1.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	104_Long Section-Layout1.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	104_Long Section-Layout1


	SK02_Cross Sections-Layout1.pdf
	SK03_Bore hole locations-Layout1.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	SK03_Bore hole locations-Layout1


	SK04_Cross Sections for Comment-Layout1.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	SK04_Cross Sections for Comment-Layout1



	Hafod-Yr-Ynys Air Quality Feasibility Study - Final Plan App 2
	Introduction
	Method
	Engagement
	Social Media
	Survey

	Survey Findings
	Respondent Profile (n=54)
	Gender (n= 54)
	Age Groups (n=53)




	5 Grantiau Adfywio - Ymgynghoriad Ehangach.
	6 Adroddiad Ynni a Charbon.
	7 Adriddiad Blynyddol Safonau'r Gymraeg 2017-2018 ac Adroddiad Cynydd Blynyddol ar Strategaeth Yr Iaith Gymraeg 2017-2022.
	Adroddiad Cabinet Mehefin 2019 - Adroddiad Safonau'r Gymraeg
	Cabinet – 26ain Mehefin 2019
	PWNC: ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL SAFONAU’R GYMRAEG 2017-2018 AC ADRODDIAD CYNNYDD BLYNYDDOL AR STRATEGAETH YR IAITH GYMRAEG 2017-2022
	ADRODDIAD GAN: Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol, Addysg a Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol
	1. PWRPAS YR ADRODDIAD
	2. CRYNODEB
	3. ARGYMHELLION
	4. RHESYMAU DROS YR ARGYMHELLION
	5. YR ADRODDIAD
	6. TYBIAETHAU:
	7. CYSYLLTIADAU Â PHOLISÏAU PERTHNASOL Y CYNGOR
	7.1.2 Mae yna hefyd strategaethau neu reoliadau Lywodraeth Cymru y mae gwaith iaith Gymraeg y Cyngor yn cysylltu â nhw, gan gynnwys "Mwy Na Geiriau / More Than Just Words" (Strategaeth Iaith Gymraeg Cenedlaethol Iechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol), "Cymraeg ...

	8. LLESIANT CENEDLAETHAU'R DYFODOL
	9. GOBLYGIADAU CYDRADDOLDEB
	10. GOBLYGIADAU ARIANNOL
	11. GOBLYGIADAU PERSONÉL
	12. YMGYNGHORIADAU
	13. PWERAU STATUDOL
	Papurau Cefndir:
	Cynllun Cydraddoldeb Strategol 2016-2020
	Amcanion a Chynllun Gweithredu Cydraddoldeb a’r Gymraeg 2016-2020
	Hysbysiad Cydymffurfio – Adran 44 Mesur y Gymraeg (Cymru) 2011


	Adroddiad Blynyddol Safonau'r Gymraeg 2018-2019
	Mae’r adroddiad hwn ar gael yn Saesneg, ac mewn ieithoedd neu fformatau eraill ar gais. This report is available in English, and in other languages or formats on request.
	i) FFIGYRAU STAFF CYFFREDINOL
	iii) GWASANAETHAU CYMDEITHASOL A THAI

	Cyfanswm Staff â Sgiliau Cymraeg



